
City of Lemon Grove
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, June 2, 2015, 6: 00 p. m. 
Lemon Grove Community Center

3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and

Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Presentations

Annual Treganza History Essay Awards - Five award winners

from Vista La Mesa Academy ( Mrs. Pierre Finney, Teacher) 

Helix Water District - Mike Uhrhammer

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not
scheduled on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. 
If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless

removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled
will be considered at the end of the agenda.) 

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes

May 19, 2015 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

Reference: Susan Garcia, City Clerk
Recommendation: Approve Minutes

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands

Reference: Cathy Till, Finance Director
Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this

agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title
only

D. Records Management Program and Retention Schedules

The City Council will consider a resolution approving a records management
program and records retention schedule. 

Reference: Susan Garcia, City Clerk
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



E. Memorandum of Understanding with Lemon Grove Firefighters Association, Local
2728 of the International Association of Firefighters

The City Council will consider a resolution approving a three-year Memorandum
of Understanding between the City and the Lemon Grove Firefighters
Association, Local 2728. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

F. Job Descriptions Related to the Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Budget

The City Council will consider a resolution approving three job descriptions that
were discussed during the May 19, 2015 City Council budget agenda item. The

positions include Assistant Planner, Human Relations Manager, and

Administrative/ Accounting Assistant. 

Reference: Corinne Russell, Human Resources Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

2. Fiscal Year 2015- 2015 Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget

The City Council will consider four resolutions related to the adoption of the Fiscal
Year 2015-2016 Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget. The Roadway Lighting
District Board and the Sanitation District Board will also consider resolutions related

to the adoption of their respective budgets. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager & Cathy Till, Finance Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolutions

3. City Council Salary

The City Council will consider introducing an ordinance establishing City Council
salaries after the 2016 municipal election and a resolution adjusting the automobile
reimbursement allowance. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Introduce Ordinance No. 429 and Adopt Resolution

4. Recreation Focus Group

The City Council will consider providing direction to staff regarding the scope of
work for the Recreation Focus Group and the recruitment of community members to
serve on the Focus Group. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Provide Direction

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

53232. 3.(d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings attended
at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non -Action Items) 

Closed Session

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Evaluation

Title: City Attorney

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Appointment

Title: City Manager

Adiournment

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide special
accommodations for persons who require assistance to access, attend and/ or participate in meetings of the City
Council. If you require such assistance, please contact the City Clerk at (619) 825- 3800 or email



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency
May 19, 2015

Call to Order

Members present: Mary Sessom, George Gastil, Jerry Jones, Jennifer Mendoza, and Racquel Vasquez. 
Members absent: None. 

City Staff present: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Carol Dick, Development Services Director; 
Susan Garcia, City Clerk; Mike James, Public Works Director; Lt. May, Sheriff' s Department; Rick
Sitta, Fire Chief; Cathleen Till, Finance Director; and Michael Wapner, City Attorney. 

Presentation

Mayor Sessom presented the National Public Works Week proclamation to Mike James, Vivian

Macias, Tom Bell, and Dave Huey. 

Public Comment

John L. Wood expressed appreciation to the Public Works Department and commented on

speed enforcement signs. 

Helen Halmay, Lemon Grove Soroptimist, reported that they received the Desert Coast Region
2015 Communications Award for their website and social media outreach. 

Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
May 5, 2015 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape

Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016

E. On -Call Restoration Services Agreements

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Gastil, to
approve the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2015 — 3333: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Approving the Levy and Collection of Assessments with the Lemon Grove Wildflower
Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016



Resolution No. 2015 – 3334: Resolution of the' City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California' Approving Agreements with Restoration Management Company and 911 Restoration
of San Diego for On -Call Restoration Services in the City of Lemon Grove

2. Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Budgets for the City of Lemon Grove, Roadway
Lighting District, Sanitation District, and Successor Agency

Cathy Till explained that this report is a follow- up analysis regarding questions that the City
Council posed at its May

5th

meeting, as well as to present draft budgets for the General Fund, 

the General Reserve Fund, the other funds managed by the City, the Roadway Lighting District, 
the Sanitation District, and the Successor Agency for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( FY 2015- 16). 

The May 5th budget staff report indicated General Fund surpluses of approximately $ 737, 200 in

FY 2014- 15 and approximately $ 526, 500 in FY 2015- 16. Since that time, however, the latest

Heartland JPA (JPA) reconciliation revealed that the City will owe approximately $ 140, 000 for its

portion of the JPA shared costs in FY 2014- 15 due to mid -year staffing changes. Staff presents

both funds combined to reflect a full understanding of the surplus available for allocation. The

table below shows the combined surplus of both funds for the current fiscal year and for the next

fiscal year, along with combined fund balances: 

FY 2014- 15 FY 2015- 16

Beginning Combined Balance $ 3, 430, 000 $ 3, 517, 600

GeneralFund

am......................................._ 

61.7...2.0.0......................................... 563, 300

General Reserve Fund ( 529, 600) ( 260, 300) 

Combined Surplus 87, 600 300, 000

Ending Combined Balance $ 3, 517, 600 $ 3, 817, 600

Based on the current draft budget plan, the City' s combined general reserves increase by
approximately $ 387, 600 between July 1, 2014 and June 30, 2016. The negative surplus in the

General Reserve Fund in FY 2014- 15 is due mainly to the deferred maintenance projects
345, 000) and payment for a new fire engine and equipment ($ 114, 000). In FY 2015- 16, the

negative surplus in the General Reserve is due mainly to setting aside $ 150, 000 for the General
Plan Update project, $ 65, 000 for the installation of the exhaust system at the Fire Station, and

17, 500 for an executive search consulting firm. As a reminder, approximately $ 200, 000 of the
General Fund surplus in FY 2015- 16 is one- time funds resulting from a " true -up" from the State. 

At the May
5th

meeting, the City Council asked staff to present data related to law enforcement
activity. Specifically, staff was asked to provide comparisons of law enforcement per capita
ratios, calls for service at Citronica One and the Main Street Promenade, how calls are

prioritized by the Sheriff' s Department, data on response times, and historic law enforcement
staffing levels in the City. 

Although Lemon Grove has the lowest number of deputies per capita amongst the contract
cities, the City' s law enforcement complement is not dissimilar to five of the cities. Also, several
of the comparison cities have deputies assigned to schools and paid for through other sources. 

The City Council also asked about the number of calls for service to Citronica One and to the
Main Street Promenade. In 2014, the Sheriff' s Department was called to Citronica One a total
of 13 times— about once per month. Interesting to note, that as Citronica One' s management
became more proactive with several problematic tenants, the calls for service have trended
downward in 2015. 

9



Staff compared calls for service with other similar sized apartment complexes in the City. Using
call data from 19 other complexes, averaging 63 units ( similar to Citronica One' s 56 units), staff

determined that there were 0. 2 made per unit in 2014. Citronica One experienced 0. 25 calls per

unit. Using 2015 data in which Citronica One was able to reduce calls, the call ratio will be well
below the average for similar sized complexes in Lemon Grove. 

The Main Street Promenade experienced very high call volumes— a total of 133 calls in 2014 or

2. 5 calls per week to the site. Calls to this site are heavily influenced by the volume of transit
users. Staff also looked at 1St quarter data in 2014 and 2015 to identify any trends. Between

2014 and 2015, the calls for service at the Main Street Promenade dropped by 18 percent. 

Approximately $ 200, 000 of the anticipated surplus in FY 2015- 16 is derived from one- time

revenue. Staff recommends that this amount be allocated to paying down the City' s CalPERS
Unfunded Actuarial Liability. A lump sum payment of $ 200, 000 next fiscal year will generate an
approximate savings of $ 650,000 over the next twenty years, given current investment and
actuarial assumptions. If the City Council were to initiate this payment, staff recommends
establishing a separate fund to manage the collection of funds and distributions of payments to
CalPERS. 

Gas Tax Fund ( 2) – in FY 2015- 16, this fund has budgeted $ 825, 300 for street operations and

maintenance. This amount is $ 50, 500 more than the anticipated FY 2014- 15 budget, due

partially to the the City retaining $ 74, 500 in unspent funds from FY 2014- 15. However FY 2015- 

16 revenue is projected to be $ 98,400 less that FY 2014- 15 due to lower gas prices, an

increase in fuel efficient automobiles, as well as a decrease in the excise tax rate. 

Street Construction Reserve Fund ( 3) – In FY 2015- 16, the budget reflects $ 100, 000 to be spent

on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project. 

Park Land Dedication Ordinance Fund ( 5) – these restricted funds may only be used for capital
improvement projects associated with City parks. In FY 2015- 16, staff recommends that

64, 200 be expended on continuing park improvements, which may include expanding the
skate spot, replacing playground equipment, purchasing park furnishings, dog park play
structures, exercise equipment, and refurbishing the civic center fountain. 

Grants Fund ( 8) – this fund manages various grants totaling $ 479,700, including $ 225, 000 to be

spent on Safe Routes to School projects on Palm Street near the former Palm Middle School

and Golden Avenue near Golden Avenue Elementary School. In addition, if SANDAG awards

the City any or all of the grants that were applied for in April 2015, the revenue and expenditures
will be affected. 

CDBG Fund ( 9) – this fund will manage this year' s Community Development Block Grant
allocation in the amount of $ 169, 000 for street and sidewalk rehabilitation. 

TDA Fund ( 10) – these funds must be expended on maintaining and/ or improving public transit
facilities. The fund has approximately $ 130, 000 in unspent funds saved from prior years, which

must be expended on transit related improvements ( bus shelter/ pad upgrades). In addition, 

there is $ 237, 400 available for the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project, which is

projected to be expended in FY 2015- 16. 

TransNet ( 14) – In FY 2014- 15 the budget reflects total expenditures of $ 1, 911, 000. The

expenditures are as follows: $ 909, 000 on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project, 

139, 200 on traffic related projects, $ 201, 700 on storm drain maintenance and improvements, 

559, 700 on traffic and pavement projects, and $ 101, 300 on administrative expenses. 

Integrated Waste Reduction ( 21) – The purpose of this fund is to manage household hazardous

waste. This budget projects revenue of $ 22, 300 and expenditures of $ 42, 300. The fund

balance is projected to be $ 46, 700 at the end of FY 2015- 16. 

I



Wildflower Assessment District ( 22) — the budget reflects $ 9, 100 in revenue and $ 7, 700 in

expenditures. The ending fund balance is projected to be $ 6, 800. 

Serious Traffic Offender Program ( 23) — the budget reflects spending $ 10, 000 on traffic -related

expenditures ( supplies and equipment). 

Self -Insured Workers Compensation Reserve ( 25) — the fund projects interest revenue of

1, 400, a transfer to the General Reserve Fund of $ 25, 000, no expenditures, and an ending
fund balance of $ 501, 600 In addition, the fund has an accrued claims liability of approximately

175, 900, which represents the potential future cost of current claims. 

Storm Water Program Fund ( 26) — in FY 2015- 16, the budget reflects a total expenditure of
217, 000. This includes $ 37, 900 for staff costs, and $ 179, 100 for permitting, monitoring and

reporting functions. 

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( 27) — this fund collects impact fees

as required by the Regional Transportation Congestion Program. The budget projects spending
34, 000 on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project in FY 2015- 16. 

Self -Insured Liability Reserve ( 29) — the projected fund balance is $ 449, 800. This fund receives

a dividend from the City' s insurance pool, which is projected to be $ 20, 000. Offsetting that
revenue are costs of $20, 000. 

PEG Fund ( 30) — a Public Education and Governmental ( PEG) fund was established to collect

designated monies from cable franchisees that operate within the City. In FY 2015- 16, the
budget reflects $ 56,400 in revenue. The budget projects $ 36, 000 to be spent on connection
fees, $ 3, 000 on professional fees, and $ 50, 000 on one- time capital improvements to the

Community Center audio infrastructure. 

Housing Fund (31) — no activity is expected. 

Capital Reserve Fund — staff recommends creating this new fund to allocate funds for future
capital improvements and to account for multi- year projects. For example in FY 2014- 15, the

City Council allocated reserve funds for re -roofing City Hall. This project was not completed. 

Rather than re -budgeting the project, staff recommends transferring the General Reserve funds
to this new fund to pay for the project. 

Community Facilities District ( 33) — this fund collects assessments from properties adjacent to

the Main Street Promenade. Expenditures in this fund are limited to contractual services, repair

and maintenance, and utilities at the Main Street Promenade. The budget reflects total
revenues of $ 14, 600 and expenditures of $ 17, 800. As the adjacent properties develop, the
assessment revenue will increase, so the deficit will be eliminated. 

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds for two separate lighting
activities. Fund 11, the General Benefit Fund, provides funding for street light benefits
throughout the community. Fund 12, the Local Benefit Assessment Fund, provides for

enhanced lighting benefits at mid -blocks. Revenues in the two funds are expected to reach
245, 500 in FY 2015- 16. The funds pay for repair, maintenance, and energy costs of street

lights. The total expenditure is anticipated to be $ 319, 700 in FY 2015- 16. 

The Local Benefit Assessment District ( Fund 12) has entered into a 40 -month utility cost
repayment agreement with San Diego Gas & Electric. The repayment plan will be completed in
April 2017. The revenue generated by Fund 12 ($ 87, 100) is not sufficient to support its

operating costs ($ 195, 800) over the long term. Staff recommends that a future agenda item

address solutions to this issue. The projected combined fund balance in these two funds is
projected to be $ 367, 300 ($ 333, 300 in Fund 11, $ 34, 000 in Fund 12). 

M



The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages two funds— an Operations Fund ( 15) and a

Reserve Fund ( 16). In FY 2015- 16, the District anticipates generating $ 6. 0 million in total

revenue. Offsetting this revenue, the District anticipates expending $ 5. 2 million for operating
costs and $ 1. 5 million for capital improvement projects. The revenue and expenditure plan will

leave a balance of $ 14. 2 million in the District' s reserves at the end of the fiscal year. 

A portion of the City' s CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability ( UAL) is attributable to the

Sanitation District. The PERSable wages of the Sanitation District represent 33 percent of the

City' s total PERSable wages. This equates to the District' s share of the UAL being
approximately $ 1. 8. During the last auditor presentation, he indicated that enterprise districts, 
beginning in FY 2014- 15, are required to report unfunded liabilities as an expenditure in the
financial statement ( this requirement is from GASB 68). The draft Sanitation District budget

currently shows this expenditure as a line item in Fund 15 ( operational budget). Fund 15 also

includes an expenditure of $ 4, 000 for actuarial consulting services to determine the most cost
effective and prudent strategy for paying off the District' s liability. Staff recommends that a

future Sanitation District Board agenda item be dedicated to this discussion. 

In FY 2015- 16, the Successor Agency anticipates receiving approximately $ 3. 1 million in

Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund ( RPTTF) proceeds from the County. The FY 2015- 16
budget reflects bond interest payments totaling $ 1. 1 million, bond principal payments totalling

660, 000, various administrative costs totaling $ 250, 000, and a payment of $ 694, 400 to PERS

to pay down the Successor Agency' s share of the unfunded liability. Although is unlikely the
Successor Agency will receive the entire amount, due to the limited amount of RPTTF available, 
staff is including all of the items as placeholders, since all of them have been approved by the
DOF. Bond payments will always be paid first. 

In addition, staff anticipates spending $ 500, 000 on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment

Project, which is funded with bond proceeds. Once the Lemon Grove Realignment Project is

complete, the Successor Agency' s primary activity will be making bond payments. This will

result in minimal administrative reimbursements to the City. In addition, if approved, the

Successor Agency will make loan repayments to the City to the extent funds are available— it is

unknown when those payment will occur. 

Public Speaker( s) 

Brenda Hammond commented on the City' s law enforcement, street lighting, and the crosswalk
in downtown. 

After the discussion, direction was given to staff to prepare a final budget for City Council
consideration at the June 2nd meeting. 

3. Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 8. 48 and 18. 08 of the Lemon Grove
Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices

BMP) Manual

On May 5, 2015, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 428. The ordinance amends Sections
of Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) and Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation

and Grading) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with reference to the Lemon Grove Best
Management Practices ( BMP) Manual. The amendments are required for compliance with the

2013 Municipal Stormwater Permit and are consistent with updates being made by other cities in
the County. A full and detailed analysis was provided to the City Council in a staff report dated May
5, 2015, entitled Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 18. 08 and 8. 48 of the Lemon Grove
Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual. 



Public Speaker( s) 
There were no requests from the public to speak. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Gastil, to adopt
Ordinance No. 428 passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Ordinance No. 428: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California
Amending Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) and Chapter 18. 08
Excavation and Grading) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon

Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual

4. Ordinance No. 427 Approving Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 Amending the
Zoning District from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) 
for properties on the South Side of Broadway between 8305 Broadway and 8373
Broadway

On May 5, 2015, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 427 amending the Zoning District
from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) for the properties located on

the south side of Broadway between 8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway. The City Council
also adopted a resolution approving General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 which amended
the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to

Medium/ High Residential Density. 

Public So aker(s) 

Theresa Bailey and Rebecca McElyea commented on a vacant parcel near their residences. 

Andrea Riklin, Sandra Bush, and Winifred Green uged the City Council to adopt the ordinance
amending the zoning in their neighborhood. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Gastil, seconded by Councilmember Vasquez, to
adopt Ordinance No. 427 passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Ordinance No. 427: An Ordinance of the City Council of the :City of Lemon Grove, California
Approving Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 Amending the Zoning District from General
Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RHM) 

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. (GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

Councilmember Jones attended the East County Mayors Lunch, SANDAG and MTS meetings, 
the Kiwanis Safety Officers Appreciation Dinner, Lemon Grove' s Relay for Life, and the
Soroptimist Annual Awards dinner. 

Councilmember Mendoza attended Lemon Grove' s Relay for Life and the Soroptimist Annual
Awards dinner. 

Councilmember Gastil attended a LOSSAN meeting, 

rel



Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez attended a LAFCO meeting, Lemon Grove' s Relay for Life and the
Soroptimist Annual Awards dinner. 

Mayor Sessom attended Lemon Grove' s Relay for Life. 

Closed Session

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 6: Conference with Labor Negotiators

Agency Designated Representative: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Employee Organization: Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Appointment

Title: City Manager

Closed Session Report: No reportable action was taken. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency the meeting was adjourned at7:45 p. m. 

Susan Garcia, City Clerk

7



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary
Approved as Submitted: 

Cathleen Till, Finance Director ACH/ AP Checks 05/ 07/ 15- 05/ 14/ 15 778, 164. 66

For Council Meeting: 06/ 02/ 15
Payroll- OS/ 12/ 15 113, 253. 07

Total Demands 891,417. 73

CHECK

CHECK NO INVDICENO VENDOR NAME 04ECK DAIF. Desclitificin 11111hiDiCII AMOUN- I AMOUNT

ACH Apr 15 Calipers Supplemental Income 457 05/ 07/ 201. 5 45' 7 Plan 4/ 1/ 15- 4/ 28/ 15 14, 469. 04 14,469. 04

ACH 4154920380 SDG& E 05/ 07/ 2015 Electric Usage: St tight 3/ 31/ 15- 4/ 30/ 15 2, 784. 09 2, 784.09

ACH Apr 1. 5 Wells Fargo Bank 05/ 11/ 2015 Bank Service Charge Apr' 15 996. 1.9 996. 19

ACH 1000132509 City of San Diego 05/ 13/ 2015 Metro Sewer System FY15 . 4th QTR 577, 627= 577, 627. 00

ACH Arpl. 28' 15 Ca Public Empi Retirement System 05/ 13/ 2015 Pars Retirement 4/ 1/ 15- 4/ 28/ 15 92, 57204 92, 572, 04

ACH MaV12 15 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 05/ 13/ 20:15 Postage Usage 5/ 12/ 15 2', D 00 250. 00

ACH MaV12 15 Employment Development Dept 05/ 14/ 2015 Star. Taxes 5/ 12/ 15 5, 46759 5, 46759

3779 201504- 1362 Alpha & Omega Respirator Fit Testing 05/ 13/ 2015 Quantitative Fit Tests 37700 377. 00

3780 L1072895PE American Messaging 05/ 13/ 2015 Pager Replacement Program- May15 5034 5034

3781 M@Y15 AT& T 05/ 13/ 2015 Phone service - May' 15 308. 86 30886

3782 4379426 Bearcom 05/ 13/ 2015 Portable Radios Monthly Contract. 4/ 22/ 15- 5/ 21/ 15 150. 00 150. 00

3783 611002693 Broadway Auto Electric 05/ 1.3/ 2015 Power Inverter - LGPW904 378. 00 528130

611002697 Install Strobe Light 150. 00

3784 May12 15 California State Disbursement Unit 05/ 13/ 2015 Wage Withholding 267. 00 26700

3785 14862621 Canon Financial Services Inc 05/ 13/ 2015 Canon Copier Contract Charge- Mar,Apr, May' 15 Basement 257. 07 257. 07

3786 13026 City of El Cajon 05/ 13/ 2015 Overtime Reimbursement- Scan Heys 2/ 17/ 15 1, 10'770 5, 894. 16

13072 Overtime Reimbursement- Sean Flays 4/ 5/ 15 1, 107 20

13083 Overtime Reimbursement - Josh Royer 4/ 11/ 15, 4/ 12/ 15 1, 357, 51

13084 Overtime Reimbursement. Derek Dozier 4/ 12/ 15 211 6S

13085 Overtime Reimbursement. Gabe. Bellah- 4/ 11/ 15, 4/ 12/ 15 2, 107 20

3787 17077 City of La Mesa 05/ 13/ 2015 Overtime Reimbursement. Dorninic Provence 4/ 11/ 15 977. 13 3, 693, 93

17078 Overtime Reirnhursernant - Chris Kleist 4/ 11/ 15 1, 14191

17079 Overtime Reirnbumement lash Mast. 4/ 11/ 15 1, 128,81

17090 Overtime Reimbursement. Howard Gunter - 4( 9/ 15 44609

3788 1000133362 City of San Diego 05/ 13/ 2015 Metro Industrial Wastewater Program FY2014 2, 45700 2, 457, 00

3789 81440567 Corelogir. Information Solutions Inc. 05/ 13/ 2015 RealQuest Graphics Package Mai -15 300.. 00 63300

81474218 Re. lQuest Graphics Package - Apr' 15 300 00

81475685 Image Requests - Apr' 15 3300

3790 15CTOFLGNIO County of San Diego RCS 05/ 1. 3/ 2015 800 MHZ Network - Apr' 15 3, 017. 50 3, 01.. 0

3791 2015013223 County of San Diego - Recorder 05/ 13/ 20: 1. 5 Recording Services. 4/ 7/ 15 256, 00 25600

3792 5/ 7/ 2015 Cox Communications 0S/ 13/ 2015 Calserse Modern Une: 2259 Washington 5/ 6/ 15- 6/ 5/ 15 1957 Ir089 38

5/ 7/ 2015 Calsonse Modem Unv.: 7071 Mt Vernon 5/ 6/ 15- 6/ 5/ 15 1957

5/ 1/ 2015 Monthly Phone 5erwMay'. 15 City Hall 565, 64

5/ 1/ 2015 Fire Backup Phone Service May' 15 387.. 24

5/ 5/ 2015 Phone Service 3: 131 School Ln - 5/ 4( 15.. 6/: 3(: 1. 5 97 36

3793 041015- 9 Cutters Edge Fire Rescue Saws 05/ 13/ 2015 20" Bullet Chain 609 f1 J 609.. 67



3794 2839 D- Max Engineering Inc 05/ 1. 3/ 2015 WQTR 1st Review - Center Hilltop Condominiums 1, 702 10 1, 702, 10

3795 04150560 DAR Contractors 05/ 13/ 201. 5 Animal Disposal- Apr' 15 162, 00 162. 00

3796 28907 Dokken Engineering 05/ 1. 3/ 2015 Map Reviews/ St Dedications Apr' 15 1, 79750 1, 79750

3797 0424152305 Domestic Linen- California Inc, 05/ 13/ 2015 Shop Towels & Safety Mats 4/ 24/ 15 75. 25 150.50
0508152305 Shop Towels & Safety Mats 5/ 8/ 15 75, 25

3798 05/ 04- 07/ 15 Esgil Corporation 05/ 13/ 2015 75% Building Fees - 5/ 4/ 15- 5/ 7/ 15 4, 274. 30 4, 27430

3799 338741. Eva Truck & Equipment Co Inc. 05/ 13/ 2015 Fluid Replacement 64. 15 1, 20284

343054 Fluid Replacement 10177

51368 Vehicle Repair 1, 034, 92

3800 73348 Fire Etc 05/ 13/ 2015 Suppression Agent 1, 105. 92 2, 21184
74687 Suppression Agent 1, 105. 92

3801 6389440 Globalstar USA, Inc 05/ 13/ 2015 Satellite Service- 3/ 16/ 15- 4/ 15/ 15 95. 17 85. 17

3802 Uni- 3/ 17/ 15 Govea, Garrett 05/ 13/ 2015 Uniform Allowance - Coves 3/ 17/ 15 71. 62 71. 62

3803 0021483 IN HDL Coren & Cone 05/ 13/ 2015 Property Tax: Apr- Jun15 1, 98000 1, 980. 00

3804 May1..3 15 Herring, Karlin 05/ 13/ 2015 Springlarook Conference May4- 7 Portiand, OR - Molina 20659 259. 78
Jon Mar15 Mileage Reimbursement - 1/ 14/ 15- 3/ 29/ 15 Molina 5119

3805 109340 Knott' s Past Control, Inc, 05/ 13/ 2015 Monthly Bait Stations Berry St - May' 15 70. 00 175, 00
109341 Monthly Bait Stations- Civic Center May' 15 6000

109342 Monthly Bait Stations. Sheriff - May' 15 45. 00

3806 07- 1943 Lemon Grove School District 05/ 13/ 2015 Fuel Services - PW: Apr' 15 2, 348 13 3, 243. 93

071944 Fuel Services - FIRE: Apr' 15 895. 80

3807 Melendez Melendez, Ramon 05/ 13/ 2015 Refund/ APL- 150- 000I/ Melendez, Ramon 75. 00 75, 00

3808 00623315SNV Municipal Emergency Services Inc 05/ 13/ 201. 5 Fire Hose 976. 91. 1, 349. 21
00625374" SNV Field Repair Kit- Relief Valves 372.40

3809 MaV13 15 Perin, Matt 05/ 13/ 2015 FSA# 1. - 2015. Pepin, Matt 1, 03500 1, 035. 00

3910 May 15 PILIC- SET) Grand Island 05/ 13/ 2015 Dental Insurance - May' 15 3,' 7 54. 03 3, 754. 03

381.1 MaY12 15 Russell, Cort me 05/ 13/ 2015 Mileage- Russell 3/ 4/ 15- 5/ 11/ 15 134. 26 134. 26

3812 2015019676 SIC County rreasurer Tax Collector 05/ 13/ 201. 5 Personal Property/ Fixtures 7/ 1/ 15- 6/ 30/ 1. 6 3232 Main St 132. 28 215A5

201. 5- 01. 9677 Personal Property/ Fixtures - 7/ 1/ 1. 5- 6/ 30/ 1. 6 -' 78.5: 3 Central Ave 32 60

2015019679 Personal Property/ Fixtures - 7/ 7./ 15. 6/ 30/ 16 - 3232 Main St 50. 57

3913 Apr1. 5 SDG& E 05/ 1. 3/ 2015 Gas & Electric - 3/ 23/ 1. 5- 4/ 22/ 15 20, 21202 20, 21202

3914 2831305103 Sharp Rees- Stealy Medical Centers 05/ 13/ 201.5 Pre Placement Exam 58. 00 158. 00

2831305122 Pre Placement Exam 100. 00

3815 474811 South Coast Emergency Veh Services 05/ 13/ 2015 Cover Plate, Round Hub 94. 28 1, 872. 79
475022 Replacement Door 1, 778, 51

381. 6 5899 Spring Valley Lawn Mower Shop 05/ 13/ 2015 Tune up Hand Blower 98.. 69 173. 98
5921 Recoil Starter - Hand Blower 27, 83

6013 Trimmer Line 4746

3817 May 15 Standard Insurance Company 05/ 13/ 2015 Long Term Disability Insurance - May' 15 1, 73558 1, 735. 59

381. 9 Apr1.5 Staples -Credit Plan 05/ 1. 3/ 2015 Tempur Pedic Chairs, Office Supplies - Apr15 1, 22165 1, 221. 65

3819 44801 The East County Californian 05/ 13/ 2015 Notice of Public Hearing 4/ 27/ 1. 5 1. 15. 50 259. 00
44869 Notice of public Hearing 5/ 1. 1/ 15 143. 50

3820 0145097 The Light House 05/ 13/ 2015 Strobe Tube Light 47704 477. 04

3821 38142 Uniforms Plus, Inc 0511312015 Uniform Purchase- Burkett 4971. 8 1, 800 97

38154 Uniform Purchase- Medina 844 32



I
3825

3826

3827

3828

3829

3830

3831

3832

38579 Uniform Allowance- Ek 4/ 15/ 15

38580

38740

Uniform Purchase- Govea

CD05I5- 031 Urban Futures Inc

May12 15 Vantage Point Transfer Agents -457

Apr20 15 Verizon Wireless

Apr2O 15

Continuing Disclosure Svc: 2007, 2010, 2014 Bonds FY' 15

75221016 Waxle Sanitary Supply

May13 15 Hayward, Brian

May13 15 Drum, Daryn

May14 15 Affaro Jr, Florentino

MaV14 15 Bell, Thomas L

May:14 15 Dumas, Alexander

May14 15 Mendoza, Ricardo

MaV14 15 Sessam, Mary

Uniform Allowance- Ek 4/ 15/ 15 5000

Uniform Purchase- Govea 25. 00

Uniform Purchase. Drum 384.47

05113/ 2015 Continuing Disclosure Svc: 2007, 2010, 2014 Bonds FY' 15 5, 25000 5, 250. 00

05/ 13/ 2015 ICMA Deferred Compensation Pay Period Ending 5/ 12/ 15 280, 77 280, 77

05/ 13/ 2015 MDC Engine Tablets- 3/ 21/ 15- 4/ 20/ 15 19007 228. 08

EMSTablets- 3/ 21/ 15- 4/ 20/ 15 38, 01

05/ 13/ 2015 Cleaning Supplies 470,42 470A2

05/ 14/ 2015 Advance Per Diem: CFED Conference 5/ 17- 20/ 15, Hayward 243, 50 24150

05/ 14/ 2015 Advance Per Diem: CFED Conference 5/ 17- 21/ 15, Drum 319. 50 319. 50

05/ 14/ 2015 Payroll Re -issue 4/ 29/ 15- 5/ 12/ 15 664, 81 664.81

05114/ 2015 Payroll Re -issue 4/ 29/ 15- 5/ 12/ 15 2, 43377 2, 43377

05/ 14/ 2015 Payroll Re - issue 4/ 29/ 15- 5/ 12/ 15 656. 25 656.25

05/ 14/ 2015 Payroll Re - issue 4/ 29/ 15- 5/ 12/ 15 1, 54663 1, 546, 63

05/ 14/ 2015 Payroll Re - issue 4/ 29/ 15- 5/ 12/ 15 52551 525, 51

778, 164. 66 778,164. 66



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. D_ 

Mtg. Date June 2, 2015

Dept. .-...... ..._-City Manager' s Office

Item Title: Records Management Program and Retention Schedules

Staff Contact: Susan Garcia, City Clerk

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving the Records Management Program, Records
Retention Schedules and rescind Resolution No. 2045. 

Item Summary: 

The City is upgrading its Records management program, including its records retention schedules
and policies. Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc., an expert in local government records, was

selected to upgrade the records management program. 

The purpose of the records retention schedules are to apply efficient and economical methods to
the creation, maintenance, preservation and disposal of all records managed by the City. The

proposed retention schedules are in compliance with all laws and are standard business practice

for California cities. 

Lemon Grove will realize significant savings both in labor and storage expenses, including the
prevention of future off-site storage and/ or construction costs. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None. Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Negative Declaration

j Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft, 

Neighborhood meeting

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution — Exhibit A Records Retention Schedules. 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date June 2, 2015

Attachment A

Item Title: Records Management Program and Retention Schedules

Staff Contact: Susan Garcia, City Clerk

Discussion: 

The City is upgrading its records management program, including its records retention
schedules and policies. The adoption of the resolution will result in efficiency gains and cost
savings. 

Background

The City selected Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc., an expert in local government records, 

to upgrade its records management program. The firm has provided like services for over 150

California special districts, counties and cities. 

The President of Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc., Diane R. Gladwell, MMC, has met with

each Department and/ or Division to ensure the retention schedules met their business needs
within legal guidelines and discussed " best practices" of like departments in other cities, to

determine how to manage each records series. The department then reviewed and edited

subsequent versions. 

An upgrade to the existing program was necessary to reduce current and future records storage
costs, eliminate duplication of effort, increase efficiency and take advantage of current
technology and changes in law. The purpose of the program is to apply efficient and
economical methods to the creation, utilization, maintenance, retention, preservation and

disposal of all records managed by the City. 

The upgrade of the current records management systems are driven by many factors, including: 

Limited space in City facilities; 

Departments reported they are out of space to store their records; 

Many departments are filing and storing copies of the same records; 

The City produces and manages many records that law requires to be kept
permanently; 

Escalating off-site records storage expenses; 

Technology advancements; and
Changes in law. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the Resolution with Exhibit A, Records Retention
Schedules. 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA: 

APPROVING RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULES, AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF

CERTAIN CITY RECORDS, AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2045

WHEREAS the maintenance of numerous records is expensive, slows document

retrieval, and is not necessary after a certain period of time for the effective and efficient
operation of the government of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS Section 34090 of the Government Code of the State of California provides a

procedure whereby any City record which has served its purpose and is no longer required may
be destroyed; and

WHEREAS the State of California has adopted guidelines for the retention period for

various government records; and

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove previously adopted Resolution
2045, adopting a records retention schedule on May 16, 2000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Resolution No. 2045 is hereby rescinded. 

2. The records of the City of Lemon Grove, as set forth in the Records Retention
Schedules Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are
hereby authorized to be destroyed as provided by Section 34090 et seq. of the
Government Code of the State of California and in accordance with the provision of

said schedule upon the request of the Department Head and with the consent in

writing of the City Clerk and City Attorney, without further action by the City Council
of the City of Lemon Grove. 

3. With the consent of the City Clerk, City Manager, and City Attorney, updates are
hereby authorized to be made to the Records Retention Schedule without further
action by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove. 

4. The term " records" as used herein shall include documents, instructions, books, 

microforms, electronic files, magnetic tape, optical media, or papers; as defined by
the California Public Records Act. 

M



Exhibit A

HOW TO USE RETENTION SCHEDULES
01995- 2015 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc ( 909) 337- 3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

A legend explaining the information presented in the retention schedule has been printed on the back of
each page for your easy reference; an index to locate records is also provided. 

The specified retention period applies regardless of the media of the record: If a record is stored on paper

and a computer file on a hard drive, both records should be destroyed ( or erased) after the specified

period of time has elapsed. 

Copies or duplicates of records should never be retained longer than the prescribed period for the original

record. 

STRUCTURE: CITYWIDE, DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS

The City- wide retention schedule includes those records all departments have in common ( letters, 
memorandums, purchase orders, etc.). These records are NOT repeated in the Department retention

schedule, unless that department is the Office of Record, and therefore responsible for maintaining the
original record for the prescribed length of time. 

Each department has a separate retention schedule that describes the records that are unique to their

department, or for which they are the Office of Record. Where appropriate, the department retention

schedules are organized by Division within that Department. If a record is not listed in your department

retention schedule, refer to the City- wide retention schedule. An index will be provided for your reference. 

BENEFITS

This retention schedule has been developed by Diane R. Gladwell, MMC, an expert in Municipal
Government records, and will provide the City with the following benefits: 

Reduce administrative expenses, expedite procedures

Free filing cabinet and office space
Reduce the cost of records storage

Eliminate duplication of effort within the City
Find records faster

Easier purging of file folders
Determine what media should be used to store records

For questions, please contact the City Clerk. 

Authorization to Destroy Records: 

All original records that have exceeded their retention period must be authorized according to City Policies
Procedures prior to destroying them. 

Copies, drafts, notes and non -records do NOT require authorization, and can be destroyed " When No

Longer Required." 

If there is a minimum retention (" Minimum 2 years"), it must, be authorized before it is

destroyed, as it is an original record. 

If there is NOT a minimum retention (" When No Longer Required"), it does NOT need to be

authorized prior to destruction, as it is a preliminary draft / transitory record or a copy. 

On every page of the schedules ( near the top, just under the column headings) are important
instructions, including instructions regarding holds on destroying records. " Litigation, 

complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/ or investigations suspend

normal retention periods ( retention resumes after settlement or completion)." 



V) 

cn
a) 
C

u) 

N

L

O

o

a

cn7

U

O

o

ca

O

C

U

OO

Ox

C

U

o  G

UO - 

cu

U

O

m

c
ro

z

a) 

a] 

0

j

cu (

6

E

a) 

a) 

m

CL

a) 

o

U

w

a

U

O

O

a) 

O

O

U

O) (

n

O

E

m

u) 

E

p '

6

O

O

U > 

c (

n

O

1

a) 

O

D

c

E

p

E

u) 

C

Q

T

a) 

m

In

a) 

w

a) 

w

a) 

L

O

w

a) L

E

p1 ~ 

OC

O

C

O

O +° 

m

O = 

En = p
m

Y

V

41

U

m

O

a) 

Q = 

h

OUC
a) 

C

EO
U

N

O

OO_ U) 

DOU

p

CD

Y

c

D

Z

ly

Q

L

m

O

Q) 

C

t

L

EOEn

OD
U

O

U

a) 

u) 

n

n

aa) (

p

O

O

u) a) 

c

a

O

E _^ 

m

E

G

ro

U

a

m

ov

o

O

E

c

a) 

a) .— 

w

a) 

U

U

U

L 

m

c

O

ro

a) 

a) 

C

II) cu

U

C

O

C"(

n -

r- 

Ccn
OU

cn

L

o

a) 

oW

V
U

Z 

a) 

n

LLJ

m

Q) 

m

N

0
IE

Q

L

N

W

o

T(

D

CY

C

O

J ®.

N

a) 

oa) 

LU°

E

m

p

p

cn

n

C

M

1

C -

r- 

UJLJm3o

a) 

U
U

w ° 

E

E

0

U) 

c

fq

C

V
i

a

c

j

co

N

O

a) 

a) 

C ' 
0-

0

f0

Z
U

5

Q

Lo

L

L

O

U

U) p

N (

1) 

row

O) 

U

C

N
H

O

d) 

E

O

O) 

o
0

OL

OHo
m

L- 

4= 

ao

WO.

v

Lo

U) 

OI

O

O

C

fn
3

a

o

c' uJ

vE

a' 

o

E

o

eLO. 

o

n

O

i

O

uJa

LLJ
m

OQ

wO

m

p

U) 

O

Q

U

a) 

U

a

OU

E

w

tea) 

O_ 

L (

Ca

c

U

rocn

a0
o

n

U) 

c

V- 

L () 

m

fn

m

m () 

U

C

d

U 

o

uJ

o

a) 

a) 

a) 

v

a) 

a) 

c

n = 

O

m

E

E

F' 

U 

l+ 

a) 

m

a) 

a

Q. 

X

U

O

W > 

L - 

a

C

C

u) 

a) 

O

E

O

a) 

U

U 

L

m

U

O

p

a) 

a) 

a) m

CG

i

u) 

O > 

i

w

E

L

U

E

O — 

U

i = 

a)

In

C

O

o

O

U) 

O

C ) 

0

O

U

p

m
a) 
a

L

m

c

O

m

H

o

s

V) 

cna) 

C
u) 

N

L

O

o

a

cn7

U

O

o

ca

O

C

U

OO

Ox

C

U

o  G

UO - 

cu

U

O

m

cro

z

a) 

a] 

0

j

cu (

6

E

a) 

a) 

m

CL

a) 

o

U

w

a

U

O

O

a) 

O

O

U

O) (

n

O

E

m

u) 

E

p '

6

O

O

U > 

c (

n

O

1

a) 

O

D

c

E

p

E

u) 

C

Q

T

a) 

m

In

a) 

w

a) 

w

a) 

L

O

w

a) 

L

E

p1 ~ 

O
C

O

C

O

O +° 

m

O = 

En = 

p
m

Y

V

41

U

m

O

a) 

Q = 

h

OUC
a) 

C

E
O
U

N

O

OO_ 
U) 

DOU

p

CD

Y

c

D

Z

ly

Q

Q) 

U

u) 

a
a) (

p

u) 
a) 

DO) 

O

E _^ 

G

a

U

O

d

a) 

O

p

U

O

L 

m

O

U

O

C

C"(

n -

r- 

Ccn

cn

oU

w

oW
y

a) 

m

N

t) 

Q) 

a) 

T(

D

CY

C

3

Uar

m

p

p

cla) 

0ca
C

C

O

U— 
O

X0

d) 

a) 

2U
a) E

E

E

0

U) 

c

co

a) 

a) 

C ' 
0-

0

f0

p '— 

E

Lo

U

E

U

U (

0

O

U) 

p

C_ O) 

U

a) 

cn

W () 

a) 

a) 

O

O

O) 

o
0

OL

A-- 

m

4= ao

CO

Ea) 

E

vE

o

ri

U

C

eLO. 

m

U

E .

0

Y

L

0

2

v

U

a

OU

w

O_ 

L (

Ca

U) 

c

V- 

m

a) 

m

m

U

c

w

o

d

U 

a) 

v

a.

0

E

11

C> 

O

a`) 

pE

c

o

o

U 

l+ 

N

a

Q. 

L - 

d

U

0

E

Na

a) 

O

E

O

a) 

U

a

U .

0yE
U 

L

m

O

p - 

n >, 

U

S
m

fOY

d) 

SQ
G` 

a

0 -

0 -

0

0-

0-

0

C

C0o

E

O

C

I

O

o

o

a

0

0

o.

oc  

0

c

p

aa
a

EU

m

o

Q

Q. 

U

O

a) 

C

C
O

pU

a) 

a)  L

a) 

a)  

a) 

m

Oa) 

L

c

u) 

N

O

U

O

U

CLO

U

N

U

u1

a) 

Oa) 

O

U _

0a) 
m

oL
E

S 

aE_-
p

C

co

O

o 

Q) O

O

U

N

E

L

UO

p
N

d -

O

X

a) 

a) 

CU

0) 

0

a) 

m

0)

O

m

UO
o

E

y

b7

0) 

O

N
a) 

U) 

n

C

i'' 

m

U

O

d

w

a) 

a) 

O

O

O

a

m

O  O

a

d

QE

C

C

O

0

O

U

U- 

n

i

o.— 

a

Oc c

Q

O

U  c  

U

O

a) 

O

O

O

E

U -

0

O

C

O

O

moU^

UQa
j

o

U - 

N

m

Uo
m- 

c

m

mU`

o10(
DEc9

L

O

006
E

a) 

cUac 

0

0

0

m

Q

o

ro

ca

ca

U '

E

a) — 

E

a) 

UUa)
m=

cc

WU-..

U. 

elf

co

Di

0

co

0

oa

CLU- UUWLLM0D
Uv) 

m® 

Q, 

U

C

00 .
o

m

o-

0
U

En

a) 

cr

U

U

o

O `

J

a) 

m

Q

O

a : 

O

Q

U

a . -

0

m

ULL°

U

C

C

a) 

w

6
a) 

a) 

O

N

O

O

Q

E

O

7

U

N

ro °)

o '

u

a) 

U > .

0

0

0

0

0 > 

O

M

L

m

U

U

p

O

N [

L' 

C

U- 

J > 

U

QU
j

U

m0UU-
0-

jOf> 

C
O

U) 

U

D

a) U) 

V
a) C

O

0

m

O

U
Q)

m

m

U

Q

0-

0

OC)

LC)— 
vm
Q) 

a) 

M

a) -

o'

E

C

O

O
a) ¢..) 

n

a) 

0v
m °> ( 

O

C

C

0

LIJ

LL

a  

C) 

LL

m(

tUis >

m-

5C 
Pi

JUU[
uu

MCLD



O

U, 

U  

O  

C

C

U

U

U

O

U
C

2

N

C .

0Q

c

U

U

w

a) 

a) 

C

U

O

E_ 

C

r

U

v

N

eY

U

O

O

U' - 

W . 

a) 

O

Cl

fZ

o

a) 

o '

o0
a

O

D

ate0d ) 0

a 

C7co`
no

c ® 

cry

cti

m0

v

mo

mo

C,

V) (

DM

m

a) 

n) 

rn

0) 

m

c

m

E

mo 

o

m

r` 

01E '
6

Ln ® 

o

E

o

m

y

m '

v

0) `

C . 

c

ua °

y

m

v

O

N

Cl) 

M

a) 

C

C

C

C

h- 

O

co

O- [

4) _ 

t4 

O

a) 

V0 '
w

CD ® 

M

CO

C) 

v) 

LO

O

U

O

U — 

co

U

C

C) 

cm (
19)

U

U

CD

U

CD

Q

cm

m
4

m

o

m

co) 

c43

C7

s,.>.,,.,... ......._ __. 

A

L

a) 

a)

o Q

in

A

m

m

C

EN
V ® 

w

U

0 -

M

Q) 

4:. 

L >- 

E _... 

a... — ------------- . .. 

d

o

m

m

ro

rn . 

U

iI,,, 

41M

co

E

EU) 
a

E

W.............. 

CZ _ 

o

0

o

m

a

c

Q

m

a

o

a

s

d

n 

a 

a 

rL 

a  

O

a)

r— 

a) 

v)' 

oa) 

n) 

am
0

On

m

ro

mZ7

C „, 

r

I

I

iN

UI
r

ra

II

r

I

I

I

rl 

I

r

x, 7 ,

e

ti 

I.

dl

Gra

IvW. 
E 

fsliN
C

lq- 

e

aJ

ra

1

1

Id

IWC

frrd

r

V

r

O  

rlllr

i

irN

Ir( 

I

Ili

r

filar (

j°

r

i) 

r

Rd' ,

ra

rJ

a7

i

r

q

x

a) 

r+a

w., 

13, 

Ir

11 

i'

a

C » 

I . 

N

i

ro «`;;

luri4j4r,
llr 

iqr;

1

4rIluY '
VN % 

i  

r' 

I,

h

V

r1.

Nry%
p,

1.,

ro
r ,,

I

fq } 

L

4N 

w

O

Y

N

m

ro

q) 

CD

C: 

m

o

ro

a

o

o

o

o -

02o

0

0

m

u

Z

a) 

Z( 

Z

n

Z

Z

C, 

d3

t

ror

e _ 

a) 

c

o) ._ 

a) 

c

m _ 

m

c

0) _ 

m

a) 

C

C, 

rn

U

O ) .. 

q) 

L

Q
a) 

C

5

d
a) 

C 

0- 

0

C >. 

Q

0

C — 

U) 

a

d   _

j _

j

N  

J (

DD

m

v _ 

I

C

C

r5

r

U) 

a) 

O

V) 

Oa' '' 

ro

6!

1

m

Q) 

c

c

m

o

0

m

U

0

m

w

a

04

LLJ

65

c

t

C7

c

w

b

o

ai

E2

o.

0

o

o

m

p

r

o 

0® 

c

acid

0

ra

U) 

oZ

12U
c

L

o

ao. 

o -

0 -

j

U) ' 

m

i °) 

y

w

fu

w

vat
C: 

U  

a

n

r

E> 

o

a

c

o

m

U

rn

o

ro

I

v

tt1

s — 

u

a) 

o

U

a

c

m

c

C

m

ro

a) 

Z .

0

m

0

0 > 

O

w

a) '

0

0- 

En

a) 

0

0

U

a) 

v

J

c

0_

0

0

0) 

a) 

a) 

0) 

aCi

a

d

m

o, <

C

a) 

Q

n- 

a) 

Q
U- ¢ 

r1 <

C

4

Q

0

Q

U

O

UJ" 

n

v

Z',. 

15

m

cry

N

cr) 

Y

lr) > . 

c

Q' 

a) 

0

C) 

0

0

0

0

o

y, 

0

0

0

0

0

0

j) 

c7cz

N

kk

g

r)

c) 

o

ane

a) 

0

w

e

a) `

O

Co

co

a

U, 

w

mC: 

Q

U

o

0 _

o

w

a0i

O

0

m

CC

m

c

m

p

n

m

tL

U



0

C) 

0

L) r- 

UC6
O

2 .

6

C14

CU

OC) 

fg '

2

0

a) 

0

U) 

cm

C) 

C) 

P — 

L - 

0) 

m

C) 

a) 

m

1) 

0

0 + 

2

Tm

Lo '

Z

0

0

E — 

U + 

c) 

Lo (

D

ul

12

cuo
c

m

4 '

i

Z-
3 + 

zT

a) 

E

E -

0

0

0

U) 

w

o

5, 

01

r- 

a) 

0

0

0

w

E0

r- 

a) 

I

C) 

N

0 '

q

2

10

0

E

w :

t- 

o

o') 

m

a) 

0

a) 

m > 

Co

co

D

CM

OL
a) (

D

m — 

Cq

m

cu

cm

U _

j

o

m

U) 

o

CO

U) 

cm

0 .

0

C'. 

Q

77

N

0.

2

0 .

2

a) 

p

2

S, Q) 

E

E

D

0

N

tf0

tm

CL

0

9) 

CO

mE

71E

U) 11

Q) 

jU) 

U) 

U) 

060

Z

2i

m2E

0 ........... . 

2E

7 ... ........ ................. . 

U) 

Cl . 

Cl

LU

50CL

E0

A
9

If '

W'/' 

Q) 

V" 

J 

CD

C/

I

2WIPI

WNJ

LL

it

r

r

kis

FTY
i

10 
lf

C

uvu

t

th '

q

Id: 

DLU

E2

0 " 

a) 

L) 

m

U) 

m

u43) 

CD

S
L) 

Z3

z

11111111- 

R

8

M

0

0

z(

D

LU

2

Ial

E

LU

00

0

U) 

cB

C) 

0

0

4— 

wp

2

L) 

2- 

C.) 

w

0

0 _

j

LU

Ez

p

0 (

J) 

C: 

W

0 > 

U

0

co

U

t! 

t-- 

U) 

I

a-) 

ui

C) 

Q) 

0) 

0

6

V) .

0

0

Z 

vi

L) 

z

E

0 -

j

D

U) , 

0

E

U 

N

2 . -

0

N- - (

U

0

jg60

0 -

0

cn > 

0Z0

D

CD

pR,............................ 
cli

0 '

a

co

U

CD

0L) 

LL

0

f": 

IZ

0

W

0



a
fi

O

O

ISI

rn

ul

Lo + 

U (

0

V

N

V

UC

C

a

0 (

D

N

U 

N

N

CV

O+ 

d

C

T

U

i

CD (

D

TaE -

O(

Cl

NU

w

O

U`` -

9

E

U

S+ 

N

N

CO

co

O

m

0) = 

O

co

f0

E

tlj

O

II

O

CO

IY
0'' !

Y

M

C (

DD >. 

65

J

V

U `) 

O
w

S

LL

LL

LL

cn

W

o 

o

gt
CL

c 

o

aoo)
n 

co

a ._ 

c

CO

N

N

N • 

V

N

V

V

N

C

3

C: > 

N

N

C -

O

to

N

Cl) 

g

V

V

o

0,

a) 

2

oris (

in 

r)

Moor
riUo

O

m - (

0

Ql

tp7

O) 

O) 

O (

D  .

N

N

C `

1

y

0

M

N
U? 

m

0

V

ro

o

s•  

o

o

oUovoLLLi- 

2' (!

1

2_

10Cf >,
U > 

i

flU 
a

o(

rnUUOw

C ......__ -------- ..... 

C

co .

e. 

L.: 

O

O .

2

a)(

D

p
l

a' 

z 

Q) 

a
C

0

0

uNi
a

m

O ,` 

a) 

a) 

Eo

a) 

E

V

II

CO

E

N

t

w

y__.... °) .. 

O) 

O

n

cu

CL

o

o

Q

O

sr, 

C ^"„  

N

C

Y .

gyp

N 

1

N . 

CL

4tla:

i

E

N' 

O

O

A

co

91

C "

h

1I

i

4i5

iJl' 

Prr
r 

I 

I

r(( 

rY4<
ort

I+ 

4'

ir

ff'" 

1, 

dPy

pp

r

I ° 

it

f„ 

1: 

1, 

ft '. '+

tl„

i!+

b

iJ (

i

v01

YSI” ,,` °

I" 

a"' 

s14a
Ik- 

I. 

r' 

lV

I' 

iY. 
DM ( 

rY (

IIU

H

4

IA

I

r1m '

C,' 

L., 

H.

rl'> 

CD

µ.

x1

V

V

C

tM"

501

N 

a) '

U . 

a)

O) ayty

O

LL

Q

Q

L

O

O

L

Cid .............. ....... 

Q

pC

U

O

11.

1- C' 

Eo

v ] 

U

O,

Q ,.,. ,,,, ......... .

m, _ ... 

rr

C „

p

vZ3

g (

n

U

ro ¢

1a

w

W

m

U

CL

U

a) 

i

Qti,

k„ 

c

W

C

CL •® 

U> 

U

Q_ 

C

U

H

7

C

c

N

C

ui
aU

N

y

O

a . 

U

O

O

U

O

C

C (

O

O

J

O ,
aY,

b

a) (

A

i

C. .-. 

N

I - 

Z

E

Z

c9

W .

c

D

C

W

D

U

C

U

@

U

d

Q

3

U

Q

C

C

va (

D

M.+") 

ob

C '

Wy

Q) •

G':: 

O

v ,,, 

CL

U

uta

KD. 

L.. 

C , 

G:

A

Ll

LL. 

rps

alN :«; 



UN
0) f0a

V) 

2il

U

E ® 

U

C

p

LL

o

O

O

C) 

O

cu

U

G7 '

p . _ 

C

w

f0

o

E

N

Ov `

o

m

aD

o

y

rte^ 

LL

OCl

a) 

C) 

m

O

V) 

C

5' 

LLOl
T

t4') 

U

M

C

N

O

U

LO

E

o

O

E

a

LL

U0
v

ri

o

v

O

Q) 

of

O

o

M

N

O. , 

Cn

U

C

Cl) 

U

c

a

s

U  

m

u) 

v

c

o

C

Cl

coi ( 

C) 

U

a' (

03

Q

a

C7

L

06

O

aN

CD

6

a

N

Q,) 

O _ 

EO 

Im

a 

a

0o

E

u

u) E11
t

n

g

U)

m

AR

m

m

CL

E

E4    

a

no

V

a) 

2 .

fir

CL

ji

0

m

rn

o

a a

Q!, 

tl

llh

I

y'

Wr  ,

Pr

r

r

iii

olr

IV%,

id

i ,

II

uVr (

I (

pr

IJBP7YtY
FII

SIU

fFt6ylrR
G! 

I

NrR

Vlr6V
FU 

i!

9ff

IfiU

9ir

Y41!+ 

O

d ;

7

W

I) 

i

4

r

i

Cd7

f

i, 

r

t  

r

o-  

a , 

I

t

iF01, 

1

I6

r

C ".

p

a

l

r

v

r

1449

11 ( 

r

U

ro

I,.,, 

f

c

r ( '

C

6 „,

til

y(

19,
r

U !

1

c +

PY
FI , 

l

II

N

d14"+

F ,

iJ,

o

ray

IIID, 

91

II

W.

I

d

fi

X01
l

F

4 +

h

i ,

may°

1I14A'? 

p

j` 

IjOIIlY 
Yl+

t` 

y4" 

evm
19 }! 

t(

avllFIJ
Vf

d

liii.

a

yll
I}

II

IlI "^"•

u""

r>

f

rV

r,

RO

CMdI '., 

p

11D{

f.
7

I; 

YH

rf& 

t

rj

ryd > 

9 

W" 

I111Ci
j

III( 

4'

il

II

r

Vh

IRllf
Y,
1

i"'

roi

of) +

lllI
F`

I

J;

1F  

tr ,? 

I

c4 "

ijl
fl  

a

rem

nr1 
F

I

a

r

p ` 

J

NC

R

L) 

o ° 

a

m

L)

J

a° 

cry

z

z

E ` 

7

2

O

0

E

w

O

Tl

O ,

Q'

s

L

N

Q

O

0) 
O (

1) 

7cc

a) 

Q

c

b

N

rJ

s

J _

j > > 

a _ 

N

0

o

m

aQ) 

Q) 

U) W

c

a

N

U

LL

ro

Q

C

o

U

C) 

ro

Oi'
o

eo

n

a ' 

ni

Uon-
C) 

U) 

lsUo
cn

i

O

a

O

u

ly
CO

c

ro

O

c

O

a

o

C) » 

o

m

o

m . (

D

Q) 

E  

p _

e

rn  

C3

LL

LL _ 

a) (

D – 

y ® .

6

U) 

td

co

a

c

Cl - > 

a

0) 

U

O 

E

U

0

n

n

p

4N,7

C

w

w

Q  `

o

W¢ 

o

0

o

v

a

a

UUU) 
w

N

Q -

C

io

ao) 

U

U

a) 

En

E

cu

i, 

E

U

U

O

a

U

U (

D. 

U) 

U

rn

E

p

E

a> » 

a

a

o

U

a

rn

Q

C

@

O

c - 

E

O

O. 

0

E

o

D

07

c: 

a

o 

Z

Z

a

o

m

a

o

o

o

o 

aoi

m

E

n

Z, ., , 

a "' 

by

Q » 

a ° 

6— < .

Ec

m

C7

m

Q 

m

U

tq

U
m

ro

o

C' 

O `— 

N

M

O

O

C:

n7

O

O

a7

c

C 

scC7

w

96 •

f5

ro

4. 

a) 

d. 

O "

O

U

M

U

O

U

U

LLL

O

01

a' 

Q) 

Q) 

o

U

W



i

a, , , 

N

0>® 

U

ioY ® (

6

O

0

00

C: 

ZD

c 

o

aD

m

NCDrr

N_

0

aD

nD

o — 

aD

w

w

CC07 CD
a 

N

om

O

E _ --

ra

CD

C19) 

C40

N

el

N

U

c) '

m

c

p

0

C) =

1

aD (

1

O

U

Q

a

o

N

C) ® 

O

i (

fj

C

CCD

rj

O

Z

m
i

ro 

Z -

0 -® 

N

LL

Q

LCD

0I- 
L  

ADD

i

O

N

N !

t

CU ® 

Q

aD

I

lD

C

vim
6iy, 
M1._. 

Z

Oa `° 
E

0

m (

L) 

LCD

a,
r = 

i

ra

c

q' 

m

m

E

U) 

i!3

E " 

U) 

N

iD   

C

O

O

O

O

N

dCL
tz

a_ 

Q

ro

O

d

0R

0

a) 

as

o `

m

u 

aD

w

N

5 >- 

aN > 

a _

N

O

01) •

o

LL

If

aD ;

If '

r„".
a ,

L.
yy "

E,,

V

Q' 

mS",+

1J "
i:

I

I,

D

p 

Ifi;

l

Njf , 

ri

r! 

r¢ 

ra! 

r'

i

t 

rr 

uO q

1

1

4'"

Y

ti

i

11 ! 

r

Edi, 

a14
a( 

vrur

Ilev 

C"

y

yy
i 

1 

GUlr1U+ 
syd
1 

r

YLV
Y

rd,

l

9GGlir
i,

9V,
t,

J,

Vr.'-

YrJGaI,

1fGrJ",
h

lri

9NIb

cU0

y

CU

d

Q... 

N

U 

j

U

O

x

O

a

D

o 

o , 

o -

o

o

a

o -

o

rra . 

Z

a5

aD

Z

aD

aD

Z

aD

c

as

c

rn

ca

c

u

o

Lc, 

a

nD

c

aD

c: 

E (

V

Q=\ 

J

r

J

a

y

o -

c

0o

a

a

i>- ----- - - - - - - 

lv 
oa° 

m _........., trD

06

zzvj

0

n

Z

v

Y (

D ? 

aai

0

c

ami
6

v; 

U; 

Q

c

aD

ci

o

a

p

c

aD

aD

u> 

b — 

O

O -

O

O

J

a3

N

aD .". 

b

uD

wvtan
LL

Z '

uD

UD

LL

lY

b

i

uD >

e

uD

aD

W

n

aD

N

u

o

w

o (

D

J

0

tz

aD

J

Un

Uu

E

va0
4) 

C

m

ao

E

vi

o

Z

Q

E

ui

o

Z [

j

c

ami

m

O

U

m

O

W

N

n

n

tZI

o

E

c

0'

L

E

o0

ZY
E

o0

Q

3

x@
E

w

o

f '

y

w

U

m

E> 

Z

J

lc --) 

c

o

o

o ---

oo
o -

o

C 

Q

o

o-

0_ } 

ro :

3L
as

ri

m00 °
D

co

co

u < 

u

Q

a

mOQC3

o

E

U

V

N

PD, 

O

C3

0

0

U

C7

Lid ' 

V

w

a

La

Cl. 

a

ar

aD

a

o

GO

CO

CY

Cl

CU  
u

0

LL

o

0

0

M

aD

m

Qata

cuLL

F

4Lti "

1D (

f,
1 (

Ji

M



ONL) 

CD

0) 

U _ 

al
LO

CD

a) 

qa

EM

U

m

j

C

Mn .

0

cm

W

U

cO

O

a

ao

U

U

U

N

r- 

a) 

a

a) 

co) 

V

C .

7

C

C

d

O

C

0

7

a

Cl) 

a) 

QS

na

C

C

p

O

N

N

m

j (..) 

O

E

ra. 

LL °' 

o

c

U

rn

E

O

E

ar

E

O , <

r

a) ,

o

N

y

lz

a ® '° 

o

ta, 

cm

aha
ami

E

f

a) 

comm

U

0

o  

a) 

aa) 

M

U

U

w
E

o 
a

o 

U

c

U 

rm

O (

D

U 

aU
Ec(
7

c ...... — . .......... 

aS

m_ 

a

a) 

c

O

m

am

mMm
C

1

le

a) 

CL

a` 

m

a

V

CL

M

E

E

II -

1q

E (

n

II

N

9. 

h

d

a+} 

a

a

tm 
O 

Oa

cm

fin. 

CL

0........ 

mm

o

c

Cl.

I

1 ; 

U)  

E

o

Q) 

2

D

m

a) 

H

o

Q) 

O

N

ti

Cb

U) 

C

I „

ko
ra

J

JAI- 

II1

a1yjq>
jda,,
w

dlged;
l

O,.=

r

7llrrl

it
i

lr

r- 

C

t ;

r)

1. '" 

i , ;;

i . 

a) 

rrj . / 

I1P.
Y 

f

r

i"'

h (

1

r' 

yy , ° 

4

J

a) 

c

r1

tea''! 

CD'
S

x

i  /

a9 . ( 

x; 

r

Jr

rl

w

r 

rlr, °

r; 

r

I{

i,

l, 

N " 

I

Ir

4b ;' 

n' • 

ALf.
I

1 •- 

g
Ig

1{ 

r(

c

pll

lItii
P (

7

illd

1

i, 

I, 

i"'

i6,

1I

P

li

r •

r

air

t 

J

6

I ,; „

Rll.' 

IJ",,'

j

k ; / ( 

k 

w`

61,

y 

y!" 

P

I(

r

Jk4
ll

l1'

1

a - 

ro

r

i

C~,

p 

x" '+ ,.  

1

1 

1 .

a

k  

Julr 

7! 

I 

I '  

rF 

b  (  

J

u, . , (  

I #

I

I, 

I

arn

l

1

jp, 

o

r/ 

f

w

f

e6rv

rl,.

Lr

a

N

l."

h

hp` 

y

W

a + 

a

V

O

CD

i 

I1:
ry

lv 

m

v

Q> 

C.) 

U

N

O

O

N

O

a

C

O

i

N

U

z

a, 

a) 

E

rn

z

c

a, 

N

Z

E

1.

p. 

cu

c ._ 

C

a) 

C

rn

O

E

al

c

T) 

U

O

1

L

a) 

c= 

E

a

a) 

c

a
a 

d) 

a) 

c

5

E

m

O^

4

N

ei

a

O

U

Q

Y

E

C

C

r

coi,

I

n

@

Y

a) 

d

E

H

N

c» 

a) 

y

a9

Q3

a30

C

O. 

C. 

O

U ~ 

In

a)  

O

O

C

a) 

O

O

U

a ,

f: 

E = 

0

7

rn

I' 

ro

w

a) — 

O

a) 

U

a

o

v

O

i

n

m

T

A -

S

E

U

e

2 ,. 

as

n

as

C

ami ° 

ai

d

Un

o

0

yr ® 

m

@

U

c

w). 

o

c

Q '  °

r- 

0 .

E

aui

a

c

M

u, 

U

E

v

U

m
E

2

E .

N

LL

U

U (

n

a5

SI

O

co

Z

N ; 

l

O

C

N

M

C

rel, 

al

E;'.' — — 

N

N

N

N

ZE

O

O

O

O

O

C

QS

c, 

rq

of

O '

O

a

O

O

c.. 

t
S

2 

a) 

C ® ® 

Y
a)  

C

fl. 

U

U

U

LL

S:

5 :"

i ® 

Ill

7

Ln

LL

O

m

w

O

s

c

m

U

m

m

J

CL

in

O

ar

o

Or

m

LL

a)

ay

w

0

mcu

I.. .

q

QO3Q

ECJ



C
C
d
iJTa) 

d. Oa

E"

ay

0)) 

Oma) 

E

V

T

OU

a) 

C

v

co
CC) 

to

o

U

U7

oiS. 

is

N

O ` 

L

C.. 

C

U

CL

rn

ro

tm

U

Q

o

A

m

m

a

ECY

m

a) 

ti

1

a

0

0. 

i

E

E

II -

tz

0

V) (' 

o) 

o

u

tea

O

qy

an
I

OCL

w

An

L

k 

U

S)

W

hr 

I

v

k

GY

y 

l{

IIn
dal 

IUV9

t, 

1p

I°'

ii

l!  ' ``. 

OV''
I

l

ve
d„+(

@b!; {„

q

iu^ 

11

4($.

b

i"

i!

1

ri 

i,

NFn

rf

i

ri

N

to

t

in

w

CD

a

Oro
d

d

Q) 

Zi

co

a

F

co

Q) 

M

y

O

m

bwz o _

0

rno

t: % 

kd

i

O

C

O)._ 

a
a) 

u

a) 

O) 

is

O

V

O „"'

Ua. 

Q

O

Z) 

V

J (

L' 

N

D

Q) 

E

E

O...... O

a) 

rr)” 

ca

0

c

C

z

O

w

O

a) ” )' 

N

a) 

m

F- 

oc

Ui

3

E

a

n. 

a) 

0

o

s3a

a) 

u
is

O [. a) ) 

Na
o

a) 

Q' 

U

n

as

7

c

LO

m

v

a) 

Q

c

o

Z " ;`  

ej

o

viE
ur

0

C

a) 

c

a) 

n

to

M1,

7,, — 

U1

o

O  -

0

Q

E

c

O

Co

a'
i - 

d

o

r

rt? 

o

o

E

o

N® 

D

Q

3

U

L

Z) 

U® . 
o

U

Ln

O

O

O

O

o

U

UU

cfoiQ

FU

ZO
0

w_ 

Q

W
e

o

v) ix

O

a17Jr

t7

Q

v



I

O

m

m

z

U

to

O -

O

m .
0

a) =' 

O

aci

ca `° "

wry ° > 
E

u

m " 

w = = 

U

c

a0- 

w

Q

U

y

fv

Q

N

N

N

C

U

O

I 

Q' 

0 (

6

j:, 

Q`Oj

f/

7

N

a

0

V

ca

a
a) 

NOCD
fn

C _ 

E

23

C: 

E

OU

N

a

m. 

C

a) 

a

N

O

E

ai

i2

O

T
C

v

m

in

o

o

L

o

c

c0i

M

o

cm

ca

0

N

O -

OO

coCD
U

zD,, 

RA

U

C

U

a` 

Q .

9

00

O

Y

CO

o

E

a
a) 

a) 

fc  ® 

Y

j .

0

fU

a) 

a) 

r>'. 

U `

CL

M

E

E

m

L ° 

a) 

c_ 

w

fo

a 

a .

0

o

a

E

U

fm

cn

U

O'

OCL
d

fa

m

U

a

E

E

a) ....... 

L....- 

c

o

m

a) 

w

O

s

ZT

a

U

6`

Y

6

n

O

E

II

E 

I

N

4

N

OCL

d. 

rW

CN

OC

Q) Q) 

C

7

r

qU

C

ayJA, 
a3

l(

Y

iPlir
w' (

JV

gVl

IfpUl

VIglUdii
W

i "

I'

C ,

kNf
V

r

u

lGI

Wild ( 

prr
a

r/

d6

dvVry

I

a

f

E

i  

r '.. 

A"  

li

f

f ",

C /  

7

t  

v• 

u

r ' 

Y  

r 

rllb

li  

r

r

i

ro

Nw

y '

a

tta

U

O
V

ro

C..... Q) 

m

d

U

E

rU

o

41

a) v

m

O' 

a

Z

o

I

o

0

u) 

Z

a> 

x

u

0

r- 

0),

o

C: 

Q

C ). .: r

b

L

J

Nof

O

J
a) 

U

C

28
7hb

X1,
1

1

WO

6

c

a

f0

w

d

N

U

L) 

U) 

EEOC, 

rn - 

20

ul

7 .

u) 

V

C) 

Q

OCL

Uz

ro

b3

vi
a) -

0

C

F -

I

y ® 

i

a

I— 

0) 

O

C ' _ 

vi

n

o_ 

y

a 

w

f® 

C

C

O

i
U

i'

a

U

LL

fd

C

to

Z

a

N (

0

LL

I6

Q) 

L. 

L

I

C

N

U '

C

CL

60 ' 

N •(

D

N

C

U

w

C

O

a) 

a) 

w

C

C

U

U

i' 

C

O

a) 

U

Q_ « 

C - 

a ` 

L > - 

C

a) 

O

D -

OC

Z

N

O

0O `= 

w

y

w

tq

o

U

E

U:

n'

na

c

w

U

o

v

a1

F- 

Z

C

C

U

C

N

61 _ 

V1

00

N — 

OL

N

U)

U

co _ 

fU

M.

S.. 

Q (/ 

N (

0 , 

a) _ 

C •

C

C ,

a) 

ay .

N-. 

U

O —

0> 

w

O
f/`

7

5=

k, 

Z

J (

0

U .

0

fly .

O

O

O

N ,> 

C - 

N

toO

C

K
wfJ

f°

a''. r

O

Q' 

a) -

O

07

fn

6

C . 

N

al

C

C -

O

to

C

c

L

O > > 

N > 

N

c

7

U
f' 

EL

C

C

C

N -

O

a7

n< 

G

O

O

o

f1

U

O

D

U

zC

aJ

0U

r- 

N

coN

O .

6

U

C... = 

C

Y

s

N

O

i

fl

a) 

fn . 

a) 

O

a) 

U

Uay

LL

o> 

d

j

U

U

c^

1Q
rlr

tk:
U

G`
rr. 

0

a) 

to

U

w

D

D

M4



I

M. El

MI

U) w0

O

0

cu

0

O@q) 

r

S7

Lf) 
C-

4

w 

50

L) 

C5

00

u) 

E

E

m :

3

45

Cc: 

a) 

m

m

1,

0

0

o

00

C

0

u) 

E

a) 

E

0

L

CL

2

C:) 

aJE

Fu

C'

m'7' 

0u) -

2

C) m

Ln

0 _

2

U) 

0

OL

m

E

D

C: 

9 -

E

C) 

0

Q) 

0

c6n

C) 

caU) 

m

0

a

CO

a) 

a) 

E: 

ac)
L

C

c) 

a) 

a) 

IE

0

06

CQZ

Or

D

U) 

M

A

m

CY

E

Q) 

a

n

gb

I

0

0

w

0

CL

U

roQ

O

E

E

lb

t " 

Q) 

U) 

O. 

to

a

i5

0

W

a

M

4

cu

ca

0) w

m

CL0

0r_ 

Cl. @

0

I? 

U) 

t], 

CL

AOr

OLI) Fo

0

rh", 

lA, 

pg)') 

LL

mq, 

ZldcV )
A

I

P

i

113! 

Ilwl

14 

Do

2) 

0

C

Z

02

2

p

t: 

D

a) 

M.

5

L) 

17- 

0

1

cli

Q) 

q) 

J

a) 

0

Q) 

co

w., 

0

LC
j

0

LL

C

G'" 

6

U-

0

r_ 0

0

U) 

OL

0) 

In

W

a) 

U, 

D

01

@Z

0

U) 

ZE

0
m

m

U) 

U_ 

LL

FD
zS 

U'
I

D < 

0

C" 

Glx

Z

@

@C) C? 

9

C? 

bb

Cd) 

Try. 

0

mv) 

z
rico

0? 

CL

D

CLD

Oi

CD

0
U

LL

0

cu

Q

0
m

m

m

m

Q

Yb

D

a) 

a) 

aG ) 
L_ 

u_

j

Q'
I

J
I

M. El

M
I



v

fr- ()

f

v

Co

E

a) °

iUU
N

vvQ

m

o

0

cj

O

C

o

E .

0- 

O

N 

O

V

V (

O

p

7 -

O

a)  

to

C

O

m' 

C

O

O

N

M = 

N

E

U •- 

p

dS
I-- 

M

7

p

C

N

N

Y

U

d

S .

O-. 

a) 

C

C

a) 

o- 

N - 

m

a) 

p ` 

V 

O

N

QI

V

m >.

o

aci

o

QT` 
0(

6Nrn00LLLLUcMo ? 
o

n

fl

03

Ci

0

O) 

C ) 

y

a) _

O ' 

U

O

f0

O .— 

V

r

N

V

O - > 

Q

O. 

U

O

Q

D

a) 

7

N

N

U

J

C

to

m

p , 

M

O

rn

rn

U) 

M

V

E

a

ua  

o

uY

o

a) 

Q) 

o) 

a ._ 

M

E

a -

a

m

o

aYar

corno

NQ — `— 

m.

crf

o

w

w

M

rn

m

c

m

cU

v

a 

du, 
o _  

a) 

u '

3

cD

M

rn

n - 

rn

C

rn - 

C` 

O

C

a) ` 

M

N

V

ozS

a

O

N_ 

Q

c

N

L (

6

cc

0- 

N

M

d (

0 

p

M

O

V

O

C) 

C

O '

O .— 

E (

D

o

a) 

rn

a) 

o

v

Lo  

a) 

o

m

C

c

TUU 
QU' ._ 

0) 

U) >,

aodn000 
to

L

0 (

D (

0) 

0

d

C' • 

rz m

ayi

ca

m

m

ZZ

U

a)  

a) 

a

E

as

ci

o

w

m

a

vroi

rn

a

u

16 Ir;

Y. 

as

E

n

u) 

r

m) 

a) 

Q

o

Q ....... - , .._. 
I— 

c ,= _ 

O

oi,
c 

2

a) 

c

Cl•

Cp

oa) 

a = 

t ° 

Q

to (

b

O

to

D

V

O ) 

as

C

r   

fie, 

hir

INn 
1

w

lar
rl

i

1

7:

4

W ' '

Wy " 

W

a' 

l

Mu)

J

Px9wdTt
yl '

Mrl
lr

aoi(
f1

II ! <<,  "'

I (

L'

4q°

nc

r°

a,

r

i,

I  ,. 

o ( 

v

ro

4I
ir1

v14

af

Is

ii

W

r"

1

jl';" 

i°

8Y4

Hr

If)

I

r

bl

T

b `

I

il,"

I ,

I

C

rr (

II

P

ei

r

I

a. 

of

r

Irl 

7J

a'

r

ili7

Nit , 

r

V

m', ) " 

u'

h (

I /

rlril
l'

r ,,?,

Wfein
1Y &

FFFagyalllli" &"' 
f

fir! 

rIJ' 

lYl'
VVV

p'

rlll -

o

LlJIi1
V

W,

xx

W°

d3i4d
a" 

ax

aa. 

r" 

w0

h

lrll

dr

I„

t

r

r 

oaf
4

lvr
r

2

r

r

O

1

a) 

PIf. 

aWil
iiri.. 

gg

li

iW

it

I -

r

rr

ri

d(,

k' 

d3 ' 

1

Y

yr

rG 

u

pa/
I

i

w

6

Y

r 

p  „ ''

b1

1  

t„

p

le(

r

w

K   

r ; "

r.

r

fd

w

ll[   , 

r

l

t

d ,< 

i, „

r

s„

Yo  

N

W

y

rn

N

i+

O

O _ 

U

V

U

C

Q) = 

a) -

O '

7

E

co

U)

d

d

4Rt

E

M, 

Y

Q

LL

Q

Q

C

O

M1: 

C >+ 

Z

44"
D

c

M

5

vi

M

O

u

M

N _ 

a .

c

m

Z

o

a) 

O

C

O

m17 ® 

a) 

d

N

11.

5co

LLI

Q

Ci,. 
a.. 

O

J

r

O

O

ro (

7

a

o

N

U

O 

aa)) 

CD

i

roE
E

a) 

a) •» 

a) 

m

a) 

a+

Yk

N

ar

t

o

C

O

O

v 

rLron

O

w ` 

v+ ®

v  

q 

a

U •

O. -

0 (

q

a.+ - 

Vl - ` 

U

CV `

moi 

N (

6 (

fD '

S

LU

U

E

rn

o

to - 

a) 

u

a

ro

E

a) 

a

U

O

W _

E

O_ 

Q

w .

n

m

in

a) ® 

a

a

E

c

C7

Q > 

v® 

O

m

n- 

o -

o

0

ro

m

LL .

7 ® 

o

U

o

c

u1

N

3

W

to

z

O

v

n.

6

o

m

o

o

U) 

U) 

ro

o

U 

W

a) 

m ® 

c

Cwn ® 
vi

c °' 

Q

o. 

1, 

n

n

U

a

a) 

E . 

E

Q '( 

0

ro

O

o

u

ca

o

o- 

o ° 

E

v

LD

E

4a — 

O

O

a) 

Q

m

v

o

w
F— 

M

UU

L

C7U

a) 

Rob

ro ? 

M

in

O

a)

M

C

L

Ga

O

5 , 

o

Ci

a

QD

O

U

p[+

Y ...... ................„,, ,,,,,, ,.... ......... ....... 

a

clia) 

O -

o) [] 

a

uD

VD

ai

C

o

O

2

LL

U

a1

at

da

a) 

Z

a) 

di, 

rl5a :” 

J

of



rUi

N

l

m

y

a=

i  

FCa

ZZ

q ,. 

yd

L

tn

N ° 

m

dAro. 

O

a _ 

O

U

U

O

O
ZO0a) NQ' 

O '

O

CDU

ULL

E

a) 

0

o

W

ktiw

s.. 

U) 

Z

O

Q) = 

a) 

O

N„. i' 

epi

C

o

cCo
o

oM
a) 

N

O

U

a) 

N

0

o

UCi

m

U

L `

m

O_ 

U

rn

E

3

E

M

2
U

a) 

m

to

a) 

y

T

a

m

C) 

m

C

T

O

U

O

y

a) 

M

n

m

0

N

m

H ' 

E

m

U

N
0
21

m

N

4;

3

E ' a) 

U) 

M

Q

i

L

m

O

0

m

Q) 

U

U . 

rn » 

ao

m  

C

C

m

m

yE

N

mQp mm

m

r- 

x

o

M— 

m

m -

a

c

c

o

mO

0

U

3

v

o

m  

o

E

E

E

U

c
O

c

o

m

o

w

a _ 

E .- 

U

o . 

a) 

m

m

to  

w

o

wm

n

o

OU

N,) 

u) 

C

O

U) 

O

C .

O

O

a+ 

a+ 

a) 

U) 

C

CA

c... 

U) 

m0
0- 

m

R

O

LCL

N

m

L

L

m

a) 

V

a) U) 

L

ce) 

M
C? 

co

camas

d

a` 

o

E

m

m

3

E

QU >,

axiMUc"
m

OUccm

O

lZ

a

X1.
1

ate. 
ra

Q

2

Q

z

y

m

rn
V

0

QA

m

0a. 

mu, 

q

iriD

NU

o

Eu

c(

D

cy

ID

0

D) 

a

U

c 

13o, 

U) 

m

E

u

rn

E

n

en

n

cn

a

o

rnO
o

O)

o

n

O

fl. 

4

a) 

E

co

t") 

v; 

C 

A

m

u
aro

i0

O

l

iY

a) 

a)

n ,, ,

y 

IIYPJ

yA

YII

C

Eco

IA) 
P

r

m

a) 

n

1 ,

zr 

a

lb(`

dfnr

u

ftp

l° 

OI'

I

f'

i

o

u

9v(

ryeyy
Igi 

yYfyy 

U

N

l

m

y

a=

i  

FCa

ZZ

q ,. 

yd

L

tn

N ° 

m

dAro. 

O

a _ 

O

U

U

O

OZO0
a) NQ' 

O '

O

CDU

ULL

E

a) 

0

o

W

IA

1W

QO

ktiw

s.. 

U) 

Z

O

Q) = 

a) 

O

N„. i' 

epi

m

e

m '- 

E

N

C

a

d
Q) 

O

L

J

a) 

N

0

o

N

mQp
U

c
OCU. 

u) 4

C7m

Fes ,, 

LO

a) U) 

L

ce) 

M

C? 

vjir) 
X1.
1

W
O

CO

lj

Ll

QA

IA

1
W

Q
O



A

C:) _

0

o

rn

CU > 

C) 

C

C

C

C) 

t

C(

D

U

cm   

U ~ 

U

cMp)  

m

a) 

O

U

T

O

E

C

m

M

T >' 

U) 

U

o

o

M

U

c

a

0

U

a) 

iL -

O

EC
O

O

O

E

U

N >, 

a. 

O ._ 

U

U

C

m

CL

C— 

N

U

M
a) 

O_ 

M

C

E

CmL

CD
O

C

Y

U

0' 

w

Tw: 

L

U

C

C

i

fA > 

L

C

C -

UO . 

O

C

C

Q) „-

q } >'` 

L

E

E _

OO

O

c) -

J

U

C

M

E

E

U

C

E

O

a) E

c

Crn

orm

m

a) > 

orn

E _

0m
o

a) 

O

C) 

o

m

E

cn

a) 

2= 

c) 

U -

i "' 

E

U

c

a' 

L

y

M

a) .

a (

D

U

9, 

a) 

Y

i

c07 .

0

C.

7

C

Y

m

D. " 

o0U
z

2

cn. 

U) 

OU

Luo

m0

utf ... ,. , 

C

0

C'. 

aD

a

ro

m

U

a) 

l' 

z

z

E ' 
E

c 

ro

E

U) 

a& 

E — 

U)

E

n

11 ° U) 

e

e

as .,.... 

m

c  O

O" ..  

O)

oa

a. 

O) 

Q

O) 

o

Q

Ol

Q

C-------------- 

c

T) 

O (

D

Cl

Q) 

p

w

Clo

a) 

cn

l

c

r+

I

tl

gpyy,

tll6VPb

PAdel
@q{ 

irtllVV

IfVp7pV
r '

f) 

@

irdrrtiVi
llrFblyl+ 

Idli3lur
Vara
i;

r

rl

P ° 

O

rrP

J

N

Y4

P ( 

1Tl

di

pa

pf

Vr

coy 
i +

li

l 

yr

I,! 

n' 

1

0

µ4

N 

Mf

ael,

p

l 

h

as ; 

O

r'' 

b

s

i

Um

y

a) 

Q) 

c

U „ 

CY01-

0

Mu "

a

o

o

Z

c

o

O

O

U

Z

N

N

Z

N ' 

u) 

N

N

O. 

p

U

O

I,

J.. 

U

U

C >, '

Q

U

C

cr -

o

f0

C

N

U -) 

f - 

v

O

a041

U) 

4 ........ _ ......... .... ....,, ._ 

C

O

j

U

cu

a) 

C

OLU

O `° 

aa)) 

rn

m

O

U

t

c

a) 

w

Q) 

Cl- = 

O

00

a) _

C. 

U

O

CJ

rn

a

o° 

o

U

o

a

O

Z

V

U

N !

Z  

C

a) 

LL

U ."

lk

o

a3

U (

0

d

m

U

N

cu !, 

Q

mCM

C

d. 

U

U

m

C

U

U

U

U

O

a

o

z

z

z
a ® 

a

oZ -

C

CO

N

m

U

CO

O) 

O

M

V

V

V

O

O

O

O

O

v

c

a) 

U

U

U

U

U

O

T3

G„

F

Q (

Da) 

a) 

L

ad () 

C] 

w

m

v

v

o„

k

o

U  

o) 

C} 

E

w

N

0 - -.

T= 

U

C

Z' 

o

C

cA7. 

m

S

U

O

w

µtiw

J

m

ima) UU) CEa) OCD3mcD

Q) C) M0EOCa) a0OL-. w0isQacm O



I

0

U

a) `

m

o

0C . 
N - 

U

U (, 

V - ' 

C

p

U)

m .

fl

O .

p

d. 

NIt

p

C

L7

0

L

O

c

N

N

a)

m

o> 

rn

WC)  

aoi

m

ui

rn

O

C

o

m .

O

a

C '

5

CO

L
a) 

O

w -

O

0) 

C

otj (

Y

CL = 

y

V

a) = 

ei- -

c

mcn
O

O

LL

O

m

fla) 

M

N

0

M

0

a 

O .

c

E

U

cp7

io, 

O

a

a) 

y

a) 

o
m

c

rc

r

ro.'_ 

oU (

D

U 

cm

w

E

rN

y

0) 

o

CI- (

D

a

m

c ( 

a (

7

w) 

s

n

c

0') 

U") 

y— 

m

m

y

U

y

t

o

n

E

E

YO

m

a)= 

V ~

M

o(

n
i

C3

U

C) 

N

O) 

N

a

O

cz

a) 

p .

0. 

200  '

ul

a) 

C

co') 

ca

m

a' 

p-' 

N

o

U

c
i

6-

0

c=
i

U

U

ro

y

U

o

ro

o= 

E

oa

ov

r „° 

Z

8- -

o -

o (.

D (

D

F- . 

n (

7

Z
U) >, 

z...  

a`

no

uo-  

a) 

Q,) 

D (

L
w  

d . 

L } 

c

E

ai

0

u

n 

m

0

r

U) 

E

E

V

cc

m

CL

a- 

a

n

a

a

a

f

4'. 

49d ____.... ................ 

M{,_ '+

fid

O

N

N (..

d

0

k

o

j

l. 

M

m

t

tz

Q) 

C .

ireb
Y,`" '

p—

r 

fir. 

IV

V

VIG
r" 

jfyl

lco
to

d

i

dV 

Vrkl

rV
i,

i

r, 

0
d

y

r

hr

r

gr  

r

a

e

m

II

IIrIVa 
jr

ir  

V 

fr

g

1+'

Y

7m 

r

Yi

I 

i ,

Ir) 

Yp

h

J )

Y1: 

y,, , 

C.) 

ti` 

iw "• 

M (

r! 

II.

IrI 
MmJ 

lr11V,' 
a

f

i'(^. 

If7' 

o

IIs', 

r

F

r

ryrw(  

li%

f + % 

F 

y  

r  

i   

1^ 

C  !'

j

y ^   

Icy

GI

1 {` 

i

y,

r

QIP; *"
i

q

NNilN
e<

V1

r

jV 
l

rlY ,

11111,
E

liIYI{ 
V'

ICI '

bbl

y , 

cars

dxif
r

V 

Ur

Orra

N

r

i

V

r  

I

yyU
r'/

III

rE ' 

E ". 

i "

t

4

4d !

Y4

tif; 

Ut:

@((

f

V!

N

wdJVf
l'
V"'

U

I

bQ , 

1

Y 

44

G

Y'.'

d  

q '

I 

W(

6

YnF

6,

r

4

a: 

rr+

lr

a1

O

CO

fq

ny5

t

Ck, 
jC!
b

Z

N

O .

w0 -

0

c

L) 

O

C

Q7

Q) 

Y., 

Q) 

C

O

O

Q) 

C

O

Q) 

JC
T

o

r9

COC
a) 

a) 

O

N

0, 

0

C

O

y

En

E2.

L

12

i

M

C

vy

ar

0

m

is

m

m

c

as

m

m

V

O

M.

G. 

wr')) 

m. 

p- 

C

O . >, 

Q

C 

0

T

T

T

M' 

13

00 > 

N

N

N

N

N

o

any

c

W

i

d.............. 

C

Q) 

9?

y ` 

ui

O -

O

41) 

t

C

C

to

y

CL

0 - 

r, 

p

y

U) 

rn

CLaW

QO

ti

a

v

n

Sy

s

a) (

D

0

ami

o

Q

h

c <

t

a

a

ii

U- 

6

y

U- 

a) ® 

m

C;

r

O

d'

67

M.: 

a) 

O

CO

A

J

co

y

fn

cu

Z

p

N, 

a) 

Ul .
0

C

En

M

O

y

O ® ._ 

a) 

U

ma) 

yW -
C

0

to

Y

L

CL

O- 

a) 

CL

m

L) 

C: 

4".

NLA

a) 

O

a) [

0

OL

C,,,, 

O

0

O

Q) 

p ... 

Q) 

C__.

0 ...... 

y

n. 

Z  

o

Ucz

Z

Co

m

s01

co

rY

LO

co

r- 

ao

rn

c

r' 

o

WZE ''
ai,

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

C

Q) 

c

Q

CU

da

U

a) 

m

m

It

n. 

CL

a

a

is
a) .

L+ 

n
a) . 

O '

o

Y

A

R!

7 (.

9

Q) 

a) 

Q) 

a) (

1) (

1) -

O (

6

Q) 

L)) 

v

t ) ® 

d

d

d

d

d

U

d

U

a

n

Q

a -

o -

O _

0 -

o -

o

ca

w ® 

m

m

m

m

m

m

0< 

m

o

Q

W. m
m



D

CD (

n

U

0

r_ 

cl

L

C) 

a) 

2

m

0) 

EL

7U. 

C) 

0

C) 

C) -

2

0) 

0 (

D

bk

C) _

0

E '

t

a) 

c:) 

m (

u

p

as (

n

d

o

c

E2

0) 

a) 

C) 

R

E

ca

CL --

T

cu (

n

0 ::

3

0

z

In

o < 

1 :

5

OO- 

10, 

Q ....... .......... 

06

Q) - 

I

D

Lo

C'. 

Xn

CY

CU

M

M

as

En

to

0

0

E

0 

l

I '

U

L

tm

rL

L) 

LO

E

EarnU) 

CO

U) 

V) 

z

of

of

ai -- 

I ----------------- 

m

r_ - 

cm

0

m

m

m

cc (

a

0......... 

C0

Cl. 

U) 0

m

3

An

LQ) 

P, 

P, 
T

5'? 

J; 

W, 

CL)

til

a

ie ,

aay

a) 

11, 

6 

g

g

Q) 

C'

4

cn + 

C) (
D

C74 -

C2

T ) 

Q) 

U

0

M

a

ea

Q) 

S

L) 

7.

3

C, 
C-) 

XS

u7
C? P- 

C'

s

Uce) 

0

0 _

0

0

z

z

1) -

0

0

E

E2Z
o7

2

0). 

cn

m

U

0

a) (

D

C

D - •

E

CIA

0 _

r

0

0

0

0 . 

E

CD

a) 

U) 

j (

U -

j

a) -

j

a) 

OL3 (

D

E

E - - ----- ..................................... o

Q) or

Q) 

Rn

cli

2

U) 

L> 

a) 

U) 

a6

U) 

a

0

0

jL, 

0

C) 

Q) 

0

aj

P: - -

6

o --

0

LL

En

a) 

a) 

U) 

a) 

a) 

2

a) 

0

V) (

D

0) 

C: _

0

T

T

0

s

u :

3

U) .

2

z

E

E

C) -

I- -

5

Q) .

7

U

L .

7

c) 

2

w

C) 

2

E

LO

d) 

0) 

a) 

0 < 

2

E - = 

0 - 

E (

D

C) 

lz

G

o

2

2

cm

U) 

m

U) .(

D

D

n

m

m

CO

66 .

0 (

n

T

a) 

0

U; () : - 

o

m

C) 

0. 

Cc, 

0

0) 

Z

CL

0

U) 

z

a) 

C) - '

D

0

0

a) 

o

a) 

a) - (

D

2

2

a) 

a

w

C) :

3

a) 

0

m

Ui

In

2

U) 

Z:) 

0

01

E -

C

a) 

0

C: 

V (

D

0

2

m

o

2

m

a) (

D (

D

D 

C) 

C) 

D 

a- 

a 

cc

a_ :

i

0

OT

UO) [()

If) 

NC) 

0

16

LLJ

CD

r

C\

j (

1) 

LO > 

D

Q) 

LO

U-) 

LO

LO

0

0 '
2

C? 

C? 

C? 

IX
0

o -
Tcu

0 -

0Q- 
CL

uj

I

E

I

vi

U) (

D

a) 

0

17

Z

L) 

L) 

LL

9t0
cu

0

M (

13

0

a) 



0ZQHWUWJW2UU) ZO
F– ZLULUwU) 0OfOUWw

o

cm

U

U

m p

n

U

v

C

DC7

c

c

co

O .

V

N

N

aa) 

a

aa) 

a7

M,

7

C .

N

E

E

E

C

N

C

N

CD

E

a) 

Q) 

a) 

al

U

L

o

asav 

mv 

v

0- 

t") 

C} 

ul — c >  

CM

O

U (

0) 

mo

w, 

o

ma

CD

06  

N

a

c."

E

d

a

v  

o

N

rn
L) 

o

E

CYi

m

CL

as

CO

E

u

u 

E

n

N

o

o

@

a

m

O

cuca
a

ro

CL

Q

ca

W .

O

fI

a+ 

i 

h

o 

1

tl

r

r

@

p

ry

G

u

a

f

J

Y

IU

r

r

rr
U

a

r

f

f

1

r

Cq

al

2 

g 

I

E

9rPr
I,

r*

w

J

r

eNAk

ul

al 

1 

i

YP ; 

rr

0

f

rG

W'

i  

O

CJ

p..  

N

r. 

Y

O

N

tq

r, 

U

as

ami

E

m

w

v

U ,

OaI
ZE_ 

N

i

N

d

N

O

J '

OO

O

J

a) 

E

T>

O

JaN
E

N

N

2 ) ) 

07

aTU
O

C

O

C

7

E

E

UjOLO
O

O•

E > 

N

p

Ur ,.,., 
tri .

U) 

2

Lam, 

ul; 

a) 

O

iw
of

T

V, 

0

U'l•, 

uNJ

O

C

aB

aD ® 

CL

0a .
2

E

m

m

m

o

C >-

pC- 
as 

OW
O

C

0-]'

pO

0N

4. 

in

rq12
C

c

F

Ut
U

0

PY

n

o

o

m

ay

N ® 

m

a) 

COto

c

a

m '

D

ID

m -

C

a

ro .

0

a' 

N

o
N

m

e

Om -
a -

p

ro

rTm

cm

c

a) 

o

N

c) 

m

m

C

N

O

N

U

U

p -

O >' 

E

m ;

1. 

Z '

C

0 .

0

O

O

aP :-' (

D

O

C) 

O

n

c

p

N

a> 

N

c

E

c

o-

0

r, 

m

m

a

a 

a  

a

o

v  

m

m

p

p

U 

pis' 

Z

co

r

oO

rn

o

p

O

O

O

as

i.
v,_ 

y

m

12

U

U

U

U

U

0 •

B .. . 

a. .. 

O  

C  

U

ay

a) 

O (D

N

aS

U

U

LL

a

B

J

J

J

ElU

M, 0



U) _

0

q) 

C) 

0

W

m

C) 

P

00

a) 

o < 

d
a) 

o

m

T

UCO

C:) 

co

C) 

co '

IT (

mD

0- 

UO) _

LLJ
c,) 

E

c: 

C) 

CZ

CY) :' 

0

0

0- 

C) (

D

Q) 

U) 

t

c- __

Z' 

C:, 
4_

1

SID

U) 

CO

0 (

D (

n

rz _

3

E

JR

CD -

0

uj

5

E

E

o) 

LLJ (

OD .

0

C

m -

0 (

D

0

ifr
r- "

t

D — _

j

a) 

Uca
m

CD

L) 

m

w

q) ® 

CD
lr_ 

W3

E

C) 

E2

q) 

g

a) _

jm

a) 

m

t

U) 

0- 

w) 

o) 

oa

o

C'. 

Q

lb

E

a) 

a) 

S -

a? 

32

Q) 

L

CY

c; 

0

sa

U) 

U) 

E

U) 

allLQ? ..................................... . . . ........ . - ---------------- . ................ . . . . . . . . 

T

a

0

0

OS

rL0

2

IT' 

L" 

in- 

CI. 

0

ca

d

z , 

g

0

2- 

iz

CLA

l 

Y, 

p

o

001

f

4, 

w "

fq

tAp (
q

gl! 

f

j" 

V, 

o' 

6

U) 0

L) 

Q) 

48

g - - ------- ---- ........ ..... . . . . ............................... . .............. . 

0 _

0

4_
5

2

L) 

F

b

C _

j

fr

C) 

a) 

o...... ..... --- 

a) 

0

E = 

t

M

l

CA
U,-) 

r

w

cu

a) (

n

0 (

n

2

0L) 
0

Q) 

y

0

0) 

D

ro

L

d

o E , 

q) 

D

U) _

J > _

j

D

0 > 

U) 

m < 

U) 

C) .

co[I

u 

6

a) 

a, 

C) 

c: 

a) 

0 _

I_- — [

if

M — 

o '

U'

U) 

U) 

o -

a

m

a. 

a) ;

a (

D

a) -

2

ch

U) 

0

E > (,

a

UJ

J) 

IT

Do

F- 

o

6

ui

Z

ru

a)

C\

j (

Y) 

0

CO (

D (

D
C? 

Q

V

0

MI

u) (

D

O

cl) 

0

L) 

L) 

LL

rz() 

c

E (

D

0

a) 
j

j

I9



wUNWUWHzW2aOJWW0Ll.
lJOW2UMzOHzLULUwU) 0OUWw

HzWmWUwOLLzWW0OU

2



LLM
0- 

I

U) 

U) (

1) 

D

al

cm

C) 

U) (

3) 

C

CL0

Ca

CD -

r- 

0 -

a =

1

22 (

D "

T

E

CU

0) 

U) 

lu

JT

0

C) 

C

a) 

6

o

0

c

CD

C: 

C: 

T? 

1= _:, 

cr-) 

C) 

C), _ (

31

1) . 

3), ', 

a) (:-)  

a) (

D

a) 

E : 

En

CD

or < -

En- 

E

A

E

a) 

o) 

a) 

a) 

cj

c

La) 

a) 

C) 

a) 

cn

cJ

a) - 

u

L

Z, 

c - > (

D

0 _

0

0 a) < 

0

Ail

0) ;_

Z :

3

m

CD

a) 

0) 

a) 

u) 

ca -

o

C) 

a) -

0

G). 

w

a) (

n

7 -

2

a) 

a) (

D

E

a) 

c: 

E

E

E

c:' 

E > 

q. 

CU

U) 

I- 

E

U) 

0) 

E

v

E -

0

0 = 

co

cu

C) 

m '

0

o

CI

cL

0--

o

cu

r -
L

CL -

0

a

a) 

C) 

a) 

2 =

1

w

0

a) 

a) 

a) 

ro

0

0

E

OL

a. 

5, 

0 < 

Q

Loa

E

CD

0

Q) (

D

a) 

En

a) 

M

rL

in

cc _

S

a) '

n

c

D

CL

0

E

u

v

CO

If

U) 

tu ........................ 

5

0

a_ 

m

cu

I

0

0

0 '

o

20

ca

ca

ca

I.

a)

C

C

Q) 

a) 

ca

Q) (

D

a) 

a) 

U

C) 

U) 

C) 

U) 

0 .(

nILL

t201

C? 

Cl) MC) 

t3

9 (

D

d) 

Li

0Z

cu

m

m

ca0) (
D

Q) 

a) 

0, 

to

0U5FU
N

L0

N _

j

a) 

LO

4R)

tUE

c: 0n

0 (

D

0

CD

0 = 2- 

2) 

3: 

4LL

70- 

m

I

m (

3

a) 

CL

tf

D

Ca

Cm _

0

c

9i

U) 

0OL

cu

a) 

L) < 

2- 

U) = 

LL -

0

asy
co

U) 

C, .

2

p

N

0

U) 0

a) 

U) 

j, 

W

0

as

U) 

0

Z3

a- 

@ -

C

2

E

a) .§ 

a) 

U) 

a) < 

L

C) (

D

a) -

6

E , 

0) 

0) 

0) 

D

E

EL

3

o

0

CL

O

O

O

D

0

5

61
u

F < 

C) 

w

0

m

M

c00
U) < 

w '
c

0

W

z _

1Z  

C , - 

M

eY

U-) (.

0

0
3
3. 

1 

D

C) 

CD

CD

C) 

C) 

W
2

D9
C? 

C? 

C) 

C? 

0
m

2

z

z

z

z

z

ILL

ILL

U_ 

U_ 

U_ 

ILL

Z

co

w

0

a) 

0

r-: 

E

c: 

E

C: 

E

C. 

C. 

r- 

0

U

E

E

M -

0

m -

1

m

o

M

m -

0

as

p

Q) 
j- 

Q) < 

O

ii < < < < 

LL_ 

11

1 < 

I_ 

I— 

ILL



W0ZU- LiiiDaWCOZ0F - zW
F - wwCl) 00ww

n

o

c

c

0 (

o

C:) 

0

Q) — (

L)

ti

C) 

co

LL

U) 

C

o

a) 

z

M
c) 

0

m

ce) 

a, 

0

0

0

CO

Eli

CO

O

0 (

D

L) -

0

C: 

CL
0

co) 

L) 

U) 

C

11) -

6

C:) 

C: (

1) 

C: -

C- 

04

C: 

C: (

1) 

a) 

2

En

0

W

m '

n

LL

E '

n

LL

C) 

6 , 

U) 

C:) 

w

a, -

0 (

D

o

cm

U) 

C) 

T

a) - 

Q) .- :

tf

C) 

A -

2

0 

4? 

0) 

CD

CD (

D

a) 

0

X- 

0

t: 

C') (

1) 

U) 

U) 

o

W '

o -

0

m

co, 

0

E

cm

co '

Ol

E

ac) 

0 -

ffi

0

m-

0
C) 

0

a) -

0

Q (

U

u

0)

6

E.

a

16 -

0

2

a) (

D

E

c, 

E

E

ou) 

E

o

m

D (

1) 

Cl) 

C) 

U) (

Y) 

L,-) 

o

C:) 

m

Ln

C) 

m

5

M

cp

CL =

3

U) 

CL
E

C

m

OL

OL - 

a- :

3

Z3 (

1) 

Z3

a) 

0

2

2 '

5

0

0

0

E

a), 

0a) 

C'

Z) 

0
a- 

5, 

0 —

0

E -

o

D

D

ED

0) 

0

U

M

m

D

ME

a. 

41

0

M

Q) 

tm

CL

0 -

n

m

E

n

uaQ) 

U) 

Eur
ll', 

U) 

IL

CL

CL

IL

CL

CL

CL

m

m

m

of

m

0

to

0

2i

o ..... . . . . ....... . ..... --- — - ---- ®. ..... .. . . ........ 

Lb

0

cl- 

OL4M

n

M

Lb

I '

T

IN, 

cu

r,

i

vv 

it

14,
1

I + 

U) 

cu

0 — 

t- 

m

m

ri (

D

a) 

Y) 

Cl) 

cu . ......... --- ----------------- ..... Cr, 

C- 

a

L -

0

E2

U) 

C. 

co

m

M 

6 (

L) = 

cn (

L) 

Q) (

D

3

co

LO

C) 

LL

C) 

fn

Q7--- - -- - ----- ------------ 
i 

J

m. 

LO

k

tn

U) 

a) 

0

0

3

cu

U) 

I

o

Q') 

co -

2

0

bU) 0 (

D

CL

cn 

2

a) —

1 - 

cm

E < 

a) -,

z (

D

D

E2

N) 

U:

3

c: 

cn

0

cn

a) 

0

M

cu

0

0

0

W

I

En

U) (

D

m —

co

E

t > 

a) 

C) (

D

C

cn

u

E (

6

U) 

E

ash

A'
4,

J +

2 -

2

C) 

U (

6

U --

r- 

U) 

17

o > 

2

E 

IQ-) 

U) 

P", 

C/) 

E

E

E

zml

S

in

L) . 

c- 

0

in

E

D

w

0 -

4, _

0

L) 

Em

o

a) 

Qom] 

ca

C) 

U) 

co

O

o 

5

65

to (

U

zr_ 

ir- 

OD

0) 

CD

Q) 

C, 

ti

C) 

CD

C) 

2

Q1
J-- —"/, 

C? 

9

C? 

Ft

z

z

z

z

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

oj

iy„ 

tin

0) 

a) 

ldU
LL

Z.) 

8

c '

D

M

0

m

0

0

a) 

D

CD

0

S

LL -

D

LL

C3
L) 

m

El



0 ' 

2

cS) 

4 -

0

M

C: 

d

a3

a) (

3) 

C) 

a) 

Q) 

0

N

U') 

D := 

0 -

r- 

E < — 

i/ 

o

2 

0

cl

0

LL :

3 >' 

w

cn

Q) 

C) 

10 —

0 + 

2

LR — 

CY) 

L) 

Q

L) :

3 -

7

0 (

D ® 

co

U -

CO

C: 

0) 

CD

T -

P (

D

r- 

n

0) 

U) 

CY) 

C) 

en -

E

M

113

m

0

Cl) . 

a) 

0

CD

6

E (

D

co

co

4? 

c: () 

a) 

cm

L) 

cm

4! -

a

CL
a) 

D

CD

a) (

4n

a) (

D

a) 

cl) 

E) 

v

C) 

C) 

CY) 

0

LL

E

io

EZ
m

cm

OD

cm

a) -

0

U

a) 

cn (

D

0- 

a) 

a) 

G

a) 

a) (/) 

a) 

u) 

c

C) 

E

E

a) (

D

E

E

a) 

E -.

2 ;, 

3

E

o) 

E

o) 

C: 

M

LL

w

co

0

E

co

a) 

a) 

a) 

ca

i/

i

CD

m -

0

m '-

9 (

D

a) :

L- 

cu

0

0

E

r, 

CL

CM > 

OL

CL — 

O

cx. 

Z 

5 (

q

0

liu- 

d) 

C) 

a) 

ZI

a) — 

w

co

w

o

E

m (

D

a) :

3

E- 

6

z

0

CL

5, 

m

0

cn

cy) 

0

u) 

m

0- 

0

S

C) 

m

0

m

m

0- 

zcn

a) 

6o0xs

CL

M

m

E )

C

a. 

a) 

0

0) 

CL

u

m

E

1. 

M

CL

CL

a) 

C, 

43) 

1

c

a) 

0) 

O. (

m. 

cu

m

0rn
2

2 :

E

0

CA

En

MA

m

io (

Tj

T", 

C

f4l

Yom4
J .

4(

0 

kv

CD

0

tu

CD

1 '

D

R

IP

4" 

W
11

lk

All

Pj

y

iGraq

l"

4

I'

ll ' 

i 

k", 

tin

NO, 
NO

0 (

D

co

Q) 

a) 

II

0a) (

D

Iz. 

1) 

Cl) 

co

En

cn

m

E

a) 

0 >

1

a) 

0

C\

l

N

LF) 

LO
U) 

zzz

Ento
CO '

n

C: 

a) 

a)

r- 

t: 

a) 

a) 

0 .

2

E

rb

0

116

CL

En (

D (

D

m

m

M

cn

U) 

a) 

a, 

ra

ZIi
m

a) 

Q>) 

CL () (

n

U) 

0E

m (

D

co

C

a) (

D

E

SL '
w

D

cn

E

En

a) 

0

o

gae
o

CL) 

M

0 < 

0 , 

kl

q

4) 

0

U) 

a) 

u

U) 

0

c — 

0 — 

a) -

FD

0

0

g

0- 

2

U) 

r- 

a) 

e -

T

co

a)• 

b

a) 

0

io

in

E

E

e

in — 

o

Z: 

U) 

0

41

V) 

El) 

CL

a) 

c) 

cc (

1) 

CL

a) (

L) 

Cl

m

n (

u

Q

I_- 

U) 

F- > 

a) > 

a) > -

0 < 

C) () 

co
C) < 

C) 

UJ

LL

s

o -
S < -

i

Li- 

rj .. ........ ....................................................... ......................................................... 

LO (.

D

0

Z

z

z

z

z

z

L

C) 

U- 

LL

LL

Li- 

U- 

U - 

cu

a) 

C) 

a) 

o

E , 

t

i 

I

U

N

a) 

0

o

lz

C: =

1

c =

3

a) 

m

m (

D

0

m

a) 

0

0

L) 

41, 

0

o

LL

LL (

D

0

0

A

LL < 

LL < 

0- 070



I

mlMNInENcLNOnO
37

9NU
U

UJo0

N

N

C

N

0 

O

N

Oo

d

dCA7) 
w

C

Ct41
L)

QE)

o
a) >' 

Uaci

a

U

C

U

C  

y} 

In

M

U

a) -

O

rO.r

QRµ: 

a) '

f

t',

p-.
m

N

O

0

E

a' 

O) _ 

U

c (

n

to

c

ro

E

E

a

a

ro

a) 

E . 

N

E

rn

U

Y

N. 

U

a

T

O

C-
3

C

C

C

C

O

a) 

O

co

O

VCl) 

Q

C

u) 

O

7

a) 

a

O

O

E

N . 

d (

07, ® 

CD

ob

Q)....... N

fl.

CL

CD

I

CO

E

d

N

p

tUW

CL

p

iu ? 

E

c

Q.._.... 

n

oCL

r

D

ro

M

O

c

ra

i

A

c

Q) la

c

µk, 

c, a) 

a` 

r" 

y

y

I

P 

d

x'

9t,

Ir

r

J

b

6

Or

h11Y(
ti'>'

ia,,,

fr4'
t'

Rr

r 

R,
I! 

y

t

V

Ra

1

J

RN

11", 

1

v

r

i

4

f

ry

n

IliI
Ilk

JIJJ

f 

1

i

Q

IY'

J

Y.

7ri
T

If '" 

J1

J

J .'. 

6"

ry

FN
J ;

G

f

1

fifi 

yy¢¢ 

li^

Id'{

i/ {`

µ 

r,. 

7. 

BVI

cu

env

Ru

M

Rr
Sr

g

a.!

yco

a

zr

z

v

o

ro `) 

0

a

J ) 

LO

Em

ary

C

Q° 

X

w

I— 

ro (

A
O

O

as

a ..,

w

ae

ttl ® 

tan

N

N

p

U

U

c

ro

a) 

it7' 

Li

O

x

Z

W

O
EC

O

u) 

H

J

Zo

ro

E

o

y

a) 

o

a) 

O

O

a) 

U

co

a) -
ON

C

C

L

O_ !

n

3

O 

C

U

a) '

C

O

aJ

C

C

a) 

Z

O

C

N

C`) 

L

O

Q

a) 

U

a) 

Q

fn

O

E . 

wO

ES

J

c

LL

E

a) 

L

E

C

U

O

N

O

a) 

O

0

0

0

11
v

O

N

al

W

C' 

o

a).

n

a) 

ro ) 

a) 
W

a) 

0
a

E

a

a) 

C) 

b > 

of :

n

of

o' 

C. 

w

LL

2

U

O

I

a) Z

C

27

C

vGS

OD

tT

N

flp

q'

sy

O

O

O

LL

LL

LL
CafZ•

c

2) 

c

c

4E

a) 

4.

Wu

1

C

O

U vCD

C :

03

C

C

C

C7

p

yo

QU

QmlMNInENcLN
O

nO379NUUUJo



ZLLWrno
a - wUZQZMLJJJD0WUNZOrZWWwcoNOWw0LDa`) 

CD

aD

ff ` 

o

a) 

Enc
O

Ua

C

C

ci

C

O

cA07

Ar-  

E - 

co

N

4!  

U) 

N -

O

O

a) 

Qj

CM (

O   

w

O (

II

C

p

O

C

C

U

En

O

O

a) 

U_
J (

D

C

N

Ca) 

O

T

O

U

V

d

ti

L) 

co) 

70O

y

u

CO

m

m

o

E

o

a) (

a ° 

U

c

g

n

a

n

C) 

a

o

a 

E

DC7

Q

a) 

c

m

c) .

G ' 

c

a

w

o

E

a (

u

ur

ro
t0 °) 

a) 

CL

o °? 

E

w

E>

a 

76

a

E

m

m

O

o

c

ac-) -= .: 

a) 

0) 

LL

U

v

a) ;

7-

o

m) 

ca

C) (

D . 

m

o

a) 

C) 

ami  

ami

o

07
aa) 

m

w

CS

a) 

LL

w

C7

C) 

c) 

Wo

C1

N

ch  .

S

o

r

o

cl• ' 

4?

0

co

c

Q

o

21

a

E > 

C7

m

Qa

to

CC. 

Ly „ 

U) 

E

cl

CL

ILcm

O

00

4, 

Y

al

O
o

Cl. 

o

A

dig

4: 

µO, 

w, 

f( 

r°

l

I'

i

FGA
rb

I' 

I1Nn 

Iw

fig

c

cfl

rc
yfk,

ffl(
yr

P'

k 

r'
In)

tf, 

ld'

k" 

w

I1, 
p/

g, 
m

i 

V

01(

a

a(

V)

ii

Lx

lif6%:
VW,.

e , • 

f ,

r,'

1
rir)

i

ANY ',

9J , 

fly 

PI 

I

N

y 

el,

wVbu 

4

IIU 
rrrw

a1.

9;

t' 

IW

I' 

l 

C? 

Gi

LdMfz

i

Y

O

Y
Sd

Cl) 

CO

U

C  („) 
T

a

tD

y

1 ) ® _

0

U

a) 

O

qC1
Z

a) 

a) 

122

LF• 

N

N (

a

CC (

a) 

U

O

V, 

Q) 

a ® 

U

T

T

N - 
QrC) 

qD 

IP

h! -.

l

N

CN

a) 

v % 

1) , 

C

Gw95

zzz  

O

1/

di;, ® 

O (

Q

O

E

O

W

O

Lf)

C6

gid.  

f•-^ 

E

a

O -

O

O

O .® 

C6

a) 

O.

G. 

O) 

ar -

o

C

C.

1 .

O

iY

It, 
T

C

C

O. 

4.,  

C

W

s` 

U

c

a) 

I® 

O

Q

C>  

cS7

3

N
Q) 

d

A

C6 ! ( 

C6

N

T

z

CL

z

U) 

CL ( 

O

C, 

o
lzc) 

c) 

a . 

ur

cn

a) ' 

Q

a) 

L

Q) 

al, 

O

a) 

O

O

O

O

O

ZL

N  

a) 

Q? 
ids

1,= 

U1

O

C

M

C

Q

ar

to

U

c

a

4

c

c

N .

c

0- 

in

OL

m

ro

n

a) 

o
Q

I— 

Q

O

O

m

m : 

Od

C1

m "' 

C

us

rv) 

t

w  O _> — 

Z

r

A6, 

LO

o

C
1.

3

N

N

N

N

O

O

O

O

u

s

Z

Z

Z

Z

n

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

Z

O __ .....-. 

O

C- 

00

C

C

C

C

O

a3

c

c

C

O -

n...... 

Q) `) ®

I  

Q) 

pLL

C

O

O

O

O

C

C

co

O

m? 

r _

c

U

U
v

V

c

CJ

U

v

c

O

v (

ll) 

C

O

D

U

c

O

D

U

h ,... 

LL

Q -

1'

LL

Q

J

LL < 

a) 

c - 

LL

Q

J

LL

Q -



WUZZ_ LLLLJJD0WUNZ0ZWWwU) 0OwWI

C) 

w

o , 

O

n

u

iv  

a1iv ( 

Ceh
co

a) 

cm

cam,  

CO) 

O

a)

ai

U

ai

CJ

ui

U

ai

1) 

C (

D

C•

C (

7

C() 

C

Q' 

a)  

a) 

a) 

E -

O

w

CT

N

N

Lp (

1) 

2

O

N

N

N

CO

C

Q

a

Q

to >. 

d '

D

0.  

y

C () 

C

a) 

E _

1., 

c

2

C

U^ 

C

U) 

O

d"

mk, (

nCD
a) 

C

p

a) 

U) 

a) " 

E

Eo. 

E

QB

E

j

w

E

E

a) ',. 

V

O

O

6:

7,. 

c

L) 

3

Im

ru

Co

cm

a) '

6

cam/) ' 

Q

y -

0

N

N

V

U

m

US  

N  

N

N  

cm

I

O

b

o

mai", 
o

O

ny
a) 

Lam' 

Q

o5Da
EO `) 

U

1-- } 

0

o

azQ) 

o

IE

E

C

P- 

z

U) 

C

M

L

t- 

a

o. = 

a

4=

Q

n

a

o

CL

n

a

n

O......... 

O. ........  

0.......__.. _...

2

0......--. ......... 

Ya. N

r

Lry , 

c

u , 

r

s

I,

II

r

r

cV

pgl,, 

Yll

I ^^

II

GlialG
d (( 

i

IG'  

f ' ; 

F

14  

I{;

yriVd
i ,

y1,

4Iik 
i

I: 

i

r{

Irl

II

M

I

ll},

il

ll; .. I

NJ 

i

ryl /

u"

tl 

aa .

r

k'

Y{ 

I 

I

Iy, 
1731
r !' -

iii

f

r

f

IrPC,
r,

eF.
l,' 

Vlv'
112V1;&

raV1-

rilllJV;,
1d1
r,
Y,!(

IfLL/

I !

rf:,,

u,

F.

Td (,;,

I„

4)

r"

JkFd,
l,,,

c„!'

I ,,.

4, ';- 

d

C2) >

E

H

N

u

V

C

5

g

N (

L) 

m0) 
0) >

1

T

C

U '

N

4a

Cl) 

M

9

nas

u

m

a) 

a

cLb

m

to

m

m

n) 

QU
N

f 

N

N

N

C

b20

kl

a) .,.. 

b

I

CIO

U

Cl) 

m

ar,^ 

U) 

c

a6

o

Oul
a) 

o

L

a) 

c

xa

a) 

o

a) 

r • .

oEf

L) 

w

ILI

s

m

a) 

m

E

u

Q) 

ta ® 

v

U

a_ 

o

a) 

sur' 

U

a) 

U) U) 

c

aci

c

a) 

t3

a) 

U

u

m

u :

y

en

sz

c

U

a) -' 

c

cl

n

o

U

a) 

c

m

La

m

O

CA  >, 

W

II

C) 

N

N

IN
N

Cl)

IN

471

00

CD

O

O

O

O

O

c

z

Z

Z

Z

Z

FD

LL

LL

LL

LL

CA

ca

n

a) 

u) 

a) 

ur

as

n

a) 

u) 

0 ( 

U

N

U — 

U) 

U) 

eA

U

T1

L

QB

C

a) 

a) 

a) -

U

Q} 

a) 

C - 

U

a) 

a) 

C -® 

a3

a3

a) -

U

ru

a) 

as

U »'

I, 

U

c

U

m

c

w

U

ro

c

ur

U

@

c

n

U

c

u) 

U. 

iY

x. 

P ,,, 

C ® .> •, 

C

c ® .>_ 

VS

C

C ®'> .

N

C

C '> . 

C

C ® .> . 

C

c

U

v _

u

c

v

u

c

U

m

L _ 

a) 

n) 

U

aD

as

ns

U

a) 

a) 

LL

Q —

I

lL `'( 

o `) 

11

Q

a 

J

Q  

ozs

J

LL

Q -

1

QOM



IW0ZZMLiiiD0WCOZ0ZW
F - wwW0

C.) 

WwI

d) 
L) a) EE0

L) 

ca

0

c

ogn

CLm

E

M

m

E

iiC, 

T'- 

0

r_ 

a

wI (
a (

a

m (

a

cu

0

i4

2i

2E

2

20

CL0

cl. 

0

T;'

o

E

Al

0tj

Asn

U) 0

Cl) 

1) cc

fn

2

rot

a) 

u

0

Q) 

tj >' 

C

co

cli

Vj

E2

E2

Z

CDcy) 

m

U

a) 

C) 

1 >

1

0

C) 

C) 

U)  -' 

4- 

c) 

c) 

CD

3r. 

LL

o (

03

w

U) 

D

o

OC6

L) 

CL = 

0
CY) 

co

to '

IT

0

o

o

o

C) 

0

S) 

6

1) 

8

ul

C:) 

cq

C) 

0

Q. 

Q- 

OL

0

CaD

D

2

0

Li - 

0

C: 

CL (

n (

f) 

C) 

I'

llOR

o

EL

C') 

Cl) 

co 

cy) 
C-

4

6) 

A2 < 

cm

00'

rcmrnrn

E

cm

T) 

u) 

E2

LL

CD

wa

U) 

w

M

co

2 :

3 > 

u) 

6

c- 

0

a)(

D

C@
C) 

m

D (

D

a) 

D

C: 

m

codS
CO

d) 

E

E

c,

4

E

D

E

c, 

E

co

C) 

M

0

OL

iz

mCl

mcl . , 

M
o-'- 

CU
a- 

w

E2

2

0) 

a) 0- 

a) 

U- 

5, 

of

a) 

c,) 

0

foi

a) 

m

0 (

0) 

a) 

W

0
11- ":

r

LL >' 

to

co, 

fir,0

PPP, .... . . . . .. . ............ 

1) 

c? 

z

0

Q) 

Go6
U) 

LL

LL

C) 

E2

E2

m

m

U

a) 

a) 

1 >

1

1

co

m

Cl) 

U) 

n

w

U) 

0

o

o

tliClU) 0
VCDw

7D

U) 

4) >' 

LL
a) 

M

1.

2E
a) 

calf) 

C) 

a

w

U) 

0

o

o

0 < 

LL

S) 

6

Q. 

Q- 

OL

o

0

r< 

TD

E (—) 

cl

o - 

C) 

0

0

E

au), 

fl

cu

wa

U) 

w

2

2 :

3 > 

u) 

6

c- 

Tu- -

i5

76

x

x

w

w

o

UJs
o

m

m

m

m

E

a) 

U > > 

0

cl

LL
a_ < 

a- 

a- 

cl) C? 

1) 

c? 

z

z

LL

LL

a) 
c) 

o

DL) 

0

n

a. coI

Q- 0w



UUYWJUUWJ0WUU) ZOF– 
ZW

F– 
WwN0IxOWIr

1)

0

En  

o

ur

o

o

U

M

U

eo

a' 

T

M

an) -

0

E (

ua
v

E

cosy
cU

J

c

U `°' .

6

U

cos .® 

m ® 

eor

o

is

ass

ar

tar

y

o

a' 

Ly

a

Q

cs

c

u+ 

c ®, 

t® 

o

c

C7

r

m

n

E

u3 ® 

3

E

mE

a

U

c

ro(

Do

n

v

m ®" ® >

@ 

r

E

o'• 

QLD _
Q

Ems= 

E® 

E

0

U?

ain 
M

U11— 
U) 

c

c3

enr' 

m® 

o

n

m

L ®

cO7

s .® "

c

o

a

c

o

ea

as

o  

o ®

C7

mw
m2.
N

Lo

Los

ac

C) 

0

aTaU

0
LTap+ '. 

O

1

m "

O .' 

O

Q9

d

07

YqY

a) 

W

a

R

C3,=.'. 

N

T

tlh

E

m

E () 

a > 

ro......... ........ ----- C

ai

o : 

m

a 

rn

0.

2

u

ZZ

E

II

t

71

o

IU) 
Rl

0- 

IL

oCDma..
a

a

oo - 
20

o .._ ......... ......... ......... ,,. 

a. O

O ' 

U • 

jgy. 

O

Q.. 

a) 

m

An

a

p

j

as

a '

6

o

Q }

V

W ( 

v

1i '

lb

P', 

Ur ( 

Irl

IaVr

YI

ra

v /

J ` 

i

II

I

eflIo 
fl
6l , 

fIlfi
y

15LIOr" 
9

4 '

f

fz

I

d '

r14

dp(
V''¢

5 

a14 
j

W"

0; 

NI

1(

I

I:

ai 

VI` 

I

I%

I

i

i

A  

I

Vp

i

1VI
pw, 

r

qb
Ili^, /   & 

Y.. ,

f

1

i  

f

1

jr', ,,•

y    

I`

I  

I) 

s

Ji

I {

r

II

M 

J9, 

f749 ;
V

6i

hail
Or
V

7

1

I

If

Ilr

9) ( °

n ', 

i

I

I

rl4

I ' ; 

l

i ;. 

11
Y

rD  

i 

V

I 

fl :

1  

ly

l (

1

4r11' 
r! 

illy,( 
r

t• 

7i

w„, 

gW"

pY, 

i1

r1 '

il

u. 

ty/

III

J

L  

fad   

C

Ir,, %•  

me`   

Ar
O;

dV
4

s, 

W) 

Iblt / 

rr

iI'
i

l

l' 

E'

m 

ryJINJ`%'

ulll,//
I ! 

INj

CD

ara

H

chi

a

u, 

y

Vb

cu

V

C

U

T

l0

D

O

ry .................................................................. ... ......... ,,,,,.

a.,,,,,,,,_ ,,. ... .........._.... 

CO . a

CD, 

m `° 

un ` 

w•,.

m ` 

m

m

L, 

p

caaa >, > 

E

Q

C ® 

co

N

N

O

a42y

u

J

y

as

C

C

5

m = 



wIYixWJUHUJD0WUZOZW
I -- 

LUN0ix0W/ w0NQ) 

www

CD
U — 

a

m

01) 

c

Q

D

oT > 

m   

O

rEn

a) 

U

06 -

0 (

1) (

1) 

N

c

U (

7 .

0

a) 

aci

u 

a

N

Cp

C ( 

L

C

a

0

a) 

m

N '

U (

O `

O

4? 

0.. 

o

f >" 

E

a) 

U

a) 

rj

C

7` 

C

CDC

0.

6

N

O

r

N

O

U

a) -

o

C

O

co

U

C

O

O

O

M

O

m (

0

O` -

2

207
O)

CL

M

U

N

U

E

o- •- 

W

O

a- 

O

C

Q. 

207

af1J '

U20) (

D

a) 

1T

C

C

OL

y

45

1

L
N

m

to

o

mECY
i

ate) 

o

ari,  >- 

U

ro . ----- 

b

spy _ 

a) 

O

W

as

Em

E

to

U) .

A

o

w

a

a

0. 

co

Cl.] 

CL

m+ 

a) 

a) 

Ao

w

c 

c" 

m

a

o > (

0

O

U' 

r

I),

l,

pa,l,

I
NY,

AT1.

1Ir^'

A9I1Sj
9i

IIz-eIj,,-;

IltulIItirA,! ,
iIIVAVvD

r0 >
a7

ifNr4fIAl,01

Vus1'

1

4rI

iV i6 I

0r?i' 

4,

w,I
ktfppp

7{hJlll,

rrxiI

lyII'

t°' 
rJ,,

A.'
tl

l;,
r11I II

r

IF 
r1

11

k4-
rFAl 

p7;'

IJIl

I14I1Mr,°
VIW'a1W: 

r

k6r„

rvU9g
V'iwI 

eii, 

tII 

v

IdfiI

i'll,i

i a

ru

V'- 

1« ( 

x

Yglt
I}

u

Pa1i4'I«

Iz7i«
A,,

l„ 

vl

w

lad

z7, 

toO

i

ac

cd' t+

7

N

uw

a

t":

4a

a) 

a , 

n. 

a) 

Q

c

a

E > 

O

a3

p

N

0

Y

U

J

W

m

J

a

rn

N. 

vi

U

c < 

a7

Qp
V

Q

U> 

L

a) 

O

o ";,. ' 

w

O

v

its

Y ` 

a

ui

o

w

ro ,' 

Q) 

u

U

Cow
w

as

U

U

vi

U

i

m

2) 

c

3

c

p

mM
13

in

rj®—° 

w

U

ami

ro

U .- 

E

as

c

c

ai

Uc
w® 

aE) 

0

E

c

3

aL

n- 

ao
a) 

m

E

E +® 

O

Vxw ® 

e

C

d

ip

C

Q) 

efy

0

U

c

E

to

c

c .°) 

O

d -

a

L) 

m

a) 

u

U

E

e

CD

O

i

E • 

E

a) ' `

0

O

v

a
a) 

E

as

E

E

r

a) 

y °) 

Q  

a.

a7

ami

L

Q

EL > 

U >

a
i 

pEn

s

m

a) _ 

o

v

o

a

v

to

p

r

sa

CDC ." 

U

U

Q)

Y- 

wR

U

U

lz

to ). 

0

b .

1

O '

O

O „« 

r

Y

L

C.) 

U

U. 

N

U

6N

a) 

O

d9.
w

t1a

4° 

i 



UUNrna

U

v

a

U

r

u

v  

Cl) 

M ® 

C\

1 (

D

C) 

C) 

v _ 

a3 ® 

U

N

J` '

in

00 ® 

QD

MOO •_ .

NO

0 . 

O

O

C

C

w7

V

w

M

N

U

S

N  

a

c® - - 

3

cm

cU

0 

as

ro

c

U

CO)  

U

E

tri? 

rn ° `

v

o

0)
i ® 

N

o

c } 

aoi

aoi

Q) ®

O. 

ar

re; 

o

E

c

o

N + ._ 

a

0

as

o

va

E

fz

0

a

o

c

j

o

0

a 

a

o

o

In

O

M

E

E  

LO  

O' ® 

vi

U ® 

U ® 

M

U-) 

0

U

10, 

cap

T

Q) 

ca, 

cap

U - 

roC) 

U

a

s

a

don00U
O

p 

Uc

U

N

C7

r

0

O
i

U) 

T

U- 

c . ......,  _ ........ 

of

Q

v

T

T

Q

E

a. 

O

a

yai
ai

i$.

4 --....... .................. ......... .._ ..._ , ....... cn

i) 

O

w

O

Q) — 

C1

a

u

M

E

II

co (

n

U) 

E

it '

asm— .................... .. ...... _ 

O

i "

O

O. 

m- ` 

L

Q. 

O. 

O. 

Q . 

CL

d

p

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

CL

m

m® 

m® 

m

m

m

m

m

m

O.., .,.. .......... .......

e

a ................. .. _.... ........ 

N & 
O

Cl. 

U

1Y
CLa
a. 

N

w

U •

raw

0

G

c

Ai`
P'

n ' 

y

IOt

N

I

lr

f`

J41 {

d, 

r

rr
h

f;., ^ 

I 

i.• 

r

Ulla
loa
fl'

urIIk)
l

flil9b4i/
r, 

r4
r'

1

c

c

cirli„}
flu

4

yl

frmJ'
r

ly

fr'

rIy/
f

q

l 

Nhr) ^ 

la'^ 

fr

Y 

Iff

yi

YYb 

a

iypry

1

r . 

I

itay

X11k
r

Y/ 

NJr

1`' 

t4J•
i,

j

i9

A

r

I

r

I 

N

1f

f 

l73

J 

r

L 

hell ,
l

uoll

lri

ll

f

y

F

liil

w

ppp, «

Ilrl
n,

r

r

ri

Ply

r/ 

I

f.

agaFr'

yl

7'  

r''

u`(. 

rdr
x

tl}(

tlY

rh"
y

iil
r

rl`` 

a

r ^"

i'. 

ami

gr

111;"'

I { 

ur

E

r ?

rllo
pi
e

L4

7ya

r"'"

7r

r

hvlu
ti

1

7f."
7

J

fr &

u

rir !

rte
11

Cpl' 

r  

V

N

rLAh 

lfo("

I  

14J
i

lrFiva

rrnlri^
hl

E

uc

yroW 
F

k 

dlJl
f 

1VV

t1 

rvr

r 

M

c " 

Nas

c 

U

b

un

psi

tp

a

L

L

M

cc

L) 

o

w

a > °, 

arT

a

a ° > 

Q

C

b® 

N

N

In

QS

Ub

N

aDcu
QS

p

i

arLm

N

N

o

h

e

Cu >> 

T

b

o

f

O1

co

a) 

to -

6

V7

U

U

G" 

i

1

m

E

c

E

U

U

O

C

W

a) 

C

C

C

C

L6

k- 

0

o - 

o ' _ 

as

q

c

0

0

m

m .

v

N

U

ii
a- 

p  

O

W(

n

m

Q
ur

Q
ro

Q

N

a^ 

a

v _

o

rn

0

a 

c

o ..... 

2— 

O

m ,

s

ai . 

0

U

N .

o

m

V

CL

cn  

o

0

i

e

o

Im

o

Qy

W

J

or

o

o

0

0

0

o

v+ 

COD= 

t, 

N .

1

C

W

O

00

00

o.,  

C

0

r, 

Ccr

a

a

c

c

cn ® 

C

O

a

o

U

oo
c

cis ® 

as

0

v ® 

ro

ar

E

a

E

z

E

U

E

d

o

o

U

0

F

v® 

c

O

a

o

o `

o

0

0" 

E

L) 

N

r- 

a) 

I- 

U_ 

LL ® 

U- 

LL

O

LL ® 

LL ® 

c

w

y

E

c

d

0

0

U

c

U

o

U

U® 

U

o

U

a 

U :

a

E

E

m

o

O

as

m

O. 

n

d

a

a

n

d

u

O. 

pay . 

n

0

0

U

n

t

d

or

w

d

as

a

as

d
a) 

a

as

a

a> 

O- 

w

LL
cn = 

W

u <

L

LL ---

of
I.

L

d

LL

a

w

a

Li

a

Q

as

C `. ... `® 

CD

O

C

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

U

U

y

o » 

W0

rr

a

c

L

V

L

Y

L

x

N _

N

N

ab

a_
i

N

W

tj,
Y

N

cs

L) 

U

U- 

0
O

a

I., 
OCLOQ



II% 

ISP

CD

yis

1O

r; 

o

aCi

o ®® 

w® ®® 

C7

CJ

W

f

c; 

Do. 

E- 

cw

c

CO) 

m 

mwo '

mw 

2

m ' 

a 

U

ar

a 

C7

d) 

C7

d

aci

Q ; 

p

c -

0

i' 

a

Q

E

ss ) 

m

m

m

n

m

n

m

o

c

E  

m  °

a) °'

o

E 

ET

ET

E'^ 

v

E

C

N

N

N

N (

h

tf

m

E

i

a

to

a  

CL  

cOl

d

O

p

m

m

m

m

m

m

m

m

U

a) 

C) 

a

a

d

a

C7  

w 

p _.. ........ 
N  

N

N

Ei

pcu
Ir

W

N

a) 

Q) ¢ 

a) ¢ 

a) 

Z

a

a) 

w

0

t

E

E

n :

3

v

o

c

a 

0

U) 

U) 

C/) 

Tl- 

2, r _ 

w

m. 

a

a

o. 

a

ILLU
W

c 

O 

i

2O

2O

2 

O

z,. 

wo

cl. 

U

o. ; "

x

AD :

t

Q

O > 

Y ,

G

o" 

qY

I'''

M  

I

r

IPv
a

wle. ,

tia

k

I"

r` 

@

F 

V

F

2 

Inr 

f

0 

i

F

q

r  

Il

Y

la

li

4

b

iso  

f

i

fi

i; 

c

4' 

ri (

fJq

d >.` 

I

ti

Cl

idWli
u

I 

A 

Wo,
q

Q  ;. 

i„  

r

1 

A•'

fy  

i

p ! 

Al", 

1 

I

aar ;'

r

ilr

ifl{
k1

i

Gli4 »

Iffr
7 :

f.

l,!

l' 

if

iw%,

f

ytIIN
fil'

i)

i' 

is

ra'- 

k4 ` 

rn

Q) 

LU

as

a 
c (

3

M 

W _ ....._ ,, 

t

MJ

co

i2

i2)

p

O 

a

C . 

a }. 

C7

ra

ro

N

Ln

v

r- 

N

CE5

E

LU

Co

fi

ow
o

o - 

o

w

o

y

c

7

m

a %% '

t

Q

ov  

v

Z -

i

v

U

E

ua

E

o

i

ua

iJ 

U

tn

c

EL

LO

CL ® 

a

v

a

W

to _

j

c

W

w

n

n

C: » 

a

E

a

E

a -

O

wF- 
a

ii

o

c

m

e

1

z

u

L 

Z

S

U

o
Q

ar  

r

N

fi  

O

Q

O

J

i -

i

H

Q

OD

Z

U

d

w

N

a) „ 

m

to

LL

U

nom 

w

LLz

rood
o

w

O

ai

T-

0

as ° 

O ' 

3

air

c
D6

J "

m

oY
oU

w .. 

O

H

Cc::) 

Z

N

w

o

a

a 

F- _ 

o

LL

E

U- 

w

LL

E

Fw- 

LL

E 

w

E

w

c°

i ° 

W

c

m

o = 

m

rn

a

Q, 

or ° 

U

Q

oY

w

Q

rn

O

N 

n

Z

O

o

c12

m

m

CD

o ; 

tl- 

w

a

w

U  

LL

LL

m

c

p

C) 

n

ar

c

m

i • 

x

o

mC)' 

fl ®,

a

z

a'
i

arn

a °

Y? 

agar

E

Q

o

Q

O

m

wa

a

E.

a7U

E

as

to

Z

E

u'

CJC7"
aE•° 

g

o

n

n" 

a) 

E

E

3

m . 

a

l

m

ar — 

m

a 

z

Q

m

a 

w

o

m

m

0

c

a 

O 

o

m

m

m

a 

m

U

U) 

N

W

U
U) 

Z) 

U

U

U) 

Ir

O

U

U) 

U

w '"

y

Q

U

m

rn (

A

U) 

W

a

0

m

tr

ff

W

w

z 

a 

o

oo

m

o

p `

o

a

y

0

0

0

0

0

0

v

U

U

U

U

U

Q

N

a

t

WFC

a

cr ........ 

g

W

C

Y

Y

W

O

o

a

o

L) 

U

LL

5

C3

U

C) 

C3

C3

0



it: UUa> 

rnmdYQ.' WJU
F— ULiiJD0WUNZ0F— 

ZW
F— 

Wy0LCO0
I.

L0W/ w

v

o

m

asi

C

O- 

4C-- 

C
L.

L

O

th

C

0

m

m

0

O

N

c

m

o . 

o

N

y .- 

rn  

m

E

Q:

c

YM
xn

a) 

a) 

o

U

m

e4a

aci

o

m `

o' 

O

E

o
C 

any

a- 

q

rNr

w

f

j

m

ao s .® 

aoi

u°
3i

U

U °' 

u

c

n

s

c

c

a 

j

m

ro

c

d ®

U

cv

U

m

c' 

E

ami ' 

c' 

Y

c

m

o

aa) 

U °) > 

c

r

a

E

o

f

a

T

m -

o

0

E

o

rn

iq

as

m

U

ro

co ° '

E

U) 

ai

o

U, 

E

o

ro
a`) 

m

U

xo
E  

aQi ®`

E

Z

m

a 

S

n ,! 

C.) .

m

m

m

m— 

06

o3 

o

Q

06CL
a

m

a } 

d

c

a'
b

C

ui

O

w

m

m

rn

a

L) 

E

U) 

1° 

E

n

cn

E

I

11

N

Q _ ............................................................ ......... ..... . —... 

U) 

m

a

o

O

Na 

m

0

mw

O  

O

m

0

o ................. ....... ..... ........ y

U

i9

C .

0

CLirz

7

m

2 +_+ 

to (, } 

cnD

O

o

C. 

Uof

9a

ry

Marl

IppII

p

qlp ', 

9t
If,

i

ap

y

N

I

u"'" 

O'

aoOl
II !„ 

I 

4ryl ( 

il:

Vf
l

11

fja /

I(

1r,

r,

b

l 

f 

ul

I

fQ

rG;,
r

I{
I

r

f

il? 

II

7w

I

1;-

vt

r6

d

o

f ° 

a

wx, 

yY

i

Ia

l

il

i'

l`

lN;'
I( 

a,

l ` 

18

bi«

ltt

Ia'

i

Nr

1999

Y 

V" 

I , 
o

J

lafV( 

ill

t

a

fi.
k 

a

k  

I

e`",

a,

laMu 
a(

Irlor
6

a 

I

i

l

m;

ar

4P9

r

ifi  

N,

ral

tl 

lii

ou
r

Vl

I

II(

I

li

n

I'

i

nl

11

a

s/ 

r

1

5

ll'

I

1

7 

fJ°

w

f

glV
1

II(_; -

F^

a"-„ 

MO!'

Mi41N
Pq:',,

EL /

IrM,

Ery"/'

N

II

gL; 

vf"

HyiIu,
k

Bk

BkJ"
i, 

4.
r (

71V

i)

169!
IIf

RJl4'

IVfU!
hul

ir 

dAq

2'

a

L0) 

E

oq

R

L) 

C

a) 

b

41;
p

U

m

t

I

9

a

T, 

C

C + 

Cf7 , 

O

O ._ 

I

C

N

R

7

O

U

O /

i

O

V

a _ 

j

w

LL

E

C :

3a) 

L) 

O

x

u)

LL

E

1, 

W

o

Q

O

pva

N

m

O+ 

O

Lo

Q) 

In

W

Z

s

m

m

00r
ro

@

I 

O

O "

C

c >, 

En

rLL ® 

En

SII .

6 .

2

C

yU
C -

O

rn

p _ 

N

N

Q1

C

U

O

C -

O

U -

p !

D

U1

E

0

u

is ca

d (

DI! 
m

Ci . ' 

o

o 

o _ 

ad
c  

o

a' 

ami

E .

9

o

m

o

a) 

U) 

i - 

o

a) 

0

cn

o

Y .
m

of
1

n

W

2dUr

JU)
T

U

O

f

O

O

i

I

O "

O

O

C

ck 

a) 

a) 

O

cmi

0

LL

m

2

U

U

U

16, 

El



0C

CO

a) 

0

0

p

OC) 
C: :

3

C:) 

En

0 '-

r

a) 

Q)® 

CL

cr- 

Um

U) >, 

Lf) 

0

Z

12

CO) 

r2

h'

1 ; 

C) _

0

C) 

a) 

0

1 < 

E

C) 

C) 

cz

C9

m .

6

0) 

0) 

0

I

Cl) 

m

co

cm

a) (

m

cm

o

C) (D -

j

Cca
C. 

ti

D

cu

ca

0

D

0

0

0

z

z

cuaoE

aro
ME
u

E

E

71

fu - Q—

111,
11, --- ----------- — ...... . .... . 

ri

0
a

IL

CL

LU

CL

CL

Imci

0) 

vt

m

m

L) 

C

2i

0

2

20

20

21

a) (

1) 

Lii

fgNl(

Jj '

9 

ui

j

mv, 

rd'
l

r

M

A

Nf

fl, 

S

0

D

J

t,

plr,
i

f?, 

Aff, 

21

41

r41

llfv
pi 

611g

jr, 

wy

QP, 

N, 

CD

03

6

01

LLJ

LUraL) 

C) 

0 -

0

0

z

6

2

Z

E

q

0).

5

0

0

a) 

0

a) 

0

a

N

ra) 
E

L) 

E

2

LU ------------------ . . ... .. .................. — --- ------------- 

c-, 

10.

0

m

cnUrMnE

0

49, 

E

o

0
J]- 

R :

C,) > 

E

E

CU

0 -

0

0

u _

0

0

0

co

Al

0) 

10

s

u 

2

Fn

U) 

a) 

a) ® - 

zi _

0

Cj

0

c) 

a) 

c) 

U) 

0

0

U) 

U

E > 

8

E

C: 

1

0 >, - 

co

U) 

0

at- 

0 

0

a) -

0

2

3 — 

m

M

A

c) 

U) 

0

F- ® 

5

S :

3 >, : 

E

C: 

a) 

o

2

w

c: -

a) 

r - 

L) 

0 (

1) 

2

5

C13

E

E

a) 

0

0

0) 

Q) 

o) (

1) (

u (

1) 

a) 

j

0

o

U) 

Of

ca

to

Q) 

w

LO

m

r

00

cli

cli

0

O

ay

9

C? 

0

C) 

U

0

CDU
U

U

U

C) 

C 

a) 

C14Iry,

0

bA

1111.. 

0

C) 

0

U

C3

a) 

0 -

00

D (

D

a) 

U

L) 

LL0

C) 



0Wrn6fLYlyWJUUWJD0WUz0zWHWN06LOUWwI

Qc

@

U
r- 

65

o

L ® 

O

M

U

C) 

U

U

U

N

C

co/ 

w- 

fn

O

d

C

C

C

C

Q' 

O

E

U ® 

47

S

N

E

U

m0— 

N

N

QI

00

dp

Ij

a) 

a) 

N

C

a

J

M

O

E

O

o ' 

C' 

acr

aa) 

aa) 

aa) 

E ., 

o -

Fu

C) 

E

av°3

Eo

EO

EO

o .

U

O

Mws

cup  

M

V- 

a) 

Cm

m

0
C

mo

cm

mo

mo

L

lO

M

6

U

anCL
y : 

U

a) 

M

U

a) 

M

a3OL

M

O ( 

Sc . 

n

UOl  (.

7  

cbi

U  

c07  

cm

r

03

al   

QO

O

O

ar

a  

O

d5

QK

N

tm (•) 

z

M ,aU
ar

iri

U

ara

U

rn

U

O

m

E " 

r
O > } 

O

a. 

a

cws ...... 

tr

ci

o ` 

m

v

CO

E

1

u5

IQ) 

Ch

L  

m

c

ata: •  

n. '- 

n. 

n.  

n.   

a

o

c- 

a

O

fin. 

dam. 

2a

N

Y'

l: •

SI

03

07

01

ill

O7?'

W

g

a

k' ;` 

m

m 

as

m (

a

m 

o .......— 

L, _ _ .---------------- 

b ,,, , , ..,--------- ......... ta5
g:

2

c

H "^. 

w

0

O

OO

N  

mE

OD

w

in

oU

C

UC , „

I

r!

I

r

I 

fl

dd 

I (

r>'

kks.

IJJVr
NI
g... 

I7lbl

Ig

IflUr
W

jitl1I,
Ya

o

P

1V

4

C

h _

Z6 - 

Juj % 

Ife
I

fid 

ni''

a')

r

r1J
pr

I

I

r

xlr

Iy

lll

lilr'
Ifll

J

r {

h 

td 

Awl, 
ik

UY 

i

d^

0a

4

If

2

tl

F (

r

rp $

C
k

Ir

IYYIIfu1n1/
1

yrIllr
lIr

a

5,. % 

urs•   

1111Yp,
1

r  %}

I

91 .

111 

1V 

r

t °.

I ,

l ,

P, 

I

I

it

jrll
m

f

4  

W 

Ul
u,

l

w(& 

i,  

14Nru,

lwl
pp

I 

r

I , 

I,

df

l

r

r

4rurll 
IIhl1

r1/ „ 

41 

b, 

HI (

U, 

ull
Y{!, 

tl,

vl

ib"$

al

II

1

1

N

i 

ld ,

Ylj?
l (

I

pli
rl

yr.

r  

lk
d';

arP

491
fk90 ;

11,

114,' 

i . 

I, 

K

J

11

la

t

r, 

11r„ 
w

w 

FI

1

I

r •

ro , 

vfI,

r"

lJ,

K

uJw
a

ld

roll

U

rAe
iIC„

rG
1

9

w

Iry

V  

En

En

o

as

e, 

d. ,. 

ro

m

m

ca

ar

ar

m

m

Q

O

N

N

r

r

LO

LO

Q) 

FrMaqj ® 

U

m

c

al

ro

al

a) 

en

us

t-® 

v

Q

E

ar

J

o

J

a

o

o

m

al

o

a

va'
a

c

U > .® 

aci ®

w

sn ® 

o

c

ro

o

y

c

v ® 

Qn

E-

oo- 
acr

n

m

U

aoi ® 

d

a

n 

m

ro

U '

n

r

o

ro

E

m

E

w

G

n

m

U

U

a

I— 

c

C

c

o

id ® 

J

n  

1° 

o

c

c

E

E

c

o

c

o

n- 

z

b ®

w  

c® 

a)® 

o

c

o

o

m

2 '

v -

2

v

L -

2

a ® > > 

ro

o

o

o

c

o

o

o

r

o

co

cn 

o

n

v

v

v

u, 

o

ay

al . 

v '

7,' 

dSo® 

0U

wU® 

a)

a(

ta) (

U

a)

a

Q) 

o

0Z

C

C

b

rodN
M

V

Loa3
O

O

N

M

M

M

M (

o

Cl) 

O  

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

i

I

r

I

i

i

I

Y

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

a) 

o

a

mq

rcr 

v

Q

s

L

Y

o

u

w

al

al

T

as

m

as

al

o

m

e

U

U

U

U

O

a7

z ' 

4Ht
l̀

P

QOM



a) 

0- 

n

U

a=
i

U

v

ML00E 

U

U

U ( 

a) 

a) 

Q

w

O

y

3

a)

0)° 

a

Q

A9

U

C) 

C) 

C) 

C

4"

3_ 

U7

Cl) 

C) 

V

U

t

m

M
C,

cm

cm

ca

o

0

ocmv
U

U

aeric) 

U

cm

coUc

C7  

cm

w

m

a 

08

m

v ' 

o

Ly

C) 

Z

o

E

Co` m,... .. CO

EL

Cu.) 

E

11y

q5

c

p

C;

fD

COCL

tz

O  

2

O

V) — 

C

O (• 

Z)— 

CLA ' 

a) 

cn

U) 

w

a) 

O

r

rr
r(

y

m )

I1G
I,

IIr

plyirelylfl
YV11

IGryyetaunylrylrrllyr, 
V

y

M

tl 

l

p

v, '

7i

YY
rg%

I

rrfiI ' 

r 

If

I

r  

P(

ylr,"

dry+
r /

aryl !,

1 

4pJi

yklI
j,

J

U; 

rt1VG  

l

4;

31 

rflYi 

rfl 

1Il 

Jj

f  

Z

r / 

r ( 

i 

A°

9 ,

r

lN 

f

r

c+

r

r  

M 

f

JOU 
p

a

LL  

I 

Ga

InJ
G 

r

dtic'
fem ,'

Ill

Vr,

I

6a'

a

fila
O

fru
a

CGI
9, 

yti

x 

f 

fl 

lf

ha

rr" 

f4r,
u, 

x

rf

ICJI

IQI

ur

lyl
il¢

i4Fw
lyc

yf1^
ta

yIV(

4VP
f,

ry

k(

f

i, 

Yd < ` 

9i
bk

y 

acJ
i

u, 

r, 

I( ),,

dal

m

Ia•,.., 

R

l/
F, 

y

O :. 

ID

r + — 

co

O

a)

co

m

a) 

a=
i °) 

r'oi. 

C () 

4,,
3

e

N

T

ee

0) 

N

r7

U; 

N

0 _ 

m

m.>,..,, 

L :$ , 

M

a3

p

U) 

U

N (

n  

a) 

oo

m® 

a

N

J ® 

C7 , 

O

o

a

a) 

O

U

c

En

a

C

U

n

a`
l

o'® 

a) 

in

US

0

c

y 

U

Q

m > _ 

o

r - 

ro

U

U

O

U)'

C ®® 

c

U

n

ro

en

O > 

w

fO . 

n

e2

3

x1n

a) 

c

U

O

C .

0

U) 

C

o

a) 

r2 ,  

Q
a) 

a1

O - 

U

N

u- 

cn  

E

O

O -

2) % 

rn

n

co

e) 

C

n ® 

C

Y

U

n® 

o

w

o

0

C

O '

c

o

U

J > 

1— 

o

a) 

o  

v > 

v

c

a) 

U

N

13

o- 

o

C () 

C

O .

r -

0

U '

3

c , 

2-

6

o - .

n

U) 

E

a) -

o

a) 

E 

co

c

p . 

n

Ma

a) 

a) 

a)  

a) 

o

m
a) 

rn
a) ._ 

o

nr

V

i

U) 

UQ(
if > 

o

i

tn

c

a) 

l°

k

t

co

r- 

oo

rn

U

Q) 

C) 

O

C) 

O .

2

Kw

U

U

U

U

V
@

U

r

a) 

a) 

a) 

J  

u

LL

tJ '" 

U

U

U

U



ZW

0ZwLUuiZ_ 0ZW

I. 

0

cap) 

LL

A

CD

2U) 

p- V) 

D

c) 

nE

U) 

o

co93

M (

D

E

U) 

C) 

L) 

t - 

a) 

C: -

0

E

Q- 

Q) 

cm

E

C

E

0

IDE

c:) 

a) 

M

co) 

E (

4y) 

Q

a) E

0

E

D

co

U0- 
D

a) 

a) 

Cl- 

C) 

Y) 

5, 

C) (

1) 

0cm

CL -

0

0

0

0

0

0

c6

o6

c)

6

6

a) 

jL

M

M

o

cp

U) 

0

E

vi

a) 

a

1) 

a

D

cy

a) 

C) 

C

0

rn

CL

11

7, 

cn

E3

U) r

0

0® 

n0) 
0

O)

o

D)

o

CL

M

cu

0

0

2

w

U) 0M

U) 

CLE

AA

1) 

a) 

0

LzzQ) 

CL

f1pl, 

IN

ty"

I

Vill

if

f

j-

11

W

ip

CL

a_ 

CU

um
E

en

E2

E2m

0

D

a) 

a) 

N

C\

j

C\

l

ro

Q) 

C/

5

aCE

3) a

3

2c

E

0) 

W

CO

j

2

C6

3

w

GO

0

C :

T

E

cn

L) 

0) 
1

M
0

a) 

16

D (

D

0

F- 

r- 

Z

M

1E

0

0

S

n

0

R

c2
o

a) 

0

0

x

J (

D

Lw

0

Q) 

E

a- -

0

U

0)E

W

0

2Eci
Co

6

w

2

m- 

U) 

t; -

6

z

cm

0) 

F

C) 

LI) 

2

T, 

0

z

0

a) 

U- 

0

0

m

UM

U) 

a- 

LU

0

z-
1

C\

4CD

CD

C? 

C? 

C? 

Z

DZ

z

LLI

Lli

Lli

w

0) 

CD

0'

a

0- 

nen'` 

Q1

aro' 
0 (

1) 

U

LL

2> 

cu

0) 

0) 

0) 

o

C

U) 

c

0

r- 

U) 

w

0
U) 

Cw

L'

i

W

I. 

0



T

06' 

o-

0 ('. 

0

Fi

CU

NW

CD

a

A

0

E

cy

E

1

I

a) 

O  

M

w >` 
0

Q') m

Z

O
NW

E

d

m

E  ° 

E

E

Z

1
d

a1
L) 

V
O

O

W

d

a0

CO

a

W
F- 

W

o

m

CW

r

CCL
IL

No

O
W

a) 

W

N

J
Z

a) 

y

N

W

U
Q' 

Z

O

E

d

Z

d

a1
L) 

U

W

U) 
O

d

U

L
r

o

a

W
F- 

WN

o

OW

NoNUQ' 0zC
O

C
ar

a) d' 

a) 

w_ 0

a

CD `

O

U

U

LL

E

w

O

O

twwpt

n

o

0

N

E2 (
3)

N

II (/

J ` + 

N

O

V

U

N

C

m

a) 

O

M

o

o )+

U

O) 

f6

E

11

E

U

C

C

C7

C

O

O

a) 

J

N

V  ( 

p

T
U) 

U
11

Cc: 

U) 

W

O +-' 

O

0

L

d

a

t0/1

02
U

m

0

3. 

N ' 

Q  ,

6

ID

a) 

a) 

E

a) 

N

O

C

C -

0a
N

N

r

cmn ,

u) 

m

r)" 

o

co) 

E

m

o '

E

a7

C

as (

Ta

0_ 

R

12C
U __ 

a) 

a) 

N

CO

i5 () -

0

a) 

O) 

a) 

Q

O

O) 

Ocr
U

ILQQ
2r3

C
O

CORCL

E0U

aUNO

as

a

M

15 `) 4) E

a

a) 

p. 

O

0

a

u - 

E

C

N

N

r

O

Q •

C

U

UCU

1. 
LoO
O0zW

O) 

N

N

C

Z5

C

n

N' 

o

O

w

S

m

aa) 

c0a0
a) 

0

a) 

er

C

cn 

O

N0- 0
0Q



MzWNro

i0

SA, 

O

I

o

iri

rn

0

V

C

N

t

u) 

V

0

0 (

O

N > (

7

C

C

N

t

Q

u >,

Qo

rn ` + 

UU

r` 

ro

2

E

O

II

C

C

T
U) 

J

U

U

0),

2

is

t: 

II

Q) 

CO

W

O

O

Q

L

d

0

C

Ol

2 

a — 

Q

5

Q) 

4S? 

C

0

O

N

p > 

p

Ia) 

6

C  

O

Q) 

C

O

p

m

m

E :

SE
E 

o

EU

O

2

C

J

O

d

9. 

U> 

T

T

a

U

A..._` . . 

t, 

CNY

O. 

Q7

d  

fkaQw
1

ui

p

Z5

p

a

Q

a> 

om

p

N.................... 

o

m

w

c

Via, 

U

pCL

O

aE

A

y'

s

c
O

UN,
f"" 

Y

Qtr,, 

1p' 

Y/ 

1

1
i! 

p

d: 

I;

iI

5xr

pM
ilr

r, 

k6rlrNl
FU

4'

1

s,,

1

r

l/

hrr
l

r9711r,
a)

xfVll

1

u

as

V9b

4""

TMN

O

CA - 

W

00

m

Eo- 

VC

N

jC130
N

N + 

u

N

O) 

m

ya) 
O

Na,
S

t

O

Q

7

0  

U

p

r

Q

WQ— 

g

m

O

CD

0r

ro

rn _ 

art

C

ca. 

v

p:

wr

Epu

as

U  

c

p

V

O

c

v

w

U

C

0. 

Q) 

O

LL ®® 

4

q

S. QS

CC6

N

CC

N _ 

N

G

c

ro

vy

Ol

uB

2!

O

O

crµ5N

Ud.. 

O

O

w

Q

Y

R1

N( 

k' 

E

Y

U

N

E

Q. 

e'

er_. 

CL

ro

O

m " GTO
n. 

W

ax

U

ZC

Q7C

ro

DO

O

O

y

S

W

M

aid

x.

i

QI ` 

C

c

p

a

O

ea

u' 

O

o

O

O

aU

C

U

U

2

0

xN

D_— 

CL

Ci

c0

O

Q! 

W

i
0

SA, 



tM, U) WWU) 
I -- 

ZLU2CL0WLU> JW2UCOZOZwWwCnOWIxONW

0ZwWWZZW

W

c

Q

zi

U) 

o

LL

C) 

U) 

Qy

a) . 

aiUrs

4) 

U

U

d

U

c

a) 

U >, 

C

e4) 

N

C

p

to

N

c

E

to

Q

C

T

U

Q' 

a) 

a) 

m

Q3

O

a) 

a) 

U

y

N

m

n

U

C

Cl `

i

O

a) 

O

E

m

0

Q

c

w

N

Yt.
1

C `

O

C

C

LS

E 

TC-
0

E

a

c

CU7

E

0

a •

C

U

E

C

E

0

o

m

3

CO  

m

U

m

n

uU
rts, 

Q
M

a

E

c

a

0) 

m

0- 

n

as

a) to

o

a) 

m

a) 

o

m

o

E () 

a) 

O

c  (

1

Cl 

U  _

0  

m  

c) tas

0

a) 

a

E

m

p

O

CO

aV
mai

z

a`) 

a 

QU

Q 

pa
la

MCy

as

o+ 

i. 

ED

U

kala ......... 

U , , ....... - } 

C 

a

v

as

ul  

cn

U

E

vs

n

u) 

Z

w ,. . 

c

a 

c

Q

o ®  

R

m

E

a

2

O

c.. ----------------- ------ CLW >.

r

E

a) 

e ® 

ll

r,

ae

to

rU

Iri¢

Ir

c

Ali4II
ay'( (

r

i

Iflp
II

ril

rilr
l

A`'

r

y

a

as

a

o

Y

i

fff/

V( 

r

I,

xgIgq
l '

1 

rtf

p

1 

J

I

it

t "

p/ 

r

m

i  

II

a

f 
I

r

Jk ^

ii ,

Y 

I  

i 

r

ri
Ir

f 

d

r

I

Iii
YI

PU

jf

I

re 

awb
a° 

lrtri"
w

J

7

I, 

JI

H

f

4  

r '

i

j

rr

t

IIpp

pp

II

r° 

d 

J 

YEN

1l (

4

D

I

Lf
w 

IM

fl

as

z« 

O

o + 

a

u

OMU
C

C

W

CU

as

0

Vy

c

U

m, 

o „ 

CSr

0

N

w

U3 ® 

43

E

L

u

o

w, 

n

E

E

a) 

LL

D

O

c

lz

U

N

a

8

Q

v

m _ 

m

g
7

Su

w

D

aNi - 

w .

ro

m

z

aa)) 

w

ur

aoi

o

m -

o

uw
m ) 

a > 

c

E

a

U

o

U

d@
m

e `—

n

m

w

E

0) 

o

N

c  

U) 

C) 
c

c  '® 

j ® 

a) -

J

m ^ 

a) 

a 

v

u

c .

o

cn

n

w

cs

m

e

U

C

a

E

o

c

a) 

O

o

io

c

M

w

N

LL

c

0

47

c

n

m

U

y

o -"

2

m

U -

2

o _ 

a) 

E

E

O

a

B

a) 

m > 

d— 

m® 

n

m

o +° 

m

C

m

C

c

w

o

f

aw

O

i

ii

c

ro

r

o

E

a) 

O '

O

O

n. 

LL '

E '

O

W

E

cm

o

a) 

4 

E

j

d

o

c

U
0

a) 

N

o

o

y

m

c

s ` 

0

x

n

W

a) 

U — 

o

o

a '

a

w
a— 

w- 

c

ro

s

a) 

w

a

a5

0 ,

c

@

Q .

o

a) 

C '

0

O` 

o

U

Q

n: 

c

2® 

m
a

c

n

m

E 

a 

m

c

E

a

d

Q
d

z

w

F 

2

U !!} 

C7

U

Q

d

d

W

o

U

m

tz 

0 

v 

o

ro46

Z

Q) 

N

Oo

QJ

O

O

O

o

a

Q

p

p

c

m

z

U

L7

a. 

W

W

Cu

75

L

a

a

0

c

c

0'

l -'

l

O

r

O `

n - 

O

a3

o

b

a) 

aJ

CD

O

o

as

c> 

LL

Q) 

ti

as

U

as '

S

m  

U

t, 

b

w

C

C

0

U

2

as
Nso)  U  

CO
mO

a3

C/) 

U) N () U

O

E

V

a3

cO

o

0C7In EC: 

r20cv

o

0) 

p

a5  

OoasFN0
CO
vn

O

a0C

J



WULUCOHZwa0WLUJw2UCl) Z0ZwHw0Ww

ZwwLUZ_ aZw

o

V
C >+ 

m

O

yO
E

0

y„ 

C

O

U

r ( 

d•- 

C

C

C

d  d

N

N

y

V-

0

a
C:) 

E_ 

N

N

N -

O

m

p) 

3O) — 

i

y

d) 

U) 

N

a) 

a) 

Yll

a> 

O

m

Q

N

N

C

O

CL

f0 .0 

p

M

j 

O

Q. 

d

d. 

YL

y -

p

C) 

E

N

O

1

C

C

C

0)  )

n

N

M

C

C

C

E

c"

m'-

C) 

y

M.

E

Eo

Eo

Eo

U

mm

y

a)

a

m`

Cci

a) 

rn

CD

CD

C:) 

Mo

C) 

p

0ccm

con --

D

c6 °(

OD

U

cp) 

rnUCI) 

izi

0(

0) ®

cpm

w

to (

D  

a)  

a) 

O

a)  

o

Cl.

O

O

O

O

D6

z

Qod

Qo

Qchd

a, 

a

m

A

a

iii

CJ

NU (

n

C) (

0U

D

E

C3

a)

a

0)

O

a) 

Cf

ai

o

m

CL

o — 

E

n

in

U) 

U) 

E

n

v)" 

I

u) 

Om .. 
mO

c

OCL
O .` 

2

d

d

m

a

a0

l

O

0

c

c ` 

Daia

y > } 

o

o > 

0C04NI
rl

111

Aru

rY(

yA
l

P4

IUiY
r

N

urr
r' 

q " 

I1141
11

i( ! 

IJj (

JI

1 (

I

p ', 

C

f

u

I

11

pS 

al
Q

t

J^

P' 

rdFlI
r/ 

I 

li

xrr

v (`

i ^ 

I

F 

r

m

f4/ 

IN

Il

Pu

Y4i ,

I )

rFd%

ra

V

uK'
I

C„

i' 

m

I!

r

1

E

IIIPvril0

CD

A

116” 

il' 

U) 

d

I..

II

II ( 

I((

N,

itr4dld'
IY

Ag6(

Ir

If
I 

l

If " 

Ho%

II/ 

11

7

i

I

ryI 

rl' 

1W ) 

rJ

la

l

la

Yp 

rilr 
JJ

x

iC

a ,' 

G

Irfi % 

A, 

lip, 

I

a

I

fX
r

fo)
Cr%

y%

yp
1

n  

re"",

a .. (, 

Ara,
rAl ')

Ilu! 

Ir

1

fir- 

1r; '

le

rlfr
rr 

f 

u6y
r , 

r

V

nrr

G

i' 

rdVi

i). 

dL4

rJrilu,

llwn6f,
lf ,

l4Eu  

kk

PVui
r %,

r

k 

a4sk 

1'

9a.

a , . 

ma11,%
a1,,,

rlEoka, ;
r

C

L +, o

m

o

C

m

y, 

d

au). 

U

E

zq
a------ ........ ..... ......... a%7

0

r + 

e

c

N

EEn

v, 

g

m

u

o

a %

y., 

cz

a

T

E

T

n

c

c \ 

x

a

8

w

n

c@ -

2

Z

2

Y)

o

m

U

m

a) 

ti

a

y

O

y

a; 

C

C

J

a. 

q_- 

a) 

U

y

a) 

fl. 

t

ro

m : 

mm ?

a) 

vi . 

O. (

n

Q

ro

w

C

7

0 '

7

7

L

n

sp

U' -- 

ma) 

Ua)
i

y

a

c

6

E

E3

O;cn

Uu), 

a) 

cU

@

LL

m

a) 

T - 

O .

p `

O -

tf® ® 

C

C -

RN

O

n- 

U) 

mQp -

p

y

U) 

o

m

p

N

J

U

CJ

a)` °) 

o

sUc.
c . 

ma

mi
ui

E ® 

p)

c

E

a

U

U

o

m 

wmN
LL

r

c

in ® 

o )

U) 

cm

O

O

C

O

c

N

C

y

N

U) 

W

Uf— 

W

LU

Q

0

W

m ( 

SC) 

U

O

m

Z

U) 

a) `' 

O

N

M

V

to

O

C "' 

O

O

O

O

O

O

c

O

Z

Z

Z

Z

Z

Z

w

W

w

W

W

W

U

FIEn

E

a) 

O ` 

a

aa

C

a) 

L

ai

C

a)

C

C

O

O

OOL
to — 

1® 

F,

p

m

O

O

U

0

O

U

QO
U

P

N

p

U

U

m

a) 

U

LL

m

Z''

C '

C'

C

Y, 

Uy 

0m
O

c ) 

c

U) 

l9

a) 

cmc

W

w

LL

w

W

w

Q) QOEl



Vzw1) 

rnma_ wUwZLU2aOwLLJ0JDclw2UZOZwHwwCOOwwI

ZwLUZZw

cD

E, 

C)> rn

c

n

e

aoi

c

L) 

U

oM

a) 

@ _ 

L

C

C) 

C

y0

e

N

a3

t0/) 

O

O

E ().- 

Fa

a

a) 

d3

O

c) 

c3

Nu) 

CD

a) 

r_ 

a

a

n

o
e

L

E

N

v

v

d

a
3

2

O "

O

y

M

E

j

a) 

a) 

U

v .

0

z

0

aci

Eo

c

aei

N

ma

w

o

a

a) 

U

@o

aa) 

a' 

o

j_

0

f0

U

o`

C

o

a

v

w

cmo, 

a) 

a

d- 

O

c

a

c

as

a 

mtoo) 

tqm
a

Z

mmro-
@o

oQ

O

v

y

7

w

rnv

A

Q

o

m

o

a

m

E

a

a) 

in

z

t

CDCM

E

c

n

y

T' 

czU) 
Q) 

cn

w

na

a - ... 

v

e

0

a

a

ci

O

O

n. 

o

o

C
OV

MfY

a

w

a

A

a. 

o

O

IJ
FQtKdirlarrar

44--
f 

v

4

l

i

k

rR
AI

S

NI

h

P

r

r

Mr

l

yl

rl

ru

O

1

iN

yf ,

Y "

l, 

IPJ

19r' 

r

l

y

df (

r

rn ^

I

OII 

I

rd

I¢ 

v

9

rr

y,)

l

s

as

9,

rnN

tlrh

L

yp

e

rrll///
u'

r

0

g(

yIWNJ4
t

IN

iq

d

y" 

y 

r

t

Pi

a ' 

r

u

o

d1*

kyr% 

W

V

O

W

c(

j

E

Qati

0z

as

LO

U)

a) 

d) 

a

o^ 

W# 

e

a

t

a

N

fro_ 

CO

m

a

m

a

ca

Y

0 - 

o•, 

off, j
E

c

O

o

ur

m

a

ro' 
a

e

o

EJ

a) 

oC -

b

m

C

N

ro

N

a3

O_ Q) 

Qi

O

U

I.

9,

k

cm
a3

y

a

C

L

C

ti

w.., 

7

V

Q

Q. 

a

Ln

U

O

UD

Z

a) 

tb

O

h- 

00

O) 

C

yr
dG
b

a) O

C) (

7

z

z

C

7z

C) z

airS

w

w

w

w

Cita

c 

oal

O

Q' 

oG

ci

ua .` 

m

O

Ql

4l

C

a

n

c

O

a) 

e

a

rn .

e

O

a7

LL

o

c

C

c

ami

O

a 

c' o

y

a) 

a)  .

o

a

0

0) 

ya>  ' 

yo

o) 

O

W

t

p 

e

m

Uj

c

L

w

cD

E, 



IRE

PC

C) 

Lr) + 

0) 

a) 

C

w

W

c: (

D

2 .

2 + 

a
C: 

m

cL

E

t'

0
c) 

0 -

t-- 

ou + 

a) 

U) 

E

u

E

C: 

c: 

0

11

Y) 

0

C:) 

0

L) 

E2

0

0

a) 

a) 

a) -

Z6

a) 

1) 

n

CL :

F

d:
2

c (

A

73

1) 

co
0) m

0

Z-. 

6

a) 

E

2

06 > 

0 , 

2 -

0
w

E

co
w _

r_ 

CO

0L) 

m

0) (

M

E

S2

iii _

E; 

C: 

VN
o

a- 

0

r- 

2

m

CL

0

w

2

0

6

a- 

5- , 

0

3: 

5, :-,, 

CL

0

06

0 .

0

cl. 

ID

0) 

CD

CML

r-

0) 

G) 

a. 

m

E

CY

0

m
a

ai

0

w

m

m

CL

u

M

w

E

U) 

T,- 

tCt

ua

CL

20

2CL

m

0

0

ry

DN

cl

ca

Q- 

i6

E

Mor

p

cl

a) 

o

0a

A

011
U) T

Q) 

a

CD

ZQ

r., 

0

2

1

0

C: 0

0

fm

E0

Z_ 

co

z
m

cn

2

CD

zi

LL

0

r

C', 

I

0

CLCO
10

ID

cz

ij

Ecl. 

CD

0

0

0

CL

0

0L) 

U) 

z

C.) 

2tg

N

2

a) 

0

t; 

o

ta, 

C) " C) 

CL '

K

to

0Z

C) 

C: 0

CVOz

CD

9['

k0
0

P:

7O
4D

U

LL

0

a) C5

I
RE

PC



a) 0

u

C) 

C) 

c (

D

00

4) 

6

O

O-

2

C) 

C) 

CD

C) 

W

0- 

Z

ED

M --

5

F- 

M -

C

E

U) 

0

a) 

T

U) -

o

G- 

In

o

A

LL (

n

iz < 

E

EEE
c, 

E

o

F4

c) =

c, 0) 

D

cu

C:) 

is

C:) 

OL

E

CL

0

COq

U) (

L  

CM

z

O- 

0

rb

0

0

L) 

06 .

6

Co

0) '

o

j' 

Men
C) 

U) 

a

41) 

E

i

W

c) 

Nui ... ------ -- 
t ---- 

c .

94, 

0 " (

o

1 "

0

CL

2

Z

03

U) 

E

u

U) 

w

E

71

U) 

Z3

L) .......... -- ------- ................ 

u) 

0

60Q

a- 

a - 
CL

zztN

Q
I

ol

w0) 
6

CL

m

M

0

ar

0 (

0 az

0 ........... .................... . ....................................... . 

U) 

CI - 

w

CL :

tLlLzi

a) 

a - 

i6

E

Q) 

E

a) 

o

m

0

g*

v
v

LLIW

u

f

o;

7

I

in- 

w

Cl

Z16
LUZ

w

0

o

10 '

4, 

a_ 

Z

CL) 

V) Co

rn

L) 

w

r

U) . .. . . ............... - — ----------- - - .......................................................... . .... . . . . . . ............................ . ................ . - -------- ---- ..... . . 

C? 

a

asp

Li

Z

C

0 -- 

co

0 > .

2

C4

z

a) 

E

Ch

0

W

C)- 

L) 

o

0

cr

Z

E0

E

w (

D

U) 

C) 

U) 

LU........... . . 

65 ....... ------- - ----------------- . ........... ...... . ................. ... .......................................... 

ac

E

w

T

Q) 

IR) (

n

0  .

0

E

P

U) 

L6

a) 

16

Z 

Q) -

6

u) 

ILI _

0

E

3

2

4) 

D

LL

w

a) 

cu

U) 

0

TJrci

LL >; 

ui -

2

0

Q - 

E

a) 

m

Ln - 

U) 

2- 

a) 

ZE
0- 

ro, "

i

Q,) -

i

E

ci

u

CD

a) 

t:: 

u 

CL

Q - 

Lt

m

En

Q) 

W

0 (

D

co

w

0

r - 

D

Q

0

En

D

E

M

U) 

0

a) - 

0 .

1

U) 

U) 

t2

a) 

c) ') - 

a) 

as

u) 

0 -

0

76

U) 

0- 

m (

D

C) 

co  (

L

a) --

2

0

m --) 

0

Q) 

C) .

2

0 _

0

0

U) 

LLJ

L) 

E

r- 

E

a) 

0

0) 

IT

0 

C) 

Qu

a) 

LL

Q) 

M) 

0

m -

0

M .

2

r- -, 

Q '

L:: 

4z

z

16

0o

a) 

O

L ...! (

D

0

0 < 

U, 

co

cri

W

Z

Q) 

I

Q) 

1N' 

w

co > 

LF3

s

N

N

N

0 _

0

C) 

C) 

CD

C) 

0

8L) 

LU

WC) 
La

Z

n

co

0

o

EEl

X) 

0) 

LL

z 0

U) 

CL

a) 

e

l

C 

D

0

0

a) 

0

a) 

@

C) 

tll

a) 

cu

Q) 

Q

o (

D

i2

0

co

co

U) 

E

rq 

ui

ui

LIJ



a) u

zwMcu

EE00

n

a) 

a) U) 

n
itf

af

0
6

Itf

0
6

ro0
C) 

0

0

C) 

D

CD

0

Da

D

a) (

D

a) (

D

1) 

0

f0i

C) 1) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

o

CD

I 

1111, 

CL

n

cn

co

co

LOC) 

0- 

2

0. -; 

p

2

c , 

a) '

T

0

a) 

Ala) 
a) 0

a) 0

1) 0

C: 

cmo7

L)-

22 (-) 

t! .:: — 

CD

L) 

E -

0

1) 

a) 

E -

0

1) (

D

E

1) _

0

X

E

q) 

a) 

o 

T

C:) 

c, 

c:) 

C) (

D

ca) 
I

J- 

7, (

0) 

c) 

0

C) 

ca- 

o '

T

CL

o --

t

w

O

C) 

U) (

m

0

U) 

col

0

U) (

0) 

0

C(

0) >, 

and

i5

o

0

0

0

06

06

CO

En

C) 

C) 

a) 

cy

NU
Q) (

3

C

cy

D

O

D

U) 

U) 

cn

C

c

U) 

c

cm

U) 

U) 

U) 

CL

D

U) 

U) 

U) 

0

o

2E

d

zz_ 

6

0

CL

O)

o

L

CD

0

21
cu2E

IL

0) 

2H

E
n
cli

n

a) 

a) 
U) 

D

0

nitf

af

06

Itf

06

a) 

cy

C) 

2E

Da

D0

2E

0

M

C: ;-, 

C) 

f0i

Z; 

LL

Q

0

I 

1111, 

CL

n

cn

co

co

LOC) 

C) 

r4l

a) 

a) -

0

cv

E

CD

E

C, 

E (

D (

D. 

D

t! .:: — 

CD

E7
m

CL

o 

T

07 

q

C:) 

a) 0
C4 -
n

W = 

c) 

0

U) 

cc) 

C) (

D

ca) 
I

J- 

7, (

0) 

c) 

D

0

a) 

0

af

06

Itf

06

a) 

cy

2E

Da

m

p

O)

o030
2E

cu

m

2E

0

M

E

p

0) 

m

0 (

1) (

1) -

2

Q (

1) 

z

2

a) 

C.) 

0  

0

U) 

c

0. 

U) 

c (

D

Lli

w

I

I.. 

DCL0aM

0) 

cl

C 

0

n
a) 

CL (

n '

C: 

0

M

0

0

M

as

f0i

Z; 

LL

Q

10

I 

1111, 

Nk

Z

w

LOC) 
C) 

r4l

0

a

0

0

GO) 

E

z

E

ca

D

E7

a) 

c: 

d0) U) 

c

0

a

0

0

a) -

J

a) 

Cl) 

w

w

w

w

U) 

0

In
t:! 

En

C) 

M

C

En

O

En

D

O

D

U) 

U) 

cn

C

c

U) 

c

cm

0

T

2

0C: 

CL

D

U) 

U) 

U) 

0

o

2E

a) 

ncli

rl- N

Go

0') 

N

N

CD
m

9

9

C? 

C? 

C? 

C? 

CD

D

CD (

D

z

z

z

z

w

w

w

w

w

w

0) 

m

0 (

1) (

1) -

2

Q (

1) 

z

2

a) 

C.) 

0  

0

U) 

c

0. 

U) 

c (

D

Lli

w

I

I.. 

D

CL
0aM

0) 

cl

C 

0

n

a) 

CL (

n '

C: 

0

M

0

0

M

as

0

a) 

LL

Q

F - 

9 (

u

D

Z

w

L) 

w

a) 

r4l

0

a

q) 

c
a

D

a) 

c: 

d0) 
U) 

c

c

U) 

cm

w

w

w

w

0) 

m

0 (

1) (

1) -

2

Q (

1) 

z

2

a) 

C.) 

0  

0

U) 

c

0. 

U) 

c (

D

Lli

w

I

I.. 
DCL0aM



I
a

0

U) (

1) 

U) tf

a) 

1? 

0

CD

a) 

Q

C) 

0) _

0

C) 

c:) 

a>), 

u, 

0

CA

c; -

1 -! 

CA -

0

w

co

M

CY) -

0 

6

r- 

U) 

L:- 

C) 

U) 

o0

w

w

a) 

cD

a) 

6

a) 

U) 

0 — 

Q) 

CO

CY) 

cn

a) 

cc

C) q- 

CD -

0

1

CO

of

c) 

0

0) (

U

CO) 

ti) 

a) -

0

C, 

So
cy) . - 

m

CD

A

C',

coo-

0

C) 

C) -

0

a) 

4) 

a) 

5, 

T (

AD

r < 

N

cr

CC) (

0

cl

U) 

0

CO

co (

X < _

j

G 

ca :-

5; 

0' (

D

0

0

2 = 

a) - 

c6n

of

a) 

L: 

co .= 

CL

cm

LL

0 (

B

cu

E

U) 

w

0

0

a) (

U 

E

Z 

Cy) 

E

a

E

0

0

0 (

D (

D

CT

a) (

D

c) _

Ln

a) 

E < 

0

L6

U (

n

CD

m

M :

3

Z6 - — 

m " . 

L

ca

ca

m

a) 

m

m < 

cox '

n

c- 

0

E

f5

c

Er

2)

0

ci- 

a) 

g -

6

a

co

cu

m

c4

Co

3

0

c) 

a) -

i (

D (

D (.

0

C-

4

a) 

0) > 

o® 

as

cl) 

cm

0
c,

n

0

Li- >, >, — 

r- 

to) 

to

4) 

U

0

0

fb .. ................................................ — ---------------- . . .. . . . ..................... ... . . . . ......... ............................. ... 

otl

0

as

a

a) 

CL

a) 

0

0

M , 

ads

O

m >- (

D

0) 

a. 

m

cc

a

E < 

t

ILI

q3

0

tm

0. mE

al

U) 

E

co

Q

0cl

I -- — ---------- . . ......................................... . ..... --- . ..... . 

0) 

010

CY) 

0

a) 

0)

0 

j

cu

m

m

ca

a) 

a_ 

rL

z

IL

0

E2

tD

r

g

0rL

4

41 "'

a,

y

f, 

A, 

N

Iil

a,

TO

ul 

t

q, 

2

m

Ir

4

qit

P&( 

aux

N'
l

H

1",'

r,;' 

Jolulvwl
11164
mlllgl'
f'f(,'

I, "

I", '

Ili

Jfll,,

IJ

L,"' 

4

ru
w

h, 

IRI'
l, 

0

7

Cfl

ZI

M
L:

l

1

11

0 .

2

CO (

D

cli

0

0

0

P

z

E

z

z

M

a) ca

c: 

a) (

1) 

0

41) '

EL
a) 

a) :

3

CL >, 

0

0

0

CY

0

a) 

0

U

r- 

153

Ll

U) 

as

c) 

0

AZ

0

0 -

r- 

if
I -

S

3: 

0

cs

Z. 

C) 

U) 

a

dk -

2

LL

0

LL

LL

D

as

to

n

0

LL

W

j

m

U) 

0

0

C

to

CY

N

U) 

En

m

a) 

IF

E

0

VZ

U

CL

0 -

FO

a) .

9

E

Z

0

W

Cis

6s

cl) 

a) 

a) 

w

0C

a) 

In

0) 

ar

0 * -- 

U) 

Q) 

D6

I < 

0

c: 

w

c: 

E — 

c: 

m -

c — 

LD

W

65

Zs

ATI -

J

2

r(f

to (

D

a) 

a) 

a) 

3

Lu :

3 < < 

a) 

3 (

U

CT) ) 

U) 

E

0

0 (

D

O

EL'

a

z

a

0

0

D

0

0) 

W (

L) < 

Z

LL

EL

N

cl, 

CD

C) 

CD

c:) 

c:) 

CD

D

rf,

9

9

C? 

9

1? 

C? 

ra

V! 

CA

0) 

U- 

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

ce (

AD

0

yj `

4

U

LL

a) 

E

D -

0

CU

Tj (

D

0

LL < 

A_ -
j

u . .... .......... .............. 

qO-O

I

m



m

mmaW
L% 

WJMWUZOHZWF- 
LUwOWw

s

M

L) 

I

m

O

d' 

0 = 

U

o

r  

W

C

m

N 

m

O

Oco

qa

N ( 

E

M

U "

fl

O

J

N

LL

o

CD

D

U

uomM
Co

m

mr

CC

M

Cl) 

a 

vU
o

o

U

d

u .

ro

O
c ( 

U3

C

r

C7

N

m ...--- 

CL

in

m

En

m

4Na
i

L° (

0

E

vmi

1

Q > 

Q > 

ai

o

aa

L

l: 

m

EN

U) 

CO

I

II

L" ... .... _.............. ... 

M

d

M
0- 

N

n

m

O

a- 

o

C

r

O _ 

iky" 

irp

O

y

Q

r

r

D

u

w

o- 

r

nlr

i

i° 

O

i

r

a

l

I,? ". '(, 

ti,-,

kill,'
if 

N

j

a . 

u

c

mc

U

vo

ybry--------------- 

N ... -

O

in ^- 

v

Z

N

N

ro

l

m

N

m

klb

u

o

y

t. 

aa)i

m .? 

E

ary

ary >, 

W

o

Q \ 

J

ary

C

N

J , 

C +" 

CL

G

I

a :

3

t

S

o

2, 

mI

T / ® 

N_

0

U) 

c

o

tq

co

c

m _

0

ca

w

o "

a" 

ory

as

0

E
I (

f1

o

m

a .'_ 

U

o

a . 

aa) 
U

Illd; ?

d

U-

0

a

E(

D

rz

ro _ 

o

ro

H "

a

0 ® 

d

n

o

N 

O

Q) %

ro

o
a 

a) 

in % -

o

a ® 

a) 

la,

ua

LL

a> 

5 (

fl

E

m

a) 

o

ami

m

Q > 

v

ao

m

a' > 

aa'
i

m_

am

Co

N

L

aN' ® 

C

E (

D '

y

M

m

00 (
b

C ' (

n

LY

CL

L) 

m

m

g 

z. 

E  

o

in

n

ro

ro

U

a

E

o

m :

al

l

o— 

c

0— 

ro

U - 

m

a

O> 

a

s

j

U -.

T- 

N

Y

C

Q) 

o

O

LL .

m

a

in

W

Q

z

vam
T— 
m

m

o

E

a°

a

a

U (

D (/ 

d 
r

CJ

Z

Q

c

M

Kaa ....... ..... 

N

it _" 

4,
w, ,

tu

00

07 (

D

N

T

N

C - 

O

O

U _

v

a

a) 

o

o

U

C? 

m

a) 

Q , 

LL

LL- 

C) 

LL

LL

LL

C

u

X61 :. ...... 

Dry

c

c

w

L

Cc

C

O '

O

G   

c

L) 

U

LLry
R .

N

as .

CU

E

na

W

W

W

O

4

iL

Q

a -

C) 

17L

LL

d

761) QOQc0U) An4) n30Q
73

or3a7Dow 0a3UclD0oC) 



m
O) ma. 1, a

w...... 

m

c

E

o' 

a) 

O( 

m

N

a) 

O

cj)• = 

o

U 

C

O

Q

m

u- 

C

E

O- 

3:

U 

a) 

C

L

m () 

N - 

M

CO) 

d () _ 

c

j

c 

c

m

o

a) 

a) 

cQ
u).

o(

Jo- 

ca' 

m

a) 

cnu

2

a) 

m

a 

aLo

o

Lq

U) 

a -

0 ' -

E

m

o

m

m

Coa 
ani

o • 

m

m

I

En

v -

o

n

w

N' 

ami

v

a) 

ami

E

ch
m

o

a

cap

00

0En

a 

E 

E

a) 

a

h

r

n

J

ch

m -

r- 

c

U

m

U

o _ 

L

E _ °

7

0

c —'' 

ami

m

E

c' 

E

w

a

m

a

c

m

U

m

0

0

O

c

0> 

O> 

m

m

m

a) 

U 

6

6

U

iS
U

m— 

a) 

m

0

0- 

o ® 

o

fn

i= 

L

a) 

O

2

a) 

m

a) 

Y

U

U( 

L

U

O

m

aJ, . ......................................... 

0 ` 

U) 

r

a) 

a) 

O

LAz

Q1

O

w

BO

E

E

11

Q) 

m

c

6) 

o

o

Y ' 

g

o ., 

yitu+
9 ;

Ni41yfyv
4k

f ';

e

1

aJiHriiylf
iu, + 

lri

Yi

rrr

y

r

11

a

r

r

7

i•

I

Y

r

Wt`
a'

ci) 

I

III

I

4i

ra

r

r

r

F

i

r

Y, 

r/"

b

yWk 

n7§
ry 
1++'

r

C

J + 

V `'

4, '

Yl1  

9 + 

v' 

d ! 

IIII

r

I

r 

i  

h

i!

nli
r

Yy

C

l

y + 

r

1

d2' 

d'

1.;,.

7

y{

tiCp
i,

f

l>

l   

9

t'

10

r° (

fti» 

i

I;

i

4

lf 

rk'

1lri

n''

i

rai

n

1

J&'

a

C6(

ku1
6'

fh

rflw
lf°

W+

Fa

U) + 

r

k) 

C.

r

D

Q" 

U

m

10

0

a.._

0

Fd
f

C  

q"; 

U

LL

oa

Q) 

a

a

3

HI. 
LL

0) 

U) 

z 

a) 

c

c

O (

n

m

m

Cmm

E

m _ 

L

ai'

o

a) 

U

1„'

T' 

m  -

0o
o

a) 

Eas

a

m

m

o ! 

ma
d

c

IL

U)

O'
l

a)

J ;

3k

47

j— 

c7

N

3

LL

U) 

ss

O

Cy

d

O

fj

w

U

U

LL

r

LL

M. 
O

M
Oa`) 

c
a) 30C) 0a nmnoOL) QDO0



WLLWiD0LUUZ0ZWW
f 

0OWw

6

O

N (

6

C

00

m' 

0

U

o

as

O

C:) 

a) 

J

C

C

M

a) 

0

0

0

O? 

p

U

O -

p

N

V-- 

O

N (

6

CO

ay

li? 

O

to

V! 

CO

o

U

ay

a) 

i

a
r— 

co

a) 

ay -

o  

a

C7

n

E

c

c

o

o

iL

3

Y

0

o._ 

co

E  

m °

y

m

o

o

as

as

M

U) 

m

U

l

CD

o

v

CM
C:) 

E

Q

pyJ (
D)

p

n . 

r

p

67

M

cm
Qy

C

coy
m

O

p

M

p (

a

cm

p 

O %

B

C

U

p

M [

B

c9

p

s•. 

a} 

O

U

LL

4D

O

LL

V

o •

E ._ 

O

4 

cm 

C7

Uccm

U > 

Qa>

iUcMm
dU 

cMm

zt

rya _... 

r _ ,, 

od +°

U

U

U

m

v

m

u

aci

r ' 

Cl

d

C1  

Ci  

y

w

M

0

v

a) 

L

aB

a) 

a)  

a) (

D ( 

O

any

O

O

CL) 

a

m

co

0  

Q

r 

u } 

w

as

as

N

co

w

Q

Q

Q

r

rn

a

r, — — — 

Cc

E

II (

AMC';Y:: 

r(

n [ 

E

II

ay

ay

U) 

Cc - 

00

d. 

d    

y

maw

ro0
n (

U

a

coo
Q

a

a_ 

d

CL

a

o <

a

O - 

f,

T. > 

N

Q)} 

w

o

m

o

b

CL

ay

N

yw
i"

i

ryII `
rub(

ri'!¢

pniat

WryraIVriIIW'`°

µ` 
W4iwfClaliuI'

i

ra ,

rrlol

by

Oi

tir

G' 

i

i <

G

Ia

li

WI )

lr

O

i 

O',

q '.'

i ! 

i ,,,.;., 

7;.

r.

7Yy„-=  

ur 

1'

r,

rr

u;

4 

k

l$ 

4''

M'
UrI

G,;,;

tri

O

I

s

o
1idptl
lW (

l 

y

q

C

aye 

dj'.

N

ird

r

q

1,

MR 

N
47;1rtj

km

z. 

ra ®., .

ee

N

t/

B

O

i

N

O

tLO

USB

a

Z

o

a) 

E '^ 

z

a) 

E

rry

Q) 

a

C

iT .. 

7 (

9

OB ._ 

7 (

a

u

o

b > 

ay

c

E

m > 

aa) 

c

E

m

a (

B

C

O

0 •— 

L

O . 

T

C

Sit

4

N

a

LO
J

a) 

J

E

T

47

ro

Oc

a) 

N

Mme; 

ro

1

C

O

w \' ?` 

z

I' 

o

i° 

n

06

V

n

o

a) 

ar

o

m' 

E aa)

i

oo

uy

c

a

ay

ur -

0 - (

Da) 

wc

o

O

ar

0)

a) 

u

a.  '

n

qui

a . 

i

F

aNi

N

O `

J

ay ?. 
T

al ® 

c6

cTj

cod ' 

Q >, 

O

E

O

qy

v

ff

tY  

ay

c

m

U

w

E

uy

m

ro

I; , 

a

co

m

o

n

m

c

O

c

U
o

f

aL

o

E

S

a) 

c

U) 

N

o

4k4. 

b

f; 

pB  

O (

L

N

a) 

N :

6

L

try

N ' (

B

o

a

i 

r% 

E

ua

o

T

ay

Q- 

a

c(

D

ay

E

ay

Cy

ay

m

w

U

c

ay

u 

C) 

ci

ao

o

U) 

j

n

U

IVa

ay

o) ._ — 

y

CD

m

U

o

y .. 

c— 

c

w

c

E '

c

o _ 

c

o

E

as

a

E

a) 

O> 

a

0

4

f5

U

ya  

ly
U

I— 

IL

W

d

iL

a_ 

W

n

O

LL

m

iL

S

o
ULL

d

oU)  

f

i

ay

E

V

c7

0

0

0

c

cy

aas

aB

o

al  

tY

elf

O '' 

U._ 

LL

LL

lL

LL

LL

a

q.. 

a

o

U "

YS

n) ,

y
r:

i

aB

o2S

co

ar

dS

c

a) ,

6 

r

a) 

dy

c

L

o

Q) 

Q' 

Q7

O

O

LL (

Q '

C

LL (

6

L.

L

N

O ._ 

LA.. 

ril

LL (

0 -" 

L) 

OU

LL

L

s

N _ _= 

ay

c

aJ

M

s_ )

5

M

aL

m

O

li

m

o

i > 

n) 

U) 

u.. 

a

iL > 

ay

L

iL > 

ay

t

L

aB

iL > 

O

Of

rWa

LL:

i

L

i.- :' N0- 
0O

N



N
3) mCLa

CDCT) 
CD

Cl) 

D - (

0) 

C) 

C) 

C-) 

ca

CID

4? 
D

120E15L- 
E

as

C) 

CD

0

E

c, 

EC) 

E

CD

lc:: -

tf

E

co

0) 

co

m

CD

mCD
CD

to) 

C) 

cm

CL '

IT -

5

6

CL "

r

CL

fi

Q) (

Y) (

D

CY) 

a) 

0 -

C

has

0 =- 

E, 

0") —

M

o) 

Cy

wra

E

oa

CL

g

v

10

ECO
E

Tl- 

iz . ..... ................................ ..... . .. ........... ...................... ........... . . . ...... ................ 

O)

o

O)

o

CIL

CC

CL

CD

CL

C., :

E

IL

fi

CL

0

Vroa
CL

p

j"

g

Z' 

CD

rIDx
57' 

D

o

C' W

Q) 

to

0

L) 

tj

r- 

0

k

q

C14

04

D

E2

r

Z

E

Z' 

z' 

E

u) 

z

2

a) 

E 3

TCL (
cl:) (

L) 

E -

a

u

0

0

C3- > 

0

1- 

0

S- -

j

ami

c > 

C) 

0

Cl -

1 (

1) 

r - 

Q) 

c) -

j

05

iz

D 

oa3................................ . . . . . . . . ....... ..................................... --- ---------- 

0

12

kil -

1

0 :

3

M

Nlz '
Ei _

0 '

In '

0

SZ

tj

C

C

co .

0

0

a) 

Wa) -
C

a) 

a) 

U - 

is

2-

0

cl- < < r- -

2 -

0 _

0 _

0

0

a) 

a) 

a) < 

CC

C\

j

C) 

0

q) 

cli

N

C4

CD

C? 

C? 

C? 

0

ILL

ILL

LL

LL

U- 

ILL

rx; 

C: 

U- 

8 (

D

Li- 

M (

D

t

LI- 

M

2? — . 

F... - 

0

Q, (

D

as

T2

U) 

u "! ,

as

LL > 

U- > > 

ELI >

a) 

ICU

LifZ- 

I. M
vi

U) 76Em



LLaI

oIroLL

0

d

61

d

ro

E
E

µ..

l

O

O

ro

d

Ste. 

00

E

E

cro  

a

O

CD = 

rL

kw

O

co

Cl. 

c

D

C. 

NlQ

M

RL9

O',

I

t47CL

h

D

D
ro

d

ami

m

rn  

cu

x

t!

1

N

fn

U

O

O

r ~ 

m
UO

ya
14y1

b

dV' 

aI

a

U

ro (.

I

0) 

c

O

a

ro

c

S

U

c

f/) 

N

aI

ro

EvA

kGI; 

GIYl

D

U

2

f0

O

L

u

U) 

cn

j

j

w

Q

c

w

a... 

co
NO

C? 
o

r

Q 

U) 

32

t
r

Q' 

LL

LL

Ll

C

6

N

t 

Q
C

O

I.

L. 

U

y" 

U

m

ar

roCL

0

Cn

J

Q

r

Faa

DYI
kSl

cu

U
fi

1.

k

Vm

o

F, 

Q, 

fo

a

x

p

0

T, ro

wz0
0) 
0
vMUUroaI

aI

D
0®

IQ

M0

M

ro

O

t47

c07

ch

D

D

161

v

ro

ro

N

NU) 

rn 

I(( 

A

7

1

1O

co

c

ro

roro

d

ami

m

rn  

cu

x

t!

1

U

G

N

O

N

U

O

O

r ~ 

m

s

aI

a

U

N

0) 

c

O

a

ro

c

0

J

f/) 

N

c

m

c

aI

ro

E

O

L

O

D

U

2

f0

O

L

u

U) 

cn

j

j

w

D

r` 

co
NO

C? 
o

r

Q 

Irr

Q' 

LL

LL

Ll

CEn

c

Q

I.

L. 

U

LL

w

roCL

0C8

0

J
El2WEF- 

O
0

OOm

3a

cw  

0

yLo

O

ON

LO

O_ 
m

OljO

wQ  U  W00
m

U

Z

CL

O-0O
W0



W
0) 

Ma) C) 

a) 

L) 

E

m

O

C

C) 

r

a

C7

a) 

ucaC) 

C) 

C) 

E

0-) 

a) 

rn

C) 

CD

C:) 

CD

E

E

C) 

a) 

0

CD

co

Cl) 

co

m

CY) 

CO) 

ui

E

03

CD :

3
C) 

C) 

0

D

cm.........

z _

0

C', 

m

CD

CL

0

a

E

0

M

r3. ........ . 

0CLE

II

U> 

72
11

aCa

t) 5

0) : 

1 `

i

a

a_ 

a_ 

2

CL

tz

m

ro

m

m

ro

2

D

w_

r_ 

a) 

cn

0

a) 

CL :

3

M

c) 

in

j -

Ln

B > < 

Q) 

C-

4

W

is

IN

Z

bl, 

E' :

2

q, 

04,, 

t

jjjj, 

v

4 '

E'

0111t, 

J

So
2

CD

U) 

U

r- 

C4

C-

4

r

cli

C11

0

z., 

E

z

E

z

E

zo

E

z

D

a) 

a) 

o

2

CD

E

0

0

U

a) 

E

E

a) 

cz

E

a) 

E

w

E

a) 

0. - 

0

S-- 

0

cr -

E > 

0

CT -

E

cy > 

0

O > -

j

a) -

i > -

j

0 > 

a) 

2 , 
ck 

0-
1

w > 

a)

a) 

0

Q

0

a) 

0

2 _

0

0

C: 

ID

r

IL

lk

cL
a) 

0 (

D (

n

ui — 

n

0- -

1

0

a) 

a) 

0

fn 

73

E

a) 

t

U) -

0

0 -

S2 > 

Q) 

c

m

cl

0

cc

a) 

r- 

0

0

0

E

a) 

N

t: 

C) 

N

C: -

2

0

Cl

m

Q) 

cr-

a1 ° 

U) 

0

m

0 > 

U) 

U) 

C) 

W

C: 

0

I) 

M "

i

z 

T- 

E

M

c

C, 

rz

E

E

0

If

0

2

cn

2 .

2

a) 

0

a) 

m

C: 

a) 

u) 

cl

0

Q) (

U

m

0

0

r- 

0

0

a- 

0

cl) 

L

CI- 

w

Itlw

LO (

D

q) 

C, 

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

0

CD

S) 

C? 

CD

CU

C)

0) 

CD

U

0

LL

m

C) 

c

C) 

c (-) 

m
F- 

C) 

m

CC

m

CID

a) 

2i :

E

0

Rl

6M
I 

00El



0

d

m

CL

f0

a

E

t

aJ

0 +- 

tm

a 

m

E

u

E

w

co

O -

2

y

O

LLo

U) 

U) 

ro

cu (

a

te

20  

O

01-

01
lz

m

Yjp

U

1'

0

1

cv ..

i'

I

r ( ) 

Ak

n

Tro

CJ

0T

0,. 

N

U

O :

s

U

O

a) 

Y

C

O

C

Lo

Q) 

N

ro

N

C

Q) 

a) 

00

T

C) 

ro

ro • 

a) 

LL

n

ro •

Cmp

D

C) ('

In) 

tL -

0

N

LL

c) 

V

ro

a) :

O

V

M'.:

Y

T

Q) 

O

7

p

C-

0

U

M

N

CT

CJ (

U .

7

C) 

O

LL

N

U

U) 

C

N

Q) 

U

U

Q

m (

n

ro

d' 

a) 

C

0

O

a) 

ro

a

CAN
N ( 

Q) 

M

O

NJ

0_ 

O

KS

m

b

C

U) 

U

4.

b

O

n .. _.......... - 

N

C

J

E

U

ro

N

o

E

pp

3

W

Q

m

p

E

o

o

ID

1
v

a) 

o

a) 

o

CD
0) 

a3i

E

a) 

Y) : ` -

o ,  Q

y

p

ro

V' 

N
m

U

in

o

A

N

N

UI

C

N

ro

m

S

T

U

m

p— 

O

C

N

E

ro

ro

N

e
w

ro

O

I- 

E

u, 

a) 

ro

E

m

o

V

Li -

0

O

O - 

a

U

T

O

p. 

O 

U

C

T

O

V (. 

O

U

O

0- 

to

O -

C

m

0_ 

O

N

m

T

N

D

p

ro

V `' 

O

U

a) 

U') 

r

Z

ro

U

d

A

0-

00

1C1.....
i,.. 

a

0....

E

ro .

N ,

Q

a

a 

o

o

u

Q)

I,) 

L > 

U

Oo6

Uo

m

211

N

t

c17;. > 

O

u) 

U) 

U) 

ro

cu (

a

te

20  

O

01-

01
lz

m

Yjp

U

1'

0

1

cv ..

i'

I

r ( ) 

Ak

n

Tro

CJ

0
T

0,. 

N

T

OC
p

Q) 

O

co

O

O .

0

C '

E' 

M'.:

Y

T

Q) 

O

M

U (

D

Q

m (

n

N

b

C

U) 

U

4.

b

O

n .. _.......... - 

En

W

Q '

U

U4b

Q) 

cu

o

ae >

D, 

CJ

W

T

C

m

LID

O

O + 

O

C

Ul

Q) 

O

U

6

F8a1

o (® .

a) 

Q7

Y

0

ro .

Q) 

a) 

Uo

m

211

N

t

c17;. > 

O

u) 

a

U

0

ui

d'  

a

U) 

oC

T

OC
p

Q) 

a) 

C-• _

0

a) 

O

E

C

U

0J

a

E

o

0

E

J-- 

Q

m (

n

n .. _.......... - 

En

rn

O

U) 

n

y

a) 

cu

da) 
aa), 

O

T

C

m

LID

O

O + 

J

U- 

C

Ul

Q) 

O

U

C

O

ll

O

U

a) ro
N

o (® .

a) 

Q7

Y

0

ro .

Q) 

a) 

Uo

m

211

m

d
a) 

i

a

U

0

ui

d'  

a

E (

J

x

3

O

E

U

0

O

C

43 '

O

0

0-

o

U

C

U) 

0

0-

0

fC

C

O

a) 

0

0. 

fi. 

C

F— _

Ow

ro

m

m

wi

N

m

m

C

C

O .

V

0

N

D

L

5

m

D

co

I— 

In

a) 

10

O

O

C7

o

a) 

a) 

2

S

U
a) 

d

p

o

C) 

T

2

U

u

a) 

NK7

hO

p

O

D

D

O

O

0. 

0

m

a) 

U) 

Q

U) 

m
a) 

O

O.

0

L

O

Ul

a} ,

U

U) 

D

U

O

Qy

O

U) 

7 

D

O

a) 

O

U) 

v)]

z

a) 

WEQ) 2roa) UCU) CaCroU) i) Q) aD

CLOEl
froa) E

C

a) .® 

0

O

N

D

E

d

U

a

C

ro ¢) 
C.

7dra



14

o) 

U ;..' 

T

O

N

M

m

N

LL

CO

C •_ 

O

N (

O

m

m

m

m

to

U

V

N

O

ON
Co
Q ` (

p

m

N
U) 

CD

m

J

C

a) 

C

a) (

D

ca)

a) ' 

C)  

r

NQ
4= 

a

C

O

6) (

O') 

N ..

U- 

V

2 >. 

d

O

tOi

c

Q (
21): 

LT) 

ro

i

N® 

LL•

1N
W

U

EM
ro

L

orm 

3

0_ 

c

a) 

roNM
c

aci

a

miUO

0UZa
m

U.

0

E

Q, 

Q

p

ro

f

a) 

E

o) 

N

a) 

a (

7

o

a) 

a) '

E

m

O

oio
a) ()

v

EE. 

6Nb
c

iri

E

aEi

U

amiN'
t

U

U

m

e

m

a) 

u) 

r

m

o

m

o

E

d) 

s.. 

O

N

a) _ 

m

N

O. ?

i` 

U

O. '°' 

U

O. 

OU

N

m

O

o

w > 

a) 

ro

t

w

N

a) 

a) > 

w

y (

o

a) 

0

J

ro

0

0

W

O

m

rn `

o > 

m------------------ ....` , 

0

v

Ib

amO
a

Ero
V

L

C

CD

O « 

M, 

m

a (

a

a

E

E

n

11

EnZZ )a. 

u

r- . _- -------- 

0CL

ro

m (

D

M

c

O _ 

r

O ..................................................... ......... ......... w

o

o

rca

as `

o

An

C

C

21

aj
U

O

r  

iidrN"
w41 

Jrl
il'

9

Ul '

il

f

jh;

fr

Pmr
k

h

y %

Tr

f' %

u', 

r

r 

0 / 

ff
y'

J

ril

I

tib

IV,

I

alJr

71r

r

Ji,

4r" 

J19;
YlIYIS 

I '

r

I

pn ) 

fl /= 

4) 

V

rtM
I;

1

O'

rrG 

N

fl"

It

r

C' 

7 

I%

i

94

r

qy
w„ 

J. 

v

1N

R{

wnJr

rflJ. 

O'

ur/ 

I

I

Y'

in '

s""

rr 

I

xru

r, 

r

8

Ir

syW

1" 

GIy
rI)

rhr
i 

arGo
T; 

r0  

Ir

m " 

G

v "

JP
l 

r

12 " 

rl(

1 

ry 

ryp'
n 

fd

lYi 

N 

4' 

PN`'"

A

L<

II

r

yrRl'

M1 
4.

q

VEE 

r  

r ((

yrJr

r4o

ri

r

pl  

r

r

rf 

rryG
rwry

d 

r'

r1Vlr 

µ
lll

r

r

r3 

ryh 

r

a

L () 

V

O

y

m

V

C

4) 

c

of

U „ 

v) 

t

o

mm

p

m

U

as

c

m

v

z

E

u) 

E, 

O

C

a) 

m

m

V

O

c'

ry

t7N (

0

U

Vz 

T >, 

70•. = 

CO

0- 

E

d

12

U) 

0

w +> 

i

C

01

m

U

p

c

a

c 

c

c

c

p

Al

a) 

io

a) 

a) 

rn ® 

a) 

b

a) 

EC
rnc

c

a) 

a) 

c

c

m

W0

E
EOL

o

Q

n

a) 

a) 

v

E

Q

m

a) 

a

c

p

a

O (

a

O

E

N

O

a) 

p -

B

m

m

U

C

O

0 _

U "= 

m 

a) 

0

E  

E

4

N

h, 
3

I

p

N

O

N

Cu

d

O. 

C

C

o

O' (

a

C

aa)) 

O

rz' 

M1pI(

r

O("' 
dgY•,

b» . 

C. 

0pm
mo

wc=

i

cpn .

0

C/)- (

D

m

m

U-- 

CEn

Of

a) 

W _

0

n

ct>. 

d

4. 

O

O ^'. 

4. 

d

n_

0

U

a) `

a

m

C

U

n

U

m

E

m

m

E

c

v

o

0

CD

C) 

rn

rn

rn

O

a7

a) 

a) 

01

m

y

ro

E

m

2

m

E

o

E

o

E

o

E

o

ate) _ 

a) _ 

D

CC

C)

0N
u:

o

n

w

o

O

3

Q

ems. V  

wv_, 
Oo

t  
V
ImUaU

O

w

o



04

N

LL

0

d

O

c

cn
N ' 

LL

U

r

U
C) 

c

c

N

c

0

0.:

EnUU

w

cucu

NNo
u, 

CLC)>
Q

m
E

u

a

a) 

N

00

U" 

a) 

a) 

o

m

3

c

E 

U 

o

L) ° 

ro

ro

a) 

0) 

o

a) 

o

c

U

cn ' 

o

c = 

cliro ._ 
ro

M

O ! 

c _

o

c

CD

c

o

uroi

3

o

C7

Q

y

Ca

Q

co
v = 

J ` 

N
co ` 

ro

o 

co

o

o

Q

o

ro

N

ro

a) 

o

rn

c

u

a

v

c

ro

m

co

E

oo) 

Q) 

W

J

c

U

M

c

ro

a) 

a) 

f0

r -

O

O

E

T

O) -

o

d. 

Z

a) 

a) 

O

a) 

Q

U) 
a) 

N

ro

O

O

T
d

a) 

cm
O

c

O

N

O

h) 

o

O= 

O

C

C2

CLQ
ro

C

6

u) 

N •— 

N + 

a) 

lD ' [

O) 

LL . 

O

N
tp) 

u) 

a) 

U = 

N

Z• 

M

as

c

a) <

a

ro

co

0 (

n

m

w

V) 

rMza
c

mcnUU 
amici

o

o

U

o

iri

aroia 
U

a , 

a) 

J
r) 

o

E

ds

o

a) ` 

rn `° 

o

o > 

L -
S

w  

a) 

a) 

CD

LL

to

9

O "

O   — 

U
a) .

O

CO

in (

h  

O

E

a) -

2

N '

cY

ro

a) .

En . .

0

O, ,

O_ 

N

C

m

E

i)

i

0 ';:) 

ro

O

L

ro

t`) 

N

o

E

d

T
f` 

N — 

p ^ 

ur

C

j- 

E

Q
a

O

Q) 

WW

O' 

CL

0

N >' 

N (

O

M [

4a
O

O

7a

O

N

N

C) 

C- 

O -

0

N

f0

f6 -

0

N

o

C
L) 

C) 

W

U

T

co >...-_

C60

Cpl: 
m  

V) ,..,

o

T  

Q  

CO..._ 

ro 

6

O

T

N

Q) 

N

N

N

N

N

N

a`) 

otf

a

a) 

to

Ca) 

y

ro

Q

aroi

4. 

xi

aa

ai

o >`- 

m

a

g

cu

ro

E

p

ca

E) 

a

cl

a. 

a

O  

m

L

O

d

w

01

O) 

m

m

c

O

i7

Ow

CLtoy

0w

I,

Rp

yk;,

lli(

Ydj

lIait  
ll,
v

pYffr

jV'
i((

4Iie

Pr
f '

1, 

j 

1

o-

iIO
PV

fl,

d 

f

4 %

nI
E-

7 

fl

cf. 
a«

A

lI
4,. 

Y,:. 

W

w® 

r )

P

ro

U

CRo'
U

oN

Q) .,.,. ..... ......... 

d * 

C! 

O

M

O

y

o •. 

z

m

ami

E

y

z

o

a) 

E

y

O

rqr,)) 

a --

C,) 

c

o

c

m

aro) 

aS

n

u

O !

a

o

a

E

0

s

o

6

E

a`
ai

m

T

ro

CD

rl

a) 

acn
a

a)

En

m

a) 

Ca) 

C

cri ° 

o) 

E

O

o

aw, 

C

m

T

U

La- 

ao6a0w
I

o > 

E

w

O

W

U) 

a

v

Z

o

M

ao

a) :

3

2

rn

H  

an

w

v

a

a)

P

c

O

LL — 

O ^),

t

O

O

0

c

z

c) 

b

U

c

a) 

u ,

4

a) 

E

cn

u) 

a

Qaa

c

a ) 

tn

3

E

E

a

o

ro

o

ro

m_.

ro

U

U......... 

dS

U ........ 

O

W_ 

z

a

P

LO

CD
0

C) 

0

CD

O „

a

0

0

0

0

o

U

m

2

83

U

m

U

m

U

U- 

Eo

E® 

E® 

E

w

a) 

o

Q) 

r),

y

tig9

O :

nu) 

j

O

0
En

0

au = 

a) = (

U= 

Q) = 

a) 

EA
ofN2a) isC

0) E3C7V) C) NLOW0QVwOw0zO2wJ



ro

EU"' 

U

o

0

w (

D

of

CAd
ca

o)

a

oL.

w, :

S

U

a > 

E

UM

v

L

Q'

Qn

J
C 

Em
r-- 

rB

ro

oo

r

c

a) 

Q  

UM `  

Ln

o)(

u

L

ui 

aB

w — _ -

c

Qn

T

d

in

N - 

o

ss

c

o

Q

o

ami

af"* 

r ' ® 

a) 

O > 

C

CU

C

t".;
ti. 

O

Q

N

a) 

v
w

V' 

E

a) 

W >+ - >'' 

w

O

d

E

a, 

o

m

aA`)  

co

7 -:, 

C) 

c >. 

c

v

d

mc  

M

w

m

c

C"
1. 

lU

4,) 

J
c) 

N

O) 

oo

o _

E

Q ` 

a) 

N

N

a) 

E

a) 

LL

Qn

2

n ")

a) 

m

LO

J

c 

o

E. 

E

Uro
O

E

ti

w

04

C)

U

o

cv) 

to

Q

in

ai

cV

n

0.'

i' 

O

a) 

w

cu

u >

a,) 

O

d' 

O) 

LL

O

O '- 

w
a) 

E

r
4

7

@

c) 

2

d

a

c

w

a) 

2 .- 

r) 

v

0

Z

o. :

s — >, 

a) 

o

cu
Q, 

d ... 

0

ia
cl"' 

Z,. 

a) 

y

o.

m0

LL

rom

p

N

w ' 

O) 

Q

t1

E

II

V), 

E

n1
c

co

U)a

CLCG

C ® 

cG

W;.

C. 

fl. 

Cl. 

ck'. 

C

q. 

S ; 

i

f

i 

E

f

kl

tiy`
rf "

iWlu

jFikY

prryillGibr "
ila

JI[
fl

y 

a) it

r

i, 

Y((

ffrr

EE 

i  )

u

rr 

1cI

I

yyf
I

r

I

r 

z

n'•

Ar,;. 

iG "

rG

G

Al

O  

P '

N (

I

7 

un

Ga

Q'

u

ll(

M1)

f'

1"

3

7, 

G  

Gtk   

r^

W

Gy

Ftiu  

y  

R4k'; 

i

pp

G -.

G

i

1 ( 

14

Sflr„ 

i

r

f

i

d, ( 

e

mill
r

W•

VBBIi)!
d'% 

tll

Gv

Gu. 

lil
d(`` 

r  

rd7'

IIIj, 

IN

4'
s

9VL,
v1)
u

G.. 

C14, 
ti ! 

r

t'
r

rli;< ,^

J

i,, 

I 

d'

fry
Yi/

Gi

r "

j 

y

1' 

1'

2ff

GAP ; 

r. 

C( 

fM

rrv^

wW

OI

II"•

d

NYPLrf
rl

a

Pi,
a` 

duet„

rVY
r 

r

O

r

c

N

@

u

o

0

V  W

O

O

TZ

o

Q

C

f7j, 

rz

LO

b. 

O

u) 

m

x ......... 

h

O

O

C

O

fz

Q

O . 

N

N

w.. 

ZI

in

tp

E

rz

a) 

U

in

io

a) 

2

as

m ~ 

aa) 

B1

a) 

ll

WPi

c

cm

z

c

o

c

QJ.
i

o

o

c - 

c. 

o

L) - 

Ci

o

@

n) 

o

c > 

a) ® 

a, 

Q

ami

6

02IL

aS > 

4(
V

4

8

JZ3

cm = 

O

m

D .- 

Q

a.;

y

cD

o

c

o

0

0

C

CZ

d7
cl'. 

WF ' 

y.-.. ............ ...... __.. 
O

a

ti

a

Q, 

a

v

m

U

m

col

V

O

LL

E

O

E

c

E

U

a) = 

N () 

MW



d) 0) Ma_ 

u

0

0

0) 

E

0

0

E

E

2

00

C

cy

r: 

U) 

0

E < 

0

U) .

4-- 

Z3 (

D

T

N

LL

w

Ci

00
CY) C) 

U

Ea) 

E

0

0

ON) 

o < 

C) 

a) 

U) 

a) 

z-- 

c

c) 

2

0 '

n

Lj) 

0, 

Ln

a) 

M

c) 

X

6 " 

4)  — 

a) 

D

LL

LL

oc (

D

C) 

C:) 

C, 

N

a) 

m

m

C) 

U) 

C. 

u -

0

cm) 

in

w

c — 

C) 

E

D

D

W

m

a; 

04

a) *::-_ 

0) 

0

m

t; ® 

C3

a) (

u

E0

5fl
m

C)- -

0

u

E

n

w

u) 

o

N

E

S

E

L) 

a) 

a: 

E

p

N

0

0

C,

a) 

A

L) 

0

M

U) : 

F4 ,

f

co (

o

c: 

i, 

y

E

0 (

D

cq

q

a) 

U

q) >

1 (

o

q

cl- 

c - 

d) 

M

X

M

2

0 -

T '

M "

0' 

2

0

M -

0 -

0

to — 

m

0

Z

c) .

2

m

Cl. 

0

c

4)

lu

Q) 

Q) 

m

a) 

m

M

i 

U) 

U) 

cl

m

E

L — 

D

W

D

cn

0

M

CL

p

ETi. 

U) 

s, 

IL

2

D

CL

CL

C) 

cu

0

0

0

2to- 
0

Cl. 

C: 2M

CLAn

M

2rCDW

A, 
Al

C18", 

9;'
d

P", 

C\

j

J)", 

U

r

mQ) 

caQ) 

L) - 

M

a) (

D

CD

C

lu

c19...... 

Z, 

cu .

2

2

2ca

12

2

m

t

u

0

D

isa) 
1

fa

T

fD

rz- 

LO

C) 

i

U) co
DL

C: 

co

UF- 

Cl) 

a) 

is 

a) a

Fu

I; 

C) 

C

M

CD

0 > 

W (

D

E

6

n

sz

CD

6

C) 

co

E

cmm

a) 

0

w0

2? 

Iro

En

co

C

0) 

w

o

0

Eli - E

w

2

21 () — > I

m

2

2

a) 

j

En . 

0 - 

o

n

0

a) 

a

a) (

D

0

C) _

0

a) 

OL

c: 

a

LL

0

0

ai

m

LL

E

E

5, 

E

QD

a) 

U) 

M

D

LL < 

0C) 
a) 

o

o

a

U

CD

u) 

C: 

Q) 

c: (

DC2 >, 

C) (

1) 

E < 

N

0

U) 

Z) 

C

0

c ) - 

U. 

n

O. < 

co

pi

0

0

o

T

E

0

0

Q) 

Q) 

Z

JZ

0

C) 

C? 

2

U) 

s

0

n)

p

U) 

Q) N

3D

E

0

E

0

0
El



M, D, N 

M

U

r

M

O

U

N

N

cOj

UW
a) 

N

E

U

iU

O .— 

O

M

N

U

N

S
U

M

U

Vl

E

N

tLl

N _ () 

a) 

0- . '

O

U

O

a) 

O

U@

w

O

a) 

O

M

N 

U

@

U

7. 

N

N

O

C, 

C -

O

C

F

O

m (

V

a) 

c0'
i (

D

Na (
6

b

X' 

O

N

alco
a) 

O

Q) 

p- 

O

O

O) 

C

rr

aQJ
d

II' 

ciu
i

a> 

c

o

bv

LJJ

a7 ( 

cV

c

p

p

c

v

m

0

cu".. -

p

@

cn

O

p

E _

cnN 

Ea

@o
E. 

E

MoCO)

v

U

@

Q

r

ori

Co

o

c

v

O

a) —

J (

D

N

LL

cli

V (

D

M

a) 

M
a) 

@@
X

U

LL

ca

0

LL >. 

5, 

U
r

M

d

co) 

2i

ros
0

E„ 

o

O

U

U

ca

Q

i® 

T

d

cc ». 

Q  

Z1

7- 

at

EL - 

CO

m

ata  _......__ 

ai

o »- 

ru

E

m

a

u

o2, 

E

ii

a' 

L; 

m ® 

a_ 

CL

cc

ca

@

C

0 ......... 

2

O

o

Cl. ._-.-.-.-.- -- 

o

t

C
o

CL

D

is

o

N > >) 

c

r ,

I

u

i

r

jk

i[

irl

1Jipr'-
u

4

r/ 

o

ri

a

P.= 

II

I 

J

rlr,
r) 

taxa

as

o

m1lYrulif
1( (

iqe 

gplr
li

p

y

Vtl9rJ

llr

IM

r ^

d

qp„

Y

Ij

J

jy '"+ .

dr

atl

j,

i"`"

i

tiO ,% °

r

E. 

f,. 

ir.

t„„"

r'

d

FnililraSf °
lu

fld

n1lh 

ldd
r°

t14'.

fQDa'
4. °

E

I,

in

I

ISI; 

x

rul

N

w ® •

a0.+ 

1,? 

a) 

A

d

GS '

d

o

t, 

t7 ' 

M ... + 

O

tll

O -

0

N

C

L

u

@

Y1Y

@

Z

al

a) 

@

@

ad

w

C

a) 

E

O (

D

Q

C

co "

K.
W "': 

M > —

j

M

C

In

O. 

r, 

Hwy

7

r`y (

D ... 

arrs .._...... 

U)........ .. 

d

p

N

@

@

c - 

I._ 

ria

v

@

o

ata

N

N  

@

c . 

cr, 

oa

as -

6

2

c

as

w

J

c

c

a

o

Lw '.

0

v

u< 

o

a

o

c

a

p

O

E

o '

N

to

c@

U

ci - 

N

C  

d, 

F-- '

n

C

N

N

vl

CD

ate

ro

ay

an

mia' 

vU
0 >,>, 

c

c

C ® ,.`

ani
o

Q

Ott

q

@ > -) 

mO

E:

U (

D

E

E

a

aFw

r' 

N

C

a 

Y - 

O

p

C

O

O

as

v

a

c,

xa
aci

m

o

i

o

c- 

U

U

N ._ 

ro

4

ar

v

p

u

0

0

p
I- .

0 _

u

as

D ® 

at

ar

jta

p

@ .

in

c

ay

a 

n

m  

N  

L

r '

E

p

c

p

D

O

O. 

m

M [

c9

CC

is

0).!

P

if

U -

QUA
u

CL'<

CJ

cnm<
C

M

O

a3

d

O '

ate

aJ

tib` 

O

O

O

O

ccy
O

Gp. 

a

a.

a

ui

n

m

ur

0

m

as

as

a) 

asp

LL

a

E

E

E 

E

D

V

O

k£
9

p

p _ 

O

O

O

Ow

ia

z ) 

z 

UU) 
EENca3

El



T. - CL
CL

V

U) 

c

0

4n

c

dS

C) 

7

a) 

O

C

7

a) 

O

C

O

O

a) - 

O

1

0

N

p

CU >' 
O

c`

7

U >, 

O

o

M

p

a) 

E

U

N

O_ 

O` 

C) 

U

N

O. 

O) 

O

N

C) 

U

v

c

aEi< 

a(

n— 

c

Q) 

av°,`

DC7
of

cn

Q

p .. 

c

Qa)? 

crn

o

na)
Q

m

crn
o' 

Q

Q),

R

Q

j, 

N

V

N

Q

TD
N

V' 

E

C

C 

M

C

C

U) 

E ".

V'.

k

a) 

J

M

C

a) 

CO

O

C

c) 

C

O

E

E

o
u. 

4n

p

21

E

a

p

U >

U

2. 

mM0) >

U

ioMm

n

0

E

p

N  

n

UE

5n

Q)"

W

a

s

a '

O

N

cO

tkt

p

w -, 

Cw' - .

CYa

CD

d

co

aT

vi

CL

d

E01

d

a

9Cb

m

E¢{

y

co

ETi
g

mm

CL p

Gid

µ

e

00

0

Ca

N

o

c

D

110!>,. 
iii

la

p1 

r
i

t,

i

w%

l
fi2

1r

4

19 o) 

in

Soy
N4 

1 / 

pg

f
1v -

m7 ' 

m

k,

rg
yC

a) 

M

2

CU

O

V) 

Cl

to

N

G) +

7a) 

u

q

pPl

d

V

A:

fl7

O

L ` 

J

Via. 

4

O

7

al [® 

O

o

U

O 

dSY

Q) 

Q "

b

U

O

N

U) 

C'

m} 

Ib

c
n (

Y) 

c•) 

is

v

pct3

cn — 

UQ) 

a) . 

cu>

fn

o

J

U . 
aC',

y

0) 

O) 

a) 

a) 

s '.). 

C _

C

n. 

a

O

C

E

a "

O

C

b

N

C

a) 

ro

Y7

a) 

co
4

d

Z3 -

6

it7 ?

i

h

O

a

Vl

O.

Q

O.

Q

O

Oo

Q

O

ia, 

UC

C

4n

o) 

O

fid• 

N

r- 

O

W

O) 

O

O .® 

O . 

q) .

O - 

N

a) 

t

76

V

t6

V

C .

0

3 .

0

Q) 
Q

O

O

O. 

N

O.. 
C".

E.. 

O

Q

3

O

O, 

C

O, 

d

R4i. 

r > 

Q

Cn_ 

o 

Q

Q

Z

j' 

XkRy

O

4C
Nvi

a) 

d

o

Z

S
Zn

07

o

41

tL

a

O '

O

a) 

a)cu

2

LL

GI

Q

all

16S '

O

O' .



0v
L-: 

a) L) Ca) drC CEOV

O

O

U

O

jF

a) of

5, 

o

C)(

n

0) 

C

6 

1

u

t

Hb

1; 

O

e

y

o

ai

m

tm

ag

uao
m
r) 

ro

E

u

E

m

C7m

d

L

CO

a

ro.. 

a-

5

C

a

O

a) 

CLO

N

a) 

EMai
ai >. 

U

a) - 

o

cl

C

C

L,) (

D

N

C

U) 

v

u

c

p) 

1'. 

El

C)(

n

0) 

C

6 

1

u

t

Hb

1; 

O

e

c

v

a) 

roa) 

LL

m

C7m
d

L

CO

a

m

a-

5

o

N

a) 

EMai

ai >. 

U

a) - 

o

Q) 

a

C

C

L,) (

D

N

C

U) 

v

u

c

p) 

C
7

c

C

OM

2

a

v

2

o

M

N

t07

7
c

2

m

a) 

O

o_ 

Cl) 

a) 

O

U (

Q) 

a) 

vO. O

O

U

Uw- 

a) 

C 

1

O

a) 

Q

Q) 

a) 

w

m

1'. 

El

C)(

n

0) 

w

c

e

c

v

a) 

ro
a) 

LL

C7m
d

L

CO

a

m

a-

5

o

N

a) 

EMai
ai >. 

U

a) - 

o

Q) 

m

o

C

C

L,) (

D

N

C

U) 

C

O

a) 

C

O

p) 

C7

CN

C

OM

2

Q ' 

U

CT

2

o

M

N

t07

7
c

2

m

a) 

O

o_ 

Cl) 

a) 

O

U (

Q) 

a) 

vO. O

O

U

O)

C

a) 

C 

a) 

Q) 

a) 

w

m

a) _

0 - 

bo) 

a) a) 

a) 

a) 

Eo

Co

E

oi)
m

E. '

on

O

ID
v

E

E

E

m

C

W

C

O

a3

c07

C

m

a) 

co

V

O) 

V

O) 

tf `

7

M

C) 

a) 

O

cu

C

a) 

C

cm

m

p

U) 

p

m

aa) 

d

a) 

m

O

U

a) " 

j

V

M

a) 

M

a) 

co) 

U

U

C .

O

cm

cm

m

n

O

I

a)

o6

GJ

O

M

O) 

U) 

OO
O_ 

C

C

ci

cz

2' 

Z

m

E

Lu) 

a) 

Eo

o

u

ac

oa

a) 

E

O

Oa) 

C

c

U

m

m

ii

m

U) 

can

U

d

o

ti' 

n

U

U

CL

ZZ

to

n

o

U) 

W

nd

o

Ojd n

nd

c

pO

O) 

0

m

O _

U

E

U

E

Z

M

m

2
d  

2

2

C

0

M

0

U) 

U

a) 

N

OOa) 

C

a

Q) 

O
a) 

m

W

C

69

O

O

C3

U

sl

U

1'. 

El

w

c

e

c

M

roa) 

LL

d

L

CO

a

A

a-

5

E'' 

P,

C) 

J

N

a, 

W

LO

O

4M

J

O

p) 

V) 

a

s

N

c

7
c

SCS

fr) 

oz

a) 

E

i

m

3

O)

C

a) 

a) 2

Q

U

a) 

U

u) 

U

a) 

W

m

Q3

CSU

C

11'
k '.

M

al

ca) 

0

O

a` 

en

En

ro

O

m

n

c

c

o

m

m

Q

co

O

OCU

C

o

a) 

m

o

m ' 

m

n

AZh

a)

o6

GJ

O

M

O) 

U

ci

cz

2' 

6

m

E

Lu) 

a) 

a

U

o

u

ac

oa

a) 

E

O

O
a) 

C

c

U

m

m

ii

m

U) 

can

a

c

d

o

ti' 

U

n

U

U

CL

a , 

to

n

o

U) 

W

w

N

m

iii

O

S^ 

Q) 

m

a) ; 

0

as '

c

O _

U

E

U

E

Z

E

Z

C

C) 

OLi
Q
U) 

U

w

61

OU

0-

0

c <. 

c° 

0

M

0

U) 

U

a) 

C

69

O

C3

sl

U

U

6,

u

m

Zl
m

tap

DJ

a) 

E (

D

E

a) 

all

l4

0U) 

0W

1'. 

El

w
c

Oa
z , 

E

M

LL

d

L

CO

a

A

a-

5

a) 
D

J

N

a, 

W

J

O

0

V) 
N
7c

o

m

Q

a) 

U

u) 

U

a) 

W

m

Q3

CSU

C

C

c
a) 

0ro

w

en

0ev

ro

a) 

m

n

c

c

o

m

m

m

m

co

O

OCU

C

o

m

o

fO 

a) 

6

m

a)

i

a)

o6

m

U

W

W

LL  

ci

2

lL

2' 

c

3

L

4

ti

C) 

O

O

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

CC) 

U

U

U

U

a) 

n

zn

0

a) 

U

O

O

COi

O _

U

E

U

E

Z

E

Z

E

2

a

0

U) 

c° 

0

M

0

U) 

U

a) 

1'. 
El



7a) f9CLcnWUWCOZ
C 
GOWJ0W2UcoZO

F— ZWWwU) DOWw
a) i

U

c (

D

ara) 

C

C

dry, 

d

ar

O

C

O

E

rn  

rn

C) 

0

E

v

Eo

v

U

m

C) 

Cl) 

Cl) 

0

o

U

n 

C 

coy ( 

oCI• 
All

ad) 

amiP

aNi

m

N

t

U

a,)'

1

0a

EO =_'

I

k.. 

d

O

m

an
0

a) 

co

E

11n

11 N

E

QJ ......... 

m

C

a:

kQ
a

a

c

a

a

a

M

CL

t7- 

0

d

m

m

c"

I',"",.. 

O

m

o

m

CL

w

A

j

a

ayg

c

G

flu

w

sd

ro

I

rr  

ai

i

6 

sr

a( 

h'

av

i3371jis
0

Ly
i

I rb

li 

G

pyrlf

r 

a
i

rr +

8

A

u

i

rc

f

n!

k

ryklfo °

l

ry

l

JLf

rbJfV
i 

y 

y

p

a) 

rd
rv) 

ata (

a

shr
vii
Jn
G

Y5w1 °

h61
1 

g9
Gi

v

dl

f 

d9
k

p

Nq

fs%

vL
d,

yr

a ) 

1' 

as
II

LAG >
T 

V9

J7

ti

k

r

9

G,

a '

Pt,
fl

ttl

X  

f

Q, 
Pt

N

N

V

vc

m

m

a) 

G+

y

c

U

to3

a

N

Cs) 

O

O

Cr) 

N

Z ,

a) 

N

E

N

t` 

a

mi
m

C

O

O

9 ,. 

a) 

O

C

7

E

a) 

T

t

O ._ 

a

c\ 

N > 

J

T

N

N

C

ca

T

N

N

a42d1

c

a) — 2) !

9

Ea

E

aN
m

m

m> 

0

c ? 

ro

N

c

U'

rn

o

V

J

eo

zati; 

aa)) 

m

5

O

Li ° 

a

a

O 

b

N

U
a) 

t0/I

N

O06

k

N

U) 

N

CO '

N

E

T

U

E

E

o (

D •- 

m

E

N -

c

d

1] 

O

9

GJN
7

o

m

U '^ 

CO

N

C

8

N

Q

N

N

J

a) 

fY7 '

TMa — 

O

LL. 

CL

aa) > 

O

Q' 

a

O >` .

0 (

O

4

4

y

N

U= 

N

U

a) 

5 . 

n

E •

Q  

E '

O -

6 > 

OL !

2

O

a) 

a) 

d

m

w. 

F

hb

N

SCJ

O

a)

7

C

co

O

O

O

a (

D

O

O

O

O

C7

oi

cl) 

U

U) 

U

U

U

au

o

ail

17 .......... . . . 

i4.... 

a ...,

0

Y

T

T

o

M ® 

vj

G„,

k .

0

a) .

0
a) .

c

N

U

O

U

a

J

LL

Q,) 

o

E

E

E

O

O

U) 

O

V) 

O

W

a) 

U

U

U

7. 

I. 
14tMv

QOQlift, 



LUz0trzLUujwU) 00LLJw

L

m

1) 

0 _

0

0

En

m

41

al

U) 

C: 

p

LD _

0

o (

D

a) 

L) 

C: 

C) :

3

U

m

I . 

w

cn

C) 0) 

00

u < 

E>, 

0) - 

CO) 

0 :

3

OL _

0

07

C: 

U) 

lu

r- 

091) 

c

D- -

0

C:) 

o (

D

U) 

cD -:

3

EU
m

C) 

Q) 

o) 

a) 

m

LO (

n - 

C: 

ca

01 - 

r- 

C) 

1,

91

0

9z

a) 

0

CO) 

0

0

cm

6j- (

n

c

ifT
C) 

S

E

IrO '

coo

0 _

0 "

Fu

E

C

w

co

L) 

r- 

0 -- - 

E (

D — 

C) 

vi

d) (

a

C) 

m

C: — - -

0

01

0— 

P .

1.

E

E

C: 

M

0

0

1) 

C) -

2

E <-

E

m

E

0, 

ID

9,

0

7 , . 

1) 

D

0) 

0

0

ce) 

C) 

E

fn

0

0

E - -(

D _

0 ®

O LL (

D -

ID

L) 

0 

p =

3

c) 

0- 

m

J

on

E

CA

b

voice

z -

r

0

a) 

J, 

DE -
0-

0 - 

co 

z

z

a

CUdccm

00

a)

0 

i

C) 

1-- 

o

CI. 

0

0df

U) 

a. MI, 

RU) 
06

co

C) 

C) 

U1

C) 

E

d) 

C3 (

D

cy

ui

0

m

CL

u

w

r, E

CO

E - 

11U) 

o

ca

CL

ci

of

0

CL

0) 

00Lm

4) , 

CL(

L

CL

m

1

0

24

CI. 

cu

0

c; as

w

LO > 

A "

A

p" 

j

I

fl,

q

t
i

Afi, 

6

N, 

si 
EV, 

mm'

w21,
1111,
fl

uji

A

0

9, 

a
P

A

L'
i

0 "

v

ff

it

N

iA

10

c

a_ 

m

d) 

CD

Eiro
a

D

t5

0 _

0

0 _

0

n

z

z

2

cu

2

2

0).

5

o)-

5

r- 

40

a) 

a) 

a) 

C

0

11

p 

J-_ 

0

co

0

a) 

r -

0 -

T, 

N

U') -

i

w

3: -

j

0) 

U) 

U) 

U) 

cn

0

co _

0

2- 

2

r& 

2

c

0) 

m

d) 

M

U) 

A) 

o

cm

En

a

as ® 

mm
ay

cm

W

L) 

u

C) .

9

E

E

U) - 

0) q) -

0

LL

E

Z, 

m

a) 

cc (

D

m

a) 

CL
C) 

OL

0

a) 

m

a) 

E

0) 

z

6

0

CID, -

E -

W

coU) 
0

3

a) 

0> 

tj

0

Pa - 

ami

o

0

0

D

a) 

a) 

a) 

as (

D

V) 

E

E

z

U

E

E

z

as

E

0

0

x [

2

M

Q) 

m0 :

3 (n :

2 (

D

p

C: 

C

c: (

D

tt:: 

as

C: 

0

a) 

E

w

w

w

w

w

0 (

D < 

z

Q, < 

I - 

I

C; 

rmm

coC) 

z 

P 

Ql 

C

Z,

Lr) 

CO

N

C) 

C) 

CD

C) 

C) 

C) 

9

9

uj

0

c 

cn

2

E

a) 

0

a) 

o (

u

o

0) 

LL

LQ) 

f . 

L) 

ar

D

C: 

cm

1Z

0

1

C- (

z

d) 

d) 

C) (

1)

a. 

C) 

4:
Y

wm

U3U) 
C) 

U) 

a_ 

I- 

3



vJNma_ LUUWU) HZWaOWLU0

0ZZZJL

O

C

T

y

N

L

C

f

v

U

U

O

c

0

a

Q

3O

3

m

c

o .- 

m

U

c

U

En

w® 

a)

U

61

Ca) 

O

M

O

D

U

j, 

ID

n -

a

m

r

to

m

wO
0

0 ® 

O

U

C

17, 

a. &= 

O

UY ( 

V

O

E

T
d

C

M

E

c

@

0

wro
LO  

o 

o

as

as -

0

o

o

O-

Cm

ea

a.

c®®

ioa

N 

M '

V

U

m® 

c

ro

as

LO

a._

rn  

M

o

U

CO

O.

S

u® 

U 

cLm

C7

a, 

L

a. 

a -

O. -

tfO

n

m

w

tm

U

a

Q ¢.

15

Z

E

U

cy

7 ........ 

d

O

m

CL

U

E

E

E

11

caac

r

0   

0

o

u< 

mO
a

m0
a

m

@® 

n. 

c' 

m

o

mtz

0

w

ai

H >, } 

oLIMON,- 
11

n? 

gg'
gra

fa

Q' 

a 

nI
i, 

it

kP

lr

u

a

rii 

r 

f'. 

r 

1 ' 

f

fff
r' 

y ( 

u

ry

Vppp

Y ° 

9

L) 

o' 

a

a

T

n

Q

asNi

o

a

bm

c

rn

a

N

510
u) 

a

a. 

m

ti

p

U ,

moo .

5 

g 

o

Lu))  

c

c  

c

F - 

y

C

c

O

O

O

M

vCc
U) 

En

Z

J

M

No

a

U

a
J

ro (

n

m

m

m

a

E

E

E

w

o '

a - ' 

c

E

E

O

ami

E

w

a 

ro

o ° 

U

o

d

U

U

W

OU

as

a

T `
a

csa

Q

m

L

CD

N

W

c

c .

2

M)(

D

z -

0 .

H

w

c 

c

Z

J

ry

m

U

m 

Qim } 

FL

EL

z . c '

0

i

m

O

O

O

b

o

0

0

0

d

Oytilitt"
a

O '

o _ " 

Q

to °! 

C1

cn ° 

a

O

O '

i

rn

Or

Oa) 
0

N .

0

O

N .

0

O

N .= 

O

Q7 .

0

U

U

LL

Q7

Q! 

C

Qy

i(

1

O (

D

m

q)> 77

m

N

m

p

c

s, .

a' 

00a
U) 

IL 

rya.  

s

I., 

D

mv

rcoCl) 

a)

CD

v® za) 

cn

U) 

E

w

o

E

Ew
as

C

y ,

o

oU .

U) 

D

E

3

aco

oNu7

a

a m :

3o

O

I_- a) 

ca) 

Uw 

0mm
mQ

0-

06c

J  



MU) wUwU) HZwaOwLUwJw2UNZOZwHwOw

0ZZZJa

Cgg
N ® 

r

O

a) 

i..) 

7

a) 

N (

n

E

V

Ur

U

U

m

U

C

C

Qyy
U

O, 

U

N

c

es

a

a

M

p

a

o

C7

a

N'a

c

m

c

c

0) 

c

E

c 

crti

E

C: 

C) 

m

Q 

Eo

o

do

r ® 

o

o

vrn .

I

cu 

rn

U

0— 

ro ® 

CL= •

Q
ov

a
c

aOV

O (

D

m

CU3M

0 

McMm
0

E

v) 

Occ`
m

otl

a 

p ) 

d

d

d

a ® 

Q

d

v

otf

CU

a

M

M

U, 

ae

a) 

vi

U

oE-------------------------- 
sa

ro

rn

CL

u

ca

E

n

N

cn

E

n ,, -_ ....... 

Q. 

a

p

n  

d

rn

Os

mO
n

mO
n, 

a , 

a. 

m

crna

g

o

ate

O ® ......... 

ara _. 

owN

Cl. '" 

N

N

O

SJ

O

a) 

Rdy

4" 

M 

i6 

1'

111 '

f%

yml
fll

Iii
r

4Proy (
6I`%

A.

irl
4

Irlly  

A( 

Y

y,  ,

9

I

N'

I 

fM1

I 

C

11111 ,`

y

r , 

yf

415

y,. 

y

o

p

N

r .

i

r

1 

I

i, 

o,„

i °

Id

G, ',`'

A6 

li

V 

h

a

Ire
II(  

uJ

1

s

r

rfi ( 

r` 

t

in
nrVy
ut

o

rw
lulr
l

a!,

r;

4

yG 

1

41

7tr ,
R 

1rI
I

i','

I

114
r )

d 

Iyl

a

ai^'

f

i;

kra! 

a5

rriHrH
r

as

r

d

it 

dlJ /

ryas' /

kdjre, 

1RMb4ifRlt
CAI,
u 

N

CL

a) a_ 

ids _ ...... ria

LO

ID

U

ro + ` 

v

o ° „ 

a >, 

in

of ) 

LO

cn

U > 

a ®.. 

d

Y

a

N

CA

ro  c .

UC

c

m

c

v

N

sEn

d

E 

n. 

E

A

@

C

0

LL

fn

0

p

U

u” 

ea .

0wU3
0 ® 

o

T)> 

o

x.

0

noa

CX

c

a>
i

p

a) 

w

r
y

O

W

u) 

c

c

c

n

o

c

d -

0

o

p

c

u) 

U

O

U '® 

M

U

vi

C

7 '

C ` 

O) _ 

fi

b. 

O) 

d

U

U

O

C

vi ) 

c

N 

N

D .

N. 

J

O

c

c

Q) 

03

Z '- 

N

a3

Ui

o- 

C

C

O

c

E .

0 '

c' 

a) 

c

E

a

m

Q, <

t .

ff

6

O

a) -°'

o

wpa
w?

Q®

F- 

Uzn
a

n` 

Q

a`

m

r

ZE

r

Q) 

Z

G

da

fay _. .................. 

i

r

ci

U

O) 

Q. 

N

01

Q. 

U. 

C

C

ul

O' 

O

IZ

O

a) .

0

O

a) .

0

O

N

a) 

Q. 

W

C

as

LL

p

9;) 

U

C

U

C

U

C

U

C

us

f, ®

tea ®

tea ® 

ern

Own

1.

0

4Z

w

o

M

x



NrU) WUWU) F - 
ZWaOWW0JD0WUNZOZW

F- WN0OWw

ZZZJa

00

Q) 

C _

T _
N

C

C

Ur

E

U

O

En

If

O

O

a) 

y

f0

a) 

a) 

U

O

Q

O

U

ti

w. 

C

CLdEr- 
y

C

C

O] 

c

N

o°) 

a) 

a

N

O) 

O  

a) ° 

0

3

cam) ° 

v

N

C. 

a

a) )

n

CO)

N

M

c

u) 

o > 

a) E

u:

r

c

El, ° '

M

rn

c

rn _ 

c

m ° 

o

m •- .

J

m

V

u (

a

OO_ 
C

cCL
E

07
m ` 

7

O

m

N

O

CL

CL

a; 

L) 

C) 

O

a)

@

U

a) 

p

a) 

O

fm

H

E '

mCD

U_

0

a 

a) 

Q) 

N

0 < 

m

o

a

E

U) 

t) 

O) 

a

U

ET
11

a

a

T

c ? 

a 

D ° 

m® 

CD

n

Q)® 

a

CL

6

cp .............................. Fy

L. 

tz

rn — 

p

i6.` 

ami

CL  }

p°

w} 

N

W

N

qr

i

PT

IIYr"

rfvf
l ^

pr

rq,° 

lk7

1) ) 

f41

til

r

J

ml 

Criiro 
J

x, 

9

a

j ('!

4! 

r

a/ , 

i

y

r

I`

J 

Ir

y

O
r {

p)

µhn40 *'

tl (

ydp

l71q
x

rvIfl (

r {

rirlYlGdY
igf

iWA, 
tl

7

c 

i 

i( ,

va

li4ar+
sw,
r

ii

61fl
r

ri)!&  

xlxxSltfllrrf 

I) 

ll;

Guw ¢ 

w9'.
r,`'

I,

ali4r++
97n,
i'

l,^'(

ti

la,

n

f<< 

w

a + 

r

p

w. 

U

U

C

c4)
Cj

y) 

z

S

li

cu

p

N

0

z 

E

a

Q

Czr_

O

J

afO

C

9v. 

N

b'o- 

m. ___, 

m ......... 

co

m

a) 

O

C '

S

a) 

a) 

n

ami

a

aEiE

V

O %;

Cµa,. a> 

C

U) 

c

sJ

E2

Y

o

u

E

o

da

p ° 
Q

o

f

0

Q

N

O "

rw

m
J

C

m

a) 

V) 

ru

ro

rn + 

c

a) 

Y

r

c

c

iyy

ya) 

O

p) 

b -

o

W

H

E ° 

c' 

aUOL

di = ! ® 

0

ci

c

a

Lr - 
U

E

m

a

s

rn

E '

n

c

c

o3

a

a) 

E

C = 

c

c

E

v

P

a) 

U) 

HQ (

Udco

No
U) 

N 

t.. ." .....". .... 

o % 

4

d _ 

C

ifl'), )

f) (

D

1 

co

0

O

O

O

O

C

G3

J

J

J

J

d

2

LL

d

Q) 

O

9A

O

Q

c > 

C > 

c > 

C

O

O

w ® 

a) 

d

O

a) ® °) 

ii

UJ

d., 

J

M

MA



w

I. a

N

v

C) 

N

V

O

B "' 

C

C

O + 

Q, 

0047

N

L

C

O) '

O

0. - 
E

N

LO

U

cu w

m

i

C

E

U

C7

o, 

fl) 

W

O +' 

p

N

Ry

N

L

N

N

U

U

C

0. 

CL

C

a

N

UjN
O

C
d

Cx

O

U

Q :

306
O

U

O

E

N

C)> 

E

A

C

7

tp

f® 

C

C -

O

B

N (

0  - 

N . . 

t`

1

C

i

L

0.
d. 

E

C

O

O

f

E

U

o

o

a 

o

a 

a 

U

2IDOa. >
U > >, 

CL

Ak
yCC, 

U

4"

l

q.b

L

ro

C) 

r- 

4aero

maw

cu

E

E 

Nco

n

w

0

pk

w

15

oh>

k

a`"
i

o

i

U

O

itif

A

ktiA 

a

yr

Cf

l 

f•

Vlrr,. 

rprb.
J  

f

f 

1

t . 

i!'

t

cif

f

UG/ 

Y)

W

i

M1

4. 

j

d

f

f

G

O

a 

V

d

F

m > 

o

QaiQQ

U

a2

s

aye

c

d

w

w

k4r

a

o

o

c
Z

o °' 

v

o

m

j

E

Q

c

p

o

C

U

Co

Q) 

a

b

co

v0
0

wof

w

C

NU
C `

O

N

O. 

O -

E

c

U} 

J

AY

L. 

10

d. 

U  

W

U

CL.i

ra

baa' 

LL

00. 

w

c

rJ

o

U

W'
aL

m

m

C

v

cm

W

o

v

c

O

m

ya

O '

E

a 

as

o

CLN

N

Q

t: 

ro

Enr > 
oa

0. 

L
m

Q) 

A = 

ti

0

ca

U... 

C

Q........... 

d

a 

L

W

U

o

ro

VCD

ZC+.. 

ZZfJdg

O

OC

y

N

PrywwY

prkNrkk

Y

UU
J. 

C

CDO

LL

U

U

O

o

r'."

A

n
y. 

U

ca

0

p

ski

Q - 

acnes
cO

CL

w

I. a



V

O

CV

N

O

U

a
2

in

C

N

N

jn

N

O

O

a) 

c0

a) 

O

N .

9--- 
6

c

rn

a

m

OL

s

N

OEn _
0

M

En

Q

N

E

m

O

c

C

co) U

m

o

3

C7

V

M

C

Q
a) 

V) 

CL

Mp

C

LC) 

a) 

N :-

0

a) 

co

a

to
a- 

a

T

od

a

d

d

Q) 

a

ao

v, 

a) 

0

o

a) 

E

m

0

m

caa

a

Q) 

m

a) 

o+ >, 

E

i

U

CO

o

4-
1

0) 

w

co o

rn

a

2

u 

z

c

O

m

E

n

CO

rz

in

F- Q

N

W

t0o °

oz

a) 

o

Q

a

a

as

a

a. 

o

cr

a) 

0

Y

N' 

S

Z) 

a) 

OCL

G;

w7

aj

a

O

w

Z) 

c

OU

C

l,

r

t

N

h

i+ 

JY

i

t

Pl

p, 

1N (

rgbr(
nl
il 

rirGi" 

5

ft((
I/

Vf

rl/
l

irra;
r

Y

i'

ku '

Ei

arl

E

k

U 

V 

a

i

ril

Ki

fi

a '•:'

6

i

ij'€

f 

ff

1  '

r (

1

V4 

f

C 

l

1 

a

W

N

t'

wp

wm

W

d

aoiv

mr

eeeee . N

h

O

r) 

O

an

o0

u

o

a

o

z

c

a ° 

U

U) 

W. H

a) 

cca- 

m

a

U

N

E

a ) 

O

C

a

N

eo _ 

v

a) 

to

yu
s .

0

m

C

N' 

e

o

o

o

N

Q

N

o

a

N

o °

m

a) 

E

o

ani

d

U

v

w

ar

K> 

7

u) 

0

O

a

V

3

L

m ®

a

c

en

N

3

n. 

0

aNio

a :, 

a' 

a) 

a

ce

o

m -

o

n

U) 

co

n

o

2: 

12

aa)i

c 

W

N

a

E

cL0®

Na) 

d

o

as

co

C7 .

ro

o

n

3

M

m

roca) 

o

N _ 

Cro

0

S"".. „ 

a2
j

w

U

U

O

Q® 

m

d

E .

0

N

n

a) 

C,
i

uif ® 

CC

O

d

C ® 

G

O

o

N

C

U

O) 

2

C

a) ® 

N
lY ® ,

o

U) 

h

a

u) 

o)-

2

cn

m

o

C3

E

E

ui
a) 

o

Q,

U

u'
z

m

a) 

x

o

ro

o

4

i

a <(

Lzw

hS0rf)
a

a

Z?, 

N

C

giro ,.= 

CSj

C) 
O

YC

Q) 

Ili . 

r

a. 

2

O

N

CCSfa

Zn

ju

CCo

LL. 

o

ash

a 

S

co

U

V

E

a

O

C- 

0

a) 

Z

C

O .

0

a) 

0

a) 

a) 

a

viw

FL

dO



MU) a_ 0
4ONa) 

DEn
E

o

0

C

O

N

V

U

u) 

C

m

m

a) 

M

O

N

O

a) 

a) 

O . 

T -
F

O_ 

C

cp) (

U

ISL

Q) 

a1 ._ 

O) 

Q) 

N . 

Q

a) 

i. 

U

C

a) 

w

cu

C

E

U -

0 + ( 

0) 

C

E

0

Cl

m

E

II '

o-- 

O

O

N

O

O

0) 

O` 

a) 

@

J

U

U

IL

O) .

Ocr'

U

C

Ch

C° -

0

U) 

W

O

fn

O

d

L _

c0

N

U

cri

C

o

n

o

a) 

cn

ami

o

a'o

am) 

ami

Q

o

o ^ ^ 

c

a -

0

cu

c

a

ro

r

p) 

o) 

cv
a) 

C > 

a) 

coy

C

o

U

E

E-

0

ami

o

o

m

m 

U

U

U

o 

N  

o 

a) 

E

o 

JOn >() >,

5,

nU

C7

U

C) 

U 

n

r. 

m

0

m

O

a

m

Caq) 
Q) 

E

co

a) 

0

y

m

m

rn

a

o

M

v) 

ca

E

u

U) 

ro

E

io

g¢ 

Z3

0

CL

0

c

a

a

IL

a

ro

ro

m

m

coo

O ,! 

C

a 

r• 

ZD

a) acn- 

N

E

N

Q

a

U

D

p 

W

cll

r1yr

b

c

C

aft

iYi

iFIJ

afr

aiI +

Jlfyi ( :,

aC

Y

M^

iV(
Y,, 

bf;, 
ia

C :

Isel{ 

4g,

V,

iar
rc

yf,

fYi
fi

a

N

nfa
l 

l

I

f

7r 

r

f

iU

1 °

4R'{ 

C 

r

RMAr
Mq
r

f

g

r

f

Y  

I

E  

r

i

p

p

1

d11

it

r ¢¢ 

1

t

1

ll

rl ,

r

Jl

ngiv
Y, 

rJD  

I

a

r 

6„'(

r"'

i  

i  

f  

r 

I

d

ilvD°

r

i

o ..+

w ', 

Y

f

IT

B6.
NI 

rV>
aN !'; )

11
I' 

iai ,
l

lr

r)

IU ' ( 

ro"

Far , 

i  

V

r

i  ¢ ,,

Vl

vilfl
lh  

1f7;

lUfl9
f }

t "

v

a' +'

7

fi

it 

r[

vi _

rr 

ll ;'

f 

SI,

r

rJ

io ' 
rc'
r 

O, 

r

r

Cil¢
i

l¢

in:

1.

Ufi,
n6mn

DVyTr
i

ravr

wluaniC
a

7f
uor,

11i4
1

11,

ea
o-

9

aiwr",

I 

m

o

0) >, -

o. 

o

w + 

in > 

a) 

m

Cay -

0

a) 

p) 

1 

U '

c

V 

LL. 

Q

Q

U

O

d7i
to

C

N

43) 

a4t

a) 

V

m

Pa'
q

C

O 

1

y

w

b

ON

v

O , 

0- 

CL

a) 

a) 

a) 

E

m

E

N

N

c0

c >, 

O

O

Occ

O......... 

c

U) 

U

L

o

m — = 

o

rn :

3a

o' 

a)® 

m

w

c

E

0Uv
N

ty

N

N - 

U

C

O -';• 

O

O

Q

m

a) 

U

al

Cl

C

N

rn

U)',. "

d

a) .

fikY
O

E— 

ul

O_ . 

E

o

n

a) 

V) 

u

C

Q
C

O

E

a

E

C `) 

m

cu

c%

o

v

v

va

0

m

VA

Z !

d' 

d

Q) 

o') 

eT

m (

0

h - 

C

ro

o

0

0

0

C) 

p '', 

U

o

o

O

o

0

77

In

cn

w

b

U)....... 

C

L

Ct0

jJY

mCj`U) 

0

O

O

CL

U) 

0 -

2

OO [
if

B ..-. 

C

F% 

m

a) 

a) 

o

Z: ® 

U

W =

3O ® 

O  

O  

O

W

1'. 
OM

ti  c

M

rnU

p

a) 

U) 

U) (

9

m (

D

c

E

Ec

c
a

o °

0

D

En

0

c

O

O

Ndo

o. 

rn
rn  

OtaDC

LLF
a

0

0v

z

n

0-

00C

J

o



LUJDLUUZOZLLLL
L.

LOLLw

U

coo

L)— 

U

9

n

o 

C7

v

U 

Cl) 

a= 

CD

C

C

V) 

U

C

N

C

Ur' (

h

a :

3D
m

U

a (

1) (

6

N

N

N

N

U >, 

V

C

d

d

N

LLd
Ql

M

LL

M

06

d

L

m

U

Q

o

0

0

0

CS.. 

E

E 

O

wp

V

7::, 

C) 

E °' 

O

O

a

N

E

U

U

m

O — 

a) 

V (

D

m

O

CO) (

0) 

m

73

N

CD

D -

V

Q

C

m

O

NQV

D- 

07

V (

D

o 

cMm

C)

o)>

co(,

D (

Mm

U

U  

cam

Q) 

m

m 

a

aEi

QO

n

mzrai
U

o

06

a) 

a. 

m

m0
E ;` 

i } 

U

d

o

m ,

D

m

om

a

u

Co

E

U) 

n

m

GA

w..... 

ro

L .. 

Q)

a . 

Q., 

a

m

cu

C. U
C

Cl. .

G1Y

y

0

D0;
r

n

m

aCi §

11

I

I

I

dr'

lr

w(

j)"! 

Dg

ro

Gh 

as

1

rIY 

tI

1 ? 

I :^+ 

IIII
r  %

f

r

fw
r

I ( ' 

i1 
1

4

I  .-; 

re

h

aIrl
r ( 

E 

y ' 

I

r

I ' 

k ° 

L
i° 

ry 

1 

ll

f

l

aahlljii

le4rr 1nl"
H

Ii

Le, 

1

i

I,. , 

ull
IC}

II. 

Ulm

a) U

u  + 

T
15

o

v

v

cu

ssy

m

ami .

0

E

oo
f

LL

ami

a

n

ami

ami

ami

m

m
N

w

N

N

Cl) 

a , 

a  

w ®, 

o

oao
m

n

m  

m

ro

c

s( 

7

0),

p

0

CO

o

m  

a

Y

Cmc

ro

U) 

a) 

1— 

W

i ® „'

a'
w

qtyC
m

L) (

7. 

N

m

C

c  

a! 

a7

U

d

ayi

o -

T, 

LL

v

o

ro

w>

CL

c

v

0

cn

a

ro

m > 

U)® (° 

a

o> 

c

a

a5

U_n

m

n

u (/} 

o

as

a

z

o '

S

o

06fl
E

aC

mmar

C_
W7, 

U  

a

my_

m

a_ 

YU

w> 

ay

N

aC,
6 = -

o

w = 

U

O

LL

d

U

U :

D

U _ 

Z

a

m

v1

m

o

o

CA

c

oO
O

O

O

O

Q)e .' 

cro

a'

a

y1
U7

Y _ _ 

f

U

U

0

D

Q

Q

Q

o

a

a

ar

o

0

o

a3

V

o

LL

m.'' 

C

S

S

m ' 

Uo   

m

O

w (

v"
s

U

ar

C.
y

a

6 (

3

a -

o

0

a !

l

a (

z

m

n

m

m

O

Y

d

O

a

r

O

0

I

r  w

M

U  c

co
M

c) 
0

ro  c

E

E

oCeo

o

N

U  a7

n3

0N

o

ua

a

rn  O

C



U) 0- 0da 0) cuCL
0a) 

U

OD

c

o

o

m

te

00

cy) M

M

U

O

U

a

U

o

a > ) 

CD

aD

0

d

N

d' 

OLL.
LL-

m 

U

O >' 

U

U

rn

UMrn
U

Y

0`

7OO

O

O

M

m

V

c

2 > 

vv

a

C) c_

U

E

Da) .
n _
0

M

E

c

a3

a) c@

O
V

CO

U

N

O _ 

M

S

O

N

d

O

O

O

a

m

i01

a7

O

C

d

V' 

O= 

U) 

M

U

N

a3

O

N

M

O

60

d' 

N
a) 

D

E

EUOcmMUr
cm

a _

0

CO) 

U

u)

m) 

O

d

L -

O

h. 

O

m

w. 

au

v

P

a. ® 

E

cf

p......... 

91

OCL

g

v

m

E

CO

E

u

II

Cq'.
z to

O.. 

d

L

CL

k

ro

tl

ro

Ow. 

r

CLAn

pa,

a,. 

o

d

m

a) 

g

p
y6

fl`  

t

O' 

CSI

I

h

r

iJ  

X

r ,' 

i

Nfij  

I , 

Ip
I

9

7:„ 

a) 

In

N

Q

U

Od

d

P

f

O

y

d

y

u

yCO

O

C

U) 

N

Z

U) 

co

0 > 

o

s.

gfz
E

N

ac

j

O

pa

Sw

roUj

a) 127

m..... ....... ........ 

CLI

10a

a

s 

L) 

mi

U

L

croi

a) 

3

U) 

a) 

2U

a) 

ron) 

0) 

CL

a) 

E

c

U

N

v 

o

a. 

i

C3

U

ro

c

L) ayi

a) 

ani

u, 

ro

a) 

c

a) 

2

o

ocn

M

ro

n

w

m

U) 

e

en

e

E

ro

a

o

w

o

m0 > 
o

U

UO
cu

KZ

UILI

o

v

aciaci
aci ® 

aDi

a) 

c . 

O °

B

o= 

o

M

O0
0

O

n

Zo

ro

ro

coa) 
c

d

Lf) 

m

r - 

o

c) 

0

0

0

0

15aca

ca

En

c

0 -

0_ 

b

c.. 

Z5

c

c

U

u

a

ti

o

u

o

o

o

2

U) 

CL

U) 

Q.. 

U) 



U) WwU) Zw2a. 0jwwQLiiiDaLUU) Z0ZLUF— LUwU) 00LUwI

LULLU) ca9Z

o6

0

Y) 

Uy

q) — 

cu

Q) 

a) :

E

En

0) 

0

2

C -'- 

C3

C 

0

V) 

L - 

CD

C

ol

c(

n

U) 

OD

C) 

P

ci 

in

M = — -

C, 

0') 

CLQy -!

z (

13 '

n

C) 

ID

C:) 

En

iz

M

U

C: 

o

a) (

D

a) 

0, 

U) -

a

momD

0

a) 

E

o

U

0-

0 - 

m - 

3: _

Q

C) 

0

a) (

D

0) ,.

m

0

CD

0 -

0

w

C) 

0

A? 

a) 

a) 

as

U) 

6

m -

2

i6

co

E

f

E

C) 

U) 

2

C'- -

6

a) 

a) 

C, 

m
c-

6

0

M

co) 

o- 

coi --

j _

0

U) 

m -

0

C) 

1E

IZ-

1

I ---- -- - --- -....................... 

11

lu.... — 

ca 

B1

C) 

0

C'. = 

0

0

QO

D - < < 

CL

4

4

116

c6 -

6

Cc

mo

D

a. 

m

m

to

C) (

n

C) 

E

CY

a) 

0 (

D

a (

o

a

43 -------- ----- . . ................ ...... ........... 

r --

Q

4t

CL

0) 

Q) 

U) 

CO

c'

3

E

E

Tj- 

CL

o

0m0m0O)
o

ca

0

95

m

co

Cl. 

U) 

0M

En

En

n > (

D

a) 

M0 -- - - 

L

4 //

lI

AIR (
Ill

3) 

p, 

1, 

0

Zljt' 

Enj
71-

1

ll1

4

1UH, 

f

A

po

U) 

C\

l

iz

D + 

0

L) 

a

lu

o

D

z

2 -

T

10

t 

t

E

C

p

t: 

I- 

I — 

a_ 

a) 

0 -

00) 

X- 

0

C

C: 

3: -

1

rz

12o

C

LLJi

m

W

0 (!) 

T- 

6

LL

0

Z

U) 
U) 

CL

to

U) 

p

cV) 

r (

D, 

m

L

C) 

x -

0

76

z

Lij

LU

Ef) 

V) 

a.
3

ED .-- :

t 

LL

in

Z

p .

AaU) 
0, 

0

Z5

E

E

r_ 

a) 

a5 -

T

c

2

uj

z

Ay !

a1

a- 

a- 

a- 

a_ 

C

LLI

a) 

F- 

E

XD

C) 

110

co

co

0

LL

I

I

UI 6ro
cliC) 

C) 

CD

ql

0 -

0

No

c . 
L

w

0) 

a . 
L

U) 

m

o- 

w

0) 

cu

0

Q) . 

E- 

a _

q (

1) 

0 (

D

o

as

0 -

iD

u

L) 

ILL

iii

L. Q) > >

r > > 

Q) 

lu (

1) 

q) 

Z3 (

1) (

D

0

CO

C) (

D

00

U) 

0

a) 

1



vNWU_ WCO
I— 

ZWa0WW0JOW2UZ0ZWF- W0WwOCl) a) 

L 
rWLL06Z_ EiJ_ m

N

T

N

CD

a

0

V) 

ob

V

Op

U

C

J

C

a . 

a) 

t0

M

m

N

u

w

@ - 

a

U

o

p

wsD

o

ar

o

rn

a) 

3

w

U

rll -

o

a) 

o

c

mLO

i

c

o

12 ' .

E

U

n

0
o

M

a) 

D

o

ar

a

s

rn

m

cm

rn

y

c

11

O

a) 

a)  , 

d

a

U

oNd

aOV) 

E

iD
m

N

L• 

Z+.

0

E

E

t

wO
ca

E

L6

E

co

LO

iCL° 
2

E

iu

m

aoi

r

s

N

cm

cm

o' 

d 

n

o(

4 > (

on

d

d.

S 

U

U

C7

C7

i

c
m

0

CL

p

y

m

w- 

a) 

V

D

a

m

m

Ci

m

vi

Cy

ti`
Q) 

cy

o , 

rn

a

v

o

U) 

y

Q.............. 

o_ 

a

n

fl. 

ctzO

2

Yc

m

CLD

Ena
a) 

C

u

r

3

e• 

r

r / 

ra

rr. 

r ,

i

A

rq

l"

4'

If'
W

V4+

flrJdIJ'
G'!

F

I /

II

I6

IAT

fTWr
fl

l 

Ic  

II? 

I

r

777,
W.

eeey

M  

44

9 

ri9d
4 ( 

Jr^'

I 

M

6

V  

N

rr 

1 '.

n

ur'

r

G

1

t. 

W

N

aL) 

c

ar

aor

d

a) 

v

im

o

a

Z

o

N

o

a

Z

o

V

O

rr,;. 

1y

y1p

IL

a) 

01 • 

a) 

ma) 

IL

O

4) 

J
4) 

N

w

b` 

M

CO

m42C
j
i

t

a

o

J

m

y

a) 

o

c
O

tw

j

m

Q

Z _ 

0_ 

m

O

ah

I

W

J

H

Q) 

E

V

C

a

N

V

C'
k, 

pU

m

Z

m

3: 

nr
yU

V

O

to

m

o

Uc
O

m

m

m

to

o

ar

C

E

a

Q) 

NLL

JdQZ
E 

c

O

O

c

I

J

LL

p

W

E

i

c

o

3

n

m

E

a`)) 

a) 

m

ma
00 

o

N

d

W

m ., 

c

o

v

m

dsa, 

o

to

U

r:

7

Ua) 

c  

v) 

m

O) 

a) 

i- 

Q) 

T

W

r

O

O ` 

rn . 

to

Vl

0

m

to

O

U

p_ 

a., 

C

E

fn

H

O

O

a

a) 

U
N

N

to

a) 

E

C

0) 

Y

0

O

J

Q

V

d

U

C

O0

a) 

C

r

2o

Q - :

2

I

5

mo?

JaQ 

aC) 

Uz

0

LUQ 
m

o 

ESQ v
m

w) 

ZAP) 
c

m

nC) 

mC) 

rl- C) 

o

rn

0

C) 

O

r

O

O

O

O

O

b® 

d

CD

s

d 

Go
m

m

m

m

m

C) 

OC.

41.

4, 

O '

6

h

d

O

O) 

a

t0

O) 

d) 

U

LL

O ) 

C

a) .

0

a

O

a)

LE5

U

O) 

C

0

OOa) 

O

a)

0

amOC

D_

aUU
t, 

N

U) 

a) U) 

a) 

m

aO) 

a

n® 

n0
1'. 



a)

0

0

E

p

o

a) 

oU) 

C

a) 

O

N

U

QD '

p

CV
a) 

C

U

O

O

C

E

Cn [

7c
N

N
a) 

C " 

a) 

i— 

a) 

a) 

p

a) 

O) 

a) 

tb 

a) 

cCn

in '

U

o

a

ca) 

M

a

n

O

a) 

m (

D

p ' 

ch

a) 

p

M

C ` 

W

a) 

V

a) 

U
a- 

W

U

L% 
t

Jo

O

U

U

c0

cu

a) 

Q

C,. 

d

d

ask

C -

O ` 

a) 
C 

N

O) -

O

U

N

O  (..% 

E

a

E

o

p

C) 

E

L

U

E

U

E

lz

i2

ns

0

v

o

w -

e

o

Q

O) 

N

Q

C

N

Q. 

C

a) 

C)' 

L

U

o

U

U

E

a) 

O >, 

Q) 

O >* 

N

Uri] 

D2co  

m

C

T

N

CLa) 
a) 

tm

c - 

m

a

m

U

E
Q) 

m

U

Eu` 

bay _..... 

W

U) 

a

a

n

fo

W °) 

a

c

m

U) 

O

m :

E

H

o _ 

c

U) 

c

p

C 

ti > > 

a) 

m

C

O

ya

F3 > 

O

CCL

FJ ,.

kk

U

UN)

En

Ca. 

CL

N

t

a) 

y°' 

LL,

O ^

I

Wp
i `" 

lli  

WQ

WLii
a) 

f ,"^ 

r •" 

ro

T

Y{ 

Off« 

GP

f

1

C

1 (

J

f 

a '

rldi' 
i%

JA

j(„` ,• ,

i. `

ir

r

iN
fi

Y,

4

ti

rJ
t: 

b `,

I  

0

w

d

w

0

L „ 

r

a) 

d 

kb

Irro

Z

QL

L) 

h

U)

Od') 
C

N

q

Z

a) 

v

am

E

E

ro

F— 

o °

iw

E

a) 

E > 

Q

m

E

A

E

a) 

Bch

W

vIZe,

5 ----- 

m .... 

LU

m

2

U) ' 

c

p

c

ro

o ® 

ocu

aa)) 

vi

aO
OLc

p

O

E

W

CD

c

a) > 

O

O

U

rkT,'.
P

i

m

p

a) 

y

41W

y

O

U

d

0

a) 

C

W

W

Q) 

S) 

t:

N

w, '

O

O

07

d

O

O

N

4

U

Q

Z

d

p

63_
e

cp

cn

O

O

O

O

O

Ci8

d' 

r- -

b

Lj."

i

N

N

p '

p  ^ 

p. 

O

m

CI- 

p

ro

U

LL

a > 

E > 

E

CL) 

O

a) "; 

ro

a) 

ani

o

W

o



III

2

I

O

11

C." 

C, 

C5

C., 

1=

1

O

C) 

E:

D

CD

0

0

11

IJ

V

1j

0

IJ

0

22

U2 -

L, 111

W

14

w

C4

z

7:

7

zzl

CD

c

CD

r. 

CD

r

q

r

M

r,

i

ra.. 

4. 

r— 

I...:.. 

P. 

pry

AAL

CD

1- 

tI

C."

D

r-) 

C, 

CD

CD

ci

CD '

t

C) 

CD

C-

1 '

D

I -)

CD

C, 

O

1= 

CD

CD

O

O:

v'

7

1-

1. 

Cr

ID

1= 

C) 

C.", 

I'

D

G, 

ID

CD

ON

CS

Cm: 

IS

CD

1= 

r..®

5C, 

I

01

10

11, 

11

C,

l

4

n "

1

14

IC

1,

4

1W

cq

as

0

Q) 

0

v

Q.), 

c.

t

V

as

luPI

o

o

o

0

o

o

C.

I. 

4

E

E '

o

W

n

6.

5

G5 .

7

Y .

I  

o

o

I

cl, 

d

c, 

a

n.. 

E

E

o

v

0

nr

E

E

Eu

naQ

o

lD

o

o

Qr. 
1. 

CAE. '
p

E

E

rynviz111

v

0

0

I

oD

u

Q

r— 

I"

I ,, 

CDCD

1=

1

CD

1= 

CD

10

IC

11c; cD

z> rA

CD

n— ".

5

ES, 

El, 

r,. 

cz, 

E-- ,

n, 

a. 

O

a

m . .... 

a. 

c-

3

c- 

cD

1,

11 , ", <, 

x-,< 

8

8

q- 

H

B.. 

r . . ....... 

r.". 

C-) < , - '

r 

7, 

h... 

f: 

4

ra

cricrj

0

1 <

5

A-
4

a

12

E: 

In

III

2

I

O

11

C." 

C, 

C5

C., 

1=

1

O

C) 

E:

D

CD

0

0

11

IJ

V

1j

0

IJ

0

22

U2 -

L, 111

W

14

w

C4

z

7:

7

zzl

CD

c

CD

r. 

CD

r

q

r

M

r,

i

ra.. 

4. 

r— 

I...:.. 

P. 

pry

AAL

CD

1- 

tI

C."

D

r-) 

C, 

CD

CD

ci

CD '

t

C) 

CD

C-

1 '

D

I -)

CD

C, 

O

1= 

CD

CD

O

O:

v'
7

1-

1. 

Cr

ID

1= 

C) 

C.", 

I'

D

G, 

ID

CD

ON

CS

Cm: 

IS

CD

1= 

r..®

5C, 

I

01

10

11, 

11

C,

l

4

n "

1

14

IC

1,

4

1W

cq

as

0

Q) 

0

v

Q.), 

c.

t

V

as

lu

PI

o

o

o

0

o

o

C.

I. 

4

E

E '

o

W

n

6.

5

G5 .

7

Y .

I  

o

o

I

cl, 

d

c, 

a

n.. 

E

E

o

v

0

nr

E

E

Eu

naQ

o

lD

o

oQr. 
1. 

CAE. '

p

E

E

rynviz111

v

0

0

I

oD

u

Q

r— 

I"

I ,, 

CDCD
1=

1

CD

1= 

CD

10

IC

11c; cD

z> 
rA

CD

n— ".

5

ES, 

El, 

r,. 

cz, 

E-- ,

n, 

a. 

O

a

m . .... 

a. 

c-

3

c- 

cD

1,

11 , ", <, 

x-,< 

8

8

q- 

H

B.. 

r . . ....... 

r.". 

C-) < , - '

r 

7, 

h... 

f: 

4



IIII11: I

I

Iq, 
J

C"

D

apx

V1

3

1 ,

t

CD

f

I.

D •

q

CC=

0

CC

CD

CD

CD

IZ) 

o

CD

r

knClD

rXl

It

ivt

2

1 ' 

12

nrr

n

CD

Is

CD

1 

1

n- 

c, 0, 

Iq

I'

s

CU

1.

3

0

0

0

Cl. 

El. 

F

E

1.

1.

5

Cjj

6.

TJ

LlP
1

O..

TJ

11

I.

J

v."... 

ID

Iz

CD

Ir

417r

kl) It

5: 

00

r46
Fl

w

ri

r2

q

w

8

CD

C. 

Cl

cl., 

Fl. 

5

r4

r.

1

It, II

1. 



v_ .............. 

as

LO

0

Lo

a) 

E

Q) 

C

co

M

co

Cl) 

Lo

LO

00 (

D

c1t) 

110, 

It — 

U) 

C) 

C) 

CL) 

a) 

C) 

a) 

z 

C) -

t 

0

a) 

co

a) 

D

ro "

g, 

N

IL

CIO,) 

r

CO

Eo (
D

15 . 

C) 

0) 

CD1
a- (,

5 (

L) 

0

E

U) 

th

L :

3

o

C) 

mCD

r- 

CD

E

ac) .

roii
T

a) 

2D

M- 

C) 

E

E

C) 

E

E

cD

aci

E

E

u) 

0 -•-

T-- (

D

0) (

D -

t:! -

r_ 

0) 

C'

i

Q) (

U - -- 

m

m

cl (

D

V - . 

m

E

w = (

D

L) 

CL > :

tf

C:) 

0- 

q > 

C:) 

FU

a) 

0- 

It

a) 

0

Q) 

CO

a) 

0

q (

D )- 

Q) 

U) 

Cl) 

0

0

ri) 

C) 

co) 

0
C) 

En

Cl) 

a

wf 

0

0 (

49) 

L .............................. . ..................................... 

Q) 

Q) (

D

00

N

CL

v

im

a) 

a) < 

L) . . .

6

a) 

Qu

m

ma

C) 

C3 (

D

OE
COQ) ......... —

ai -- - ------------- 

Co

C) 

a

u

U) 

cu

E

rJ) 

Q) 

U) 

co- - ----------------- . ............................. . ................................. ................... . .. ......... 

o- 

ci

cu

1 )

o

a) 

0) 
ru

2E

co

V) 

CI. 

D

mL

O0
CL

U) 

U) 

En

Q_ 

U) 

D (

D

a) 

Q) 

o

I

M, 

ILI

A- 31

x

fW,,, 

U) 

04

ZQ) 

Ol

0

z

U) 

L) 

U

r- 

ZI

CD

Q) 

G3

L) 

EZ3
U. . ......................................... . . . .. . 0

Lr) 

n -

0

V) 

Z

2 -

2 

u

cu

0

D

a) > 

a) 

D

L) 

01

01! >

1

Q) 

LL -

6

a) 

1- 

0
1

a - 

w

Lo

ED >, _

j

W

LO

m

01

0QED

3

Q) 

79

D
U) 

rj, 

C: 

z -

LU

u

0

U) 

U) 

U

M .

2

C 'o

Q) 

co

M

0

E

0) 

0

cr

2T

0 ::

j

TD (

D

Lu

U) 

nQ) 
co,(

D

U) 

C) 

0 — 

r- 

c

I

C: 

L) -

j (

n :

3

U) 

L

cn

D

D .= 

6

E

cn

n

U) 

0

m

0

m

0

co

Q) 

Z

a) (

L) 

E — 

co

Lo (

D

C) 

C-) 

CD

CD (

D

C) 

CD

O

CD

C) 

C? 

C? 

Q) 

U 
Zf

U

U) 

0 '

a

a) 

0 (

D

0(

D

C

0

a) 

0

0) 

CD

0

0) 

Ln

m

T

2n

m

2

0

LL

U

aL

U

Cm

m

CL

a_ 

a_ 

I., 



LEMON GROVE: ITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1, E

Mtg. Date Mune 2, 2015
Dept.' iCi' ana er" . + ffi ce' 

Item Title: Memorandum of Understanding with Lemon Grove Firefighters Association, 
Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters' 

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; 

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving the Memorandum of Understanding between
the City and Lemon Grove Firefighters Association, Local 2728 of the International

Association of Firefighters. 

Item Summary: 

The current labor I' ernorandurrr of` Understanding ( MOU) between the City and Lemon Grove
Firefighters Association, Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters ( Local 2728) 
expires on ,, lune 30, 2015. The City Council appointed Graham Mitchell and Corinne Russell to
represent the City, in negotiating terms of a new MOU. 
Staff has completed negotiations and presents a resolution ( Attachment B) approving a three- year
MOU ( included as an exhibit to the resolution) for City Council consideration. The staff report

Attachment A) provides an analysis of the MOU. 

Fiscal Impact: 

In Fiscal Year 2015- 16, the City will experience an increase of approximately 2 percent ($ 42, 200) 

in total labor costs with the approval of the MOU. j

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

no Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution ( MOU is included as Exhibit 1) 

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE: CITY COUNCIL; 

STAFF REPORT

Item No. i. E

Mtg. Date ( June 2. 2015

Item Title: : Memorandum of Understanding with the Lemon Grove Firefighters

Association, Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters; 

Staff Contact: ; Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Discussion: 

The purpose of this agenda item is to present a resolution and Memorandum of Understanding
MOU) between the City and Lemon Grove Firefighters Association; Local 2728 of the

International Association of Firefighters ( Local 2728). The MOU serves as a labor agreement

between both parties. The staff report includes background information and a summary of

negotiated changes to the previous MOU. 

On September 3, 2013, the City and Local 2728 entered into a two-year labor MOU. On April 7, 

2015, the City Council designated City Manager Graham Mitchell and Human Resources
Analyst Corinne Russell to represent the City in order to negotiate a new MOU. The City and
Local 2720 representatives have been negotiating terms of a revised agreement and are
prepared to present a document for City Council consideration. 

The following describes significant changes to the previous MOU: 

Battalion Chief ( Article 1. 1) — to mirror language as the other Heartland cities ( EI Cajon and La
Mesa) fire MOUs, Article 1. 1 includes any employees holding the office of Battalion Chief as a
represented employee of the MOU. 

Term ( Article 3) — the MOU is for a three- year term, expiring on June 30, 2018. 

Shift Bidding ( Article 6) — the MOU reflects modified language related to how fire personnel bid
for shift assignments. The modified language mirrors language found in fire labor MOUs with
the cities of EI Cajon and La Mesa. 

Employee Salaries ( Article 7) — the MOU reflects the following cost of living adjustments: 2

percent commencing July 1, 2015, 2 percent commencing July 1, 2016, and 2. 25 percent

commencing July 1, 2017. 

Emergency Incident Compensation ( Article 45) — in order to receive full reimbursement from the

State when sending staff to State -declared emergencies, it is necessary to include State - 
mandated language in the MOU. 

All other sections remain the same as the previous MOU

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider a resolution ( Attachment B) approving the
three- year MOU ( included as Exhibit 1 to the attached resolution). 

3_ 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE : CITY COUNCIL APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY AND LEMON GROVE FIREFIGHTERS

ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 2728 OF THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS: 

WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Understanding ( MOU), defining wages, benefits and
working conditions, between the City and Lemon Grove Firefighters Association, Local 2728 of
the International Association of Firefighters ( Local 2728) became retroactively effective on June
30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the term of the 2013 MOU is set to expire on June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the City Manager to lead a negotiation team to
negotiate a new MOU with Local 2728; and

WHEREAS, the City' s negotiation team and representatives from Local 2728 have
completed negotiations and have developed a MOU for consideration; and

WHEREAS; the members of Local 2728 have approved the negotiated MOU; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed MOU and has determined
that its approval is in the best interest of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the ;City Council, of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves the attached Memorandum of Understanding with Lemon Grove

Firefighters Association, Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters
Exhibit 1); and

2. Authorizes the City Manager to execute said Memorandum of Understanding



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN THE

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AND THE

LEMON GROVE FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 2728 OF THE
INTERNATIONAL ASSOCATION OF FIREFIGHTERS

2015- 2018

This Memorandum of Understanding (" Agreement") between the City of Lemon Grove

hereinafter " City"), and the Lemon Grove Firefighters Association, Local 2728 of the

International Association of Firefighters ( hereinafter " Local 2728"), sets forth the full and

entire understanding of the parties regarding the City' s fire services and other matters

set forth herein. Prior or existing understanding or agreements by parties, whether

formal or informal, regarding any such matters are hereby superseded or terminated in

their entirety. 

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Government Code §§ 350073510 and has

been jointly prepared by the duly appointed representatives of the City and Local 2728. 

It is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations

between the City and Local 2728 to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustment of

differences that may arise and to establish proper standards of wages, hours, and other

conditions of employment. 

The parties have met and conferred in good faith regarding wages, hours, and other

terms and conditions of employment of the employees represented by Local 2728, have

freely exchanged information, opinions, and proposals, and have endeavored to reach

agreement on all matters relating to employment conditions and employee/ City relations

of such employees. 

ARTICLE 1 — RECOGNITION

1. 1 The City recognizes Local 2728 as the " meet and confer" representative for

represented public safety employees of the City involved in fire suppression. 

This Agreement shall be applicable to the Battalion Chief, Captain, Engineer, and

1



Firefighter/ Paramedic classifications. This Agreement shall not apply to any

other classifications within the City including any substitute or temporary
employees. 

ARTICLE 2 — MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

2. 1 The City, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the City, hereby

retains and reserves unto itself, without limitations, all powers, rights, authority, 

duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by federal, state and

local laws and ordinances, the Constitution of the State of California, and the

Constitution of the United States, including, but without limitation, the rights: 

A. To determine and administer City policies, procedures, rules and

regulations. 

B. Subject to the provisions of the law, to hire all employees, to determine

their qualifications and the conditions of their layoff, dismissal or demotion, 

and to promote and to transfer all employees. 

C. To determine the number and kinds of personnel necessary for the

efficient operation of the City and to direct their activities. 

D. To determine staffing patterns and work schedules. 

E. To determine City programs. 

F. To build, move, or modify City facilities. 

G. To develop and administer the City budget. 

H. To determine the methods of raising revenue. 

I. To take action on any matter in the event of an emergency. 

J. To determine the need for technology and equipment upgrades. 

K. To delegate to the City Manager, Fire Chief, and other legally appointed

officers, the operation of the City, its properties and facilities, including but

not limited to innovative and experimental uses of the City' s facilities and

experimental and pilot investigation of new fire science programs. 

2



2. 2 Employees may be assigned City -owned vehicles, lockers, desks, cabinets and

cases for the mutual convenience of the City and its personnel. All personnel are

admonished that the retention of personal items in such vehicles, containers or

facilities is at the risk of the employee and the City will not be responsible for any

losses other than as specified in Article 20 ( Reimbursement for Lost, Stolen or

Damaged Property). Vehicles, containers or facilities in which equipment is

stored shall be subject to entry by the City. A employee shall not have his or her

locker or other space for storage that may be assigned to him or her searched

except in his or her presence, or with his or her consent, or unless a valid search

warrant has been obtained and unless he or she has been notified that a search

will be conducted. This section shall apply only to lockers or other space for

storage that are owned or leased by the City. It shall be the policy of the City to

conduct searches in the presence of two City officers and the employee. If

requested by the employee, the search must also be conducted in the presence

of one Local 2728 representative. 

2. 3 The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities

by the City, the adoption of policies, rules and regulations, and practice in the
furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and, discretion in connection

therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this

Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms are in

conformance with federal and state law. 

ARTICLE 3 — TERM OF AGREEMENT

3. 1 This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective as of 0001 hours on July

1, 2015, and shall remain in effect until 2359 hours on June 30, 2018. All

financial terms of this contract shall remain in place unless agreed upon by both

parties. On or about March 15 of each year, either party may choose to re -open

the MOU in order to meet and confer on any non- financial items by notifying the

other party in writing. 

3



ARTICLE 4 — RULES AND REGULATIONS

4. 1 Local 2728 agrees that all of its members shall comply with all City policies, 

procedures, rules and regulations, including those relating to conduct and work
performance. Unless specifically modified or superseded by this Agreement, all

employees covered hereunder shall be subject to the rules established in the

Lemon Grove Personnel Policies Manual ( Manual) under Resolution No. 3085, 

as amended. Local 2728 also agrees to comply with the provisions of Chapter

2. 32 ( City -Employee Relations) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code, which is. 

incorporated herein by reference as amended. 

ARTICLE 5 — HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT

5. 1 The average workweek computed over a one- year period shall be 56 hours. The

schedule shall consist of a system of three platoons, 4' s and 6' s ( based on a 24 - 

day work cycle). The work cycle is established as follows: 

Four shifts ( 24 hours on, 24 hours off) 

Four consecutive days off

Four shifts ( 24 hours on, 24 hours off) 

Six consecutive days off

5. 2 Personnel may be assigned to a temporary, modified workweek to accomplish

needed work for the City. The terms and conditions of assiqnment to such

workweek shall be mutually agreed upon between the local and management. 

ARTICLE 6 — SHIFT BIDDING

6. 1 To accommodate staffing in the fire department, the department uses a " bid" 

system process. This system allows employees to bid for a station assignment

for the upcoming year. On or around January 1, every other year, all employees

shall be allowed to bid for shift assignments based on seniority in rank. Any
changes will be effective on or around February 1 of the same year. In the event

that openings occur in between bid cycles, they will be filled in a similar fashion

based on seniority. 

The following guidelines are used in the annual bid system process: 

4



A. In years ending in an even number, the bid will be department wide with

members allowed to move from shift to shift. In years ending with an odd

number, the bid will be shift wide with members allowed to move within their shift

only. 

B. The Deputy Fire Chief or his designee will conduct the bid each year. 

C. Captains will be allowed to select first based on seniority within the rank, with the

senior Captain selecting first. All Captain will select a station prior to Engineers. 

D. Engineers will be allowed to select next based on seniority within the rank, with

the senior Engineer selecting first. All Engineers will select a station prior to

Firefighters. 

E. Firefighter will be allowed to select next based on seniority with the rank, with the

senior Firefighters selecting first. 

F. New hires or promotions will be placed by management regardless of date, 

month or year. 

G. The Fire Chief reserves the right to make changes in station assignments, or

place personnel to meet the needs of the department at anytime. 

ARTICLE 7 — EMPLOYEE SALARIES

7. 1 On or about July 1, 2015, all covered members under this MOU shall receive a 2

percent cost of living allowance. The FY 2015- 16 salaries are referenced on the

City' s Salary and Classification Summary. On or about July 1, 2016 all covered

members under this MOU shall receive a 2 percent cost of living allowance, and

then a 2. 25 percent cost of living allowance on or about July 1, 2017. 

ARTICLE 8 — OVERTIME COMPENSATION

8. 1 The City shall comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act ( FLSA) as amended and

as it applies to the fire service. 

8. 2 FLSA - Under the Fair Labor Standards Act, generally, an employer must pay an

employee overtime for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week. This

overtime pay is one and one half ( 1'/ ) times the regular compensation rate. 

4



Under Section 207( k) of the FLSA, as interpreted by the Department of Labor, 

employees engaged in fire protection or law enforcement activities with 28

consecutive day work periods are entitled to one and one half ( 1 % 2 ) times their

regular compensation rate if they work excess hours. For fire protection

employees, overtime must be paid for hours worked beyond 212 hours during the
28 -day work period. 

Approved leave time is considered as hours worked for the purposes of FLSA

overtime calculation. 

8. 3 Every full time employee covered by this Agreement shall be eligible for overtime

pay. There are three types of overtime: scheduled, voluntary and recall. 

Scheduled overtime is the term used for the three hours worked each workweek

in addition to the regular 53 hours, paid at time and one half. 

Voluntary overtime includes all overtime worked to fill normal positions whether a

full or partial shift. Voluntary overtime begins when the employee reports to the

work location where the position is being filled. All forcebacks to cover normal

shifts are considered voluntary. Employees reporting for voluntary overtime shall

be paid a minimum of two hours. 

Recall overtime includes all overtime for which the employee is called back to

work due to an emergency. The Fire Chief or his/ her designee determines what

constitutes an emergency. Recalled employees shall be paid overtime from the

time of recall, for a minimum of two hours, for each recall and hour for hour

beyond two hours. Employees on recall overtime shall be paid their current

hourly rate. Recall of off duty personnel shall, in each instance, be followed by

reports showing who reported and the time they were called to report. This

information shall be entered on the daily attendance report. ( The employees' 

immediate supervisor shall manage this.) 

8.4 It is the intent of the City to not compensate more than one employee to fill a

normal position whether with regular or overtime pay. 

0



8. 5 Recalled employees shall be entitled to reimbursement for meals during the

emergency for which they are recalled. 

8. 6 Employees shall not work more than 96 consecutive hours except during

extreme emergencies as directed by the Fire Chief. Four hours is normally

considered a minimum break in duty. 

ARTICLE 9 — TIME REPORTING AND USE OF LEAVE CREDITS

9. 1 All hours worked and leave credits taken shall be reported in 30 -minute

increments. 15 minutes or less shall not be reported. More than 15 minutes and

less than 45 minutes shall be reported as 30 minutes. More than 45 minutes

shall be -reported, as one hour. 

ARTICLE 10 — EXCHANGE OF SHIFTS/ EARLY RELIEF

10. 1 Exchange( s) of shift/ early relief are privileges granted by the Fire Chief or his/ her
designee. The Fire Chief or his/ her designee may deny shift exchange( s) at the

time of request; the reason( s) for denial shall be substantiated at the time of

denial. 

10. 2 Shift exchanges (" trade time") shall follow these guidelines: 

A. The Company Captain may grant shift exchange requests of less than 24

hours. 

B. Shift exchange requests of 24 hours or more must be approved by the

Company Captain and the Fire Chief or his/ her designee and must be

submitted, in writing, at least 24 hours prior to the planned exchange of

shift. 

C. All shift exchanges shall be rank for rank, inclusive of acting positions. 

D. Shift exchanges that would require a firefighter to work in excess of 72

consecutive hours shall be denied. 

E. All exchanges shall be completed within 12 months of the initial exchange. 

F. The responsibility to cover an assigned work shift remains with the

employee assigned to such shift. 

0



Approved shift exchanges shall be considered a normal, scheduled work

assignment. If for any reason a shift exchange or any portion thereof is

not worked, the employee that accepted the shift exchange for that shift

shall be charged annual leave. If this occurs with an original shift

exchange, a payback shift exchange shall still be owed for the full amount

of hours agreed upon between the parties. All payback shift exchanges

are considered fulfilled with hours worked or charged annual leave. In the

event of an on -duty injury during a shift exchange, the City shall cover the

remaining portion of such shift. Anyone who fails to fulfill a shift exchange

original or payback) twice in a six- month period may not be allowed to

participate in any new shift exchanges for one year after the date of such

failure. 

G. Shift exchanges of more than four hours are not allowed while an

employee is working overtime. 

ARTICLE 11 — MINIMUM SUPPRESSION STAFFING

11. 1 The City agrees that the use of a constant minimum staffing model is more cost

effective than utilizing an overstaffing model during the term of this Memorandum

of Understanding. The City, therefore, shall utilize a constant minimum staffing
model. Minimum daily staffing for the City shall be six members of the

bargaining unit per shift. The six shift positions shall be two captains, 2

engineers, and 2 firefighter/ paramedics per shift. Except in the case of an

anticipated absence of at least six months, as a result of injury, illness, military

service, jury duty, or any other similar event, the City reserves the right to use

temporary firefighters to fill the temporary vacancy. 

ARTICLE 12 — FIRST RESPONDER AND PARAMEDIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

12. 1 The minimum first responder standard for all classifications covered by this
Agreement shall be EMT -DC ( Emergency Medical Technician with Defibrillator

and Combitube endorsements). The City shall pay an EMT -DC incentive of 1

percent of top Firefighter/Paramedic annual salary in December of each year to



each employee currently certified as an EMT -DC, except if ineligible as provided

in 12. 3. 

12.2 The City shall provide on duty time and the necessary materials and instructors

for employees to maintain their EMT -DC standard once achieved. Employees

missing scheduled training must make up such training on their own time. 

Employees failing City provided EMT -DC recertification shall obtain such

recertification on their own time and at their own expense. 

12. 3 A base annual paramedic recertification incentive of 3. 3 percent of top

Firefighter/ Paramedic annual salary shall be paid in December. Any employee

receiving this incentive is not eligible for the EMT/ DC incentive identified in
Article 12. 1. 

12. 4 Employees who maintain their paramedic status after reassignment or promotion

shall receive the paramedic recertification incentive listed in Article 12. 3. 

12. 5 Those employees originally hired as Firefighters/ Paramedic shall maintain their

certification as a minimum job requirement until promotion or separation. 

12. 6 Employees may not use City training or education reimbursement funds, referred

to in Section 21. 1, for the costs associated with EMT or paramedic recertification

course, training or testing. 

ARTICLE 13 — ACTING POSITIONS

13. 1 Those acting in positions of a different rank shall comply with the regulations and

orders of the position in which they are acting and shall be required to have

knowledge of and be responsible and accountable for the proper execution of the

duties of such rank. They shall be accorded all authority and privileges of the

office in which they are acting, and shall be obeyed and respected accordingly. 

13. 2 Employees of a higher rank may voluntarily work in a position of lower rank ( i. e., 

an Engineer working in a Firefighter/ Paramedic position) only after the overtime

list has been exhausted and prior to any forcebacks. Overtime voluntarily

worked in a lower rank shall not prejudice the employee' s position on the

overtime list for their rank. 

9



13. 3 Employees being trained for another position shall not be compensated for the

position for which they are being trained as long as the position is presently filled. 

The intent of this Article is to prevent two or more employees from being
compensated for the same position at the same time. 

13.4 Vacancies occurring on a planned or daily basis will normally be filled rank for

rank from the voluntary overtime list. This would include any vacation or short- 

term sick leave or leave of absence. This does not preclude the ability of the City

to fill long- term vacancies occurring due to sick leave, leave of absence or other

circumstances with move up or qualified acting personnel. Long- term vacancies

are normally defined as eight shifts or longer. 

The City may use other methods of filling vacancies if it has knowledge that the

vacancy will exist for eight shifts or longer. If no one from the vacant rank is

signed up for voluntary overtime, then others of higher rank shall be offered the

overtime prior to any forceback. 

If no employee, on or off duty, of equivalent rank or certified to act in the vacant

position is available, the Fire Chief or his/ her designee shall appoint the

employee he/she feels most qualified to fill the vacant position until an equivalent

or certified employee is available. 

ARTICLE 1 — LIMITED DUTY

1. 1 Personnel on sick leave due to an off-duty injury or a non -contagious illness, and
with the written consent of their physician, may, at the discretion of the Fire

Chief, be allowed to return to work in a limited duty status. 

1. 2 Limited duty may include any one or more of the following or within the City

operations, but shall not include emergency duties: 

A. Clerical duties, 

B. Station maintenance, 

C. Hydrant maintenance, 

D. Department runner ( parts, supplies, mail delivery, etc.), 

E. Drafting, 

10



F. Fire prevention duties, 

G. Installation and checking of smoke detectors, 

H. Other duties that may appropriately fall within limited duty status. 

1. 3 Limited duty is available at the discretion of the City and is contingent upon a

need existing for both the City and the employee. 

1. 4 The existing needs of the City and the utilization of an eligible employee' s special

skills shall be a determining factor in the assignment of limited duty. Limited duty

assignments may include assignments to duties in other City departments where

the employee' s special skills may be utilized. If more than one employee is on

sick leave and limited duty is available, the alternating of personnel may be

required. Other factors being equal, the employee with the longest sick leave

should receive first consideration. 

1. 5 Limited duty shall not extend beyond 30 calendar days, unless reviewed and

approved for extension by the Fire Chief in the same manner as the original

request. 

1. 6 The granting of limited duty is with the understanding that the employee' s injury

or illness is of a temporary or nonpermanent nature only and the employee shall

be expected to be able to return to full duty when physically able. 

1. 7 Return to full duty can only be accomplished by obtaining written clearance from

the physician treating the employee. The employee shall, as soon as possible, 

notify the City regarding his/ her medical status. 

1. 8 Personnel on limited duty shall continue to accrue annual and sick leave based

on the prevailing workweek for that employee's full duty status. 

1. 9 Suppression personnel assigned to limited duty will be assigned to a 40 -hour

duty week and will not be eligible for time and one- half ( 1'/ 2) compensation until

they exceed 40 hours per week. 

1. 10 The formula for converting a 56 -hour workweek to a 40 -hour workweek and back

to a 56 -hour workweek for sick leave and annual leave is ( with all calculations

rounded to the nearest one half hour): 

11



Total hours divided by 56 times 40 equal total hours on 8 -hour day ( subtract
time) 

Total hours divided by 40 times 56 equal total hours on 24- hour day ( add time) 

1. 11 Employees on leave due to an on -duty injury may be brought back on limited

duty as soon as allowed by the treating physician. This may extend beyond the
30 -day limit stated in Article 14. 5. 

ARTICLE 1- PERSONAL EXPOSURE RECORD

The City shall fund the cost of The California Professional Fire Fighters Personal

Exposure Record for each employee covered by this agreement. 

ARTICLE 1 — INSURANCE BENEFITS

16. 1 During the term of this Agreement, the City agrees to provide each employee

with health coverage pursuant to the Plans currently offered. City shall

contribute $ 150.00 per month towards the cost of health insurance coverage for

the employee. 

16. 2 Employee must participate in one of two dental insurance plans. 

16. 3 The City contributes $ 750. 00 per month towards a flexible benefits package. The

employee may contribute this amount plus any of his/ her own funds towards any

of the offered pre- tax benefits. The employee will receive up to $ 250. 00 in cash if

any of the $ 750. 00 remains following selection of benefits. Certain premiums

may be paid with pre- tax dollars. Two types of Flexible Spending Accounts are
offered: Medical Expense Reimbursement and Dependent Care Reimbursement

accounts. 

16. 4 The City will directly pay a separate health insurance benefit to all current and

future retirees that are or have been employed by the City as of July 1, 2010. 
The separate health insurance benefit, which will be paid on a six- month basis, 

will be in the amount of $200. 00. 

16. 5 The City shall provide a $ 10,000.00 Whole Life Insurance Policy to each covered
employee. 

12



16.6 Each covered employee hired after April 1, 1986' shall contribute 1. 45 percent of

salary for Medicare coverage. City shall contribute 1. 45 percent of the salary of

each covered employee for Medicare coverage. 

16. 7 If employees affirmatively elect, through a union -wide vote, to establish a Retiree

Savings Accounts, City shall administer said program through payroll deductions

on behalf of the employees. 

ARTICLE 17 — RETIREMENT BENEFITS

17. 1 The retirement benefits for the employees covered by this Agreement are as

specified in the contract with the Public Employees' Retirement System ( PERS). 

Said contract shall form part of, and be subject to all provisions of this

Agreement. 

17. 2 If hired on or before December, 31, 2012, the employee shall pay the employee' s

9 percent share of the retirement contribution. 

17. 3 The retirement benefit for employees hired on or before December 31, 2012 shall

be based on a 3% @55 retirement formula and shall include: 

Final Compensation — 1 Year

Sick Leave Credit

Military Service Credit

1959 Survivor Benefit, Fourth Level

EPMC Conversion

17. 4 Retirement benefits of employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 shall be

regulated through the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act ( PEPRA). 

CALPERS will determined if a new employee is a " classic member" ( due to

reciprocity) or a " new member." 

17. 5 PEPRA regulations shall be determined by CALPERS. As of July 1, 2013, " new

members" shall have benefits which include: 

2. 7% @57 retirement formula, 

13



Final compensation is the average of the last three years of employment, 

Employee is to pay an employee contribution equal to 50 percent of

normal cost," and

There shall be no Employee Paid Member Contribution ( EPMC) for

employees hired on or after January 1, 2013. The City shall not report any

EPMC as special compensation or compensation earnable for employees

hired on or after January 1, 2013. 

17. 6 Deferred compensation plans are available for employee participation through

payroll deduction. 

ARTICLE 18 — UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

18. 1 All protective clothing and/ or protective devices required of employees in the

performance of their duties shall be furnished and maintained by the City, without
cost to the employees, in accordance with State law and CAL -OSHA regulations. 

All footwear with the exception of turnout boots are not considered protective

devices for the purposes of this article although such footwear shall still meet any

applicable safety standards. 

18. 2 Suppression personnel shall be reimbursed a sum no greater than $ 1, 000

annually as a uniform allowance for the purchase, alteration, maintenance, and

replacement of the Class " B" ( work) uniform; dry cleaning and replacement of the
Class " A" ( dress) uniform, and all footwear. 

18. 3 The City shall reimburse employee for eligible uniform purchases with proof of

receipt or shall pay pre -established vendors with a purchase order. 

18. 4 The City shall provide a Class " A" uniform to each employee upon completion of

the Fire Specialist requirements. Maintenance and repair of the Class " A" 

uniform shall be in accordance with Article 18. 5. 

18. 5 The minimum amounts of uniform items in good repair maintained by each

employee shall be established by City policy. Management, to ensure

compliance with developed policy, shall conduct periodic inspections. 

14



ARTICLE 19 — REIMBURSEMENT FOR LOST, STOLEN OR DAMAGED PERSONAL

PROPERTY

19. 1 Replacement of personal property lost, stolen, or damaged while on duty shall be

compensated at full replacement value. These items would include eyeglasses, 

hearing aids, wristwatches damaged or destroyed ( in a manner other than

normal wear and tear), and items of personal property authorized to be in the

station that are stolen while the on -duty employee is out of quarters. Required

uniform items damaged on emergency incidents shall be replaced on a prorated

basis. 

19. 2 Lost, stolen or damaged items must be verified by a Captain or the Fire Chief or

his/ her designee during the shift the alleged loss, theft or damage occurred. 

19. 3 Items lost, stolen or damaged due to negligence are not covered. 

19. 4 Employees are responsible for securing personal items and ensuring station

security to avoid loss or theft of personal items. 

ARTICLE 20 - EDUCATION AWARD

20. 1 Employees hired on or before December 31, 2013 are eligible for an education

award who have achieved Fire Specialist rating ( 3 years of service), on or before

December 1 st of the year in which the award is given. Payment shall be made in

a lump sum during the first pay period in December each year. The employee

must present proof of degree completion to the HR Analyst prior to November 1St

to be eligible for that year. 

20. 2 Those employees referred to in Section 20. 1, that have earned AA/AS shall

receive 1 percent of top Firefighter/ Paramedic annual salary. Those employees

referred to in Section 20. 1 that have earned a BA/ BS or higher shall receive 2

percent of top Firefighter/ Paramedic annual salary. The education award shall

be paid in December of each year. 

20. 3 Employees hired on or after July 1, 2013, after completing their probation period, 

shall receive a one- time education award of $ 1, 500. 00 for possessing or earning

15



a AA/ S and $ 3, 000. 00 for possessing or earning a BANS. The employee must

present proof of degree completion to the HR Analyst

ARTICLE 21- EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT

21. 1 The City shall provide $ 1, 000. 00 for educational reimbursement for each

employee according to the following schedule and requirements. 

21. 2 Courses specifically related to enhancing the employee' s knowledge or skill in

Fire Fighting or Fire Science shall be eligible for reimbursement under this policy. 

The California Fire Instructors Workshop or similar conferences are eligible for

reimbursement. Costs covered by this article include but are not limited to the

following: tuition or registration fees, books, and reasonable travel expenses

including lodging, travel and meals. 

21. 3 Classes or seminars available on a local basis must be taken locally to qualify for
reimbursement. Reimbursement for attendance in these classes must be pre - 

approved by the Fire Chief or his/ her designee. Any dispute may be handled
through the grievance process. 

ARTICLE 22 — HOLIDAYS AND MODIFIED WORK SCHEDULES

22. 1 Holidays recognized by the City are as follows: 
1. New Year' s Day 8. 

2. Martin Luther King Jr. Day 9. 

3. Presidents' Day 10. 

4. Memorial Day 11. 

5. Independence Day 12. 

6. Labor Day 13. 

7. Veterans' Day

Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving

Christmas Eve — 'h day

Christmas Day

New Year' s Eve — Y2 day

Floating Holiday

22. 2 Modified work schedules shall be observed on all Sundays and Department

Holidays. 

22. 3 Modified work schedule is defined as the completion of daily equipment check
and physical fitness. Any reporting requirement necessitated by emergency

activities shall be fulfilled. No other mandatory work requirements are normally

16



scheduled during these days. Employees are encouraged to use this time for

personal training or other constructive purposes. 

22. 4 The Duty Chief or Station Captain may suspend the modified work schedule

privilege due to unexpected or urgent Department needs. If such suspension

occurs, every effort shall be made to grant a modified work schedule day to those

employees affected by such suspension within a reasonable time following the

suspension of the modified work schedule. 

22. 5 The Fire Chief may order a modified work schedule day whenever he/ she deems

it appropriate. 

22. 6 The department may conduct one multi -company drill per quarter per shift on

Sunday without necessitation a rescheduling of the modified work schedule day. 
Modified work schedules shall be observed in the station on the following

recognized legal holidays ( not the day before or after): 

1. New Year' s Day January 1

2. Martin Luther King Jr. Day the third Monday in January

3. Presidents' Day the third Monday in February

4. Memorial Day the last Monday in May

5. Independence Day July 4

6. Labor Day the first Monday in September

7. Veterans' Day November 11

8. Thanksgiving Day the fourth Thursday in November

9. Day after Thanksgiving the fourth Friday in November

10. Christmas Eve (% day) December 24

11. Christmas Day December 25

12. New Year' s Eve (% day) December 31

22. 7 No later than the second pay period in January of each year, each suppression

employee shall be compensated at straight time for 6 holidays ( 144 hours) as

compensation for holidays worked during the previous calendar year ( January

through December). This time will be put in their leave bank as holiday hours. 

17



22. 8 Suppression employees with less than five years of employment with the City

may use holiday leave throughout the year at a 1: 1 ratio up to three shifts. After

three shifts have been used, the remainder of the holiday hours can be used at a
1: 1. 5 ratio, if needed. At the end of each calendar year, suppression employees

with less than five years of employment will have the option to cash out the

remaining hours or in lieu of cash compensation, elect to convert three holidays

to three days of annual leave at a 1: 1 ratio. Suppression employees with more

than five years of employment with the City may use the holiday leave
throughout the year at a 1: 1. 5 ratio. At the end of each calendar year, 

suppression employees with more than five years employment will have the

option to cash out any remaining hours or in lieu of cash compensation, elect to

convert the holiday hours ( 144) to annual leave at the ratio of one hour of annual

leave for each one and one- half ( 1: 1. 5) hours of holiday time ( maximum 96 hours
credited to annual leave). 

ARTICLE 23 — ANNUAL LEAVE

23. 1 Annual Leave Earn Rates: 

YEAR 56 -HOUR EMPLOYEES

1- 5 11. 00 hours per month

6- 10 15. 00 hours per month

11- 15 20. 00 hours per month

16- 20 22. 00 hours per month

21+ 24. 00 hours per month

Employees begin earning the higher rate during the pay period in which his/ her

anniversary date falls ( i. e., five years and one day = 14 hours per month earn

rate). 

23. 2 All annual leave is to be charged on an hour -for -hour basis to the nearest half

hour consistent with Article 9. No employee may accumulate more annual leave

hours than he/ she would earn in a two- year period. Forty ( 40) hour employees

18



may not take more than four weeks off at any one time on their first choice of

annual leave. 

ARTICLE 24 — ILLNESS/ INJURY WHILE ON ANNUAL LEAVE

24. 1 Employees who are on authorized vacation and become ill or otherwise disabled

through an accident may make a request to the Fire Chief to charge such

sickness or disablement to credited sick leave, provided a physician' s statement

is presented to the Fire Chief. 

ARTICLE 25 —.SICK LEAVE

25. 1 Employees working a 56 -hour duty week earn twenty (20) hours of sick leave per

month. 

25. 2 Sick leave is to be charged at the rate of hour for hour at the nearest half hour

consistent with Article 9. 

25. 3 Safety employees covered by Labor Code section 4850 shall not be allowed to

use sick leave for on -duty injuries. 

25.4 In the event that an employee uses sick leave for more than three consecutive

shifts, the City may require a health care providers' confirmation prior to any

additional sick leave usage. 

25. 5 For those employees who have sick leave hours transferred from the San Miguel

Consolidated Fire Protection District, those hours are locked for use, except in

the event the employee has used all available sick leave earned as an employee

of the City. 

ARTICLE 26 — FAMILY CARE LEAVE

26. 1 It is the policy of the City to grant 56 -hour employees up to two cycles ( eight

shifts) and 40 -hour employees up to three weeks of his/ her sick leave per

occurrence for providing required care to a family member who is ill or injured

and unable to care for him/ herself. The employee shall provide a physician' s

substantiation of the family member' s illness or injury if so requested by his/ her

supervisor. 

19



26. 2 For the purposes of this Article, " family member" is defined as the employee' s

spouse, child, brother, sister, parent, parent -in- law, grandparent, grandchild or

any person who is significant to the employee and is living in the same

household. 

26. 3 The City shall periodically review its policy regarding Family Care Leave to

ensure conformance with all current state and federal laws that apply and shall

provide amended verbiage for this Article if necessary to comply with such state

or federal law. 

ARTICLE 27 — SICK LEAVE UPON RETIREMENT OR SEPARATION

27. 1 Upon retirement or separation ( having worked for the City for a period of not less

than five years), employees shall be paid for one- half of their accumulated sick

leave hours. Pay shall be based upon vested amounts at the employee' s pay

rate at the time the hours were earned ( using the final pay rate each fiscal year

for all time earned in that fiscal year). 

27. 2 Upon retirement or separation, employees who have had sick leave hours

transferred to the City from the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District, 

shall be paid for one- third of the hours at the hourly rate of pay earned the last

day of employment with the District. 

27. 3 Upon retirement, employees have the option to apply accumulated sick leave
time toward retirement service credit on an hour -for -hour basis. 

at



ARTICLE 28 — BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

28. 1 In addition to annual and sick leave, employees shall be granted three

consecutive working shifts leave with pay within a two-week period of a death of

a family member ( a maximum of 72 hours for 56 -hour personnel, and 24 hours
for 40 -hour personnel). Additional leave is allowed, provided the employee uses

his/ her available annual or sick leave. Employees learning of the death of a

family member while on duty shall, in addition, be given the remainder of that

shift off. 

28. 2 For the purposes of this Article, " family member" is defined as the employee' s

spouse, child, brother, sister, parent, parent -in- law, grandparent, grandchild or

any person who is significant to the employee and is living in the same
household. 

28. 3 Employees may use available sick or annual leave credits for time off due to the

death of other family members not listed in Article 28. 2. 

ARTICLE 29 - EMERGENCY TIME OFF

29. 1 Any emergency time off, not qualifying under the " Sick Leave," " Family Care

Leave," or " Bereavement Leave" provisions, shall be charged against the

employee' s available annual leave. 

ARTICLE 30 — LEAVE FOR JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAED WITNESS SERVICE

30. 1 The City cooperates fully with local, state and federal courts in allowing

employees to serve on juries without any financial loss. Any regular or

probationary full- time employee who is required to serve as a juror, or who is

subpoenaed as a witness in any court in a cause related to City matters, shall be

entitled to a leave of absence with pay while performing services as a juror or as

a witness. 

30. 2 Employees who are called for jury duty will receive full compensation according

to Article 30. 1 above, for that period of absence, provided they furnish verification

of jury service to the Finance Department. 

21



30. 3 In the event that the absence of an employee from work would cause a hardship
on the City, the City may petition the Jury Commissioner to excuse the employee

from jury duty. 

30.4 To insure proper shift coverage, an employee who receives a notice of jury duty

shall, within 24 hours of receipt of notice, notify and present the notice to the Fire

Chief or his/ her designee. 

ARTICLE 31 — LEAVE FOR MILITARY SERVICE

31. 1 An employee requesting a leave of absence to meet military requirements shall

be granted such leave without pay, together with reemployment rights as

provided by federal and state laws in effect at the time. 

31. 2 An employee who wishes to voluntarily incur military obligation involving one or

more periods of active duty must obtain prior approval of the City Manager. 

Such voluntary military service shall be without pay.) 

31. 3 An employee, who wishes to voluntarily serve in the Military Reserve, National
Guard, etc., shall be required to provide for his/ her own time off. It shall not be

the City' s responsibility to provide time off, time off with pay, or standby overtime
coverage for the employee. If the employee wishes, a leave of absence may be
requested pursuant to Article 34. 

ARTICLE 32 — MATERNITY LEAVE

32. 1 An employee who becomes pregnant must notify her immediate supervisor of the

pregnancy and the approximate date of delivery or such earlier date as she

expects to begin a leave of absence. 

32. 2 An employee, who is disabled from performing her duties because of pregnancy, 
childbirth, or related medical conditions, may have a leave of absence without

pay for the period of such disability not to exceed a total of four months. The

employee may use any accrued paid leave, such as annual or sick leave, before

beginning an unpaid leave. 

The four- month period of pregnancy disability leave of absence is a cumulative

period, including all absences caused by the pregnancy. Within a reasonable

22



time after delivery ( usually six to eight weeks) the City may require an employee

on pregnancy disability leave to provide her health care provider's statement of

her fitness to return to work, ongoing disability, or work restrictions, if any. 

Before returning to work, the employee must provide her health care provider' s

statement of her fitness for duty. 

32. 3 A pregnant employee who wishes to continue working, but has work limitations

resulting from the pregnancy, shall provide the City with a statement from her

health care provider indicating all work limitations or restrictions. The City will

make a reasonable effort to provide the employee with work that meets the

limitations but, if no such work is available, the employee will be eligible to begin

her pregnancy disability leave of absence. See Article 14 ( Limited Duty) for

additional information. 

ARTICLE 33 — CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK

33. 1 The City Manager may authorize the establishment of a catastrophic leave bank

to benefit an employee stricken with a debilitating disease or illness, who has

exhausted his/ her own leave time, and who is not eligible for long term disability

benefits. A donor employee may authorize the use of up to 25 percent of his/ her

accrued annual or sick leave by the catastrophic leave bank. 

33. 2 The catastrophic leave bank shall function until the leave time is no longer

needed by the employee, the employee is eligible for long- term disability

benefits, or the donated hours are exhausted. 

33. 3 The Finance Department will convert the donated time to its value, and reduce

the donor employee' s leave balance during the payroll process. If an individual

employee' s donated value exceeds the amount needed by the catastrophic leave

bank, the donor employee' s leave balance will not be reduced by the excess. 

ARTICLE 34 — UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE

34. 1 On occasion, it may be necessary for an employee to be absent from work for an

extended period. A leave of absence for a limited period is permitted depending

on the reasons and circumstances prompting such request. A leave of absence

23



must be supported by valid reasons and approved by the City. Such leave shall

be without pay. 

A. An employee desiring a leave of absence must present a written request

to his/ her immediate supervisor. The written request must contain the

anticipated length of the absence with dates and circumstances prompting
such a request. 

B. The immediate supervisor will forward the request to the Fire Chief, who

shall review and act upon the request considering the following factors: 

1. The purpose for which the leave is requested. 

2. The length of time the employee will be. away. 

3. The effect the leave will have on the ability of the Division to carry
out its responsibilities. 

4. The employee' s position and length of service. 

C. To be valid, a leave of absence must be confirmed in writing. An

approved leave of absence will not be extended beyond the date of the

initial written request without further written approval. 

D. An employee who has been granted a leave of absence shall give two

weeks notice of intent to returnto work and the City shall be under no

obligation to reemploy him/ her before the expiration of the approved return

to work date. Failure to notify the City two weeks in advance may result in

a delay of reinstatement of up to two weeks. 

E. A leave of absence for up to 30 calendar days may be approved by the

Fire Chief. A leave of absence over 30 calendar days must be approved

by the City Manager. 

24



ARTICLE 35 — EFFECT OF UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE ON EMPLOYEE

BENEFITS

35. 1 Time spent on unpaid leave of absence, except a mandatory military leave of

absence, will not be counted as time employed or in determining an employee' s

eligibility for benefits that accrue based on length of employment: 

35. 2 An employee on unpaid leave of absence for one full pay period or longer, which

includes the first day of a month is not entitled to the flexible benefit allowance. 

The City will pay the health insurance benefit only for the first month following the

start of the leave of absence, providing the employee prepay the balance of the

premium. 

35. 3 An employee on unpaid leave of absence may have his/her health and dental

benefits continue, providing the employee prepay monthly in full the amount of

premium necessary to maintain such benefits. 

35.4 While on unpaid leave of absence, an employee shall not accrue or be paid for

any holiday, annual or sick leave that he/ she may have otherwise accumulated. 

ARTICLE 36 — REINSTATEMENT TO POSITION FOLLOWING UNPAID LEAVE OF

ABSENCE

36. 1 The City will make every effort to reinstate an employee to the same position

he/ she previously occupied or to a similar position following an unpaid leave of

absence. 

If the City cannot guarantee that the same or a similar position will be

immediately available at the time an employee desires to return to work, the

employee shall be notified in advance of taking an unpaid leave of absence. 

36. 2 All personnel on an unpaid leave of absence of over 60 calendar days must have

a routine physical examination, at his/ her expense, prior to returning to work. 

Such employees must produce a signed copy of the Physician' s Release of III or

Injured Worker. 

25



ARTICLE 37 — EMPLOYEE ACCESS TO PERSONNEL RECORDS

37. 1 A employee shall not have any comment adverse to his or her interest entered in

his or her personnel file, or any other file used for any personnel purposes by his

or her City, without the employee having first read and signed the instrument

containing the adverse comment indicating he or she is aware of the comment. 

However, the entry may be made if after reading the instrument the employee

refuses to sign it. That fact shall be noted on that document, and signed or

initialed by the employee. 

37.2 A employee shall have 30 days within which to file a written response to any
adverse comment entered in his or her personnel file. The written response shall

be attached to, and shall accompany, the adverse comment. 

37. 3 Personnel Files shall be available to a employee under the following conditions: 

A. The City shall, at reasonable times and at reasonable intervals, upon the

request of an employee, during usual business hours, with no loss of

compensation to the employee, permit that employee to inspect personnel

files that are used or have been used to determine that employee' s

qualifications for employment, promotion, additional compensation, or

termination or other disciplinary action. 

B. The City shall keep each employee' s personnel file or a true and correct

copy thereof, and shall make the file or copy thereof available within a

reasonable period of time after a request by the employee. 

C. If, after examination of the employee' s personnel file, the employee

believes that any portion of the material is mistakenly or unlawfully placed

in the file, the employee may request, in writing, that the mistaken or

unlawful portion be corrected or deleted. Any request made pursuant to

this subdivision shall include a statement by the employee describing the

corrections or deletions from the personnel file requested and the reasons

supporting those corrections or deletions. A statement submitted pursuant

to this subdivision shall become part of the personnel file of the employee. 

09



D. Within 30 calendar days of receipt of a request made pursuant to

subdivision ( c), the City shall either grant the employee' s request or notify

the officer of the decision to refuse to grant the request. If the City refuses

to grant the request, in whole or in part, the City shall state in writing the

reasons for refusing the request, and that written statement shall become

part of the personnel file of the employee. 

37. 4 It shall be understood that all such materials shall be available for use in

promotional considerations; however, no material shall be considered after three

years from the date of occurrence. 

37. 5 In addition to all adverse action documents placed in an employee' s file, all

corrective measures taken to assist. An employee with rehabilitation and/ or to

improve poor job performance shall be documented and placed in the

employee' s personnel file. It is the intent of this measure to show an employee' s

effort to correct any unacceptable job performance and/ or behavior problems. It

is the employee's responsibility to provide documentation of corrective measures

taken outside of City direction or knowledge. 

ARTICLE 38 — GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

38. 1 Applicability of Article. To the extent that the Firefighters Procedural Bill of

Rights Act ( Government Code Section 3250 et. seq., as amended, " FPBORA") is

applicable to the imposition of discipline of covered firefighters under this

agreement, the remaining sections of this Article shall be applicable to the

imposition of discipline. As to all other matters, Resolution Number 1723 shall be

applicable to grievances and discipline not covered by the Firefighters

Procedural Bill of Rights. Nothing herein is intended to limit the rights afforded to

employees under FPBORA. An employee is not required to utilize and/ or

exhaust the grievance process when seeking to exercise the rights and

protections afforded by FPBORA. 

38. 2. Definitions applicable to Article 38. For purposes of this Article, the following

definitions apply: 

27



A. " Firefighter" means any firefighter employed by a public agency, including, 

but not limited to, any firefighter who is a paramedic or emergency

medical technician, irrespective of rank. Sections 38. 2 — 38. 6, inclusive, 

do not apply to any employee unless they have successfully completed

the probationary period established by his or her City as a condition of

employment. If the City has decided to initiate a formal investigation of an

employee who has not completed his or her initial probationary period, the

probationary employee shall be considered a " firefighter", of the purposes

of this Article and this Article shall apply to the conduct of the formal

investigation. No provision of this Article shall be applicable to review

procedures normally associated with an employee' s initial probationary

period. 

B. " Punitive action" means any action that may lead to dismissal, demotion, 

suspension, reduction in salary, written reprimand, or transfer for

purposes of punishment. 

38. 3 Investigation Procedures. When any firefighter is under investigation and

subjected to interrogation by his or her commanding officer, or any other member

designated by the City, that could lead to punitive action, the interrogation shall

be conducted under the following conditions: 

A. The interrogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, at a time when

the firefighter is on duty, unless an imminent threat to the safety of the

public requires otherwise. If the interrogation does occur during off-duty

time of the firefighter being interrogated, the firefighter shall be

compensated for any off-duty time in accordance with regular department

procedures sand the provisions of this MOU. The firefighter' s

compensation shall not be reduced as a result of any work missed while

being interrogated. 

B. The firefighter under investigation shall be informed, prior to the

interrogation, of the rank, name, and command of the officer or other

person in charge of the interrogation, the interrogating officer, and all other

28



persons to be present during the interrogation. All questions directed to

the firefighter under interrogation shall be asked by and through no more

than two interrogators at one time. 

C. The firefighter under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the

investigation prior to any interrogation. 

D, The interrogating session shall be for a reasonable period taking into

consideration the gravity and complexity of the issue being investigated. 

The person under interrogation shall be allowed reasonable breaks to

attend to his or her own personal physical necessities. 

E. ( 1) The firefighter under interrogation shall not be subjected to

offensive language or threatened with punitive action. A promise of

reward shall not be made as an inducement to answering any

question. The City shall provide to, and obtain from, an employee a

formal grant of immunity from criminal prosecution, in writing, 

before the employee may be compelled to respond to incriminating

questions in an interrogation. Subject to that grant of immunity, a

firefighter refusing to respond to questions or submit to

interrogations shall be informed that the failure to answer questions

directly related to the investigation or interrogation may result in

punitive action. 

2) The City shall not cause the firefighter under interrogation to be

subjected to visits by the press or news media without his or her

express written consent free of duress, and the firefighter' s

photograph, home address, telephone number, or other contact

information shall not be given to the press or news media without

his or her express written consent. 

F, A statement made during interrogation by a firefighter under duress, 

coercion, or threat of punitive action shall not be admissible in any

subsequent judicial proceeding, subject to the following qualifications: 

29



1) This subdivision shall not limit the use of statements otherwise

made by a firefighter when the employing fire department is

seeking civil service sanctions against any firefighter, including

disciplinary action brought under California Government Code

Section 19572. 

2) This subdivision shall not prevent the admissibility of statements

otherwise made by the firefighter under interrogation in any civil

action, including administrative actions, brought by that firefighter, 

or that firefighter's exclusive representative, arising out of a

disciplinary action. 

G. The complete interrogation of a firefighter may be recorded. If a recording

is made of the interrogation, the firefighter shall have access to the

recording if any further proceedings are contemplated or prior to any

further interrogation at a subsequent time. The firefighter shall be entitled

to a transcribed copy of any notes made by a stenographer or to any

reports or complaints made by investigators or other persons, except

those portions that are otherwise required by law to be kept confidential. 

Notes or reports that are deemed to be confidential shall not be entered in

the firefighter' s personnel file. The firefighter being interrogated shall have

the right to bring his or her own recording device and record any and all

aspects of the interrogation. 

H. If, prior to or during the interrogation of a firefighter, it is contemplated by

the City that he or she may be charged with a criminal offense, he or she

shall be immediately informed of his or her constitutional rights. 

1. Upon the filing of a formal written statement of charges, or whenever an

interrogation focuses on matters that may result in punitive action against

any firefighter, that firefighter, at his or her request, shall have the right to

be represented by a representative of his or her choice who may be

present at all times during the interrogation. The representative shall not

be a person subject to the same investigation. The representative shall not

30



be required to disclose, or be subject to any punitive action for refusing to

disclose, any information received from the firefighter under investigation
for noncriminal matters. This section shall not be construed to apply to

counseling, instruction, or informal verbal admonishment by, or other

routine or unplanned contact with, a supervisor or any other firefighter. 

J. A firefighter shall not be loaned or temporarily reassigned to a location or

duty assignment if a firefighter in his or her department would not normally

be sent to that location or would not normally be given that duty

assignment under similar circumstances. 

38.4 Punitive Action — Procedures. 

A. A firefighter shall not be subjected to punitive action, or denied promotion, 

or be threatened with that treatment, because of the lawful exercise of the

rights granted under this Article, FPBORA, or the exercise of any rights

under any existing administrative grievance procedure. 

B, Punitive action or denial of promotion on grounds other than merit shall

not be undertaken by the City against any firefighter who has successfully

completed the probationary period without providing the firefighter with an

opportunity for administrative appeal. 

C. Punitive action or denial of promotion on grounds other than merit shall

not be undertaken for any act, omission, or other allegation of misconduct

if the investigation of the allegation is not completed within one year of

discovery by the City. This one-year limitation period shall apply only if the

discovery of the act, omission, or other misconduct occurred on or after

January 1, 2008. If the employing department or licensing or certifying

agency determines that discipline may be taken, it shall complete its

investigation and notify the firefighter of its proposed disciplinary action

within that year, except in any of the following circumstances: 

31



1. If the firefighter voluntarily waives the one- year time period in

writing, the time period shall be tolled for the period of time

specified in the written waiver. 

2. If the act, omission, or other allegation of misconduct is also the

subject of a criminal investigation or criminal prosecution, the time

during which the criminal investigation or criminal prosecution is

pending shall toll the one- year time period. 

3. If the investigation is a multijurisdictional investigation that requires

a reasonable extension for coordination of the involved agencies. 

4. f the investigation involves an employee who is incapacitated or

otherwise unavailable. 

5. If the investigation involves a matter in civil litigation where the

firefighter is named as a party defendant, the one- year time period

shall be tolled while that civil action is pending. 

6. If the investigation involves a matter in criminal litigation in which

the complainant is a criminal defendant, the one-year time period

shall be tolled during the period of that defendant's criminal

investigation and prosecution. 

7. If the investigation involves an allegation of workers' compensation

fraud on the part of the firefighter. 

E, If a predisciplinary response or grievance procedure is required or utilized, 

the time for that response or procedure shall not be governed or limited by
this provision. 

F. If, after investigation and any predisciplinary response or procedure, the

City decides to impose discipline, that agency shall notify the firefighter in

writing of its decision to impose discipline within 30 days of its decision, 

but not less than 48 hours prior to imposing the discipline. 

32



G. Notwithstanding the one- year time period specified in subdivision ( d), an

investigation may be reopened against a firefighter if both of the following

circumstances exist: 

1. Significant new evidence has been discovered that is likely to affect

the outcome of the investigation. 

2. One of the following conditions exists: 

a) The evidence could not reasonably have been discovered in the

normal course of investigation without resorting to extraordinary

measures by the agency. 

b) The evidence resulted from the firefighter' s predisciplinary

response or procedure. 

38. 5 Administrative Appeal Rights. An administrative appeal instituted by a firefighter

under this Article or the FPBORA shall be conducted in conformance with rules

and procedures adopted by the employing department or licensing or certifying

agency that are in accordance with California Government Code Section 11500

et. seq. ( Chapter 5 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2). 

38. 6 Performance of Official Duties. The rights and protections described in this

chapter shall only apply to a firefighter during events and circumstances involving
the performance of his or her official duties. 

38. 7 Except as set forth above, Resolution 1723 shall set forth the Grievance

Procedure. This, or subsequent revisions, shall be applicable to all covered

employees subject to this Memorandum of Understanding. 

ARTICLE 39 — UNION BUSINESS

39. 1 Employees, on a voluntary basis, may donate hours of annual leave, to provide

time for their officers to conduct Local 2728 business. 

39. 2 Employees shall notify the Finance Department in writing of the amount of hours

to be donated to the Local 2728 time bank. Once donated, all time remains in

the bank. The City shall convert all hours donated into a monetary amount equal

W



to the donating employee' s hourly rate times the hours donated. The monetary

amount necessary to cover the absence of a Local 2728 officer using the Local

2728 time bank would then be subtracted from the time bank as the time is

approved and used. Only officers of the Local 2728, upon written request

approved by the Local 2728 president and one other Local 2728 officer could

draw time from this bank. 

39. 3 The Finance Director shall be responsible to maintain the Local 2728 time bank. 

The Local 2728 president shall notify the Finance Director regarding use of the

Local 2728 time bank by any Local 2728 officer. 

ARTICLE 40 - DISCRIMINATION

40. 1 The City of Lemon Grove and the Lemon Grove Firefighters' Local 2728 shall not

discriminate against any employee per Lemon Grove Personnel Policies Manual. 

40. 2 The City and Local 2728 shall reopen any provision of this Agreement for

complying with any final order of a federal or state agency or court of competent

jurisdiction requiring a modification or change in any provision or provisions of

this Agreement in compliance with state or federal anti -discrimination laws. 

ARTICLE 41 — PROVISIONS OF LAW

41. 1 This Agreement is subject to all current and future applicable federal, state, and

local laws and regulations of the City. If any part or provision of this Agreement

is in conflict or inconsistent with such applicable federal, state, or local laws and

regulations, or is otherwise held to be invalid or unenforceable by any tribunal of
competent jurisdiction such a part or provision shall be suspended and

superseded by such applicable law or regulation, and the remainder of the

Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

41. 2 If any Article, part or provision of this Agreement will operate to withhold or

prohibit the receipt of any state or federal funds, such Article, part or provision

shall be suspended to the extent that the Article, part or provision operates to

withhold or prohibit the receipt of such funds. In such instance, the City and

34



Local 2728 will immediately meet and confer to discuss alternative proposals

submitted by either party. 

41. 3 Should either the federal or state government or both, enact any mandatory

wage and/ or benefit freeze which would void, suspend or alter any part or

provision of this Agreement, the City and Local 2728 agree that at such time as

the provision of the wage and/ or benefit freeze is lifted, the affected provision of

this Agreement shall be restored as originally agreed upon, retroactively to the

date of suspension or alteration insofar as allowable by law. Alternatively, should

the parties mutually agree, they may jointly elect to renegotiate any provision

voided, suspended or altered by such wage and/ or benefit freeze. 

ARTICLE 42 — RENEGOTIATION

42. 1 In the event Local 2728 desires to meet and confer in good faith on the

provisions of a successor Agreement, it shall serve upon the City its written

request to commence meeting and conferring in good faith for such successor

Agreement. Negotiations shall begin at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. 

42.2 The City and Local 2728 agree to open negotiations for the next contract on or

about March 1, 2018. 

ARTICLE 43 — IMPASSE PROCEDURES

43. 1 Either party may initiate impasse procedures pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal
Code section 2. 32. 130. 

43.2 Nothing in this Article shall prohibit a more expeditious resolution of the impasse

if such resolution is mutually agreed by both of the parties. 

ARTICLE 44 — LODGING DURING EMERGENCY INCIDENTS

44. 1 Whenever an employee is assigned to an out -of -the -City emergency incident for

more than 24 hours and remains assigned to the incident, a motel room shall be

provided for rest periods by the responsible agency whenever logistically feasible

and provided for others assigned to that incident. 

35



ARTICLE 45 – EMERGENCY INCIDENT COMPENSATION

45. 1 Suppression staff covered under this MOU shall be compensated at 1. 5 times at

the regular rate of hours in excess of the normal work schedule when assigned

to support emergency incidents. Compensatory time shall include the entire time

of commitment, beginning at the time of initial dispatch from home base to the

time of return to home base upon completion of assignment. 

45. 2 Battalion Chiefs and/ or other staff on a scheduled 40' -hour work week shall be

compensated at 1. 5 times at the regular rate of hours in excess of the normal

work schedule when assigned to support emergency incidents. Compensatory

time shall include the entire time of commitment, beginning at the time of initial

dispatch from home base to the time of return to home base upon completion of

assignment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed by their authorized officers thereof on this — day of June, 2015. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Graham Mitchell, City Manager

36

LEMON GROVE FIREFIGHTERS
ASSOCIATION

Chris Wilson, President



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. F

Mtg. Date June 2, 2015

Dept. Citv Manaqer' s Office

Item Title: Job Descriptions Related to the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget

Staff Contact: Corinne Russell, Human Resources Analyst

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving two new job descriptions and a job description
update that were presented as part of the budget on May 19, 2015. 

Item Summary: 

On May 19, 2015, staff presented the draft FY 2015- 16 budget, which included two new job
descriptions ( Assistant Planner and Human Resources Manager) and a job description update

Administrative/ Accounting Assistant). Staff has prepared a resolution ( Attachment A) approving
these two new job descriptions and the job description update. Attached to the resolution are the

job description details. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

B. Assistant Planner Job Description

C. Human Resources Manager Job Description

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

D. Administrative/ Accounting Assistant Job Description

1- 



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING ASSISTANT PLANNER, HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER, AND

ADMINISTRATIVE/ ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT JOB DESCRIPTIONS

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2015, the City Council was presented with the draft FY 2015- 
2016 Budget; and

WHEREAS, said Budget included the addition of two new position titles: Assistant

Planner and Human Resources Manager; and

WHEREAS, said Budget included the update of one job description: 

Administrative/ Accounting Assistant; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest to approve the two new job
descriptions for Assistant Planner and Human Resources Manager and the update for

Administrative/ Accounting Assistant position. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves the attached Assistant Planner job description ( Attachment B); and

2. Approves the attached Human Resources Manager job description ( Attachment C); 
and

3. Approves the attached update for Administrative/ Accounting Assistant job description
Attachment D). 

3_ 



Attachment B

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Class Title: Assistant Planner

Department: Development Services

GENERAL PURPOSE

Perform a variety of administrative, technical and professional work in any and all planning
programs of the city related to development of land and implementation of city land use policies
and procedures. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND RESPONSIBILITIES

This position works under the general supervision of the Development Services Director and
under immediate direct supervision of the Senior or Principal Planner. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Develops and assists with the development of planning studies and reports in support of
new and updated plans, programs and regulations

Conducts environmental analysis pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA) and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 

Reviews or assists in the review of simple to moderately difficult development proposals and
site plans for conformance with codes, plans, and regulations

Prepares and presents or aids in the preparation or presentation of detailed reports on
development proposals to government bodies

Collects a variety of statistical data and prepare reports and maps on topics such as census
information, land use, tax base data, business history and occupancy rates

Evaluates or assists in the evaluation of rezoning projects or zone amendments, ordinance
amendments, site plans, use permits, variances and other proposals

Acts as liaison between community groups, government agencies, developers and elected
officials in developing neighborhood plans

Coordinates community review of public and private development projects

Provides information to the public regarding development regulations

Assists in resolving citizen and customer issues

Oversees the work of consultants and interns

Conducts field evaluations and assessments

Organizes records and files for existing and new projects and programs

Attends substantial number of evening and weekend meetings

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE

Any combination of education, training and experience that clearly demonstrates possession of
the knowledge and abilities needed to perform the typical duties listed above. A typical way to
obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 



Attachment B

Equivalent to a Bachelors degree from an accredited college or university with a major

course work in land -use planning, urban planning, landscape architecture or a related field; 
and

One year of planning experience, preferably within a local government environment. 

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATION

Possession of a valid Class C California driver' s license, or ability to obtain one. 

AICP Certification or progress toward AICP Certification is desirable

NECESSARY KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES

Knowledge of: 

Principles and practices of planning

Land development processes and techniques

Principles and practices of research and data collection

Effective writing and presentation techniques

Statistical, algebraic, or geometric knowledge and ability to apply such knowledge in
practical situations

Willingness to learn computer hardware and software programs, which include Microsoft
Programs ( Word, Outlook, Excel, PowerPoint), permitting software, Internet applications, 
graphic programs and GIS. 

Ability to: 

Communicate rules and procedures clearly to the public

Problem -solve to gather relevant information to solve vaguely defined practical problems

Review plans and apply provisions of the ordinances and codes to determine compliance
with such regulations and to apply regulations to field conditions

Create graphic illustrations or designs, development strategies, and render site plans via

sketches and/ or computer graphics

Prepare memorandums, correspondence, reports, notices and presentation materials. 

Work on several projects or issues simultaneously

Work independently or in a team environment as needed

Attend to details while keeping big -picture goals in mind

Learn new computer systems

Research and interpret Federal, State and local laws, programs, and policies

Collaborate effectively and courteously with the public and colleagues on a variety of tasks

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Personal computer, including word processing, spreadsheet and database software including
Office 2000, office telephone, digital camera, microfiche, television, video cassette recorder, 10 - 

key calculator, facsimile, copier, and postage machine. 



Attachment B

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT

The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 

Physical Demands

Requires frequent lifting, pulling, and/ or pushing objects that are 20 pounds. Required to
work at a computer for prolonged periods while generating reports and documents. 
Frequently required to sit, stand, reach, lean, twist, turn, bend and kneel, use hands to
finger, handle, grasp, feel or operate objects, sit for prolonged periods of time. Hear and
speak to contractors, the general public and City staff on the telephone and in person. 
Read documents, plans, specifications, reports, contracts, correspondence, memoranda, 

and other records. Requires vision ( which may be corrected) to read small print often
found on construction blueprints and other documents. Operate a multitude of office
equipment. Some outdoor work is required in the inspection of various land use
developments and constructions sites. 

Work Environment

Office environment that can be fast paced; and

Travel from site to site; use of personal vehicle may be required. 

Some outside exposure which can be wet, hot and/ humid conditions or airborne
particles. 

GUIDELINES

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may
be performed. The list may not include all required duties. The omission of specific duties does
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the
position. 

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change. 

Approved by Lemon Grove City Council

0



Attachment C

City of Lemon Grove

Class Title: Human Resources Manager

Department: City Manager/ Finance

Under general supervision, perform responsible personnel and financial work, including
recruitment, examining, selection, labor negotiations, classification, wage and salary

administration, employee inductions, administration of employee benefits, training and

employer-employee relations, payroll and related functions. To provide information and

assistance to City Employees and the general public regarding human resources activities, 
processes, policies and procedures. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

This position receives direction from the City Manager and Finance Director. 

May exercise direct supervision over clerical staff in Finance or City Manager' s Department. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Plan recruitments with direction from Department Directors

Administers Affordable Care Act requirements

Maintains Workers Compensation files and acts as City's liaison between TPA

Composes, reviews and determines distribution of examination announcements and related

recruiting strategies; 

Constructs and revises written tests, performance tests, patterned orals, assessment centers; 

and other selection instruments; 

Analyzes test results to determine item validity and reliability, difficulty level and pass points; 

Prepares written reports and correspondence, job announcements and recruiting publicity; 
prepares new hire offer letters and pre- employment materials; 

Plans, coordinates, and conducts employee orientation and exit interviews. 

Receive, verify and process employee payroll transactions; coordinate the City' s leave
administration program; coordinate the annual sick leave conversions and vacation

conversion programs; 

Coordinate and administer the day-to-day activity of the City' s group benefits and retirement
programs; conduct annual open enrollment; may conduct presentations regarding benefits
and retirement programs; 

Ensure compliance with COBRA and HIPAA regulations, and State and Federal laws; 

Coordinate and monitor City- wide performance evaluation notification

Maintain employee information and records requiring confidentiality; 

Conduct and respond to salary, benefit and classification surveys and keep IEDA

Maintain database with all Fire and Public Works credentials, certificates and training

Schedule and track mandatory ICS course for key staff

Assists administrators of operating departments in the solution of personnel problems; 



Attachment C

Coordinate and serve as primary point of contact for City- wide medical examinations, including
new employee medical examinations, DMV and DOT examinations, and physicals. 

Maintains liaison with departments and other agencies; 

Conducts special projects, investigations not limited to but including disciplinary cases; 

Assist in employee -employer labor negotiations with various bargaining units, conduct a variety
of surveys to gather and compile information for negotiation purposes

Determines needs and coordinates general employee training; 

Responsible for the salaries and benefits portion of the budget

Consult with and advise City staff on policies, procedures and employee relations; provide
guidance and assistant on personnel issues; 

Conduct research, analyze data, and prepare written and statistical reports and

recommendations for a variety of human resource issues and topics; make oral presentations
as required; update and revise written directive, rules, and regulations and various handbooks
as appropriate. 

Respond to public inquiries in a courteous manner; provide information with the area of
assignment, resolve complaints in an efficient and timely manner. 

Perform general clerical duties including typing, mailing, filing, copying, and maintaining
personnel records; and

Perform related work as required. 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE

Any combination equivalent to the education and experience that would likely provide the
required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and
abilities would be: 

Human Resource Management Certificate or degree in related field; and

Five years of increasingly responsible human resource experience, preferably in a
governmental or municipal setting. 

LICENSES OR CERTIFICATION

Possession of a valid Class C California driver's license

KNOWLEDGE OF: 

Public sector human resources policies, practices, and wage and salary administration

Basic understanding of employee classification, compensation and benefits, recruitment, 
selection, training, and labor relations; 

Principles and procedures of personnel record keeping and reporting; 

Principles and practices of computer- based automated payroll systems; 

Principles and practices of human resource administration; 

Federal, State and local legislation and regulations related to human resource operations

Modern office procedures, methods and equipment, including computer equipment; and

Microsoft Office programs, including Word, Excel, and Outlook. 

IE



Attachment C

ABILITY TO: 

Perform detailed and accurate work; 

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; 

Produce professional presentations, research/ analytic studies, correspondence and other

forms of communication; 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with staff and the public; 

Utilize personal computer, 10 -key calculator, and other miscellaneous office machines; 

Exercise good judgment and prioritize daily functions; and

Maintain confidentiality regarding personnel issues. 

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Basic office equipment, including office telephone, personal computer, printer, 10 -key calculator, 
facsimile, copier, and postage machine. 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 

Requires frequent lifting, pulling, and/ or pushing objects that are 20 pounds. Required to work at
a computer for prolonged periods of time generating reports and documents. Frequently
required to sit, stand, reach, lean, twist, turn, bend and kneel, use hands to finger, handle, 

grasp, feel or operate objects, sit for prolonged periods of time. Hear and speak to vendors, the
general public and City staff on the telephone and in person. Read documents, specifications, 
reports, contracts, correspondence, memoranda, and other records. Requires vision (which may
be corrected) to read small print often found on documents. Operate a multitude of office
equipment. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT

Generally quiet office environment that can be fast paced; and

May require minor travel with use of personal vehicle. 

GUIDELINES

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may
be performed. The list may not include all required duties. The omission of specific duties does
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the

position. 

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and

employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change. 

Approved by Lemon Grove City Council: 



Attachment D

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Class Title: Administrative/ Accounting Assistant
Department:: Finance

GENERAL PURPOSE

Under general supervision, perform a variety of routine and complex administrative work in
keeping official records, providing administrative support to the Finance Director and perform
responsible financial clerical work in the keeping and/ or processing of financial records, 
maintain the City's website and providing IT assistance as support for the Finance Department. 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

This position receives direction from the Finance Director and the Accounting Analyst. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Respond professionally and efficiently to public inquiries by phone and in person; 

Perform responsible activities of the Finance Department including general accounting, 
purchasing, fixed asset management, budget analysis, and grant accounting; 

Respond to inquiries regarding Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable and citations; 

Provide responsible staff assistance to the Finance Director and Accounting Analyst; 

Prepare a variety of financial reports; 

Maintain fixed asset records; 

Process departmental requisitions; 

Perform general clerical duties including typing, mailing, filing, copying, and maintaining
records; 

Maintain the City' s website

Provide basic IT support

Act as City' s liaison between software vendors; and

Perform related work as required. 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE

Any combination equivalent to the education and experience that would likely provide the
required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and
abilities would be: 

College course work, an associate' s degree or a bachelor' s degree from an accredited

college with emphasis in accounting or related field; and

Two years of increasingly responsible clerical accounting experience, preferably in a
governmental or municipal setting. 

LICENSES OR CERTIFICATION

Possession of a valid Class C California driver' s license



Attachment D

KNOWLEDGE OF: 

General and fund accounting procedures and terminology; 

Principles and procedures of financial record keeping and reporting; 

Principles and practices of computer-based automated accounting systems; 

Modern office procedures, methods and equipment, including computer equipment; and

Microsoft Office programs, including Word, Excel, and Outlook. 

Website design and maintain

Basic IT functions

ABILITY TO: 

Perform detailed and accurate work; 

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with staff and the public; 

Utilize personal computer, 10 -key calculator, and other miscellaneous office machines; 

Exercise good judgment and prioritize daily functions; and

Maintain confidentiality regarding personnel issues. 

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Basic office equipment, including office telephone, personal computer, printer, 10 -key calculator, 
facsimile, copier, and postage machine. 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions. 

Requires frequent lifting, pulling, and/ or pushing objects that are 20 pounds. Required to work at
a computer for prolonged periods of time generating reports and documents. Frequently
required to sit, stand, reach, lean, twist, turn, bend and kneel, use hands to finger, handle, 

grasp, feel or operate objects, sit for prolonged periods of time. Hear and speak to vendors, the
general public and City staff on the telephone and in person. Read documents, specifications, 
reports, contracts, correspondence, memoranda, and other records. Requires vision ( which may
be corrected) to read small print often found on documents. Operate office equipment. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT, 

Generally quiet office environment that can be fast paced; and

May require minor travel with use of personal vehicle. 

GUIDELINES

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may
be performed. The list may not include all required duties. The omission of specific duties does
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the
position. 

12- 



Attachment D

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and

employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change. 

Approved by Lemon Grove City Council; 

13- 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL, ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD, 

SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY; 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 2

Mtg. Date dune 2,_201
Dept. titv Mana er' s GfFi _.._ 

Item Title: Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager and Cathy Till, Finance Director

Recommendation: 

1) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment C) approving the Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and Fiscal Year
2015- 16 City of Lemon Grove Budget; 

2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment D) approving the Salary Plan & Classification Summary; 

3) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment E) approving the FY 2015- 16 Appropriations Limit; 

4) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment F) approving the Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and Fiscal Year
2015- 16 Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Budget; 

5) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment G) approving the Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and Fiscal Year
2015- 16 Lemon Grove Sanitation District Budget. 

6) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment H) approving the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Master Fee
Schedule

Item Summary: 

Staff presents the final Fiscal Year 2014- 15 ( FY 2014- 15) and the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 ( FY 2015- 

16) Consolidated Budget ( Attachment B) for the City of Lemon Grove, the Lemon Grove Roadway
Lighting District, and the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The staff report addresses six

resolutions related to the adoption of the FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16 consolidated budget. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The consolidated budget reflects an expenditure plan of $28. 5 million in Fiscal Year 2015- 16. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None ® Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments:: 

A. Staff Report

Ell Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

E. Resolution — Appropriations Limit

B. Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and Fiscal Year 2015- F. Resolution — Roadway Lighting District

16 Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget

Budget G. Resolution — Sanitation District Budget

C. Resolution — City Budget H. Resolution — Master Fee Schedule

D. Resolution — Salary Plan & Classification

Summary
1- 



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL, ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD, 

SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD, & THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 2

Mtg. Date ( June 2, 2015

Item Title: Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager and Cathy Till, Finance Director

Discussion: 

On May 5 and May 19, 2015, staff presented the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 ( FY 2015- 16) budgets for
all City funds as well as the Sanitation District and the Roadway Lighting District for feedback. 
Based on feedback received, staff presents the anticipated FY 2014- 15 consolidated budget as

well as the FY 2015- 16 consolidated budget for approval by the City Council, the Roadway
Lighting District Board, the Sanitation District Board, and the Successor Agency. This staff

report provides a summary of each of the six resolutions presented for consideration. 

During the May 5th and May 19th discussions, the City Council provided feedback regarding
paying down the PERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability ( UAL), adding an Assistant Planner
position, implementing a 2 percent cost of living adjustment for miscellaneous employees, 
reclassifying two positions, and adding a Streets Tech I position. The consolidated budget

reflects all of these changes. 

Budget Resolutions

Staff presents a resolution ( Attachment C) approving the budget for 25 funds operated by the
City, as well as resolutions ( Attachments F and G) approving the budgets of the Roadway
Lighting Districts and the Sanitation District. The FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16 consolidated

budget ( Attachment B) includes anticipated revenues and projected expenditures for all of

these funds. The budget document follows a pattern similar to previous budget documents. 

The budget overview, which begins on page 3 of the consolidated budget, provides a

description of the revenue and expenditures for each fund. 

Salary Plan & Classification Summary

Staff presents a resolution ( Attachment D) approving a Salary Plan & Classification Summary
for FY 2015- 16. The Salary Plan & Classification Summary reflects the proposed positions and
pay schedules for FY 2015- 16, including a cost of living adjustment of 2 percent for both fire
personnel and miscellaneous employees, as well as adding and reclassifying several positions. 

Appropriations Limit

As part of considering the budget, State Constitution Article XII I - B ( Propositions 4 and 111) 
requires the City Council to establish an Appropriations Limit. The limit is adjusted each year by
multiplying the previous year' s limit by a factor based on either the change in the California Per
Capita Personal Income ( CPCPI) or the Non -Residential Construction Valuation by the
population change of the City. Staff presents a resolution ( Attachment E) for City Council
approval that establishes the FY 2015- 16 Appropriations Limit at $ 43, 261, 317. The proposed

FY 2015- 16 budget is within that limit. 

Roadway Lighting District Budget

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds for two separate activities. 
Fund 11, the General Benefit Fund, provides funding for street light benefits throughout the



Attachment A

community. Fund 12, the Local Benefit Assessment Fund, provides for enhanced lighting
benefits at the mid -block. Staff recommends that the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District
Board adopt the resolution ( Attachment F), approving the District' s budget for FY 2015- 16. 

Sanitation District Budget

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages two funds— an Operations Fund ( 15) and a

Reserve Fund ( 16). As stated in the May 19, 2015 staff report, in FY 2015- 16, the District
anticipates generating $ 5. 7 million in total revenue, and $ 5. 2 million in operating costs. In

addition, the District anticipates spending $ 1. 5 million on capital improvement projects and on

20,000 equipment replacement purchases. This revenue and expenditure plan will leave a

combined balance of $ 12. 7 million in the Sanitation District ( Funds 15 and 16) at the end of the

fiscal year. Staff recommends that the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board adopt the

resolution ( Attachment G), approving the District' s budget for FY 2015- 16. 

Successor Agency Budget

The Successor Agency budget reflects the following expenditures related to the Lemon Grove
Successor Agency: 

Bond Debt Service – the budget reflects bond debt service payments for the 2007, 2010, 

and 2014 bonds, totaling $ 1, 752, 100. 

Administrative Fee – the budget reflects $ 250, 000 in fees paid to the City of Lemon
Grove for staff, overhead costs, and administrative reimbursement. 

PERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability – the budget reflects a payment of $ 694, 400 for the

unfunded liability. This represents the Successor Agency' s share of the City' s obligation. 

Capital Projects from Bonds – the budget reflects an expenditure of $ 500, 000 for the

Lemon Grove Realignment Project. 

The Successor Agency' s budget approval is part of the resolution approving the City' s Budget
Attachment C). 

Master Fee Schedule

Each year, the City Council updates the City's Master Fee Schedule as part of the budget
process. The purpose of the Master Fee Schedule is to recover direct costs for the services

provided by the City. There were no changes to the schedule this year. The full proposed

Master Fee Schedule is found as an exhibit in Attachment H. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt four resolutions: 
1) resolution ( Attachment C) approving the Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and Fiscal Year 2015- 16

City of Lemon Grove Budget, 
2) resolution ( Attachment D) approving the Salary Plan & Classification Summary, 
3) resolution (Attachment E) approving the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Appropriations Limit, and
4) resolution ( Attachment H) approving the Master Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2015- 16. 
5) resolution ( Attachment 1) approving the Job Descriptions for the

Administrative/ Accounting Assistant, the Human Resources Manager, and the Fire

Inspector. 

Staff also recommends that the Roadway Lighting District Board adopt a ` resolution

Attachment F) approving its Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16 budget. Finally, staff

4- 



Attachment A

recommends that the Sanitation District Board adopt a resolution ( Attachment G) approving its
Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and Fiscal Year 2015- 16 budgets. 



Attachment B

EXHIBIT 1

FISCAL YEAR 2015- 16 CONSOLIDATED OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET

INCLUDING THE SALARY PLAN & CLASSIFICATION SUMMARY) 

7- 





rty

CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA

Fiscal Year 2015-2016

Consolidated Operating
Capital Budget

City of Lemon Grove
Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District

Lemon Grove Sanitation District

Lemon Grove Successor Agency

RacquelVasquez

George Gastil

Mary Teresa Sessom

Jerry Jones

Jennifer Mendoza



Letter from the City Manager 1

Budget Overview & Analysis 3

Description of Funds 9

Salary Plan, Classification Summary & Organizational Chart 13

Revenue Summary 21

Expenditure Summary 22

City Council 26

City Manager' s Office 27

City Attorney' s Office 28

Finance Department 29

Law Enforcement 30

Fire Department 31

Development Services Department 33

Public Works Department 35

Gas Tax Fund 41

Street Construction Reserve Fund 41

Pension Liability Fund 42

Park Land Dedication Ordinance Fund 42

General Reserve Fund 43

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund 43

Grants Fund 44

Community Development Block Grant Fund 44

Transportation Development Act ( TDA) Fund 45

TRANSNET Fund 46

Sidewalk Reserve Fund 47

Integrated Waste Reduction ( AB939) Fund 47

Wildflower Assessment District Fund 48

Serious Traffic Offender Program ( STOP) Fund 48



r r J r/ r r  
it

Self -Insured Workers Compensation Reserve Fund 49

Storm Water Program Fund 49

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program Fund 50

Self -Insured Liability Reserve Fund 50

Public Education and Governmental Access ( PEG) Fund 51

Housing Fund 51

Capital Reserve Fund 52

Main Street Promenade Community Facilities District Fund 52

Successor Agency Funds 53

l r

General Benefit Fund

Local Benefit Assessment Fund

54

55
r

r / I1 / 

Operations Fund 56

Reserve Fund 58



June 2, 2015

Dear Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

I am pleased to present the City of Lemon Grove Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget

for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 ( FY 2015- 16). The consolidated budget includes budgets for the

City' s General Fund and the other 23 funds managed by the City. It also includes budgets for
the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, and the
Lemon Grove Successor Agency. The purpose of this letter is to introduce the FY 2015- 16
consolidated budget and present themes for this year' s budget. 

FY 2015- 16 Consolidated Budget Document

The FY 2015- 16 budget document follows a pattern similar to budgets from previous fiscal

years. Following this transmittal letter, the budget includes a budget overview and analysis, a
description of the funds within the budget, the salary plan and classification summary, a City
organizational chart, and budget details for each fund managed by the City or related boards. 
It is City staff' s aim to present a budget document that is accessible to Lemon Grove
stakeholders. 

FY 2015- 16 Budget Themes

The City' s General Fund, the primary budget for the general municipal services provided by
the City, continues to experience a growth in revenues in FY 2015- 16. Its significant revenue
sources ( sales tax, property tax, and vehicle license fees) all show positive gains over the
previous fiscal year - 6. 4 percent, 4. 2 percent and 2. 5 percent, respectively. Overall

revenue— derived from taxes, fees for services, franchise fees, fines and forfeitures, and

miscellaneous sources— are anticipated to decrease by a total of 6. 1 percent over last fiscal
year, primarily due to an anticipated drop in development fees. 

Projected anticipated revenues in FY 2015- 16 surpass the revenues received at the height of

the housing bubble before the commencement of the Great Recession. Other non -General
Fund revenue sources are mostly constant with declines in some revenue sources, such as
Gas Tax proceeds. 

With the growth in revenue, the FY 2015- 16 budget enables the City to meet some of the
demands of the community that were not possible during the Great Recession. Also, the FY

2015- 16 budget ensures that several critical deferred maintenance projects are completed

and that the City' s CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability is proactively addressed. The FY

2015- 16 budget reflects a 4. 1 percent increase in General Fund expenditures. 

1



Conclusion

In conclusion, the FY 2015- 16 budget continues to reflect fiscal constraint, similar to budgets

during and since the Great Recession. The budget provides the City the resources needed to
maintain and expand basic services and programs. City staff looks forward to serving the
residents, business owners and visitors of Lemon Grove in the upcoming year. 

Sincerely, 

Graham Mitchell

City Manager

2



In Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( FY 2015- 16), the total expenditure plan for the City and its related
districts is approximately $ 28. 5 million. Of that, $ 19. 5 million will be spent on operational

expenditures, $ 4.7 million on capital purchases or improvements, $ 2. 7 million on paying down
the PERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability, and $ 1. 8 million on debt service. The operating budget
covers the day- to- day costs of providing services, such as law enforcement, fire and

emergency services, park maintenance, recreation services, sewer services, planning and

code enforcement services, and stormwater programming. 

The City uses a fund accounting system, which segregates revenues and expenditures by
specific activities. Under this standard government accounting system, the funding source
determines how the money can be spent. The General Fund is the City' s primary funding
source for fire protection, law enforcement, park maintenance, recreation programming, 

planning and engineering services, and general administration. Enterprise Funds are used to

separate and account for operations that are self-supporting, such as the Lemon Grove

Sanitation District. For these funds, costs are fully recovered from user charges which may
only be used to support that particular service. Special Revenue Funds are used to account

for activities paid from dedicated revenue sources with specific limitations, such as grants. 

In addition to the different funds, the City operates as an independent entity, as do the Lemon
Grove Roadway Lighting District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, and the Successor
Agency to the former Lemon Grove Community Development Agency. However, the

Sanitation District and Roadway Lighting District rely on the City for support services, such as
operations, finance, IT, human resources, and general administration. 

The City' s General Fund represents $ 12. 2 million ( 42. 7 percent) of total FY 2015- 16

expenditures, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District represents $ 6. 8 million ( 23. 7 percent), the

Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District represents $ 328, 300 ( 1. 2 percent), and the other

funds managed by the City represent $ 9. 2 million ( 32. 4 percent) of the total FY 2015- 16

budget. 

The City groups expenditures into six categories: Salary & Benefits, Services & Supplies, 

Contracted Services, Capital Projects/ Purchases, Unfunded Pension Liability Payoff, and Debt
Service. The table below compares FY 2015- 16 and FY 2014- 15 expenditures by these
expenditure categories. 

3

Percent of FY

Expenditure Category FY 2014- 15 FY 2015- 16 2015- 16 Budget

Salary & Benefits 6, 844,300 7, 151, 000 25. 1% 

Services & Supplies 4,366, 700 4, 564, 700 16. 0% 

Contracted Services 7, 554,400 7, 640, 000 26. 8% 

Capital Projects/ Purchases 3, 242, 400 4, 708, 100 16. 5% 

Unfunded Pension Liability Payoff 0 2, 694, 400 9. 5% 

Debt Service 1, 748, 500 1, 752, 100 6. 1% 

TOTAL 23, 756, 300 28, 510, 300 100% 

3



General Fund (Fund 1) 

The General Fund budgets for FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16 shows surpluses in revenue over
expenditures. This is attributed to the ongoing recovery of the economy at the national, state
and local levels. This portion of the Budget Overview & Analysis includes the following sub- 
sections: 

General Fund Summary, 

Anticipated Revenues, 

Expenditure Plan, and

General Reserve Analysis. 

General Fund Summary

In FY 2014- 15, the General Fund is anticipated to generate a total of $ 12. 1 in revenue and

transfers from other funds. During this same period, it anticipates expending $ 11. 5 million for

general municipal services— creating a $ 600, 100 surplus. The FY 2015- 16 budget experiences

growth in the primary revenue sources— sales tax, property tax and vehicle license fees. The

upcoming combined revenue and transfers from other funds is expected to reach $ 12. 2 million; 

11. 9 million is budgeted for expenditures. The FY 2014- 15 budget shows a surplus of
290, 000. 

It is important to note that beginning with the FY 2014- 15 budget, the City began allocating
personnel costs directly to the various funds operated by the City— prior to FY 2014- 15, 

personnel costs were paid out of the General Fund and later reimbursed by the various funds. 
Hence, this shift in budgeting procedure reduces the amount of transfers from other funds to
the General Fund and reduces the total personnel allocation and costs to the General Fund. 

Anticipated Revenues

The FY 2015- 16 General Fund budget shows increases in the City' s three most significant
revenue sources— sales tax, property tax, and vehicle license fees ( VLF). In addition to these

revenue sources, the General Fund relies on fees for services ( recreation fees and permits), 

fines and forfeitures, licenses, franchise fees, and miscellaneous income. The following table
identifies revenue categories as a percentage of total General Fund revenue. 

Sales Tax 45. 7% 

Property Tax 18. 8% 

Vehicle License Fees 17. 6% 

Franchise Fees 7. 9% 

Recreation & Rental Fees 0. 8% 

Fire Department Fees 2. 3% 

Development Fees 2. 3% 

Fines 1. 2% 

Business Licenses 0. 9% 

Other/ Miscellaneous 2. 5% 

4



Of the major revenue sources, sales tax revenue has experienced the most fluctuation over the

past ten years. In FY 2006- 07, the City collected $ 4. 7 million in sales tax. That dropped to a

low of $ 3. 2 million in FY 2009- 10. The FY 2015- 16 budget reflects $ 5.4 million in sales tax— 

this is an increase of approximately $ 324,000 over FY 2014- 15, or a 6. 4 percent increase. 

Property tax reached a high of $ 2. 2 million in FY 2008- 09; the FY 2015- 16 budget reflects a

figure of $ 2. 2 million. This projection in property tax revenue is nearly $ 90, 000 over FY 2014- 
15, a 4. 2 percent increase. Vehicle license fee revenue is budgeted to be $ 2. 1 million, 

mirroring the previous high in FY 2008- 09. In FY 2015- 16, overall General Fund revenues

continue to climb. This increase reflects a modest increase of 2. 8 percent over FY 2014- 15. 

The table below shows how the City' s major revenue sources have fluctuated over the past ten
years. 

12, 000, 000

10, 000, 000

8, 000, 000

6, 000, 000

4, 000, 000

2, 000, 000

Significant General Fund Revenue Sources

00

0'
E

O©

O 

OOIV 0000
O

O 
0

r1• 

0^, 

N

O
rY

OPV
ON

ro

M Sales Tax E Property Tax s VLF E Franchise Fees

Transfers from other funds to the General Fund are projected to be almost $ 394, 000 in FY

2015- 16. This includes a transfer out of $ 200, 000 to the Pension Liability Fund. The transfers

reflected in the budget consist only of overhead costs ( services, supplies and contracted

services), as well as a $ 100, 000 transfer from the " COPS" Fund, which subsidizes law

enforcement costs. It should be noted that the transfer to the Storm Water Fund decreases

from the FY 2014- 15 budget. 

Overall, the City' s General Fund revenue is estimated to be $ 12, 207, 500 in FY 2015- 16. This

estimated revenue is approximately $ 160, 200 more than in FY 2014- 15. 

1



Expenditure Plan

The FY 2015- 16 budget shows approximately $ 11. 92 million in expenditures. This is an

increase of $ 469, 900 or 4. 1 percent over the previous fiscal year. The FY 2015- 16 General

Fund budget allocates resources by City department. The following graph illustrates how the
City allocates General Fund resources to each City department ( General Administration

includes the City Council, the City Manager' s office, the City Attorney' s Office, and the
Finance Department). 

Law Enforcement

44%, $ 5. 15 million

Public Works Development Services

9%, $ 1. 06 million 6%, $ 0. 65 million

Fire/ Paramedic General Administra- 
tion

35%, $ 4. 17 million
6%, $ 0. 74 million

The FY 2015- 16 budget reflects increases in the Law Enforcement budget by approximately
1. 8 percent, the Fire Department budget by approximately 4. 0 percent, and other departments
by 9. 5 percent. The FY 2015- 16 budget includes 2 new positions— Human Resources

Manager and Administrative/ Accounting Assistant. The budget also reflects a cost of living
adjustment to wages - 2 percent for miscellaneous employees and 2 percent for fire
personnel. 

General Reserves Analysis

During the Great Recession, the City' s General Reserves—a combination of General Fund

surplus and the balance in the General Reserve Fund ( Fund 6)— was relied on to maintain

basic municipal operations. Since FY 2010- 11, the City has been replenishing its General
Reserves and has been building its self-insurance funds for general liability and workers' 
compensation. 

The FY 2015- 16 budget shows the City' s combined general reserves to be $ 3, 530, 600, not

including self-insurance funds. If self- insurance funds were added to the total reserve, the

City has $ 4. 5 million, representing 38 percent of the General Fund' s annual operating budget. 
The graph on page 13 illustrates the combined General Reserves for the past ten years. 

9



Other City Funds

In addition to the General Fund, the City operates 23 other funds. This section provides a

summary of the significant non -General Fund expenditures identified in the FY 2015- 16 budget
and the role of the other funds. 

Street Maintenance and Repairs — four funds allocate funding for street maintenance
operations and repairs, including sidewalk and drainage improvements within the public right -of
way: Gas Tax ( 2) budgets $ 844, 300 for street maintenance operations, Grants ( 8) budgets

225, 000 in Safe Routes to School funds, CDBG ( 9) allocates $ 169, 000 for street and sidewalk

improvements, and TRANSNET Fund ( 14) budgets $ 1, 310, 500 for traffic, drainage, and

pavement improvements. 

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project — in addition to former redevelopment bond

proceeds, the FY 2015- 16 budget allocates $ 100, 000 from the Street Construction Reserve

Fund ( 3), $ 34, 000 from the Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program Fund

27), $ 900, 000 from the TRANSNET Fund ( 14), and $ 500, 000 in California Infill Infrastructure

Grant monies through the Housing Fund ( 31). 

Pension Liability Fund ( Fund 4) — the FY 2015- 16 budget includes this new fund. The purpose

of this fund is to receive funds and distribute payment to CalPERS to pay down the City' s
Unfunded Actuarial Liability. 

Park Land Dedication Ordinance ( Fund 5) - the FY 2015- 16 budget reflects an investment of

over $ 60, 000 in park related infrastructure improvements from the Park Land Dedication

Ordinance fund. This fund is financed through developer impact fees. 

7



Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds used for repair, 
maintenance, and energy costs of street lights. Fund 11, the General Benefit Fund, provides

funding for street light benefits throughout the community. Fund 12, the Local Benefit

Assessment Fund, provides for enhanced lighting benefits at the mid -block. Revenues in

the two funds are expected to reach $ 251, 900 in FY 2015- 16. Total expenditures are

anticipated to be $ 328,400 in FY 2015- 16. Energy costs have temporarily increased due to
a reconciliation of the City's street light inventory. The combined fund balance in these two

funds will be $ 361, 400, leaving adequate funding for general operations and unforeseen
repairs. 

Lemon Grove Sanitation District Budget

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages two funds— an Operations Fund ( 15) and a

Reserve Fund ( 16). In FY 2015- 16, the District anticipates generating $ 6. 0 million in total

revenue. In FY 2015- 16, the District anticipates expending $ 5. 2 million in operating costs
and $ 1. 5 million in capital improvement projects. The revenue and expenditure plan will

leave a balance of nearly $ 11. 54 million in the District' s reserves at the end of the fiscal year. 

1.1



As stated in the Budget Overview & Analysis section, the City manages its revenue and
expenditures through various funds. Between the City, Roadway Lighting District, and
Sanitation District, the FY 2015- 16 consolidated budget is comprised of 28 funds. Each fund

identified in this budget is described in the sections below. 

CITY FUNDS

General Fund ( 01) 

The General Fund is a governmental fund used to account for day- to- day operations of the

City. All financial activity that is not required to be accounted for in another fund is included in
the General Fund. Public safety, government administration, community services, street

maintenance, environmental programs, and park maintenance are funded from the General

Fund. 

Gas Tax Fund ( 02) 

This fund is supported by revenue from the State gas tax fund. Fund proceeds may be used
to research, plan, construct, improve, maintain, and operate local streets. 

Street Construction Reserve Fund ( 03) 

This fund was initially established to combine funds for larger street projects. With the use of
the City' s accounting program, it is possible to designate various funding sources over
several years to accomplish this same purpose. However, the fund is used to clearly

demonstrate " Maintenance of Effort" by the City in contributing funds for street projects in
order to receive State transportation funding. 

Pension Liability Fund ( 04) 

This fund was established to track and make payments on the City' s PERS Unfunded

Actuarial Liability ( UAL). When the City Council approves a payment to pay down the UAL, 
the payment will be transferred from the affected fund to this Fund, and the payment will be

recorded from this fund. That allows the City to track the payments. 

Parkland Dedication Ordinance Fund ( 05) 

The City Municipal Code requires that subdivision development set-aside park land that will
eventually be developed as part of the municipal park system. The Code also allows the
payment of a fee in -lieu of dedicating actual land. Proceeds in the fund may be used by the
City for the purchase of park land, the development of new parks or the major rehabilitation of
existing parks. 

General Reserve Fund ( 06) 

The General Reserve Fund serves as the City's " savings account." This fund was created for
several purposes: for use in times of emergency, one- time capital/ equipment purchases, 

setting aside funds for replacing equipment, required grant matches, and to ensure funds are
available for financial obligations ( such as liability coverage and accumulated leave time). 

V



Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund ( 07) 

This fund, also known as the COPS fund, is supported by State grant proceeds. This fund is
used to augment the staffing level of Sheriff deputies. At one time, the grant amount paid for

one deputy; today it pays for approximately half of one deputy position. 

Grant Fund ( 08) 

This fund provides for management of grants currently being administered by the City. It
functions as an " in -and -out" fund to ensure grant proceeds and expenditures are not mingled
with the General Fund or other fund proceeds. 

Community Development Block Grant Fund ( 09) 

This fund manages grant proceeds from the Community Development Block Grant program. 
Funds are expended and then reimbursed by the County of San Diego. 

Transit Development Act Fund — Transit ( 10) 

Transit proceeds are allocated from MTS for maintenance of landscaping along the trolley
corridor and maintenance of trolley stations and bus shelters throughout the City. 

TransNet Fund ( 14) 

This fund manages proceeds from the TransNet allocation and street related projects eligible
for TransNet funding. This fund is specifically used to finance significant right- of-way
improvements ( streets and sidewalks), storm drain, and traffic related projects. 

Sidewalk Reserve Fund ( 18) 

This fund was initially established to pool funds for larger sidewalk projects. 

Integrated Waste Reduction Fund ( 21) 

The City relies on this fund to manage its household hazardous waste disposal program. This

program is supported by AB 939 funds which are collected for this and recycling related
programs. The City relies on this fund for contractual services to provide household hazardous

waste events and to promote a higher level of recycling within the City. 

Wildflower Assessment District Fund ( 22) 

This fund manages the Wildflower Landscaping Maintenance Assessment District. This fund
tracks assessment revenue and expenditures related to landscape upkeep of common areas
within the Wildflower Assessment District. 

Serious Traffic Offender Program Fund ( 23) 

This fund receives a portion of impound fees collected within the City. The City uses this fund
to pay for Sheriff traffic division overtime and other traffic related expenses. 

Workers Compensation Reserve Fund ( 25) 

In FY 2003-04, the City began to fund its own workers' compensation program. This was done
to have better control over the drastic increases in workers' compensation insurance

premiums. This fund covers catastrophic workers compensation claims. 

10



Storm Water Program Fund (26) 

The Storm Water Program Fund was established in FY 2005- 06. The fund' s purpose is to

collect designated storm water program fees and support the City' s storm water program— a

State and Federal mandated program. The fund has not fully paid for the program since its
inception. Increased mandates have increased fund expenditures over the past few years. 

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( Fund 27) 

This fund was created in FY 2008- 09 to manage fees related to the passage of the TransNet

extension. These fees represent per housing unit fees for new residential development. 
Expenditures from this fund are to be used to initiate street improvement projects on a major

arterial within the City. 

Self -Insured Liability Reserve Fund (29) 

In FY 2011- 12, the City established the Self -Insured Liability Reserve Fund to fund liability
claims. 

Public Education and Government Fund ( 30) 

This fund collects designated monies from cable franchisees that operate within the City. The

use of these monies is restricted to capital items that enhance or facilitate public access to

government information. 

Housing Fund ( 31) 

An outcome of the dissolution of the Lemon Grove Community Development Agency was the
creation of the Lemon Grove Housing Authority. The Housing Fund operates funds that were
remaining in the former redevelopment agency' s housing fund and is used to operate and fund
affordable housing program and projects. The Housing Fund also manages the Infill

Infrastructure Grant ( IIG) between the State of California and the former Lemon Grove

Community Development Agency. 

Capital Reserve ( 32) 

Initially this fund was established to track the purchase of a fire engine. In FY 2012- 13, the City
received one- time " SAFE" program monies. These funds were accounted for in a separate

fund— the Safety Capital Reserve Fund, which helped offset the cost of purchasing a new fire
apparatus. The City Council has now approved this fund to be used to set aside funds for
future capital improvement projects throughout the City. 

Main Street Promenade Community Facilities District ( 33) 

During FY 2013- 14, the voters within the Main Street Promenade Community Facilities District
voted to create an assessment to fund ongoing maintenance and capital improvements to the
Main Street Promenade. 

Successor Agency Fund ( 60 and 64 combined) 

This fund receives reimbursements for enforceable obligations approved by the California
Department of Finance and makes payments for said obligations. Obligations include debt

service payments and outstanding projects such as the Main Street Promenade and Lemon
Grove Avenue Realignment projects. 

11



ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT FUNDS

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds for two separate activities. 
Fund 11, the General Benefit Fund, provides funding for street light benefits throughout the
community. Fund 12, the Local Benefit Assessment Fund, provides for enhanced lighting
benefits at the mid -block. 

SANITATION DISTRICT FUNDS

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages two funds— an Operations Fund ( 15) and a
Reserve Fund ( 16). The District relies on Fund 15 to collect revenue generated by Sanitation
District rate payers and to pay the operational costs to operate the system. Fund 16 is used to

set aside funds for equipment replacement, sewer rehabilitation projects, and rate stabilization. 

12



13

PlanpSaLary

w' a

FY zo15- zoi6
Effective Dam June 24, 15) 

ACCOUNT CLEFtI( 

18. 8 A B O D E

ANNUAL 28,880.26 10„ 312. 36 31, 843. 89 33, 435. 09 35, 105.85

MONTHLY 2,406.69 2«526. 03 2, 653. 66 2, 786. 26 2, 925. 49

1- WEEKLY 1, 110.78 1, 18 5. 86 1, 224, 77 1, 285. 97 1, 350. 23

HOURLY 14. 52 15. 24 16. 01 16. 81 17. 65

ACCOUNTING ANALYST

32. 3 A B O D IIE

ANNUAL 61, 519. 77 64„602.72 67, 824. 90 71, 226. 09 74,780„40

MONTHLY 5, 1" 2,6.65 5, 383. 56 5, 652. 08 5,935.51 6, 23 , 20

BI-WEEKLY 2, . 15 2, 484, 72 2,608. 65 2, 739. 47 2, 078. 411

HOURLY 30. 93 32. 48 34. 10 35. 81 37. 60

ADMIN/ ACCOUNTING ASSITA T

8 A B C D E

ANNUAL 40,635, 27 42, 614. 05 44, 792. 26 47, 039. 85 49,,3W,87

MONTHLY 3, . 27 3, 555. 34 3, 732. 69 3, 919. 99 4, 115.57

BI- WEEKLY 1, 562, qo 1, 640. 93 1, 722.78 1, 809. 23 1, 899..50

HOURLY 20. 43 21. 45 22. 52 23. 65 24, 83

ADMINISTRATIVEANALYST

29. 3 A, B O D E

ANNUAL 53„ 148. 08, 55,791. 45 58, 595. 94 61, 519. 77 64, 602. 72

MONTHLY 4,428-84 4, 649. 29 4,883.00 5, 126. 65 5„ 383. 56

BI- WEEKLY 2, 044. 08 2, 145. 83 2, 253. 69 2, 366. 15 2, 48472

HOURLY 26, 72 2& 05 29.46 30. 93 32. 48

ASSISTANT PLANNER

3203 A C D E

ANNUAL 61, 519. 77 64, 602. 72 67,824.90 71, 226. 09 74, 78660

MONTHLY 5„ 126. 65 5, 383. 56 5, 652. 08 5, 935. 51 6, 232, 20

Bl- WEEKLY 2, 3W, 15 2, 484. 72 2, 608. 65 2, 739. 47 2, 876, 40

HOURLY 30.93 3248 34. 10 35. 81 37. 60

ASSOCIATE CIVIL_ENGINEER
36. 1 A B c D E

ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85, 706. 01 90, 002. 25

MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479. 17 6, 802. 38 7, 142. 17 7, 500. 19

BI- WEEKLY 2.,847. 33 2,990.39 3, 139. 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63

HOURLY 37. 22 39. 09 41. 04 43. 09 45. 25

A ALIO C I F 76. 50 shift

38, 7 A B C D Y

ANNUAL 84, 6. 15 89, 698. 58 95, 708. 39 102, 216. 56 122, 425. 44

MONTHLY 7, 005. 51 7,474. 88 7, 975. 70 8, 518. 05 10, 202. 12

BI- WEEKLY ( 106 hrs) 3, 233. 31 3, 449. 95 3, 681. 09 3, 931. 41 4, 708. 58

HOURLY ( 2, 756 hrs/ yr) 30. 50 32, 55 34. 73 37. 09 61. 55

MONTHLY ( 56 Hrs/ wk, RATE) 7,600.32 8, 109. 54 8, 652. 88 9, 241. 28

53 regular + 3 sch' d OT) 

CITY CER

34A A B C D E

ANNUAL 69, 495, 66 72, 976, 41 76, 616. 28 80, 455. 05 84, 472. 83

MONTHLY 5, 791. 31 6, 081. 37 6, 364. 69 6, 704. 59 7, 039. 40

BI- WEEKLY 2, 672. 91 2, 806. 79 2, 946, 78 3, 094. 43 3, 248. 96

HOURLY 34, 94 36. 69 38. 52 40. 45 42. 47

13



CITY ENGINEER

40, 6 A B c D

ANNUAL 93, 124, 90 97, 77914 102, 672. 18 107,803,80 113" 193. 99
MONTHLY 70760A2 8, 148. 2-7 8, 556, 02 6,98165 9432A3

BI- WEEKLY 3,581, 73 3, 760, 74 3, 948. 93 4, 14630 4,353, 62
HOURLY 46,82 49. 16 51. 62 5420 56. 91

26A A B c D E

HOURLY 72, 52 2166 24. 83 26, 07 2738

CODE ENFORCEMENT OEPICE ATEIR UJTY INSPECTOR

29.3 A B c D E

ANNUAL 53J46k8 55, 791. 45 58,595-94 61, 519J7 64, 602, 72. 

MONTHLY 4,428.84 4, 649, 29 4, 883,00 5, 126. 85 6,383, 56

BI- WEEKLY 2,044,08 2, 145. 83 2, 253A9 2, 366, 15 2, 484, 72

HOURLY 26, 72 28,05 29AG 30, 93 32,.48

I& T A B c 0 r, 

ANNUAL 31, 6N.77 33,275,97 34, 926, 84 36,,677, 16 38, 50T04

MONTHLY 2, 640040 2, 77100 2, 910, 67 3,056,43 3,206, 92

BI-WEEKLY 1, 216. 65 1, 27915 1, 343,34 1, 410, 66 1, 481. 04

HOURLY 15. 93 16,73 17. 56 18, 44 19x36

35, 7 A 13 c 0 E

ANNUM 72, 618, 39 76, 25826 80,05725 84, 075, 03 88,271, 82
MONTHLY 6, 051. 53 6,354.86 6, 671. 44 7, 00625 7, 355, 99

51- WEEKLY 2, 79102 2, 93101 3, 07913 3,233. 66 3, 395. 07

HOURLY 3651 38, 34 40. 25 4227 44. 38

P9E2DLF- lRECHIEF` 

43.3 A B c D E

ANNUAL 105, 218. 10 110,488.95 116, 018. 3-7 121, 806. 36 127,912.59

MONTHLY 0'.768, 18 9, 207. 41 9,66820 10, 150. 53 10,65938
BI-WEEKLY 4, 04685 4, 24958 4, 462, 25 4, 684. 86 4,919. 72
HOURLY 52. 90 55. 55 5633 61, 24 64Z1

29yFLOP MAKIMICEAD099mg
41. 8 A B C D E

ANNUAL 97, 858.80 102, 751. 74 107, 883. 36 113,273.55 118, 94Z20

MONTHLY 8, 154. 90 6, 662. 65 8, 990. 28 9, 439. 46 9, 91185

BI- WEEKLY 3, 76180 3, 951. 99 4, 149. 36 4, 356. 68 4, 574, 70

HOURLY 4920 51. 66 54. 24 56. 95 59, 80

DEVELOP JESVICE S TEQHN ILIA N 11
29. 3 A B c D E

ANNUAL 53, 146. 08 55,791. 45 58, 596, 94 61, 519. 77 64, 602. 72

MONTHLY 4, 42844 4, 649.29 4, 883. 00 5, 126. 65 5, 38156
BI- WEEKLY 2, 044, 08 2, 145. 83 2, 253. 69 2, 366. 15 2, 48412

HOURLY 26. 72 28. 05 29. 46 30.93 32. 48

ENGINE ERING jN§ EECTOR
29. 3 A B c D E

ANNUAL 53, 146. 08 55, 791. 45 68, 595. 94 61, 519. 77 64, 602. 72

MONTHLY 4.428,84 4, 649.29 4,883. 00 5, 126. 65 5, 383. 56
BI- WEEKLY 2, 044.08 2, 145. 83 2, 253. 69 2, 366. 15 2, 484. 72

HOURLY 2672 28. 05 29. 46 30. 93 32. 48

9NQLN- TIFF 1, 
29. 3 A B c D E

ANNUAL 53, 146. 08 55, 791, 45 58, 595. 94 61, 519. 77 64, 602. 72

MONTHLY 4,428.84 4, 649. 29 4, 883. 00 5, 126. 65 6, 383. 56
BI- WEEKLY 2, 044.08 2, 145. 83 2, 253, 69 2, 366. 15 2, 484. 72

HOURLY 26. 72 28. 06 29. 46 30. 93 32. 48

iv, 



EXEC mTIDE igga9mm
218 A B C D IE

ANNUAL 40, 635, 27 42, 664, 05 44, 792. 28 47, 039, 85 49, 386, 87

MONTHLY 3, 38627 3, 55534 3, 732. 69 31, 919, 99 4, 115, 57

BI- WEEKLY 1, 562. 90 1, 640. 93 1, 722, 78 1, 809. 23 1 " 89950

HOURLY 20.43 21. 45 22. 52 23. 65 28

FAg& ML19M
17. 6 A B c D E

ANNUAL 30, 033. 90 31, 525. 65 33, 116. 85 34, 767. 72 30, 498. 15

MONTHLY 2,502, 83 2,627. 14 2, 75934 2,89731 3,041, 51

BI- WEEKLY 1, 155. 15 1, 212. 53 1273. 73 1, 337,22 1, 4(.YJ, 78

HOURLY 15. 10 15. 85 16. 65 17.48 18,35

EA91MLMM
21 A A B c E

ANNUAL WA6A5, 38,328. 03 40,237.47 421, 246, 36 44, 374, 59

MONTHLY 31, 041, 51 3, 194. 00 3, 353, 12 3,520.53 3,697, 88

BI- WEEKLY 1, 403, 78 1, 474, 16 1, 547, 60 1, 624«86 1, 706J2

HOURLY 18, 35 1927 2013 21, 24, 22, 31

ENAK29- QE99j2R
41. 8 A B c D E

ANNUAL 97,858A0 102,751, 74 10-7, 88136 113, 273, 55 118, 942, 20

MONTHLY 6, 154, 90 8, 562. 65 8,990, 28 9,439, 46 9,911,,85

81- WEEKLY 3, 763, 80 3, 951. 99 4, 149. 36 4, 356,68 4, 574 70

HOURLY 4920 51, 66 5414 56, 95 59,80

EsEgAM& 
37.6 A B c D

ANNUAL 79,676. 22 85,014. 53 90,710, 51 96,878. 82

MONTHLY 6,63939 7,084. 54 7, 55921 8,07123

BI- WEEKLY ( 106 hrs) 3, 064. 47 3,269J9 3,488. 87 3, 726. 11

HOURLY ( 2, 756 hrs/ yr) 28,91 3035 32. 91 35, 15

MONTHLY ( 56 FIrs/ wk. RATE) 7, 20143 7, 686, 06 B, 201 .03 8,758. 70

53 regular .+ 3 sch'd OT) 

FIRE CHIEF

441 A IS c ID IE

ANNUAL 109, 395. 00 114, 864, 75 120, 612. 96 126, 639063 132, 9K65

MONTHLY 9, 116. 25 9,572. 06 10, 051. 08 10, 55330 11, 06039

BI- WEEKLY 4, 207. 50 4, 417. 88 4, 638. 96 4, 870,76 5, 114,03

HOURLY 55, 00 57. 75 60. 64 6167 66485

EEEMMQN-OM
41A A B c D E

ANNUAL 97, 858. 80 102, 751. 74 107, 883. 36 113, 273. 55 118, 942, 20

MONTHLY 8, 154. 90 8, 562. 65 8, 990. 28 9, 439. 46 9, 911. 85

BI- WEEKLY 3, 763. 80 3, 951. 99 4, 149. 36 4, 356. 68 4,574.70

HOURLY 49.20 51. 66 64. 24 56. 95 59..80

E199 EDAM
33.4 A B D

ANNUAL 64, 913. 40 69, 262. 56 73, 903, 20 78, 928. 63

MONTHLY 5, 409. 45 5, 771. 88 6, 158. 60 6, 577. 39

BI- WEEKLY ( 106 hrs) 2, 496. 67 2, 663. 94 2, 842. 43 3, 035. 72

HOURLY ( 2. 756 hrs/ yr) 23. 55 25. 13 26. 82 28. 64

MONTHLY ( 56 Hrs/ wk. RATE) 5, 868. 74 6, 261. 95 6, 681. 50 7, 135. 84

53 regular+ 3 sch' d OT) 

w



FIRE 1NAPCT

25. 9 A B c D E

ANNUAL 45, 011. 07 47, 258. 64 49,625. 65 52, 111. 80 54871739

MONTHLY 3, 750. 92 3, 938, 22 4, 135A6 4, 342, 65 4,559, 78

BI- WEEKLY 1, 731. 20 1, 817. 64 1, 908, 68 2, 004. 30 2, 104. 52

HOURLY 22. 63 23, 76 24.95 26. 20 27,51

A B c D E

HOURLY 22. 63 23. 76 24,95 26. 20 27. 51

FIREFIGHTERIPARAMEDIC

32. 6 A A+ 0 c D

ANNUAL 62,428.40 64, 519, 76 86,611. 11 71, 074,05 75, 907, 09

MONTHLY 5, 202, 37 5, 376.65 5, 550, 93 5,922. 94 6, 325. 59

BI- WEEKLY ( 106 hrs) 2, 401. 2, 481 . 53 2, 561, 97 2,733,62 2, 919, 50

HOURLY ( 2, 756 hrstyr) 22. 65 23. 41 24. 17 2519 27. 54

MONTHLY- 56 Hrs/ wk. RATE 5,644. 08 5,833. 15 6, 022,23 6,42,x-.5, 72 6,,862. 67

53 reguWr + 3 sch' d OT) 

hgM&"_BEaQyBCEq_MANAGER
36. 7 A B c D IE

ANNUAL 72, 618,39 76,258. 26 80,057, 25 84,075.03 88, 27142

MONTHLY 6, 051, 53 6,354,86 6, 671.. 44 7,00625 7,355,.99

BI- WEEKLY 2, 793, 02 2, 933. 01 3,079A3 3, 233. 66 3, 395. 07

HOURLY 36. 51 3034 40,25 42, 27 44, 38

UgghagCILERK

20,6 A B c D E

ANNUAL 34, 767. 72 36,498.15 38, 328.03 40, 237. 47 42, 246, 36

MONTHLY 2, 897, 31 3, 041. 51 3, 194.00 3,35112 3, 520, 53

BI- WEEKLY 1, 33722 1, 403, 78 1, 474. 16 1, 547..60 1, 624. 86

HOURLY 17. 48 1835 1927 20. 23 21. 24

MAINTENANCE SEffiqgELA 

12. 0 A B c D E

ANNUAL 22, 833. 72 23, 987. 34 25, 180. 74 26, 453. 70 27, 766. 44

MONTHLY 1, 90Z81 1, 998. 95 2. 098, 40 2, 204A8 2, 313. 87

BI- WEEKLY 878. 22 922.59 968. 49 1, 01 T45 1, 067.94

HOURLY 11. 46 12, 06 12. 66 1330 13. 96

MANAGEMENTANALYS

2® A B c D E

ANNUAL 63,031, 41 66, 19192 69,495,66 72, 976,41 76,616, 26

MONTHLY 5,252, 62 5, 516. 16 5, 791. 31 6, 081, 37 6, 384. 69

BI- WEEKLY 2, 42429 2, 545, 92 2, 672, 91 2, 806. 79 2, 946, 78

HOURLY 31. 69 33. 28 34.94 36, 69 38. 52

0FEjo AI
10. 4 A B c D E

HOURLY 10. 63 11. 16 1171 12. 30 12. 92

PRI NgIPA LIL6MM
35. 7 A B c D E

ANNUAL 72, 618. 39 76,258.26 80, 057. 25 84, 075. 03 88, 271. 82

MONTHLY 6, 051. 53 6, 354. 86 6, 671. 44 7, 006. 25 7, 355. 99

BI- WEEKLY 2, 793. 02 2, 933. 01 3, 079. 13 3, 233. 66 3, 396. 07

HOURLY 36. 51 38. 34 40. 25 42. 27 44. 38

PUBLIC WORKS OIRECTOR

41. 8 A B c D E

ANNUAL 97, 858. 80 102, 751. 74 107, 883. 36 113, 273. 55 118, 942. 20

MONTHLY 8, 154. 90 8, 562. 65 8, 990. 28 9, 439. 46 9,911. 85

BI- WEEKLY 3, 763. 80 3, 961. 99 4, 149. 36 4, 356. 68 4, 574. 70

HOURLY 49. 20 51. 66 54. 24 56. 95 5930

Ml



k_ WQBKaAECRETARY
20. 6 A 6 U 1.3 E

ANNUAL 34, 767.72 36, 498. 15 16, 328. 03 40,237, 47 42, 246. 36

MONTHLY 2, 897. 31 3, 041. 51 3, 194. 01; 3, 353, 12 3, 520. 53

6f -WEEKLY 1, 337.22 1, 403. 78 1, 474.16 1, 547. 60 1, 624. 86

HOURLY 17. 48 18.35 19, 27 20.23 21. 24

Emffuc- EII fi NODE T

35, 7 A 6 c D E

ANNUAL 72, 618. 39 76,258. 26 60, 057. 2.5 84,075.03 88, 271. 82

MONTHLY 6, 051. 53 6, 354. 86 6, 6711. 44 7, 01;0.25 7, 355. 99

61 -WEEKLY 2, 793.02 2,933, 01 3, 079. 13 31, 233. 66 3, 395. 07

HOURLY 36. 51 38. 34 40. 2.5 42, 27 44. 38

REC d

5A A 6 C d,3 E

HOURLY 8. 49 891 9,36 9.83 10. 32

RECR,EAnQN_L IIII

12. 0 A 6 C dO E

ANNUAL 22,833.72 23„987.34 25„180.74 26,453. 70 27, 766. 

MONTHLY 1, 902. 81 1, 998. 95 2, 098. 40 2, 204. 48 2, 313. 87

181 - WEEKLY 878. 22 922. 59 9WAQ 1, 017. 45 1, 067. 94

HOURLY 11. 48 12. 06 12. 66 13:30 13. 96

SAN9A" fa" 6 _ K - 9

27,1 A 13 O O E

ANNUAL 47, 736, 00 50, 122. 80 52, 626.94 55,254.42 58, 019. 13

MONTHLY 3, 978m 4, 176, 90 4, 385.75 4,60454 4, 834. 93

BI. -WEEKLY 1, 836.00 1, 927. 80 2,024,19 2, 125. 17 2, 231. 51

HOURLY 24. 00 25.20 26A6 27. 78 29. 17

STREET U I OI

27. 1 A 6 O ICD

ANNUAL 47, 736. 00 50, 122A0 52,628.94 55, 254, 42 58, 019. 13

MONTHLY 3, 978. 00 4, 176.90 4, 385. 75 4, 604. 54 4, 834. 93

161 - WEEKLY 1, 836. 00 1, 927. 80 2, 024. 19 2, 125. 17 2, 231, 51

HOURLY 24. 00 25. 20 26. 46 27. 78 29. 17

ij I ° 0 TE d1 d

17. 6 A B C ICD E

ANNUAL 30, 033. 90 31, 525.65 33, 116, 85 34, 767. 72 36, 498. 15

MONTHLY 2, 502. 83 2, 627. 14 2„ 759. 74 2, 897. 31 3, 041. 51

BI - WEEKLY 1, 155. 15 1, 212.53 1, 273073 1, 337. 22 1, 403.78

HOURLY 15. 10 15. 85 16. 65 17. 48 18. 35

MEET 715041 Id

21. 6 A 6 C O E

ANNUAL 36, 498. 15 38, 328. 03 40, 237. 47 42, 246. 36 44, 374. 59

MONTHLY 3, 041. 51 3, 194. 00 3, 353. 12 3, 520. 53 3, 697. 88

Bl -WEEKLY 1, 403. 78 1, 474. 16 1, 547, 60 1, 624. 86 1, 706. 72

HOURLY 18. 35 19. 27 20. 23 21. 24 22. 31

IggENICIAN 1

17. 6 A f3 C C3 E

ANNUAL 30,033.90 31, 525. 65 33, 116. 85 34, 767. 72 36, 498. 15

MONTHLY 2, 502. 83 2, 627. 14 2, 759. 74 2, 897. 31 3, 041. 51

61®1nl EKLY 1, 155. 15 1, 212, 53 1, 273. 73 1, 337.22 1, 403, 78

HOURLY 15. 10 15. 85 16. 65 17.48 18. 35

igghmi-clim II
21. 6 A 6 c D E

ANNUAL 36, 498. 15 38, 328. 03 40, 237. 47 42, 246. 36 44, 374. 59

MONTHLY 3, 041. 51 3, 194. 00 3, 353. 12 3, 520. 53 3, 697. 88

Bl -WEEKLY 1, 403.78 1, 474. 16 1, 547. 60 1, 624. 86 1, 706. 72

HOURLY 18. 35 19. 27 20. 23 21. 24 22. 31

17



N

RANGE

CLASS TITLE/ GROUP/ STATUS NO. SALARY RANGE

CLASSIFICATION SUMMARY

Effective Date, June 24> r5) 

91- 15RICALLAll SUPPORL9 OU MONTI & Y

Account Clerk 16. 8 2, 407 2, 926 0

Admin/ Accounting Assistant 23. 8 3, 366 4, 116 1

Community Services Assistant 18, 7 2,640 3,209 1

Executive Secretary ( Confidential) 23, 8 3, 386 4, 116 1

License Clerk 2016 2, 897 3,521 1

Public We" Secretary 20.0 2, 897 3, 521 1

5, 00

Community Services Superintendent 35. 7 6, 052 7, 356 1

Fachilly Todi I I7' 6 2, 503 3, 042 0

Fadifty Tech " 21, 6 3, 042 3,698 2

Public Works Suporirdenderd, 35a7 6,052 7, 356 1

Sanitation Supervivoi 27. 1 3, 978 4,835 1

Street Supervisor 27. 1 3, 078 4,835 1

Street "real 1 17, 6 2, 503 3, G42 2

Street ,reds Ill 21, 6 3, 042 3,693 3

red" dan 1 17. 6 2,503 3, 042 0

TodwMan 11 21, 6 3,042 3,6982

13. 00

PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP
Fire Captain 37. 6 6,640 8,073 6

Fire Engineer 33. 4 5,409 6,577 6

I' llregghter/ Pararnodic 32A 5, 377 6, 326 6

UP

Accounting Analyst 32. 3 5, 127 6,232 J! 

Administrative Analyst 293 4, 429 5, 384

Assistant Planner 32. 3 5, 127 6,232

Associate Civil Engineer 36. 1 6, 169 7,500

City Clerk 34. 8 5, 791 7,039

Code Enforcement OfficerMater Quality Inspector 29.3 4, 429 5,384

Development Services Technician 11 29. 3 4,429 5, 384

Engineering Inspector 29. 3 4,429 5, 384

Engineering Tech Ill 29. 3 4, 429 5, 384

Fire Inspector 25.9 3, 751 4,560 0

Human Resources Manager 35. 7 6, 052 7, 350 1

Management Analyst 32A 5, 253 6, 385

Principal Planner 36, 7 6, 052 7,3561

27W- 

MANAGE% ENTGROUP

Battalion Chief 38, 7 7, 006 10, 202 1

City Manager ( contract) 1

Development Services Director 41. 8 8, 155 9, 912 1

Deputy Fire Chief 43. 3 8, 768 10, 059 0

Finance Director 41. 8 8, 155 9, 912 1

Fire Chief 44. 1 9, 116 11, 080 0

Fire Division Chief 41. 8 8, 165 9, 912 0

City Engineer 40. 8 7, 760 9, 433 1

Public Works Director 41. 8 8, 155 9,912 1

PART-

TI6.
0

MgnXMPQRARY/ SEASONALJOTHER HOURLY

Class Instructor I ( other) 10, 00 - 25.00 0. 5

Code Enforcement Officer 25. 8 21. 45 - 26, 07 0. 50

Engineer * ( other) 30. 30 - 30. 30 0. 5

Fire Prevention/ Public Education Specialist 25, 9 21. 55 - 26, 20 1. 0

Office Aldo * 9, 4 10. 12 12. 30 1
Intern * ( other) 6. 00 - 12,00 0

Maintenance Service Worker` 12. 0 1, 903 - 2, 314 2. 5

Recreation Leader 1 5. 8 8. 08 - 9.83 2. 25

Recreation Leader 11 12. 0 1, 903 - 2, 314 2. 25

Full Time Equivalent ( its) 10. 00"........ 0. 00 ....... ..... 

Y e- 

NE
8! 64. 00

iu. 



m



20



Licenses 110, 20 109, 000 103, 000 104,000 106, 000

Property Tax 2, 035, 700 2, 064, 200 2, 227, 300 2, 135,000 2, 224,900

Development Fees 300, 000 312, 70 260, 000 368, 00 272, 00

Sales Tax mTriple Flip Adjvamem. osm 3. 8e7. 100 294. 800 roo. 000 5, 076, 000 5/ 00, 00

Franchise Fees 889, 300 923. 600 e32. 000 932, 000 932, 000

Transient Occupancy Tax 36, 800 39. 400 35. 800 xo' 000 36, 800

Interest Income 2. 200 2. 500 2, 500 2. 000 2, 000

Miscellaneous Income 10. 400 67, 500 21. 500 o*. 000 23, 500

Vehicle License Fees 13. 400 11. 100 10. 700 10.700 10J00

Vehicle License Fee Adjustment 1. 886. 800 1. 940. 700 2. 024. 500 o. ox*' 000 or*. 000

Parks & Recreation Fees 108. 000 100. 300 os.* no 98, 700 96, 700

Rents mLeases 325, 800 330, 900 238, 000 236, 000 xe*. 000

Traffic Fines -Public Safety 103.* 00 120. 700 125. 500 1* 0' 000 1* 0. 000

Fire Department Fees 271. 000| os*. 000| uso. enn| em.000| 272, 600| 

K

Gas Tax Fund 830, 200 927, 400 64, 900 60, 000 44, 500

Supplemental Law Enf.Service Fund 100, 100 100, 000 100, 000 100,000 100,000

TDA Administration 60, 300 64, 200 3, 600 3, 600 17, 400

Lighting District - General District Administration 48, 300 25, 100 4, 700 4, 700 9,400

Lighting District Loc. Ben. Administration 30, 600 61, 300 2, 600 2, 600 4,900

TransNet Administration 84, 300 81, 700

Integrated Waste (AB939) Administration 26, 500 28, 200 600 600 1, 200

Sanitation District Administration 1, 483, 900 1, 562, 200 548, 500 548, 500 552, 400

Wildflower Dist. Administration 5, 600 5, 300 100 100 100

Serious Traffic Offender Program Fund Admin. 2, 000 2, 000

Storm Water Administration 36, 800 3% 000

Successor Agency - Administration 250, 000 248000 37, 800 2, 100 20, 100

Transfer to Pension Liability Fund 1200, 000) 

Transfer to Storm Water Fund 8 1 100) 1 75500) 157 500) 11622 56 Ok

TOTAL TRANSFERS: 2. 877, 4001

TOTAL RE 12. 967. 500 13. 641. 100 11, 635, 100 12, 047, 30

RESOURCES: 13 4 70" 462 13. 704. 80 1TOTAL

K



EXPENDITURES. , 

City Council 130, 100 130, 200 67, 600 68, 30067, 600

City Manager 473, 000 525, 400 219, 000 217, 900 302, 100

City Attorney 128, 900 112, 600 151, 500 140, 700 141, 500

Finance 361, 100 400, 700 189, 800 191, 800 231, 800

Law Enforcement 4, 567, 600 4, 801, 100 4, 944, 000 4, 944, 000 5, 042, 400

Animal Control 202, 600 202, 100 201, 100 208, 800 203, 800

Fire 3, 505, 600 3, 623, 700 3, 863, 200 4, 005, 800 4, 165, 900

Development Services 1, 207, 800 1, 304, 900 571, 600 653, 400 699, 000

Public Works 1, 780, 100 1, 870, 800 1, 068, 700 1, 017, 200 1, 062, 300

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: _-. ....., A N_ I C ........ t .. m 

012, 356, 800 $ 12 971 500 $ 11. 276, 500 $ 11, 447; 200 $ 11 917 10

GENERAL FUND BALANCE $ 987 900 $ 1 657 500 $ 2 016 100 q $ 2. 7. 600 $ 2. 548. 00

22

F11 pg
ii 0yio oiFYiliir liar

l;tiI''I

i/ 
f

Salaries 4, 125, 200 4, 389, 500 3, 018, 900 3, 158, 900 3, 252, 400

Retirement 816, 200 838, 100 621, 500 625, 300 632, 200

Benefils- Other 974, 500 945, 800 667, 300 666, 500 702, 400

Services & Supplies 1, 600, 500 1, 725, 400 1, 661, 300 1, 693, 100 1, 931, 500

Contracted Services 4, 790, 700 5, 013, 500 5, 246, 900 5, 243, 800 5, 338, 000

Recreation Programs 49, 700 59, 200 60, 600 59, 600 60, 600

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 12 356 800 12 97 1, 500 11, 276, 500, 11 447 200 11 917 100

22



P °" C

ttktives

Retirement

47, 566,.. 
9, 500

340, 700120, 500

67, 400

48, 900

9, 300

17, 006

3, 900

9, 000

0139, 30- 

39, 200

22, 700

17, 000
3, 900

9, 000

17, a'oo ` 
4, 000

9, 000
N3ek' drMa' ttler

23, 500

25, 500 26, 300

Services SuRglies

15, 700

36. 500 57 100 45 900

7 0 000

ak. ralµ: ra & atw ro SII'. 
1111

100. 900.... 

47. 600

473000

45, 700

219, 000

37

700y
37, 700

1111 . 

151, 500

C $ 130. 100
1 111

130, 200 ,. .... 67 800.. 1 , $ ... 57, 600

83. 800

Salaries

Retirement

315, 800

62, 500

340, 700120, 500

67, 400 29, 100

120, 500
29, 100

23, 800

0139, 30- 

39, 200

22, 700
Benefits - Other 58, 200 60, 200 23, 500

36, 600 42, 100

Services SuRglies

15, 700

36. 500 57 100 45 900

7 0 000

44, 500 100. 900.... 

m

TOTAL 473000 525, 400 219, 000 1 C 9tMfM02 100

uuu

Salaries 192 700 226, 700 3 . _ 73, 200 73, 200 97, 000

Retirement 36, 600 42, 100 15, 700

Professional Services ( Co

tAttomev  
128 900  112, 60

7 0 000

Benefits - Other

Litioation Services non

Cite
ttorn - - 

yyy

49, 800

TOTAL
m mm

128 900 ) 112 50 0 151, 500 140,700 141, 500

uuu

Salaries 192 700 226, 700 3 . _ 73, 200 73, 200 97, 000

Retirement 36, 600 42, 100 15, 700 15, 800 26, 900

Benefits - Other 39, 700 49, 800 17, 100 17, 300 18, 800

Services & Supplies 92, 100 82, 100 83. 800 85, 500 89, 100

TOTAL
1111... m,,,, I , 11,1.1-., 

361, 100 .. 400. 700 $ ......... t89v8Q 0 0 ........ ti91 $ 00 d $,,,, 231 800

1- 11- 11 1111 ---------- 

Services & Supplies 108 400 10l 300 49 70

894 300 4, 992, 700
ergli t ooltn' a t 4 4 r9 200 4 G98 800 4 894 300 4

PP   
0  49 700 49, 700

Animal Crtntfol 202, 600 202, 100 201 100 208, 800 203. 800

TOTAL _

1111

4, 7T0, 200... ......... 5„ 003„ 200 5145100 $ ,. 51a2, 8d] $-.,. 5, 246, 200

w



r

Salaries

Retirement

Benefits

2 044, 700 ... 

452, 000

2, 144, 400 _ 

444, 200

2, 292, 300

475, 500

4283002,, 

475, 500

2, 456, 700 ' 

432, 800
Other

m... . 

25, 100

6, 900

514,700 480, 700 499, 600

56, 100

490, 000 532, 900
Services & Supplies

33, 000

494, 200 554. 400 595. 800

51, 300

612, 000 743, 500

TOTAL -----. ...... . 3..505

56, 000

55, 600

28, 100

125. 200

O t

Salaries 312, 300

179, 400

35, 300

335, 000

24, 10
5, 300

149, 900

32, 300

7, 000

149,500201,800

m... . 

25, 100

6, 900

Retirement

26, 900

56, 100 62, 100 33, 000 33, 000

Services& Supplies

51, 300
Benefits -Other

30, 800

49, 000

48, 900

56, 000

55, 600

28, 100

125. 200

33, 500

yy ry
f_ X42 fOG, k.......... 

34,400
Ir [ s & r Ips

F

233, 200 248 800 185, 800 244.900 212. 600

G SUBTOTAI : ..-.. rr-- 
m ..-.-. ,_._._ _ U ___ 650v600 L ------------ 701, 900 G _____ ry396, 8®® 1 460 900 500, 100

L0_W0NR rri ..... _. 

390, 600 87, 800 96, 500 93, 100atl nrtr s

Retirement 58, 600 64, 600 13, 800 15, 600 28, 600

Benefits -Other 71, 500 73, 500 13, 300 15, 400 15,200
rapow,, h ..... .................. ... ............. _. 72. 500 74, 300 59. 900 64. 800 61, 800

G ............. 557, 200 603 5 0
f ........ 

174 800 ,........ 192s500 G 198, 90QD

GTOTAL .•.... .......... - 1, 207: 800 1, 304, 900 571 iAO J L653 µ4O0   699, 000

RI 
M

I rtm

Sale_. ®................ .. ries

Retirement

Benefits -Other

162 300

32 000

179, 400

35, 300

24, 10
5, 300

32, 300

7, 000

m... . 

25, 100

6, 900
26, 900 28, 000 9, 500 10, 400 9, 000

Services& Supplies 21 000 30, 800 48, 900 55, 600 125.200

SUBTOTAL ...... -_.. yy ry
f_ X42 fOG, k.......... 2P C51  87 800r1 G--- __.

w301D_
1 F

SUBTOTALS 570 4810 $ 597, 100 $ 143, 900  _$_ 01444.. 0.1

MI



Salaries 119, 500 113600, 125, 300 ............ 110, 300 so

Retirement 12, 300 12, 600 16, 200 16, 200 17, 300

Benefits - Other 21, 600 26, 700 29, 400 29, 400 28, 300

Services & Supplies 53, 500 48, 100 50, 400 49, 900 50, 500

Prr grams 49, 700 59, 200 60, 600 59, 600 60, 600

256, 600 L$ 260, 200 I,,, - C $....._- 270 30SUBTOTAL ....$ 281 900 $ 265 400 0

ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 987 900 $ 1 657 500 Ir,, AA 2 0 k6 100 12 257 600

Benefits Other

Se vices & Supphes

43, 300

249 100

4 300

231 300

4, 8001 227, 500
I

46

226,

700
00  

4, 600

226, 700

gg
292 400 236, 200

yy
232 300 J 231, 300

Salaries

Retirement

Benefits - Other

Supphes

116, 500

22, 000

30, 200

58, 200

125, 600

24, 300

32, 000

120. 000

28, 600

29, 000

33, 000

132, 000

131, 300

29, 000

33, 100

87. 00.0. 

108, 800

25, 000

27, 500

86. 800

pServices
SUBTOTAL 99 $ 9 22690 yyV 301, 900 322, 800 280, 400 250. 9 00..,pdd

Lal9" es
ment

138, 000

24, 200

29, 300

145, 100

21300ls-Other 35500

es & Sup,plies 100

191160, 201. 90

TOTAL 6. 100 1, 870, 800 1 068 700 1 017, 200 1 $ 1 062 300

GENERAL FUND G RAND Tf)TAL 1356 800 12 971 500„ I 11 276 500 i 111. 447, 390. 11 917 100

C BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 377,,200 987, 90a 
w

1 657 500 1,657, 600.. 2, 257, 600

TOTAL REVENUES, J'. 10 090 100, 10, 572, 2001 11, 02.9, 800 11 481, 300 I $ 11 813, 700.. 1

TOTAL TPIVfE' aF Ck¢ OTAi 2 677 400
99 y

TOTAL REVENUES & TfdAMw05 1 F1 1, 2 91  ! Wq 13, 64i, 100 p I $ 11 635 100. 1? 04J', 300 I $.,.,.,.,.,. 12 207 500

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 1....2.......... 356 800  12 971, 500 ] 11 276 500  11, 447, 400 11 917 100 

ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 987 900 $ 1 657 500 Ir,, AA 2 0 k6 100 12 257 600



Medical Insurance

7, 00

18, 600

2, 500

19, 300

2, 60

6, 500 6, 500 6, 500

Retirees Health Insurance

Copier Service

6, 100

200

6, 20G

200

2, 100

Salq_Ies,- Regular 47, 500 48, 900 17. 000 17a000 17, 000

700

unn

700

000

300

noo

Medical Insurance

7, 00

18, 600

2, 500

19, 300

2, 60

6, 500 6, 500 6, 500

Retirees Health Insurance

Copier Service

6, 100

200

6, 20G

200

2, 100

Insurance Premium: Liability

2, 100

2. 500

2, 100

Medicare

1.* 00

700

unn

700

000

300

noo

300

21. 200

300

Life Insurance

22, 200

100

Mileage

100

9, 300

100

3, 200

100

Office Supplies

100

Retirement

on

9, 500

rou

9, 300

1. 500

3, 900

1. 500

3, 900

1. 500

4, 000

YBTOTAL BENEFITS, [ 411 3.M.001 1_$__ 357600] 1 . 9- 1 L -s__ 12. 00 113po

Community Promotions 7, 00 2, 50 2, 500 2, 50 2, 60

Computer Maintenance eou 3, 900 3, 300 3, 300 o/ mu

Copier Service 400 200 200 uou

Insurance Premium: Liability 2, 300 2. 500 1. 500 1. e00 1.* 00

Insurance Premium: unn onn 000 non noo

Membership uDues 21. 200 22, 200 22, 200 22, 200 22,200

Mileage 6, 900 9, 300 3, 200 3, 200 3, 700

Office Supplies 1. 000 anu on mm rou

Travel uMeetings 1. 500 2, 200 1. 500 1.+ 00 1. 500

Utilities - Gas uElectric 2, 000 2, 200 2, 800 2, 800 2, 800

Utilities -Telephone 500

677600 68. 300

26



Insurance - Medical

i PIN

29, 400 14. 800 14, 800 13, 500

Retirees Medical

1/ 111" I' ll-, 

9, 200 2, 800 2. 800 2. 800

Deferred Compensation 6. 000 6, 000 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

Employee Assistance Program

d"InA

100 100 100 100

Salaries - Regular

6, 100

315, 800 340, 700 120, 500 120, 500 139, 300

S UBTOTAL SALARIES

1, 800

315, 800 340. 700 120. 500500 120, 500 139, 300

Insurance - Medical 28, 200 29, 400 14. 800 14, 800 13, 500

Retirees Medical 9, 200 9, 200 2, 800 2. 800 2. 800

Deferred Compensation 6. 000 6, 000 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

Employee Assistance Program 100 100 100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation 6, 100 7, 100 800 900 900

Medicare 4, 700 5, 000 1, 800 1. 800 2. 100

Life Insurance 300 300 300 100 100

Long Term Disability 3. 600 3, 100 1, 100 11, 500 1, 400

Retirement 62, 500 67, 400 29. 100 29, 100 39, 200

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS __ j 1 112 0, 700 j 1, $ 127600j 52, 600 L$ 52. 900j ............ _ 6I, H_0

Computer Maintenance

1 302. 10019, 000 1_.$ 

11, 300 15, 500 6, 000 8. 000 4. 200

Copier Service 200 500 1, 000 1, 200

Insurance Premium - Liability 8, 400 6, 900 5, 800 5, 800 5, 800

Insurance Premium -Property 500 900 900 1, 000 1. 200

Membership & Dues 800 2, 400 2, 700 3, 700 3, 000

Mileage 6, 100 6, 300 1. 800 1. 800 1, 800

Office Supplies 2, 100 3, 900 2, 300 2, 300 2, 300

Professional Services 12, 500 15, 000 10, 000 70, 000

Publishing 2. 600 1, 600 2, 000 2, 000 2. 000

Subscriptions and Books 300 300 300 300 300

Training 1, 500 1. 600 1. 600 1, 600

Travel & Meetings 300 1, 100 500 500 500

Utilities -Gas & Electric 2, 000 2. 200 4. 000 3, 000 3, 500

Utilities -Telephone 1, 700 1, 700 2, 100 2, 100 2, 100

Utilities - Water 200 300 400 400 400

Wellness Program 1, 000 1, 000

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 36, 500 57, 1100 45. 900 44. 500 100. 900

TOTAL... . I _ ., -" 17."3,...._90,9- 21 [ 1

27



EXPENDITURE DETAIL CITY ATTORNEY

a,,,,,, 

Code Enforcement 3, 500 1,, iCDCU 1, 500 700 N, 500

Investigation -Other Atty - 10, 000

Professional Services ( Non Salary) 125 400....... . . ....... 111. 300 14Q, 000 . ........... 140 000 940 004E

TOTAL — .... .. 
n.. I ......... i0l, 1 _ ..... 112, 600 $ 151, 50.0..,...., .. 16V 00 I 141„ f00 

W** 



Salaries - Regular

Salaries - Overtime

Insurance Medical

Retirees medical

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

nonmmom

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - FINANCE

15, 100 22, 700 10, 600 10, 600 11, 100

15, 400 15, 400 2, 300 2, 300 2, 300

100 100 100

13' 100

100

3, 900 6. 000 2, 400 2, 400 2, 400

2, 900 3, 400 1, 300 1, 300 2, 200

wm mm mm nm um

2, 100 2, 100 400 700 700

36, 600 42. 100] 15, 700 15, 800 26, 900

am mm

Office Supplies u' soo 5. 100

Computer Maintenance 13, 100 22, 100 16, 70 16, 70 18, 80

Copier Service mm mm mm 1, 200

Credit Card and Bank Fees 13' 100 13, 700 14, 000 16, 90 16, 90

Insurance Premium -Liability 6, 40 5, 900 4, 50 50 50

Insurance Premium -Property wm mm mm nm um

Membership xDues tuuo 1. 000 1. 100 11. 100 1. 100

Mileage 3, 200 3, 000 mm am mm

Office Supplies u' soo 5. 100 2. 500 2. 500 2, 500

pononu 100 mu 100 1oo mo

Professionalaen s 47. 500 23, 600 35, 000 s oo s,0oo

Subscriptions and Books xou uoo 200 mo

vom/nu 200 2. 200 1. 500 1. 500 2, 000

Travel « Meetings 100 100 100 mo

Utilities - Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 4. 000 3, 000 3, 500

Utilities - Telephone U 1. 000| o. nooU u. sonU 2, 000U 2, 200| 

Utilities - Water 200 1 1 300 300 300 300

SY,BTO AL SERVICES & SUPPLIES__ J____ a@] 

TOTAL $ 361. 100 $ 189800 231, 80o

9Q* 



EXPENDITURE DETAIL- LAW ENFORCEMENT

tr t i ,%//;; , iiiiir kC d , r  t1 tt4 ' ; iU  , µ a ' i' , 22 '

Aft

a . _ ......... ......... 800 Mhz 78, 900 78, 900 25, 500 25, 500 25,

500 Arjis 16, 000 16, 000 16, 300 16, 300 16,

300 Cal Id 5, 600 5, 500 6, 100 6, 100 6,

100 Contractual Services 4,459, 200 4,698, 800 4,894, 300 4,894, 300 4,992,

700 Insurance Premium - Property 5,

000 Utilities - Water 2. 900 1, 900 1. 800 1. 800 1.

800 Computer Maintenance - Animal Control 2, 400 , 2,

400 Contractual Services 191, 500 193, 500 190, 000 199, 100 192,

700 After Hours Calls 700 3, 600 3, 600 3,

600 Fuel - Animal Control Vehicle 4, 600 2, 800 5, 000 3, 000 5,

000 Office Supplies - Animal Control

800 - Repadrs - Animal Control Vehicle 3, 300 2, 700 2, 500 ' 3, 100 2,

500 TAL$ 4,770, 200 $ 5 003 200 [_$ 5 145„ 100. 1 $ 5 152. 800 $ 5,246.

200



Insurance - Medical

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Uniform Allowance

Holiday Pay

Paramedic Recertification

EMT - DC Incentive

Education Award

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment

SYBT9T L, EENEFITS ................................................................ 

AILS Supplies Pass Thru

City Emergency Preparedness

Community Risk Reduction/ Fire Prevention

Computer Maintenance

Copier Rental

Departmental Expenditures

Dispatch Services

Fire Station Supplies

Fire Truck Purchase

Fuel

Insurance - Liability

Insurance - Property

JAC Reimbursable Expenditures

JPA Reconciliation Expenditures

JPA Reimbursable Expenditures

Loan Payment

Medical Examinations

Medical Services & Supplies

Membership & Dues

Office Supplies

Patient Care Reporting Pass Thru

Personal Exposure Reporting

Personal Protective Clothing

Personnel Recruitment

RCGP Pass Thru fees

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles

Reserve Firefighter Expense

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus ( SOBA} 

Subscriptions and Books

TIP - Trauma Intervention Program

217, 400

67, 900

600

25, 300

45, 000

36, 600

1, 500

7, 300

76, 900

33, 500

600

452, 000

2, 100

966, 700 $ 

16, 700

19, 300

1, 000

17, 800

1, 500

7, 200

158, 500

4, 000

28, 600

65, 300

4, 000

1, 100

22, 600

3, 900

1, 500

3, 000

1, 500

300

15, 100

1, 800

4, 900

44, 200

4, 900

3, 800

RE

210, 000 205, 200 205, 200 205, 200

63, 300 84, 000 84, 000

77777777",",' 77'77 77777777= 7

600

Nji",147]] 7TIPM

600

17, 400 20. 000 20, 000 20, 000

ji

42, 300 39, 200 78, 000

36, 000

Salaries 1, 657, 600 1, 674, 200 1, 618, 700

1, 500

1, 618, 700 1, 751, 700

Constant Staffing - Scheduled 119, 900 118, 500 125, 300

68, 600

121, 300 126, 800

Constant Staffing - Unscheduled 338, 200 346, 600 512, 000

36, 900

512, 000 512, 000

Salaries - Pan Time 49, 900 51, 900 56, 300

476, 500

56, 300 66, 200

Salaries - Credit From JPA 120, 900) 46, 800) 20, 000) 120, 000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES .......... 2. 044. 7l 2. 144, 400 2, 292, 300 2, 428 300, 1 27456j00 1

Insurance - Medical

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Uniform Allowance

Holiday Pay

Paramedic Recertification

EMT - DC Incentive

Education Award

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment

SYBT9T L, EENEFITS ................................................................ 

AILS Supplies Pass Thru

City Emergency Preparedness

Community Risk Reduction/ Fire Prevention

Computer Maintenance

Copier Rental

Departmental Expenditures

Dispatch Services

Fire Station Supplies

Fire Truck Purchase

Fuel

Insurance - Liability

Insurance - Property

JAC Reimbursable Expenditures

JPA Reconciliation Expenditures

JPA Reimbursable Expenditures

Loan Payment

Medical Examinations

Medical Services & Supplies

Membership & Dues

Office Supplies

Patient Care Reporting Pass Thru

Personal Exposure Reporting

Personal Protective Clothing

Personnel Recruitment

RCGP Pass Thru fees

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles

Reserve Firefighter Expense

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus ( SOBA} 

Subscriptions and Books

TIP - Trauma Intervention Program

217, 400

67, 900

600

25, 300

45, 000

36, 600

1, 500

7, 300

76, 900

33, 500

600

452, 000

2, 100

966, 700 $ 

16, 700

19, 300

1, 000

17, 800

1, 500

7, 200

158, 500

4, 000

28, 600

65, 300

4, 000

1, 100

22, 600

3, 900

1, 500

3, 000

1, 500

300

15, 100

1, 800

4, 900

44, 200

4, 900

3, 800

RE

210, 000 205, 200 205, 200 205, 200

63, 300 84, 000 84, 000 84, 000

600 600 600 600

17, 400 20. 000 20, 000 20, 000

39, 900 42, 300 39, 200 78, 000

36, 000 39, 300 38, 300 39, 300

1, 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

8, 000 10, 700 10, 200 10, 700

68, 600 60, 000 56, 000 55, 000

34, 900 34, 300 34, 300 36, 900

500 1, 700 1, 700 1, 700

444, 200 475, 500 476, 500 432, 800

924, 900

Il

0
28, 600

45, 400

6, 100

600) 

4, 100

600

22, 600

2, 200

400

3, 000

5, 400

300

13, 200

100

1, 100) 

2, 600

56, 100

3, 500

5, 600

1, 600

3, 800

100

25, 800

24, 000

1, 000

25, 000

2, 400

8, 000

220, 000

4, 000

26, 000

41, 500

6, 500

1, 500

22, 700

7, 500

600

2, 000

5, 800

300

11, 000

500

4, 000

46, 000

6, 000

4, 000

300

3, 800

25, 800

24, 200

1, 000

25, 000

2, 400

8, 000

220, 000

4, 000

26, 000

41, 500

6, 500

1, 500

22, 700

7, 500

600

2, 000

5, 800

300

11, 000

500

3, 000

65, 000

6, 000

4, 000

300

3, 800

46, 200

24, 500

1, 000

25, 000

2, 400

9, 000

239, 000

5, 000

86, 700

26, 000

41, 500

6, 500

1, 500

22, 700

7, 500

600

2, 300

5, 800

300

13, 500

500

4, 500

54, 000

6, 000

4, 500

300

3, 800



Tools and Supplies

Training

Training -AMR Pass Thru

Uniforms

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities -Telephone

Utilities -Water

Vehicle Supplies

Weed Abatement Expenditures

AL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

3, 700 2, 000 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000

12. 200 18. 200 30, 000 30, 000 39, 000

11, 200 1, 400 19, 100 19, 100 19, 100

2, 900 2, 800 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

14, 600 16, 600 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

4, 200 5. 500 5, 500 5, 500 5, 500

3, 400 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000

2, 100 2, 600 2, 000 2, 000 2, 300

7, 400 3, 400 6, 000 6, 000 6, 000

I " LBOO I [ I 6112, 00! wj L

TOTAL F _ 3. 200 005. 800
I . . ... ................ ..... . . . . . . .  - ------- 7-111-1111,11-1--, . ....... ....... ....... ...................... . ............. 

32



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES ' I

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Development Support

Fuel

Insurance Premium - Liability

Insurance Premium - Property

Membership & Dues

Mileage

Noticing

Office Supplies

Plan Checks/ Consultations

Printing

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles

Subscriptions and Books

Training

Travel & Meetings

Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

29. 900

6, 200

100

4, 200

5, 800

100

2, 700

56, 100

0
1, 100

10, 900

700

1, 700

3, 000

1, 300

3, 000

197, 800

600

100

200

2, 000

1, 500

200

233, 200

32, 200

6, 200

100

8, 200

6, 200

100

3, 000

62, 100

118, 100

ME

2, 200

7, 900

1, 100

2, 000

3, 100

1, 100

5, 100

205, 600

100

100

2, 100

400

go 0

15, 400 20, 800

rx 13

3, 100 3, 100

200 200 200

2, 500

2, 400 4, 800

Salaries - Regular 312, 300 335, 00: 0 149, 900

I I-- 
149, 500 191,

98]
00

Extra Help

33, 000

I' ll" 

646- 1 85" 700.. 

10, 00010 99

3, 000

150, 000 210, 000 163, 500

FS . ...... 149, 500 I MAO 1 

300

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Development Support

Fuel

Insurance Premium - Liability

Insurance Premium - Property

Membership & Dues

Mileage

Noticing

Office Supplies

Plan Checks/ Consultations

Printing

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles

Subscriptions and Books

Training

Travel & Meetings

Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

29. 900

6, 200

100

4, 200

5, 800

100

2, 700

56, 100

0
1, 100

10, 900

700

1, 700

3, 000

1, 300

3, 000

197, 800

600

100

200

2, 000

1, 500

200

233, 200

32, 200

6, 200

100

8, 200

6, 200

100

3, 000

62, 100

118, 100

ME

2, 200

7, 900

1, 100

2, 000

3, 100

1, 100

5, 100

205, 600

100

100

2, 100

400

go 0

15, 400 20, 800 20, 800

3, 100 3, 100 3, 100

200 200 200

4, 600 2,200 2, 500

2, 400 4, 800 4, 800

600

1, 200

0

1, 800 1':

0

00
0 2.:000

33, 000 33, 000 51, 300

61, 100 646- 1 85" 700.. 

8, 600 9, 200 9, 700

500 1, 000 1, 200

400 400

10, 000

2, 100 1, 500 1, 500

7, 600 7, 600 7, 600

1, 200 1, 200 1, 200

2, 500 2, 600 2, 500

1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

4, 000 3, 000 3, 000

150, 000 210, 000 163, 500

300 1 300 300

2011 200 200

200 200 200

400 400 3, 000

100 100 600

4, 000 3, 500 4,000

1. 200 1, 200 1, 200

400 500 Soo

185. 800 1 1 $ 244. 900 [ 11 $ 212. 600

SUBTOTAL..... ........... ....... . $ 650.60701---------- 01 9 - 460 9 500, 100

33

J

33



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Salaries

Extra Help

Insurance - Medical

341.. 300

13300

46,200

77, 300

19. 200

8, 100

11,111,11,11,11,11, ....... 

77,200

15.900

8, 70043,600 6, 900

Insurance - Medical Retirees 9,200 7, 700 900 1, 100 1, 400

Employee Assistance Frog 100 100 200 200 200

Worker' s Compensation 8, 300 10, 200 2. 200 2,400 2, 200

Medicare 6, 200 7. 600 2.700 3, 100 2, 300

Life Insurance 100 100 200 300 200

Long Term Disability 800 900 200 200 200

Retirement 58, 600 64, 600 13. 800 15, 800 28, 800

3, 500 300 600 600

Office Supplies 2, 500 5, 100 2, 000 2, 300 2, 300

Personnel Recruitment 100

Computer Maintenance 11, 700 14, 800 7, 000 10, 000 7, 100

Copier Rental 1, 100 400 1, 000 1, 200

Cost Recovery 4, 200

Development Support 2, 500 2, 900 6, 300 5, 300 6, 300

Fuel 1, 700 1, 500 1, 200 1, 400 1, 400

Insurance - Liability 10, 300 9, 900 6. 900 6, 900 6, 900

Insurance - Property 600 1, 300 1, 100 1, 100 1, 100

Membership & Dues 700 1 300 300 1, 100 300

Mileage 3, 600 3, 500 300 600 600

Office Supplies 2, 500 5, 100 2, 000 2, 300 2, 300

Personnel Recruitment 100 600

Printing 100 900 1, 000 1, 000

Professional Services 1, 200 1, 100 2, 000 1 2, 000 2, 000

Protective Clothing 100 500 Soo 500

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles 1, 100 1, 700 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

Training 800 900 500 Soo Soo

Travel & Meetings 1, 600 300 500 Soo 500

Utilities - Traffic Signals 25, 100 26, 300 26, 000 26, 000 26, 000

Utilities -Telephone 3, 300 3. 200 3, 300 3, 500 3, 500

Utilities -Water 300 600 600 600 600

34



Mail

Wtf ft

Salaries - Regular 162, 100 179' ' 00 23, 800 32, 000 24,800

Salaries - Overtime 300 300 300 300

1 0979. $ SUBTOTAL SALARIES 4 24 1100 32. 300 25. 100

Medical Insurance 18, 200 16, 600 2, 700 3, 700 2,700

Employee Assistance Frog 100 100 100 100 100

Workers Compensation 4, 200 6, 100 5, 500 5,400 5, 500

Medicare 2, 600 2, 100 600 600 400

Life Insurance 100 100 100 100

Long Term Disability 1, 800 2, 200 500 500 200

Retirement 32, 000 35. 300 6, 300 7, 000 6, 900

1".................... . ..... 

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS $ 58, 900 $ 63. 300 $ 14,800 $ 17.400 $ 15.900

Computer Maintenance 3, 800 9, 200 8, 200 8, 200 3,000

Copier Service 400 200 1, 000 1, 200

Insurance Premium -Liability 4, 600 5, 900 3, 100 3, 100 3, 100

Insurance Premium -Property 600 800 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

Marketing Supplies 1, 000 7,000 7: 000

Membership & Dues 600 1, 700 1, 700 1, 700

Mileage 3, 000 2. 800 500 900 500

Office Supplies 1, 600 4, 000 2, 500 2, 000 2, 000

Professional Services 2, 700 1, 600 2, 000 2, 000 77, 000

Protective Clothing 7, 000 7, 000 7, 000

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment 800 900 900 900 900

Training 200 200 13, 000 13, 000 13, 000

Travel & Meetings 200 100 500 500 500

Utilities -Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 4, 000 4, 000 4, 000

Utilities - Telephone 1, 000 2, 200 3, 000 3, 000 3,000

Utilities -Water 200 300 300 300 300

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 21, 000 30; 800 48. 900 55. 600] 125, 200

SUB TOTAL $ 20-0- 242. ' 1 [ 273 0 $ 87 800 $ 105, 300 $........ ....... _ 166, 200

35



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - PUBLIC WORKS

77- 

45, 600

TT

2, 500

1, 500 1, 500

5, 000 5, 000

200 200

400 400

Salaries - Regular

10, 700

302, 100 320, 700

4, 600

Salaries - Overtime

2, 100

8, 400 10, 400

100

9, 000 9, 000 9, 000

2, 800

Extra Help

17, 000

10. 800 8, 400

50, 400 54, 900

1, 800 1, 800

SUBTOTAL SALARIES - ......... .......... . . .......... 321, 300 339, 500

15. 000 ]..$.. 115. 000... 

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Unemployment Insurance

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

Computer Maintenance

Contract Services

Copier Service

Cost Recovery Expenditures

Dead Animal Removal

Equipment Rental - External

Fuel

Graffiti Cleanup

Herbicides/ Pesticides

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium - Property

Medical Exams

Membership & Dues

Office Supplies

Pavement Markings

Permit Expenses

Personnel Recruitment

Protective Clothing

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance - Sidewalk

Repair and Maintenance -Storm Drain

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles

Street Sweeping

Tools and Supplies

Training - Streets

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

44, 600 45, 600

4, 000 2, 500

1, 500 1, 500

5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

200 200

400 400 400

10, 700 12, 200

1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

4, 600 4, 900

2, 100 2, 100 2, 100

1 200 100

9, 000 9, 000 9, 000

2, 800 3, 100

17, 000 15, 000 15, 000

50, 400 54, 900

1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

1, 100

4, 600

1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

15. 000 ]..$.. 115. 000... 127 100
1 $ 

5, 100 7, 600 4, 000 4, 500 2, 500

700 300 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

400 400 400 400

300 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

2, 000 1, 700 2, 100 2, 100 2, 100

8, 500 3, 100 9, 000 9, 000 9, 000

20, 700 13, 600 17, 000 15, 000 15, 000

1, 400 1, 700 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

1, 100 600 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

15, 900 11, 900 6, 600 6, 600 6, 600

700 1, 600 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

BOO 100 100 200 200

600 300 100 500

900 100 200 200 200

500

300 400 400 400

400

3, 900 3, 800

15, 000 17, 800 15, 000 15, 000 15, 000

3, 800 4, 500 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

3, 500 10, 000 5, 000 15, 000

9, 700

1
12, 800 21, 000 21, 000 22, 000

13, 900 13, 900 14, 000 14, 000 14, 000

4, 200 7, 800 7, 000 7, 000 7, 000

6. 900 3, 300

3, 000 600 1, 200

3, 200 2, 700 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000

15, 300 16, 500 15, 500

I

15, 500 15, 500

134. 100 1 1 $ 130?500 1  $ 143, 900 1 1 $ 

143 144, 400] 59 I" i 134M0SUBTOTAL 570 400 3, 90 1 1 ..... . ................................. . . . 

0* 



Ld"Al"" 

Salaries 66, 000 68, 600 70, 300 70, 300 73, 500

Overtime 400

Extra Help 53, 500 44, 600 55, 000 40, 000 40, 100

SUBTOTAL SALARIES ............................................................................... --------------119, 500 $ 113. 600 $ 1 Rq 110. 300 $ 113. 600
1 - 1- 11 . . ........................... . ........  11111 _.. i - - -------- 

Insurance -Medical 8, 500 10, 800 13. 500 13, 500 13, 500

Insurance -Medical Retirees 6, 200 6, 200 6, 100 6, 100 6, 100

Employee Assistance Frog 500 500 500 500 Soo

Worker' s Compensation 2, 500 3, 000 3, 700 3, 700 3, 700

Medicare 3, 100 2, 800 4, 600 4, 600 3, 500

Life Insurance

6, 200 3, 000

100 100 100

Long Term Disability 500 800 800 800 800

Retirement 12, 300 12, 600 16, 200 16, 200 17, 300

Unemployment 300 2, 600 100 100 100

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 33. 900 39. 300 45, 600 45, 600 45 600

Office Supplies

Computer Maintenance 1, 200 5, 800 2, 000 3, 300

Contractual Services 500 1. 100 1, 000 1, 000

Copier Rental 300 400 800

Credit Card Fees 400 2, 000 2, 200 1, 000

Daycamp 18, 300 7, 700 12, 000 12, 000

Fuel 100

Insurance -Liability 6, 200 3, 000 3, 100 3, 100

Insurance -Property 400 400

Maintenance -Supplies 200 200

Medical Exams 100 100 100

Membership & Dues 200 100 100

Mileage 100 100 100

Office Supplies 1, 300 1, 200 500 500

Personnel Recruitment 200 500 200 200

Printing 500 Soo

Recreation Center 300

Rental Expense -Senior Center 4, 500 3, 300 5, 000 3, 000

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment 100 400 500 Soo

Softball 1, 600 1, 400 1, 500 1, 800

Special Events 18, 000 21, 000 21, 000 21, 700

Training 100 100 100

Utilities -Gas & Electric 34, 300 35, 300 40, 000 40, 000

Utilities - Telephone 1, 100 2, 800 4, 500 3, 500

Utilities - Water 14, 300 21, 000 16, 000 16, 000 1

JSUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES ..................... ......... $ ..... .. ......... 103! 200 f $ 107! 300 J $ 111, 000 $ 109, 500

2 6 0j 2000 $ 265 4 0 1- $ 270, 300I'SUBTOTAL ._-------------------- .. ........ 

0



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - PUBLIC WORKS

7 (,
jff -] - 77n- FdTj

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical 4,600 4, 600 4, 600 4,600 4,600

Worker' s Compensation 38, 000 300 200

Medicare

Long Term Disability

Retirement

LU-nwo, wnkrnen!, . . ........................... 700

L BM 43 300 $ 4 p900 $ 4.800 $ 4, 600 $ 4.600SYBTOTA BENEFITS

Contract Services

Insurance Premium - Liability

Maintenance - Lighting

Maintenance - Supplies

Repair and Maintenance

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Tree Trimming

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities -Telephone

Utilities -Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

119, 300 112, 900 115, 000 115, 000 115, 000

400

2, 200 1, 500 2, 200 2, 200

20, 900 19, 300 22, 000 22, 000 22, 000

7, 200 2, 000

300

17, 900 19, 900 19, 000 19, 000 19, 000

4, 000 4, 100 4, 800 4,000 4, 000

1, 300 1, 200 2. 200 1, 500 1, 500

77, 800 69, 700 63. 000 63,000 63, 000

249. 100 3231, 00 227.500 226. 700 226. 700

I . .. .............. 

SUBTOTAL292,400 236. 232 1 L00I I I' ll, ["", , I 1i""' ........... 1. 31

38



EXPENDITURE DETAIL -' PUBLIC WORKS

BIN" 
11 11 11, 111 . . . .............. 

Salaries - Regular 114, 300 123, 400 126. 300 126.300 106, 300

Salaries - Overtime 2, 200 2, 200 2, 600 5,000 2, 500

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 116r500 261, ' 609 . $ 128, 800 131. 300
I.-,.---, . . . . ........................... 

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Frog

Worker's Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

Advertising

Computer Maintenance

Contract Services

Copier Rental

Cost Recovery

Equipment Rental

Fuel

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium -Property

Maintenance -Services

Maintenance - Supplies

Office Supplies

Protective Clothing

Repair and Maintenance

Repair and Maintenance -ADA

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Special District Assessment

Tools and Supplies

Training

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities -Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

21. 100 21, 600

3, 100 3, 1003, 100

100 100100

4, 000 4, 7005, 100

900 1, 2001, 000

100 100100

900 1, 4001, 000

22, 000 29, 00024, 300

52, 200 1 1 $ 56, 300
I . .............. 

400

1. 100

4, 000

200

15, 800

18, 200

100

1. 700

300

4, 000

45, 300

500

200

3, 500

4, 900

700

10, 000

32, 000

100

1, 300

22, 500 22, 500 18, 000

3, 100 3, 100 2, 400

100 100 100

4, 600 4, 700 4, 700

1, 200 1, 200 1, 100

100 100 100

1, 400 1, 400 1, 100

29. 000 29, 000 25,000

62. 0 62, 100 1 , 5215000, L___ 

120. 000 I 11 $ 

300 300 300

1, 600 2, 200 2, 200

54, 000 10,000 10, 000

200

600 600 600

200 200 200

2, 500 2, 600 2, 500

3, 200 3, 300 3, 300

500 Soo 500

15, 000 15, 000 15, 000

28, 000 28, 000 28, 000

10, 000 5, 000 10, 000

1, 000 1, 000

2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

700 3, 200

6. 300 5, 300 5, 300

3. 000 3, 000 3, 000

3. 600 3, 600 3, 600

1, 200 1, 200 1, 200

100 100 100

2. 000 $ 87, 000 $ 88. 800

SUB TOTAL $ 226, 900 $ --- 3019001 $ 322. 800 -- -- --- .. _ 28 $ 250, 100

W



EXPENDITURE DETAIL -` PUBLIC WORKS

77

19777',77, tom. J
Salaries - Regular 124,500 136, 400

Salaries - Overtime 2. 700 6, 400

Extra Help 10, 800 2. 300

SUBTOTALii . . ........... ........ .. I'L jq! ltq 5 145 100

Medical Insurance

Employee Assistance Program

Workers Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

100

ioSUBTOTAC rRVICES'' SUPPLIES

Medical Exams

SUB TOTAL . . . .............. 

TOTAL [ 7F 1,= 780=,100 1, 017, 200 $.......... 1, 062, 300] 

2"75 " 500 F...........11 - 1

40



Section 2103

Section 2105

Section 2106

Section 2107

Section 2107 5

J' t,,silsfer from Sanitation District

7 7, 71", 777 7- 77- 777777777777 - 7= 177" 
EXPENDITURES

74L7gM. 

L

Salaries - RegRegular487, 366' 

100

481, 000 532, 700

111, Salaries - Overtime 22, 500

205, 300 360, 800 271, 400 270, 700 209, 600

113, 100 176, 100 137, 50037, 500 159, 600 149, 300

93, 400 96, 100 113, 000 95, 000 81, 800

185, 300 188, 400

REVENUES

169, 400 217900 204, 100

6, 000 6, 000 6, 000, 6: 000 6, 000

100, 000 100, 000

700

100, 000 100, 000 100, 000

T- 8 3 6'. 3-0 0 927, 500 S ... . 797. 400 849300 825, 300

7 7, 71", 777 7- 77- 777777777777 - 7= 177" 
EXPENDITURES

74L7gM. 

L

Salaries - RegRegular487, 366' 481, 000 532, 700

111, Salaries - Overtime 15, 000 22, 500 18, 300

Extra Help 15, 000 4, 000 4, 000

USWLNRIES 0110- 577,

400

555 000507, 500

Medical Insurance

346. 700 156, 600

67, 700 76, 800

Retirees Medical

157. 300

REVENUES

8, 400 1 8, 200 9, 300

Deferred Compensation 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

Employee Assistance Program

700

100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation

700

4, 700 14, 600 14, 600

Medicare 7, 400 7, 000 8, 100

Life Insurance

IRESOURCES: TOTAL ......... . .. ............ .. .. .. .. .. .. ...... . .......... . . ...................... 353 100 40

300 300 300

Long Term Disability

157, 300

4, 700 4, 700 4, 700

Retirement

7, 

110, 400 103, 000 129, 700

SUBTOTALBENEFITS" . ...... 212, 466 206. 600 244, 600

190, 800

Mileage 5, 000 700 200

Transfer to City for Administration 830, 200 927, 400 64, 900 60, 000 44, 500

SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS ...... 830, 200 127, 400 69, 000 60, 700 44, 700

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 844, 300......... 774. 800' 927 400

June 30FUNDVk6"BALANCE - J

MET

V1125i A P5 141"", 
Z, Ant 6ipated FY 15- 16 Budget

00JR- 341. 300 346. 700 156, 600 156, 600 157. 300

REVENUES T- 7777,77` 

Interest 1, 000 700 700 700 700

Other Revenue 10, 800

IRESOURCES: TOTAL ......... . .. ............ .. .. .. .. .. .. ...... . .......... . . ...................... 353 100 40347 0 157, 300 _ 157, 300 158, 000

EXPENDITURE
7, 

Capital EquipmentCapital 6, 400 190, 800

Lemon Grove Avneue Realignment Project 100, 000 100, 000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 6, 400 190, 800$ 100, 000 100, 000

JENDING FOND IbA1411461 June 30 I.. ......... I 00] 57 . ........ 58 0 00

M



DARK LAND DEDICATION ORDINANCE FUND 05

42

19, 400 23, 600 19, 100 59,200

42



16FY 14- 15 FY 15

BEGINNING FU 1Q SALANCE 4_6

LA_nti1c, ,i_

7p_7a2te,
5 bWrvWW 1,003, 700 $ 1 906 100 $ $ 242, 900[, 

rrerrtqe,, Rt Fund Bal

Interest - Other 4, 500' 4 200 4, 000 4, 400 4,

4001
Property Tax Service Fee Refund (one-time) 98, 400

OTAL S: .......... ......... i,106, 600 7761960 $ 1, 247, 300

City Manager Recruitment
Election Services ( 2- seats=$ 10, 000, 1 - ballot

measure=$ 6, 000) 

Fire - Side Fund Pay - Off ( HCFA) 
General Plan Update

Sick Leave Payout

Telephone Upgrade

Transfer to Self Insured Funds

Transfer to Capital Improvement Projects Fund

Vacation Pay Off
Capital Asset Purchases

Finance System

Fire Engine and Fire Equipment

IT System upgrades

Facility Replacement -City Hall
Facility Replacement -Senior Center
Facility Replacement -Sheriff's Station
Animal Control Vehicle

27, 100 200 8, 000

20, 500

4, 600

17, 800

85, 000 50, 000 50, 000

1, 700 400 12, 200

32, 700 38, 000 32, 000

15, 700 35, 600 114, 000

13, 600

50, 000

115, 000

95, 000

I. ENDINGN iaiLAdit June 30 :„ 1= 906 100

5, 500  

180, 000

37, 500

32, 000

114, 000

50, 000

115, 000

17, 500

150, 000

25, 000) 

12, 000

65, 200

15, 000

30, 000

w



I GRANTS - FUND 08

0........... 
1`11W, 

qbxt

A63P 000 f 132, 300) 300 R2,3001

V
b

11-_32_-.-4001
N

Grant R2anuasaR. I ..... e 160, g06 798, 500 660,800 479,700772900
Interest 200 200

TAL SOURCES ...........- . 30 If ........T6 00 $ 447400

Disaster Preparedness Grants

Misc Fire Department Grants

Homeland Security Grants ( SHSGP) 
UASI- Urban Area Security Initiative
ARRA JAG -Law Enforcement

JAG Law Enforcement Grant

Miscellaneous: 

Beverage Container Recycling Program
HEAL Zone Grant

Capital Pro Cle ts: 

Promenade Extension Planning
Smart Growth Incentive Program - Promenade

Safe Routes to School (State) - San Miguel
Safe Routes to School (Non -Infrastructure) 
Safe Routes to School (Federal) - Palm/ Golden
Safe Routes to School ( State) - Madera

Extraordinary Item ( Promenade correction) 

2, 900

400

7, 300

1, 100

12, 600

24, 700

300

19, 000

268, 900

27, 300

152, 200

100

123, 000

1, 200 2, 200 2, 300 2, 300

17, 800 22, 000 22, 000 20,000

3, 400 3, 400 3, 000 3, 000

6, 200 300 300 300

14, 700 12, 000 12, 000 12, 000

91, 700 308, 000 196, 200 112, 100

185, 700

94700 100, 000 100, 000 105, 000

6: 300 325, 000 326, 000 226, 000

228, 200) 

C PUN,D t3At AIC.E June 30- 63 p50032, 300j

7... ... . 

Allocation 293.600 80, 000

TOTAL R 9 dUkdb 1 1,200 9, 6rto

0 0 00

0

i. 

U

General Ex.

Ea
ed

StreeSidwaIVReh... a.... Rehabilitation . 289, 300 79, 600

ND 91600, 6TOTAL E....,,,.. I
ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30

11 1 1 ,
1 69. 460

mmm 
I . ..... . ..... 

44



a

sf1t I attj'.; 
1 M 20

MT . Allocation 116, 200 121S Annual 200 121, 200 121, 200 , 121, 200' 

Other Revenue 237, 400 237, 400 164, 900

Interest 300 300 100 100 100

Deferred Revenue 166, 600 166, 600

TOTAL RESOU......... $ ........ ..... t 21 500 $ 525, 50U . $. 525 5- 0RCES: $ 116, 500 00 $ 334 30,,... 

e

w....... 
n- 

Salaries - Regular as, 7oo as, 7oo . as, z;o,.o
Overtime 300 300 300

Medical 0
O

nsurance ._ 

4 0 400 4

5, 300 5,30 5, 900

7 09 500

Retirees Medical a 500 500 200

Deferred Compensation100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation 100 100 100

Medicare 600 600 600

Life Insurance 100 100

Long Term Disability 400 400 400

Retirement 10. 700 10,700 8, 100

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS_ _ 17 800
m

17 800 15, 400

OPERATIONS: 

Mileage 600 600 600

PROJECTS: 

Capital Expenditures - Bus Shelter Replacement 120, 000 90,000 100, 000

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project •- 237, 400 237, 400

Broadway/ LGA Roadway Repairs 50, 000

Repair and Maintenance - Bus Shelter 43, 800 43, 300 50, 000 50, 000 50, 000

Repair and Maintenance -Trolley Facility 2, 400 26, 000 26, 000 26, 000

Trolley Corridor Landscape Maintenance 12, 400 11, 400 25, 000 25, 000 26, 000

Transfer to General Fund - Administration 3, 600 3, 600 3, 600 3, 600 17, 400

Transfer to General Fund - Operations 56, 700 60, 600

P _ 5 - ...,., 269 000,. SUBTOTAL -PROJECTS: $ 116, 500 $ 121, 300 S 462 600 $ 432, 600 $ 

TOTAL EX., ® _._....... $ 116, 500 .. EXPENDITURES: 721 301 $ 527 400 $ 497, 400 $ 333, 900

ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30 a1 ,.,, - $_ __ 200 jl dtOl1) $ 28 1j0 p $ -,. 400......... _ 

Deferred Revenue projected to be $ 130, 000 at 6130/ 15

W



al Allocation

Miscellaneous Revenue

TOTAL RESOURCES

Salaries - Regular

Overtime

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medicallnsurance

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensation

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Retirement

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

OPERATIONS: 

Mileage

Lemon Grove Realignment

Traffic Improvements ( PM) - LG 14

Traffic Improvements ( Citywide) 

Storm Drain Rehabilitation ( PM) - LG 15

Storm Drain Maintenance ( Citywide) 

Storm Drain Rehabilitation ( CR) - LG 16

Storm Drain Improvements

Street Improvements ( PM) - LG 17

Pavement Management

Traffic Improvements ( CR) - LG 18

Traffic Signals

Street Improvements ( CR) - LG 20

Street/ Sidewalk Rehabilitation

Street/ Sidewalk Rehabilitation- CDBG

Safe Routes to School ( Federal) - Palm & Golden

Safe Routes to School ( State) - Madera Street

Safe Routes to School ( State) San Miguel

Transfer to City for Administration & Operations

e ..... 

L ? _....... ] AvG130Rk.. % 1110, 200) $) 

ra

45, 1001 $ ))

I

145 100) 

792, 400 647, 300 1, 045, 800 1, 450, 100 1, 911, 100

29, 600

804, 700 $ 566 900........ 1w.000 7Cyp $ .... 1, 405, 000 $ 1 911. 100

126, 200

101, 000

111, 100

124, 100

29, 000

281, 600

11, 300

40, 900

5, 400

64. 300

82, 600

35, 500

111, 500

152, 400

16, 000

111, 300

200

200

20, 600

81, 700

63, 700

100

63, 800

65,500

200

70, 400

100

70, 50065, 700

i-6-.2-002006, 800.. 11, 100

2, 000 1, 200 1, 200

200 200 200

1, 600 1, 600 1, 600

800 1, 000 1, 000

200 200

400 400 600

14, 400 14, 000 16, 900

700

125, 000

70, 000

130, 000

155, 000

20, 000

365, 000

75, 000

180, 000

115, 700

243, 400

139, 000

9, 300

623, 100

908, 200

139, 100

83, 300

118, 300

71, 900

18, 900

468, 300

L. burs 1 u i ALwn!! UJ! u i b 3 914, 900.- 1 0 $ 612„ 000  1 $ v

940, 000 . ... , 0091
e

1 310 500 $ 1 800

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 914900 G $ 612000 q30 ) 00 $- 1 405000-,,I F$ 1 911 100

Ef+kDINC FUND BALANCE June 3 ( q0 $ 1 bit 01t $ 45 b ltq... r iib. # $
m,, d

M



SIDEWALK RESERVE - FUND 18

22,

80004 0.. $ .....,: .

22 SUO $ 22, 800 . $ 22 BCU

1 i $...

22, 8 0

FY 1415M1d

105, 900 $ 98, 800 $ 88, 800 $ 88, 800 $ 66, 700

g Fees

R,""""

L34,300. ::._...;:. 25, 300 22, 0 00 

r—$- 
22 000

Interest 400 300 300

300TOTALRESOURCES. ------- 140 600 _ ", $ 124 400.. $ 111 100 $ 111 100 . 000

EXP
3_ 

Salaries - Regular

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensatin

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Long Term Disability
Retirement

TOTAL OPERATIONS. $ 41, 800 $ 35, 600

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 41 800 $ 35 600

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 g 98 800 1 88 800

47

21, 400

21. 400

23, 900

23 900

21, 600

21, 600

2, 300 2, 700 2, 3.
00m. 

800 800 800

100 100 100

600 600 300

300 300 300

200 200 200

4, 900 5, 500 2, 100

ee

9 6, 100

900 900 5, 500

300 300 300

8, 500 8, 500 8, 000

600 600 1, 200

1Nt, 300 15, -00 ,. 141," 0

7.......... 

70, 2QC6U 66 700 46 300



Salaries - Regular

1

7, 77
3, 900

r-L-7

4, 200

Overtime

FUND tXLAC_ Q, 

2, 800

100

jj

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

to Estimate Fuad

3, 900 4, 200$ 4, 200

8. 000. 

Medical Insurance 500500

77

Retirees Medical

1

200:::,---- 

Annual Assessment Revenue

100

8, 500 8, 700 8, 500 8. 900 9, 100

TOTAL RESOURCES: 

100

12, 800 000 13,40013.809, 14. 200

Salaries - Regular

1

7, 77
3, 900 4, 200 4, 200

Overtime

800] 2, 800

100

T_ 5 0 0

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

100

3, 900 4, 200$ 4, 200

8. 000. 

Medical Insurance 500500 500

Retirees Medical

1

200:::,---- 

100 100

Long Term Disability 100 100 100

Retirement 1, 000 1, 000 400

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS IIJ00 1, 0001, 700

OPERATIONS

Contractual Services 3, 000 1, 700 2, 500 2, 500

Utilities - Gas and Electric 200

Utilities -Water 200 200

Transfer to City for Administration 5, 500 5, 3*00 1001100 1 100 100

TOTAL OPERATIONS: 1 L$ 8_,_500 1 L-$ 5-.300 I I

100

800] 2, 800

TOTAL -EXPENDITURES :,,,., ... ...
mm,. 

T_ 5 0 0

100 100

500

8. 000. 

gNo'qd FUND ', BALANME - -J- u -n -e3- -0 -' 6, 
1

200:::,---- 

FYN 44 000 19, 900

Impound Fee Share 12, 000 9, 500 6, 000 9, 500

Interest 100 100 100 100

f-OTALRESO' Ad' $ 40. 100 44, 100 $ 42, 600 $ r 29, 500

Salaries - Regular

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

lnsurance ---......-- Medical

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensation

Worker' s Compensation

Retirement

EEE= 
1, 800

100

100

100

100

500

900

20, 000

oon

i780-10- 1

1, 800 1, 900

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

500 200

900 1 11 600

TOTAL EXPENDITURES:$ ------------ 5 666] Lj ....... .... ..... . . . - 1;,- fi 0-0 ........... ....... ... MOO( 

ENDING FUND June3034 500 XHO 1 [ 12t 6] J_ ', J' j9 17. 600BALANCE................................. ............. ............. . ................ . . . . . . 

48



W 5 f

Y6atr

y , j@ Ulf- 355, 700

w r l r, z u

z3l, zoo $ zs6 000 355700 $ 525, 200

MR- F71LZ- l%//%O/Oiiri 

Interest 1. 700 1, 400 1, 400 1, 400 1, 400

General Reserve Transfer 75, 000 50, 000 50, 000 ( 25, 000) 

Other Revenue 8, 200

TOTAL ... ., 307, 900,, $. 317. 600 $....,.... 407. 100 $ 357, 100 .. 601, 600., 

aim)NDft. `. moo. ,.,.„ /

rirr yy%/%/%//////i"' iiiiiir/ iird i

e „ <, , ,, e. 

W

Claims 49, 900 ( 38, 100) 

Estimated Claims Payable ( 168, 100) 

Insurance - 

Professional Services° 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $ ........, 49, 900 j,.&i& 4R1

ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30 $ _ 28 000 
w

355 700 $ 407 100 $ e2 y ." 00 601 U500

Fund Balance includes $ 25, 000 on deposit with Tristar

Storm Water Fees - Commercial
e

48, 800 49, 300

i

49, 300

www

49, 300 49, 300

Storm Water Fees - Discretionary 11, 300 11, 500 11, 500 14,300 11, 500

Storm Water Fees - Residential 300

Transfer from General Fund 81, 100 75, 500 157, 500 162, 200 156, 200

TOTAL RESOURCES:$.. 1.41 fOtl. 139, 7d'N 221. 700 229. 200 217, 000

Salaries - Regular 30, 400 35, 100 30, 500

SU B SALARIES 30, 400 35, 100 30, 500TOTAL

Medical Insurance 3, 900 4, 100 3, 400

Retirees Medical 100 500 500

Worker's Compensation 500 500' 00

Medicare 400 500 400

Long Term Disability 300 400 300

Retirement 6, 900 6, 000 3, 000

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 10012. e,,.,, 

14, 000 8, 100

OPERATIONS

General Expenditure 101, 500 97, 300 179, 000 179000 179, 000

Mileage 200 1, 100 100

Transfer to City for Administration 36, 800 39, 000

TOTAL OPERATIONS." 138. 300 , 136. 300 179, 2001801111-1111111- 11..

100 179. 100" 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 138 300„] 13- 6, 300 221 a70Lf 1 $, 229 200 217, 700

ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30 43 40Ctl 3 4001 C $ ,,-, 16gj

49



SELF- INSURED' LIABILITY RESERVE - FUND 29

460 000

50

100) 

SELF- INSURED' LIABILITY RESERVE - FUND 29

460 000

50



PUBLIC EDUCATIONAL AND ` GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS ( PEG)'- FUND 30

A w w
r  

18980.. 

HOUSING FUND- FUND 31

51



Capital Reserve - Fund 32

Main Street Promenade Community Facilities District - 33

1N, 

q cara ua p. 

52



SUCCESSOR AGENCY 7 -FUNDS 60 AND 64

3 IM9 5 " 3, 2" 14010), 11 612%4010) 2, 5B3, 91,1̀0 

Salaries - Regular 154, 600 1 1 149, 600 166, 000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

250, 000

11 ................... 

250,000 250, 000248. 000

2, 035. 400 2, 083. 500 2, 100, 000 1, 848,000 2, 100, 000

227, 900

Retirees Medical 8, 100

9, 000 9, 000 9, 000 9, 000 9, 000

7, 800 4, 000 4, 000

134, 600) 

6, 800 6, 800

Medicare

661, 

111111. 1189. 000) 7 6, 41001 0 0, 525. 4001 1110. 1194. 90011

Salaries - Regular 154, 600 1 1 149, 600 166, 000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 154,600 149,600 166.,000- 
11 11 11 1 - --------------- 

Medical Insurance 13. 700 13, 700 16,000

Retirees Medical 8, 100 8, 100 8, 100

Deferred Compensation 800 800 800

Worker's Compensation 6, 800 6, 800 6, 800

Medicare 2, 200 2, 200 2, 200

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability 1, 400 1, 400 1, 500

Retirement 34, 600 34,600 16, 200

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 67, 600 50. 60067, 600

136, 0002004 tax kilocWfionBonds- Interest Only 161, 100 273, 400 136,000

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds -interest Only 342, 200 579, 300 571, 800 571, 800 563, 900

2010 Tax Allocation Bonds -interest Only 189, 800 324. 100 315, 600 315, 500 305, 200

2014 Tax Allocation Bonds -Interest Only 115, 200 115,200 223, 000

Administrative Reimbursement 250, 000 248, 000 27, 800 2, 100 20, 100

Consultant Services 900

DCH Honda Freeway Sign 16, 300

General Expense 7, 200 3, 900

Legal Services 8,400 2, 000 5, 000 2, 400 6, 000

Mileage 3, 000 3, 300 3, 300

Main Street Promenade 150. 400 140,000

PERS Actuarial Unfunded Liability 694, 400

Professional Services 13, 400 12,700 5, 000 25,000 5, 000

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project 92, 300 500, 000 500,000 500, 000

TOTAL OPERATIONS: 1 232. 000 1" 3 1 679 300400 $ $ 1, 811, 300 9001
I ----------------- . . ........ 

ii-0-001 " i", TOTAL" EXPENDITURES: 2AKS 4
11 ... . ...........  . ..................................... . ..... .............. 

1- 11, 111,11111, ---------- 

ENDINGFUNDBALANCE - June 30 . ............ : 55:3:,90O 12, 731, 400

In addition the following pricipal payments will be made ( these payments do not affect Fund Balance): 

NO tax Allocation n8s - principal Only $ 70, 000 $ 70, 000 75, 000 76, 000

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds -principal Only 180, 000 185, 000 190, 000 190,000 205, 000

2010 Tax Allocation Bonds - principal Only 330, 000 340, 000 345, 000 345,000 355, 000

2014 Tax Allocation Bonds - principal Only 100, 000

i..6 000TOTAL bdND_PlRlN IPA PAYMENTS 0 10. 060.. 
11 --- I I ----- - --------------------- . ...... . ................ . . .................... 

1111- ----------- . . . . . ....... . 

53



iR94PN I taf n 8747 800 $ 175,200 00 $ 290, 900235, 000 $ 235 0

L4pJNo,Sfrerr4 .., Resp C Improvement 30 60ND... 30, 600 30, 600. p0„ 600 3U,600

General Lighting Assessment 151, 400 157,

700A
m

666' 162, 000 165, Kt00
Interest 400 500 400 400 400

TOTAL RESOURCES. ".._ X99, 600 333 400 -$ 393. 400 w - 
m.. _.......

397xd00 ............ 56300',. 

54

ME

Salaries - Regular 16, 100 15, 800 16, 900

StJ43Tt41` AL SALARIES 16. 100
m m

15. 800 16. 900

Medical Insurance 1, 700 1, 900 2, 500
Retirees Medical 500 500 500

Deferred Compensation 100 100 100
Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation 200 300 300

Medicare 200 200 200

Life Insurance

Long TermDisability100 100 100

Retirement 3, 600 3, 600 3, 000

3Ut31O4AL E44 NEp 148 ................... 6. 400 g, 700 6. 700

QP_ kFA°r IOt'4'S_ 
Mileage 300 300 1, 000
Professional Services 200 5, 000

Repair and Maintenance 11, 700 3, 100 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000
Utilities -Street Lights 64, 200 70, 200 74, 000 74,000 74,000

Transfer to City for Administration 48, 300 25, 100 4, 700 4,700 9, 400

ftp RA TN
m,,....... 

124.400 S 98 400 89 00 0 84 000. m

89, 4 RB0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 124MgY 98 4PNCN 111, 500 106,500 113, 000

281 900190 rt00
xxx

343 ECY.. W,htDPNC FUND BALANCE June 30
6

115 2fl41 235,000

54



u t.Im I $ 

3saoo, g 3ss 0o $
rt ztizoo $ trfiii io o$ dia oo y 

EVE

LRocaBenefit Lighting Assessment 85, 000 , 86, 000 86, 000

m 66, 0

86, 000

Other Revenue 6, 100

Interest 1, 000 800 1, 100 500 500

TOTAL RESOURCES: $ 625, 4941,;."...,...., 47 9, 600 3 3591800 $ 4591?, q9 .. _.. 33 500._ 

i,,: 
11111 / 577777 N, 

Salaries - Regular 46, 100 45, 200 48, 300

Medical Insurance _.. 5

000 .. 
45 200 48

300
SUBTOTAL SALARIES 46 10 _ 

00 5, 300 5

Retirees Medical 1, 600 1, 600 1, 600

Deferred Compensation 300 300 300

Worker' s Compensation 800 800 300

Medicare 600 600 700

Life Insurance 100 100 100

Long Term Disability 300 200 300

Retirement 10, 300 10, 400 8, 600

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 19, 000 19, 300 17, 200

Mileage

m ........ .:

800. - .... -` 800 .. 70. 0.. 

Professional Services 5, 100 5, 000 5, 100 5, 100 5, 100

Repair & Maintenance - Street Lights 4, 900 29, 000 7, 500 7, 500 7, 500

Street Light Utilities 92, 100 108, 000 113, 300 120, 000 120,000

Street Light Repayment program 5, 800 3, 600 11, 700 11, 700 11, 700

TranrJor to City for Administration 30, 600 61, 300 2, 600 2, 600 4, 900

TOTAL OPERATIONS: S 1385500 $ _ 206. 900 $ 141, 000 $ ----- 
W

149 900.. 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES _ $ 138.500 $ 206, 900 $ 206 100 S 212. 200 $ 215, 400

ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30 $ 386^900 $ 272 700 I I, 993 7tY0 1 $-,.- 147 000  d A00 5 

55



1

101 1 lk rel TOM k, int, i no .11 inm a on a affArmurwergmMall g I OCRs

20, 300 21, 600 21, 800 21, 800 21, 800

1, 126, 900

9 276 400

Training & Travel

Am

Interest

Other Revenue

Property Tax Interest
Sewer Service Charges ( net of deliquencies) 

Sewer Service Charges - LGSID and LM

EEE:= 
67, 300

7- 77,,, 

16, 100 39, 000 17, 00017, 000

20, 300 21, 600 21, 800 21, 800 21, 800

1, 126, 900 1, 219, 200

Training & Travel

3, 000

7, 500

1, 100 1, 200

16, 600
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 16, 100

5, 459, 800 5, 827, 700 5,460, 000 5, 853, 000 5, 883, 000

44, 600 28, 700 39, 000 50, 000 39,000

Transfer to General Fund for Administration 737, 100

114. 243. 200 14. 237,2004723720013. 814. 20-001 

Utilities 5, 500 5, 200- 7, 7004, 800

Personnel 3,400 43, 200 1, 135, 800 1, 126, 900 1, 219, 200

Training & Travel 12,200 7, 500 16, 600 12, 000 16, 600
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 16, 100 36, 200 35, 000 26, 000 36,000

Services & Supplies 2, 510, 000 2, 648, 900 3. 875,700 4, 029, 200 4,528, 800

Transfer to General Fund for Administration 737, 100 547, 500 548, 500 548, 500 652,400

Transfer to General Fund for Operations 746, 800 1, 014, 700

Transfer to Gas Tax Fund for Operations 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000

4. 130 6. 716, 800 5, 850, 30044031500

Transfer to Operations Reserve 1, 900, 000

T! YSffRJO RESERVE FUND 16 IIXO 000

TTOTAL EXPENDITURESNDl JRES. ...........---- 4130

11 - 

k, Ptl qq, 16 800 .............................. I5J7 1- 1t---- 6..,, , 459 700

ENDINGFUNDiBALANCE- Jun-a- 3-9--- I ii1`8-4, 606

R Rp



EXPENDITURE DETAIL -- SANITATION OPERATIONS - FUND 15

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensation

Employee Assistance Program

Worker's Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Retirement

Unemployment

BTOTAL BENEFITS

Claims Paid

Computer Maintenance

Contractual Services

Emergency Callouts
Equipment Rental

Estimated Workers Comp Claim Payable
Fuel

Industrial Enforcement

Insurance Premium: Liability
Insurance Premium: Properly
Line Cleaning
Litigagion Services

Medical Exams

Membership and Dues
Mileage

Muni Sewage Capacity & Treatment
Muni Sewage Transportation

Office Supplies

PERS Actuarial Unfunded Liability
Personnel Recruitment

Professional Services

Protective Clothing
Repairs

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Restoration Services

Street Sweeping
Tools and Supplies

Traffic Safety Equipment
Training
Travel & Meetings

Utilities -Gas and Electricity
Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

Inter Trans For Admin Services

Inter Trans For Operations

Inter Trans To Gas Tax Fund

Inter. Trans For Operations Reserve

4, 000

26, 000

4, 400

4. 100

54. 800

3. 200

6, 700

100

2, 291, 400

28, 200

700

13, 600

2, 700

8, 900

7. 200

45. 100

16. 000

9, 000

1, 500

10, 700

1, 000

2, 500

1, 300

737, 100

746, 800

100, 000

a. 
799.300

101, 800

15, 400

1. 700

42. 000 30. 000

13. 300

1, 200

6, 000

167. 300

1, 200

43, Datj I ........ 336, 700

1, 100

44, 600

44, 600

100

300

9, 500

8, 500

56, 500

5, 100

7, 900

56. 100

200

1, 200

2, 295, 100

64, 800

400

100

17, 100

3, 400

3, 900

6, 500

29, 700

2, 000

16, 000

10, 400

3, 400

4, 100

900

3. 300

1, 300

547, 500

1, 014, 700

100, 000

1, 900, 000

6, 260, 300

11

55, 000

4, 000

5, 400

15, 000

20, 000

20, 000

18, 000

11, 000

500

13, 100

3, 500

700

2, 500

2, 000

548, 500

100, 000

766, 800 850, 900

14, 200 14, 200

15, 000 15, 000

95. 060 880100

98, 700 101, 800

15, 500 15, 500

1, 700 1, 700

30, 000 10, 000

13, 500 14, 400

1, 200 1, 200

6, 000 6, 800

165, 300 1187, 700

331. 900 1 1 339. 100

5, 000

46, 600

55, 000

5, 000

168, 200

9, 100

10, 000

48, 800

7, 700

25, 000

60, 000

400

2, 000

9, 000

2, 310, 600

65, 000

2, 000

30, 000

4, 000

5, 400

10, 000

10, 000

10, 000

18, 000

11, 000

500

10, 000

2, 000

700

4, 500

2, 500

548, 500

100, 000

20, 000

40, 000

55, 000

10, 000

9, 100

10, 000

48, 800

7, 700

10, 000

30,000

400

2,000

8, 400

2, 302,000

42, 000

2, 000

1, 800, 000

72, 500

4, 000

5, 400

15, 000

20, 000

20, 000

18, 000

11, 000

500

13, 100

3, 500

700

4, 500

2, 500

552, 400

100, 000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES— 1„ 581.... . ........... . ...... I - i ----- - - -------- r210 A6 ] I  I f,, 

57



LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT RESERVE - FUND 16

tion Beginning Balance ( sub -set of $ 
3, 250, 700 [$ 3, 257, 600 I $ 8.865. 200. $ 3. 865, 200 f $ 3, 523, 200Funtd Balance

i i. . ,
aaaaa /!!%/ 

i,,,: (,,,,, `%
moi„ ,,, ,, Il %„ % O  5,7

Interest 6, 900 7, 600 8, 000 8, 000 8, 000
Transfer From Operations

Transfer to Operations Reserve ( 600, 000) ( 350, 000) ( 350,000) 

m ... 

a ..... ------- ......... Rate Stab" hzat" on Ending B, Ial,, aance' J, 257 64CY $ 3 86a 200 $ 3, 523, 200 $ 3 523,200 $ 3. 531, 200

Operations Reserves Beg Bal.( sub- setofFund  
Balance)$ 1, 432, 9J00 $ _ 1, 397, 300 $ 3; 068. 900 $ 3 068. 900 $ 2, 9021900

Interest 5, 400 3, 300 4, 000 4, 000 4, 000

Transfer From Operations ( revenue) 1, 900, 000

Transfer From Rate Stabilization ( revenue) 600, 000 350, 000 350, 000

TOTAL RESOURCES. ..... S 1
m.... 

438 300 $ 3 400 800 $ 3, 42,2,'900 $ 3 422, 900 $ 2. 906. 900

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES
71

Equipment Replacement 18, 000 16, 400 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

Vehicles 544, 800

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROJECTS

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project 1, 400 212, 900

Sewer Main Rehab 21, 600 57, 600 2, 000, 000 500, 000 1 1, 500, 000

TOTAL EXPENDIT . 41. 000 831 700 2 020. 000 520 00 00

Operations Reserves E ndmg Balance 1 397 300 1, 402, 900 2 902 900 1. 386. 9003. 068. 900

4 92fi, 1410ING FUENDND BALANCE - June 30 J 4. 654,900 6') i4 100r 6 426 10CN 4 916 7dE0



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014- 2015 AND

FISCAL YEAR 2015- 2016 AND AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES THERETO

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove administers 25 individual funds to fulfill the mission
and objectives of the City, and includes funds related to the Successor Agency to the Lemon
Grove Community Development Agency; and

WHEREAS, each year the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove adopts an operating
budget for anticipated revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to make provision for a level of service
commensurate with the needs of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove anticipated budget for Fiscal Year 2014-15 was
prepared by City staff and reviewed by the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove budget for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 was prepared
by City staff and reviewed by the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove General Fund budgets for Fiscal Year 2014- 15
and Fiscal Year 2015- 16 were reviewed by the City Council at its regular meetings held on May
5, 2015, May 19, 2015 and June 2, 2015; 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest to approve the Fiscal Year
2014- 15 and Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 City Budgets. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves the City of Lemon Grove Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-15 and Fiscal Year
2015- 2016 ( Exhibit 1); and

2. Authorizes expenditures thereto. 

M



Attachment D

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING A SALARY PLAN AND CLASSIFICATION SUMMARY

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2015, the City Council adopted a resolution approving the City
Budget for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016; and

WHEREAS, the Salary Plan and Classification Summary identifies the positions included
in the budget, as well as salary ranges for each position and the number of employees per
position; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest to approve the attached Salary
Plan and Classification Summary. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby approves the Salary Plan and Classification Summary ( Exhibit 1). 

11- 



Attachment D

EXHIBIT 1

The Salary Plan and Classification Summary is included beginning on page 13 of the Fiscal
Year 2015- 2016 Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget

12- 



Attachment E

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016

WHEREAS, Constitutional Article XIII -B ( Propositions 4 and 111) places an

appropriations limitation on State and Local Government; and

WHEREAS, this appropriations limitation is based on proceeds of taxes adjusted

annually from the base year 1986- 1987 by either the population growth factor for the City of
Lemon Grove or for the County of San Diego, and by either the change in the California Per
Capita Personal Income or the change in Non -Residential Construction for the City of Lemon
Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City has received inflation and population data from the State
Department of Finance to calculate the Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Appropriations Limit; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove wishes to select those options
providing the greatest rate of change as shown below: 

Change in California Per

Capita Personal Income

inflation factor) 

1. 0382

City Population
Change

population factor) Factor

1. 0133 1. 0520

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California establishes the Fiscal Year 2014- 15 Appropriations Limit at $ 43, 261, 317. 

13- 



Attachment F

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD
APPROVING THE LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BUDGET FOR FISCAL

YEAR 2014- 15 and FISCAL YEAR 2015- 2016 AND AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES
THERETO

WHEREAS, the Roadway Lighting District operates with two separate funds: the

General Benefit Fund ( Fund 11) and the Local Benefit Assessment (Fund 12); and

WHEREAS, each year the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board of Directors
District Board) adopts an Operating Budget for revenues and expenditures for the upcoming

year; and

WHEREAS, the District Board desires to make provision for a level of service

commensurate with the needs of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District Board has reviewed the proposed Fiscal Year 2014-15 and
Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of the Lemon Grove Roadway

Lighting District hereby: 

1. Approves the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Budget for Fiscal Year 2014- 
15 and Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( Exhibit 1); 

2. Authorizes expenditures thereto. 

15- 



Attachment G

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD APPROVING THE
LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 AND

FISCAL YEAR 2015- 2016 AND AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES THERETO

WHEREAS, the Sanitation District operates with two separate funds: the Operation Fund
Fund 15) and the Reserve Fund ( Fund 16); and

WHEREAS, each year the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board of Directors ( District

Board) adopts an Operating Budget for revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year; and

WHEREAS, the District Board desires to make provision for the level of service
commensurate with the needs of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District Board has reviewed the proposed Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and
Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of the Lemon Grove Sanitation

District hereby: 

1. Approves the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Budget for Fiscal Year 2014- 15 and
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 ( Exhibit 1); 

2. Authorizes expenditures thereto. 

17- 



Attachment H

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
UPDATING THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR

2015- 2016

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule was first adopted by
Resolution No. 2599 on January 3, 2006; and

WHEREAS, most fees listed in the Master Fee Schedule represent reimbursement for

costs reasonably borne by the City in providing direct services to individuals or groups rather
than to the general populace of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, in order for the City to continue providing services, it is necessary for the
City to recover the costs of providing such services; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet cost recovery objectives, the adopted Master Fee Schedule
update process occurs during the adoption of the budget; and

WHEREAS, the proposed fee increases do not exceed the reasonable amount required

to provide the service for which the fee or service charge is levied and will not exceed the cost

of providing the services; and

WHEREAS, the Development Services Building Fees, Development Services

Engineering Fees and the Development Services Planning Fees are valid and in compliance
with California Constitution Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 1), ( 2), ( 3) & ( 6); and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department Plan Check Fees, Inspection Fees and Cost Recovery
Fees are valid and in compliance with California Constitution Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 1), ( 2), ( 3) 

6); and

WHEREAS, the Annual Fire Code Permit Fees are valid and in compliance with

California Constitution Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 1), ( 2) & ( 3); and

WHEREAS, the General Fees are valid and in compliance with California Constitution
Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 1), ( 2), ( 3), ( 5), ( 6) & ( 7); and

WHEREAS, the Law Enforcement Fees are valid and in compliance with California

Constitution Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 2), ( 3) & ( 5); and

WHEREAS, the Facilities and Program Fees are valid and in compliance with California
Constitution Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 1), ( 2), ( 4) & ( 5); and

WHEREAS, the Sanitation Fees are valid and in compliance with California Constitution
Article XIIIC, subd. ( e) ( 1), ( 2), ( 3), ( 5), ( 6) & ( 7); and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 66016( a) requires that a public hearing be held
prior to adoption of any new or increases to any existing fees; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and its residents to update the Master
Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016. 

19- 



Attachment H

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby approves the attached City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
Exhibit 1) for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

20- 



Attachment H

Exhibit 1

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

MASTER F SCHEDULE

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016



Attachment H

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE

Fiscal Year 2015- 2016
FY 2015- 16) 

Annual Update Process

In order to maintain User Fee Cost Recovery Objectives, the City Council of the
City of Lemon Grove has adopted the following annual update process: 

1. Fees shall be analyzed annually as part of the City budget process and
may be updated at the discretion of the City Council. 

2. During the fiscal year, if the need arises, the City Council may adjust fees. 

Changes to the Annual Update Process shall be made by action of the City Council., 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business License/ Permit & Regulatory 1

Development Services - Building 3

Building Valuation Tables 5

Development Services - Engineering 11

Development Services - Planning 13

Fire 15

General 17

Law Enforcement 19

Public Works -Facilities and Recreational Programs 21

Sanitation District 23

Appendix A - Hourly Rates 25



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

BUSINESS LICENSE/PERMIT & REGULATORY

Description Fee Comments

BUSINESS LICENSE/ PERMIT

Processing Fee $ 3000 all businesses

SB 1186

Late Fee

If paid in February
If paid after February

Base Fee/ Tax -- by Type of Business
General - Fixed Location In City
Apartments ( minimum fee $ 10. 00) 

Out -of -City
Contractors, wholesalers

Other Services

Retail Route Deliveries

AmusemenUMechanicallMusic

Auction

Auctioneer

Billboard Advertising

Bowling Alley
Circus/ Carnival

Coin- operated Vending Machines
Ice Cream Carts/ Wagons/ Food Vending Vehicles
Pawnbrokers

Peddlers, Solicitors, Transient Merchants

Fixed Location on Tax Roll

No Fixed Location on Tax Roll

Pool Rooms, Billiards

Professionals

Real Estate Broker

Shooting Galleries/ Arcade/ Amusement Center
Taxi Cabs/ Vehicles for Hire

In -City

Out -of -City
Trailer Park

REGULATORY PERMITS

Adult Entertainment Establishment

Alarm Permit ( one time fee) 

Penalty Fees
Third False Alarm ( 6 month period) 

Fourth False Alarm (6 month period) 

Fifth False Alarm ( 6 month period) 

Each Additional False Alarm (6 month period) 

Bingo

Entertainers

January

February
March

April

May

June

July
August

September

October

November

December

Renewal

Fortunetelling & Related Occupations
Massage Technician

Initial

Renewal

Massage Establishment

Peep Show Establishment

Investigation

Peep Show -Per Device
Second Hand Dealer/Pawn Broker

Solicitor's Permit

Renewal

1. 00 Remit 30% to the State/ Retain 70% 

25% of Business License/ Permit Tax

100% of Business License/ Permit Tax

15. 00 + $ 2 00 per employee ( max $ 100. 00) 

3. 00 per unit

15, 00 + $ 2, 00 per employee ( max $ 100 00) 

40, 00 + $ 2. 00 per employee ( max. $ 100. 00) 

40. 00 per vehicle

25. 00 each machine

150, 00

7500

100. 00 + $ 10. 00 per billboard if more than two

15. 00 + $ 10 00 per lane

250.00

25. 00 + $ 2 00 per machine

200. 00 per vehicle

10000

1000

1500

1500 + $ 10 0o per table

2500 + $ 2 00 per employee ( max $ 100. 00) 

15, 00 + $ 1000 per salesperson

100. 00

50. 00

100. 00

15. 00 + $ 2, 00 per space

11000 Annual

75. 00

50. 00

100. 00

150. 00

200. 00

5000

Annual

3000

30. 00

3000

30. 00

2750

2500

2250

2000

1750

1500

1250

1000

30. 00

500. 00 + $ 5, 000 surety bond

13000

3500

29000

12000 semi- annual fee

3500 semi- annual fee

13000 annual

3000 initial

2000



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - BUILDING

Description Fee Comments

Permit Issuance Fee ( for all permits) 44, 10 per permit

Building Permit Fee ( based on total valuation") 
1. 00 to $ 500. 00 27. 56

501 00 to $ 2000. 00 27. 56 for the first $500. 00 plus $ 3. 36 for each additional

100, or fraction thereof

2001. 00 to $ 25, 000. 00 80, 48 for the first $ 2, 000. 00 plus $ 15. 44 for each additional

1, 000. 00 or fraction thereof

25, 001. 00 to $ 50, 000 453. 24 for the first 25, 000. 00 plus $ 11. 13 for each additional

1, 000. 00, or fraction thereof

50, 001. 00 to $ 100, 000. 00 74541 for the first $50, 000.00 plus $ 7.72 for each additional

1, 000. 00 or fraction thereof

100, 001. 00 to $ 500, 000. 00 1, 149. 91 for the first $ 100, 000. 00 plus $ 6. 17 for each additional

1, 000, 00 or fraction thereof

500, 001. 00 to $ 1, 000, 000. 00 3, 743. 65 for the first $ 500, 000. 00 plus $ 5, 25 for each additional

1, 000. 00 or fraction thereof

1, 000, 000. 00 and up 6, 499. 90 for the first $ 1, 000, 000.00 plus $ 3. 47 for each

additional $ 1, 000 00 or fraction thereof

Individual Plumbing Permit 143. 33

Individual Electrical Permit 143. 33

Individual Mechanical Permit 143. 33

Water Heater Permit 6615

In Combination With Building Permit

Plumbing Permit 10. 50% of Building Permit Fee
Electrical Permit 1050% of Building Permit Fee
Mechanical Permit 10. 50% of Building Permit Fee

Energy Surcharge Fee 15. 75% of Building Permit Fee
Disabled Access Surcharge Fee 10. 50% of Building Permit Fee
Green Code Inspection - all additions 41. 50

Green Code Inspection - all buildings 124. 50

Disabled Access fee applies to new Commercial, Industrial, Assembly, Educational and Multi - Family type projects

required by State Building Code) 
Plan Check Fee 89. 25% of Building Permit Fee

Residential sub -divisions or tract developments 31. 50% of Building Permit Fee
with production units that are duplicates of model

units

Green Code Plan Check - all additions 4500

Green Code Plan Check - all new buildings 13500

Miscellaneous

Landscape Plans 150 Deposit

Storm Water Management Surcharge 5% of Total Permit and Plan Check Fees

Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee 2, 310 Per new residential housing unit

AKA Regional Transportation Improvement Plan - RCTIP) 

Construction and Debris Diversion Deposits

Roof Tear -offs 10000

Small < 2, 500 sf 500. 00

Small > 2, 500 < 10, 000 sf 25/ sq
Large > 10, 000 sf 0 25/ sf, $ 3, 500 min. 

NOTES: 

1 A Building Permit shall include only a single issuance Fee if the permit has a combination of activities [ i e: Building/ Plumbing/ Electrical/ 
Mechanical], 

2 Expedited processing is only available for unusual circumstances when requested by the applicant and as deemed appropriate by City
Staff Charges for expedited services shall be determined by using an hourly rate of two times the current hourly rate as established by EsGil
Corporation - Appendix A

3 Projects requiring additional inspections, additional re -inspections, or plan check for revised or deferred items, shall pay a fee determined
by using the current hourly rate as established by EsGil Corporation - Appendix A

4 Plan check fees for residential sub -division or tract development projects may have production units that are duplicates of the model units
reduced to 30% of the permit fee

The contract price of the work being done, the architect' s estimate, or the valuation using the current City -adopted valuation tables of the San
Diego Chapter of the IGC and the area of the proposed construction or work being proposed

Effective 8/ 16/ 09



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - BUILDING

Description Fee Comments

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK



City ofLemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Building Valuation Tables

San Diego Area Chapter International Code Council

Use TXpe of Construction - 2015- 2011

ENR Construcloon cost index January 20 City Average 0. 027

R- 2 Apartment Houses * Type I or I B. $ 152. 13

Apartment Houses Type V or III ( Masonry) $ 124. 21

Apartment Houses Type V Wood Frame $ 114. 45

Apartment Houses Type I Basement Garage $ 53. 04

B Banks Type I or I B. $ 206. 56

Banks Type 11 A $ 152. 13

Banks Type 11 B $ 147. 94

Banks Type III A $ 167. 48

Banks Type III B $ 161. 90

B Car Washes Type III A 9-7. 70

Car Washes Type III B $ 93. 51

Car Washes Type V A $ 83. 74

Car Washes Type V B $ 78. 16

A- 3 Churches Type I or I B. $ 138. 17

Churches Type 11 A $ 104. 68

Churches Type 11 B $ 99. 09

Churches Type III A $ 113. 05

Churches Type III B $ 107. 47

1- 2 Convalescent Hospitals Type I or I B. $ 194, 00

Convalescent Hospitals Type 11 A $ 135. 38

Convalescent Hospitals Type III A $ 138. 17

Convalescent Hospitals Type V A $ 129. 80

R- 3 Dwellings Type V Adobe $ 170. 27

Dwellings Type V Masonry $ 135. 38

Dwellings Type V Wood Frame _ 12-8 40

Dwellings Basements ( semi -finished) $ 32, 10

Dwellings Additions - Wood Frame $ 153. 52

Dwellings Solariums $ 129. 80

Dwellings Cabana - Pool House ( Type V) $ 120. 03

B/ R/ S Fire Stations Type I or I B $ 159. 11

Fire Stations Type 11 A $ 104. 68

Fire Stations Type 11 B $ 99. 09

Fire Stations Type III A $ 114. 45

Fire Stations Type III B $ 110. 26

Fire Stations Type V A $ 107. 47

Fire Stations Type V B $ 101. 88

A- 3 Fitness Centers Same values as Office Buildings $ - 

1- 2 Hospitals Type lAorl B. $ 227. 49

Hospitals Type III A $ 188. 42

R- 1 Hotels & Motels Type lAorl B. $ 14096

Hotels & Motels Type III A $ 122. 82

Hotels & Motels Type III B $ 11

5E.
84

Hotels & Motels Type V A $ 106. 07

Hotels & Motels Type V B $ 104. 68

9



R

jr120,
45- 2016

79. 55

55. 83

City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Occuparrc Use Type of Construction

F Industrial Plants Type I A or I E

Industrial Plants Type 11 A

Industrial Plants Type 11 B ( Stock) 

Industrial Plants Type III A

Industrial Plants Type III B

Industrial Plants Tilt- up

Industrial Plants Type V A

Industrial Plants Type V B

B Medical Offices Type lAorl B. 

Medical Offices Type 11 A

Medical Offices Type 11 B

Medical Offices Type III A

Medical Offices Type III B

Medical Offices Type V A

Medical Offices Type V B

B Offices Type I or I B. 

Offices Type 11 A

Offices Type 11 B

Offices Type III A

Offices Type III B

Offices Type V A

Offices Type V B

U Private Garages Wood Frame - Finished

Private Garages Wood Frame - Unfinished

Private Garages Masonry

Private Garages Open Carports

B Public Buildings Type I or I B. 

Public Buildings Type 11 A

Public Buildings Type 11 B

Public Buildings Type III A

Public Buildings Type III B

Public Buildings Type V A

Public Buildings Type V B

S- 2 Public Garages Type I or I B. 

Public Garages Type I or 11 Open Parking

Public Garages Type 11 B

Public Garages Type III A

Public Garages Type III B

Public Garages Type V A

A- 2 Restaurants Type III A

Restaurants Type III B

Restaurants Type V A

Restaurants Type V B

E Schools Type I or I B. 

Schools Type 11 A

Schools Type III A

Schools Type III B

Schools Type V A

Schools Type V B

R

jr120,
45- 2016

79. 55

55. 83



Occu

M

X

A- 1

61, 

City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Use Type of Construction 2015- 201

S rlafici s " tyr,,e IIB $ 93. 51rmvi

Service Stations Type III A $ 97. 70

Service Stations Type V A $ 83. 74

Service Stations Pump Island Canopies $ 39. 08

Stores ` Type I or I B. $ 114. 45

Stores Type II A

Stores Type II B

Stores Type III A

Stores Type III B

Stores Type V A

Stores Type V B

Stores Retail Garden Center ( Type V B) 

Theatres Type I or I B. 

Theatres Type III A

Theatres Type III B

Theatres Type V A

Theatres Type V B

Warehouses `" Type I or I B. 

Warehouses "" Type II A

Warehouses "` Type II B

Warehouses °` Type III A

Warehouses "` Type III B

Warehouses " Type V A

Warehouses " Type V B

NOTE: 

1. Add 0. 5 percent to the total cost for each story over three

2. Deduct 11 percent for mini -warehouse

3. For subdivisions with 10 or more single family dwellings which have
plan check and building permit issuances in groups of 10 or more, the

valuation or the plan check and building permit fees may be increased

MISCELLANEOUS

Agricultural Building. 

Aluminum Siding, 

Antennas Radio over 30 ft. high

Antennas Dish, 10 ft. dia w/ decoder

Awning or Canopy

supported by building) Aluminum

Awning or Canopy

supported by building) Canvas

Balcony

Decks ( wood) 

Demolition of Building

Fence or Freestanding Wall Wood or Chain Link

Fence or Freestanding Wall Wood Frame with Stucco

Fence or Freestanding Wall Wire

Fence or Freestanding Wall Masonry

Fence or Freestanding Wall Wrought Iron



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Use Type of Construction 2015- 2010
WhOe RenuM) ft ol budding
Greenhouse 6. 98

Manufactured Housing ( 25% of 30. 70

value of " site built" house) 1

Mobile Home 30. 70

Patio Wood Frame with Cover 11. 17

Patio Metal Frame with Cover

Patio Wood Frame Cover & Walls 15. 35

Patio Metal Frame Cover & Walls 18. 14

Patio Screen or Plastic Walls 4. 19

Plastering Inside 4. 19

Plastering Outside 4. 19

Retaining Wall Concrete or Masonry 22. 33

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Built- up 170. 27

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Composition Shingles 159. 11

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Fiberglass Shingles 159. 11

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Asbestos Cement Shingles 378. 23

Reroofing ( 11 square = 100 square
feet) Wood Shingles ( Class C min) 378. 23

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Wood Shakes ( Class C min) 378. 23

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Aluminum Shingles 570. 83_ 

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Clay Tile 478. 72

Reroofing ( 1 square = 100 square
feet) Concrete Tile 404. 74

Roof Structure Replacement 1814

Saunas ( Steam) 11, 21702

Spa or Hot Tub (" Jacuzzi@") 9. 203, 06

Stairs 18. 14

Stone and Brick Veneer 11. 17

Storage Racks per CF 1. 40

Swimming Pool ( per sf surface area) Vinyl - lined

Swimming Pool ( per sf surface area) Gunite

Swimming Pool ( per sf surface area) Fiberglass

0. 027

hazardous ' h' occupancies

Tenant Improvements hazardous ' h' occupancies
58 62

Tenant Improvements Other such as stores & offices 42. 13

0



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

OccuEancyl Use I Type of Construction ) 2015- 201( 

General Additions and Modifiers 0. 027

Fire Sprinkler System 3. 63

Air Conditioning - Commercial 5. 86

Air Conditioning - Residential 4, 88

Fireplace -Concrete or masonry 4, 494. 06

Fireplace -prefabricated metal 3, 055. 13

Pile Foundations Cast - in- place concrete piles 29. 31

Pile Foundations Steel piles 72. 57

Alterations to Existing Structures

9

with no additional Floor Area or Roof Cover) 0. 027

Interior Partition 66. 99

Doors 20. 94

Close Exterior Wall Opening 19. 54

Shell Buildings

B Banks Type I or I B, 

Banks Type II A P1252Banks Type II B

Banks Type III A

Banks Type III B

Banks Type V A 121. 70

Banks Type V B 117. 24

B Medical Offices Type I or I B. 133. 98

Medical Offices Type II A 102. 72

Medical Offices Type II B 98, 26

Medical Offices Type III A 111. 65

Medical Offices Type III B 103. 84

Medical Offices Type V A 100. 49

Medical Offices Type V B 97. 14

B Offices Type I or I B, 119. 47

Offices Type II A 80. 39

Offices Type II B 75, 92

Offices Type III A 85. 97

Offices Type III B 82. 62

Offices Type V A 80. 39

Offices Type V B 75. 92

A- 2 Restaurants Type III A 109. 42

Restaurants Type III B 104. 95

Restaurants Type V A 1 $ 99. 37

Restaurants Type V B 96. 02

Stores Type I or I B. 91. 56

Stores Type II A 55. 83

Stores Type II B 54. 71

Stores Type III A 68. 11

Stores Type III B 64. 76
Stores Type V A 58, 06

Stores Type V B 53. 59

9



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Im



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - ENGINEERING

Description Fee Deposit Comments

Amending Map/ Certificate of Correction 1, 000. 00

Document Preparation and/ or Recordation 85. 00 See Note 1

Encroachment Permits

Minor 350. 00 See Note 2

Major 750. 00 See Note 2

Roll -off trash container, event, or maintenance 50. 00

Grading Permit

Minor Grading ( 50 - 150 cu. Yds.) 1, 500. 00

Major Grading (> 150 cu. Yds.) 5, 000. 00

Construction Change 500, 00

Improvement Plan Check - Residential

1- 4 dwelling units 2, 500. 00

5- 25 more dwelling units 6, 000. 00

Over 25 dwelling units 15, 000, 00

Construction Change 500. 00

Improvement Plan Check - Commercial/ Industrial

Minor 1, 500. 00 See Note 3

Major 2, 500. 00 See Note 4

Construction Change 500. 00

Monitoring Well Permit 200. 00 per well

Parcel Map 3, 500. 00

Streets

Street OpeningNacation/ Quitclaims 2, 000. 00

Subdivision Map
5- 25 lots 6, 000, 00

more than 25 lots 12, 000. 00

Transportation Permit

Single Trip or Rider 16. 00 See Note 5

Annual 90. 00

Water Quality Document Review 150. 00

NOTES: 

1, See Engineering Agreement Check List Bulletin. 

2. At the discretion of the City Engineer: 

Minor Encroachment permits shall apply to a single parcel requiring no more than 500 square feet

of Right - of -Way ( including Traffic Control). 

Major Encroachment permits shall apply to multiple parcels & single parcels requiring more than

500 square feet of Right - of -Way ( including Traffic Control). 

3. Minor Improvement Plan Check- Com/ Ind shall apply to a single parcel requiring no more than 500

square feet of Right - of -Way. 

4. Major Improvement Plan Check- Com/ Ind shall apply to multiple parcels & single parcels requiring

more than 500 sq ft of Right - of -Way. 

5, Special Service Charge for each hour ($ 50/ hour) expended directly on engineering investigations, 

routing definition, coordination, and control of permit movement for each individual which meets

any one of three following criteria: 

a. Loads in excess of 14 feet wide

b. Loads in excess of 135 feet in overall length

c. Loads that are of a weight that requires more than a 13 -axle, single - vehicle width hauling

combination ( approximately 370, 000 lbs) 

11



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - ENGINEERING

Description Fee Deposit Comments

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

12



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - PLANNING

Description

Address - new ( not associated with TPMITM) 

Appeal ( City Council Interpretation) 

Boundary Adjustment
Application

Certificate of Compliance

Community Housing Conversion Permit
Conditional Use Permit

Application

Modification

Time Extension ( Staff Review) 

Time Extension ( PC/ CC Review) 

General Plan/ Specific Plan Amendment

Manuals and Maps

City of Lemon Grove Master EIR ( MEIR) 
Downtown Village Specific Plan

General Plan

General Plan Implementation Manual

General Plan Map

Housing Element
Redevelopment Plan

Zoning Map
Compact Disc ( CD) of a document listed above

Minor Use Permit

Application

Modification

Time Extension ( Staff Review) 

Time Extension ( PC/ CC Review) 

Parkland Fees ( in -lieu fee per dwelling unit) 
RL, RL/ M zones ( or 762. 3 s. f.) 

RM, RM/ H zones ( or 544. 5 s. f.) 

DVSP zone

R/ P, CC, GC zones ( or 435, 6 s. f.) 

Planned Development Permit

Residential

Application

Modification

Commercial/ Industrial

Application

Modification

Time Extension ( Staff Review) 

Time Extension ( PC/ CC Review) 

Pre -Application Review

Signs ( Planning) 

Standard ( Wall, Freestanding, Projecting) 
Business Complex

Business Complex Modification

Special Event and Temporary
Substantial Conformance Review ( SCR) 

Temporary Use Permits
Sidewalk Sales

Group Assembly ( Carnivals, Fairs, Concerts, Shows, Parades) 
Special Events ( Christmas tree lots) 

Non - Profit ( special events) 

Trailer Coach Permit

Tentative Map ( Major Subdivision, 5+ lots) 
Application - base deposit amount

Additional deposit - $ 125 per lot ( 5- 25 lots) 

Additional deposit - $ 100 per lot ( 26- 50 lots) 

Additional deposit - $ 75 per lot ( 51+ lots) 

Revised Map
Time Extension

Tentative Parcel Map ( Minor Subdivision) 
Application

Revised Map

Time Extension

13

Fee Deposit Comments

11

1, 800. 00 Includes Certificate of Compliance

150. 00

2, 000. 00

300. 00

100. 00

100. 00

100. 00

900. 00

639. 00

639. 00

513. 00

2, 000. 00

525. 00

2, 000. 00 (__ one acre) 

1, 000. 00

250. 00

350. 00

500. 00

6000 per sign

100. 00

100. 00

20, 00

200, 00

50. 00 $ 250. 00 Clean- up deposit - See Note 1
100. 00 $ 250. 00 Clean- up deposit - See Note 1

50, 00 $ 250. 00 Clean- up deposit - See Note 1
10. 00

50, 00

4, 500. 00

2, 000. 00

35000

3, 000. 00

1, 700. 00

35000



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - PLANNING

Description Fee Deposit Comments

Variance $ 750. 00

Minor Modification $ 100. 00

Time Extension $ 350. 00

Zoning Amend ment/ Reclass if! cation $ 1, 000. 00

Zoning Clearance ( ZC) $ 150. 00

NOTES: 

1. Clean- up deposit may be waived at the discretion of the Development Services Director. 
2. The total cost of processing a planning application is based on staff hours spent ( rounded to the nearest quarter hour) 

charged at the weighted rate provided in Appendix A, plus all direct costs

3. Environmental analysis costs will be charged against the deposit. 

4. Costs for technical studies and/ or environmental impact reports are not included and will be borne by the applicant. 
5. Fees from other agencies are not included in this schedule. 

6. Hourly rates adjusted annually - see Appendix A. 

7. Direct costs of required public noticing shall be deducted from the application deposit. 

14



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

FIRE

Description

Plan Check Fees

Plan Review

Single Family Residence

Multi - family Residential
Commercial

Automatic Fire Sprinkler System ( basic) 

Alarm System ( basic/ TI) 

Fire Protection System - Outside Review

General Plan Review - Outside Review

Outside Plan Review Administrative Fee

Alteration to Existing Fire Sprinkler System ( TI) 
Other Fire Protection System

Tenant Improvement

Special Extinguishing Systems
Inspection Fees

Alarm System Inspection

Apartment Building ( 1- 14 units) 

Apartment Building ( 15- 50 units) 

Apartment Building ( 51 + units) 

Assembly ( Small) 

Assembly ( Large) 
Care Facilities ( More than 6 occupants) 

Care Facility ( Preinspection) 
Code Compliance re - inspection ( First) 

Code Compliance re - inspection ( Subsequent) 

Commercial Inspection ( Medium) 

Commercial Inspection ( Large) 

Convalescent Facilities

Educational Facilities

Fire Sprinkler Inspection ( Residential) 

Fire Sprinkler Inspection ( Commercial) 

Special Extinguishing Systems ( Hood) 
Small Business

Stand Pipe System

Cost Recovery Fees
After Hour Inspection

Deposition/ Interview

Duty Chief

Engine Company
Fire Alarm Malfunction

Malicious False Alarm

Incident Dispatch Fee

Incident Photo Copies

Incident Report Copies

Audio Tape

Compact Disc ( CD) 

15

Fee Comments

65. 00

275. 00 per floor

275. 00 per floor

110. 00

110. 00

Cost of Consultant/ Reviewer

Cost of Consultant/ Reviewer

Up to 25% of Review Cost
110. 00

130. 00

80. 00

150. 00

110. 00

80. 00

110. 00

165. 00

30. 00

55. 00

55. 00

60. 00

30. 00

110. 00

110. 00

250. 00

130. 00

110. 00

55. 00

110. 00

70. 00

30. 00

85. 00

96. 00 per hour

96, 00 per hour

94. 00 per hour

155. 00 per hour

155. 00 2 alarms/ 30 days or 3/ 6 mos

155. 00

50. 00

10. 00 per photo

015 per page

10. 00

10. 00



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

FIRE

Description

Annual Fire Code Permit Fees

Aerosol Products

Aircraft Refueling
Aircraft Repairs

Asbestos Removal

Assembly Occupancies

Automotive Wrecking Yard

Battery System

Bowling Alley
Candles/Open Flame

Carnivals/ Fairs

Cellulose Nitrate Storage

Christmas Tree Lots

Class 1 Liquid ( 5- 10 Gallons) 

Class 1 Flammable Liquids (> 10 Gallons) 

Combustible Fiber Storage

Commercial Rubbish Handling
Compressed Gasses

Cryogens

Dry Cleaning Plants

Dust Producing Operations

Explosives or Blasting
Fireworks Display

Fruit Ripening
Green Waste

Hazardous Materials

High Pile Combustible Storage

Hot Work Operations ( Tar Pots) 

Liquefied Petroleum Gases (> 55 Gallons) 

Lumber Yards

Magnesium Working
Mall -Covered

Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing

Open Burning
Organic Coatings

Ovens - Industrial

Pyrotechnic Special Affects

Radioactive Materials

Refrigeration Equipment

Removal of Above Ground Tank

Removal of Underground Tank

Repair Garages

Spraying and Dipping Operations
Tank Vehicles, Plants

Temporary Structures - Tent - Canopy
Tire Storage

Underground Tank Installation

Use/ Modify Pipe Line
Wood Products

16

Fee Comments

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

85. 00

85, 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

85. 00

85. 00

30. 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

55. 00

85. 00

110. 00

110. 00

85. 00

110. 00

165. 00

85. 00

55. 00

55. 00

110. 00

55. 00

165. 00

85. 00

30. 00

85. 00

85. 00

110. 00

85. 00

110, 00

110. 00

110. 00

85. 00

85. 00

85, 00

70. 00

110. 00

135. 00

140. 00

110. 00



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

GENERAL

Description Fee Comments

Administrative Citation

Unaltered

First Citation 10000

Second Citation 200. 00

Third Citation 500,00

Fourth Citation 1, 000. 00

Processing Fee - Code Enforcement Lien 480. 00 One hour rate ( cost recovery) 

Late Payment Penalty 25% of fine plus 10% per month interest on delinquent fine

Copy Fees ( paper)* 

500

8 1/ 2 X 11 0. 20

8 1/ 2 X 11 Calor 1. 30

8 1/ 2 X 14 0. 35

8 1/ 2 X 14 Color 1. 80

11 X 17 " B" 0. 65

11 X 17 " B" Color 2. 30

18 X 24 " C" 3. 55

24 X 36 " D" 4. 55

36 X 42 " E" 6. 00

Note: Government Code Section 81008 limits the cost for campaign finance documents to . 10 cents per page and

a retrieval fee not to exceed five dollars per request for copies of reports and statements which are five or more

years old. A request for more than one report or statement or report and statement at the same time shall be

considered a single request. 

Copy Fees ( other media) 
Audio Tape 3. 50

Compact Disc ( CD) 3. 50

Credit Card Fees- VISA/ Mastercard only. Excludes Discover, debit and prepaid cards) 
Per Transaction 10. 00 min Maximum 3%, not to exceed all merchant' s

charge credit card processing charges

The fee will be charged on all transactions that

are $ 500 and above. It will not be charged for

deposits. The transaction fee will apply for all
transactions conducted on- line, 

Dog License
1 Year License

2 Year License

3 Year License

Puppy License - 1 year
Transfer Fee

Penalty Fee

Tag Replacement Fee

Animal Penalties - Running At Large - altered
1st offense

2nd offense

3rd offense

Animal Penalties - Running At Large -unaltered
1 st offense

2nd offense

3rd offense

Boarding Fee -Impounded Animal
Altered - Per Night

Unaltered - Per Night

Notary Public Services
Per Signature

Storm Water Management Fee

Residential Unit

In - City Business ( HOPs are exempt) 

Out - of -City Business
Apartment Complex ( 6+ units) 

Storm Water Violation

Failure to abate after 5 days of notice

Failure to abate after 10 days of notice

Failure to abate after 15 days of notice

Other

Returned Check Fee

Altered Unaltered

15, 00 4000

N/ A N/ A

3500 7500

N/ A N/ A

10. 00 10, 00

10. 00 25. 00

5. 00 500

Altered

per Table based on Bus. Lic, cost

50. 00

per Table based on Bus Lic, cost

100, 00

per unit

200. 00

100. 00 Reduced to $ 50 if owner agrees to alter dog
200. 00 Reduced to $ 100 if owner agrees to alter dog
300. 00 Reduced to $ 200 if owner agrees to alter dog

15, 00

2500 Reduced to $ 15/ night if owner agrees to alter

dog

10, 00

1500

26--$ 120 per Table based on Bus. Lic, cost

26--$ 120 per Table based on Bus Lic, cost

7, 50 per unit

100. 00

200. 00

500, 00 per day

2500

Other

Citizens Initiative Filing Fee $ 20000

NOTE - Larger projects may be outsourced at full cost recovery

17



GENERAL

Description

City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Fee Comments

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

18



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Description Fee Comments

Parking Violation Notice

72 Hour Parking Restriction 1 $ 5300 LGMC 10. 28. 130

Curb Markings 2 $ 53. 00 LGMC 10. 32. 060

Parking in Violation of Signs 3 $ 53. 00 LGMC 10. 28. 180

Parking of Commercial Vehicle 4 $ 53. 00 LGMC 10. 28. 170

Parking Within 15' of Fire Hydrant 5 $ 53. 00 CVC 22514

Stopping, Standing, or Parking 6 $ 47. 50 CVC 22500 ( a - k) 

Curb Parking 7 $ 47. 50 CVC 22502 ( a - e) 

Plate ( Front/ Back Required) 8 $ 37. 50 CVC 5200

Missing Tabs ( Month/ Year) 9 $ 63. 00 CVC 5204 ( a) 

Bike Lane 10 $ 38. 00 CVC 21211

Parking in Spaces Designated for Disabled

103, 00 CVC 22523

Persons 11 $ 403. 00 CVC 22507, 8

License Plate Cover 12 $ 33. 00 CVC 5201 ( f) ( 2) 

Other Violations

Registration/ Wrong Vehicle 103. 00 CVC 1164 ( B) 

Parking on Public Grounds 28. 00 CVC 21113 ( a) 

Bus Zone 253. 00 CVC 22500 ( 1) 

Blocking Disabled Zone/ Curb Cut 278, 00 CVC 22500 ( 1) 

Fire Lane 38. 00 CVC 22500 1

Parking on Hills 38. 00 CVC 22509

Unattended Vehicle 28. 00 CVC 22515

Locked Vehicle/ Passenger Inside 38. 00 CVC 22516

Less than 7. 5 ft. from R. R. Tracks 28. 00 CVC 22521

3ft. From Handicapped Ramp 275. 00 CVC 22522

Abandoned Vehicle 103, 00 CVC 22523

Blocking Intersection 53. 00 CVC 22526

Store Open Container/ Pass Comp. 38. 00 CVC 23226

Stop/ Park in Vehicle Crossing 28. 00 CVC 23333

Vehicle With Unlawful Lighting Device 3100 CVC 24003

Dimmed Lights on Parked Vehicles 33, 00 CVC 24401

Lamp or Flag on Projections 33. 00 CVC 24604

Reflectors on Rear 33, 00 CVC 24607

Reflectors on Front and Sides 33. 00 CVC 24608

Unlawful Flashing Lights 33, 00 CVC 25250

Flashing Lights Required 33. 00 CVC 25251

Warn Dev/ Disabled, Parked Vehicle 33. 00 CVC 25300

Set Parking Brakes 33. 00 CVC 26451

Fuel Tank Caps 33. 00 CVC 27155

Registration 53. 00 CVC 4000 ( a) 

Positioning of Plates 33. 00 CVC 5201

Commercial Veh/ Weight Fees Due 13300 CVC 9400

Repairing/ Washing/ Offering Sale in Street 38. 00 LGMC 10. 28, 140

No Parking in Alley 3800 LGMC 10. 32. 090

Other LGMC Violation 3800

Penalty for all above violations $ 35. 00 Penalty assessed if not
paid within 21 days of the

date of the notice. 

Vehicle Impound

Administrative Fee for Release $ 7000

Serious Traffic Offender Program ( STOP) $ 65. 00

19



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Description Fee Comments

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

20



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Public Works - Facilities

Description Fee Comments

Rental Facilities

50. 00

Senior Center* 

Fee- Commercial

Without Alcohol

200. 00 deposit*** 

Fee 850. 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit

With Alcohol

80. 00

Fee 1, 150. 00 + $ 300. 00 deposit

Special Event 1, 500. 00 $ 400 deposit

Community Center* 
Without Alcohol

No Staff Required

Fee - Non - profits 450. 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit

Fee - All Others 520. 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit

With Alcohol

Monday - Thursday 5pm- 10pm

Fee - Non- profit 700. 00 + $ 300. 00 deposit

Fee - All Others 800. 00 + $ 300. 00 deposit

Special Event 1, 100. 00 + $ 400 deposit

H Lee House Courtyard* 

Without Alcohol

30

Fee - Non- profit 300. 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit

Fee -All Others 350. 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit

With Alcohol

50

Fee - Non- profit 400, 00 + $ 300. 00 deposit

Fee -All Others 550, 00 + $ 300. 00 deposit

Special Event 80000 + $ 400 deposit

Recreation Center Gymnasium - Entire Facility— 
Fee- Non- Commercial 60, 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit— 

Fee- Commercial 100, 00 + $ 200. 00 deposit— 

Gymnasium Only— 
Fee- Non- Commercial 50. 00 200. 00 deposit— 

Fee- Commercial 80. 00 200. 00 deposit*** 

Park Gazebos ( Berry Street Park & Lemon Grove Park)** 
Fee -Small 80. 00

Fee - Large 100. 00

Non Profit meetings: 

No Staff Required

Monday - Thursday Sam- 5pm 20 per use + $ 25. 00 set up fee

Monday - Thursday 5pm- 10pm 20 per use + $ 25. 00 set up fee

Friday -Sunday 30 per hour

Staff Required

Monday -Thursday 8am- 5pm 30 per use + $ 25. 00 set up fee

Monday - Thursday 5pm- 10pm 30 per use + $ 25. 00 set up fee

Friday -Sunday 50 per hour

Eight ( 8) hour rate Four ( 4) hour rate available at half the 8 hour rate plus $ 50. Additional per hour i

Hourly Rate

Deposit may be waived at the discretion of the Department Director. 

21



City ofLemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Description pee Comments

Public Works ' Recreational Programs

1041100 per session

Adult* 

Basketball fee 200. 00 per team +$ o. noequipment fee

Softball fee 385. 00 per team +$ n. 00equipment fee

Volleyball fee 200. 00 per team +$ s. 00equipment fee

voxovoun Women' s Individual 45. 00 per season ' Queen mthe Court' 

Winners meach adult league and playoffs shall receive udiscount m$ oo $ onoontheir next league

Classes 1041100 per session

Youth

Pee Wee Sports ( first session) 27. 00 includes at -mm

Pee Wee Sports ( additional sessions) 22, 00 each session

ouvkowan 50. 00

Basketball Club League - Team 225. 00 per team

Day Camp 35- 100 amount depends ""[ he number of pamcpati

Flag Football moxo

Indoor Soccer oo» o

c| aovov 1041100 per session

Banner Installation Fee 20. 00 per installation

22



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

SANITATION DISTRICT

Description Fee Comments

New System Connection Permit Fee $ 1, 000. 00 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit ( EDU) 

Annual Sewer Service Charge' 

Residential

General Commercial, Professional, 

Industrial

Food Service Establishments

Hotels & Motels

Self- service Laundry

Churches, Theaters & Auditoriums

Schools

NK

534. 62 per EDU

Minimum of 1. 2 EDUs charged

Minimum of 3 EDUs charged

Based upon number of living units - w or w/o kitcher

1 EDU per washer

Minimum of 1. 5 EDUs charged

Minimum of 1 EDU, based upon number of pupils



Description

City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2015- 16

Fee Comments

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

24



City of Lemon Grove Master Fee Schedule
FY 2014- 15

APPENDIX A - HOURLY RATES

Position Title LoadedRate
Assistant City Engineer 41

Associate Civil Engineer 60

Building Inspector ( EsGil Corporation)* 83

Building Official ( EsGil Corporation)* 100

City Attorney ( Lounsbery, Ferguson, Altona & Peak) 210

City Engineer 75

Code Enforcement Officer/ Water Quality Inspector 41

Crime Prevention Specialist ( County of San Diego) 68

Fire Inspectors 34

Development Services Director 79

Development Services Technician 43

Electrical Engineer ( EsGil Corporation)* 105

Energy Plans Examiner ( ExGil Corporation)* 105

Engineering Inspector 43

Engineering Tech III 43

Management Analyst 47

Mechanical Engineer ( EsGil Corporation)* 105

Plans Examiner ( EsGil Corporation)* 90

Public Works Director 77

Principal Planner 59

Structural Engineer ( EsGil Corporation)* 120

Supervising Building Inspector ( EsGil Corporation)* 90

Esg4 rates are increased by a factor of 1, 5 for overtime, holiday and weekend assignments

NZ



LEMON GROVE ;CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3

Mtg. Date June 2, 2'01

Dept. I n r fii e'— 

Item Title: : City Council Salary, 

Staff Contact: : Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Recommendation: 

Introduce and conduct the first reading, by title only, of Ordinance No. 429 ( Attachment B), 
establishing City Council salaries after the 2016 municipal election and a resolution
Attachment C) adjusting the automobile reimbursement allowance.! 

Item Summary: 

In 2014, the City Council discussed compensation for elected officials representing the City. The

topic was raised during the budget discussion on May 19, 2015. The City Council has not adjusted
City Council compensation since October 2007. The purpose of this staff report is to recommend
adjustments to the City Council salary and auto allowance rates. Staff has prepared a report
Attachment A) that provides background information and an analysis of the proposed rate

adjustments. Staff has also prepared an ordinance ( Attachment B) adjusting the City Council
salary that would take effect after the 2016 municipal election and a resolution ( Attachment C) 
adjusting the City Council auto allowance. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Adjusting City Council compensation will have an annual budget impact of $ 6, 759 beginning in
December 2016. Adoption of the resolution modifying auto allowance will have a $ 1, 500 impact on

the FY 2015- 16 budget— the impact on the General Fund will $ 1, 125. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. : Ordinance No. 429

C. Resolution' 

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft.. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE ' CITY COUNCIL, 

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 3

Mtg. Date June 2, 2015

Item Title: ' City Council Salary', 

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manage

Discussion: 

On several occasions, the City Council has deferred action on considering an adjustment to its
compensation. The last time an adjustment occurred was after the 2008 municipal election. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 36516, a City Council may increase its salary by a
maximum of five percent per year from the operative date of the last adjustment. Between 2008

and the 2016 ( the year of the next municipal election), based on California code, the City
Council may legally adjust its salary by 40 percent ( 8 years multiplied by 5 percent). 

Alternatively, since 2008, the consumer price index has increased by 10.6 percent ( based on
the San Diego region according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics). Using consumer price index
forecasts, staff anticipates increases by 1. 5 percent in 2015 and 1. 8 percent in 2016. Based on

these increases, the City Council may consider a salary increase of 13. 9 percent that would be
effective after the 2016 municipal election. 

The last time the City Council adjusted its auto allowance was on July 1, 2006. Since July 1, 
2006, the consumer price index has increased by 16. 8 percent. Based on this increase, the

City Council may also consider an auto allowance adjustment of 16. 8 percent, which would
become effective July 1, 2015. 

Staff has prepared an ordinance ( Attachment B) that adjusts the City Council salary by 13. 9
percent and a resolution ( Attachment C) that adjusts the City Council auto allowance by 16. 8
percent. 

Using the consumer price index method, monthly salaries for City Council members increase
from $ 705 to $ 803 and the salary for the Mayor increases from $ 1, 234 to $ 1, 405. 25. This

increase will have an annual impact of $ 6, 759 beginning in 2016. Also, using the consumer
price index method, the monthly auto allowance would increase from $ 150 to $ 175. The impact

on the FY 2015- 16 budget is $ 1, 500—$ 1, 125 of which is allocated to the City' s General Fund. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 429 ( Attachment B), an

ordinance establishing City Council salaries, and conduct its first reading, by title only. Staff also
recommends that the City Council consider adopting a resolution ( Attachment C) establishing
an adjusted auto allowance rate. 



Attachment B

ORDINANCE NO. 429

ORDINANCE OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING LEMON GROVE

MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2. 16. 010 ESTABLISHING CITY COUNCIL SALARIES

WHEREAS, California Government Code 36516 regulates the process by which a city
council may increase its salary; and

WHEREAS, effective October 16, 2007, Ordinance No. 365 established the rate of

salary for the City Council and Mayor; and

WHEREAS, after review and discussion, the City Council has determined it appropriate
to adjust salary ranges within the rate of increase as prescribed by California Government Code
36516; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code 36516.5, the adjusted salary rate
will not become effective until the seating of the City Council after the certification of the 2016
Lemon Grove municipal election. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove
that Section 2. 16. 010 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

2. 16.010 Established. 

A. Salaries for members of the city council are established pursuant to the provisions of
the Government Code in the sum of eight hundred and three dollars ($ 803. 00) per month. 

B. Effective Date. Payment of compensation at said established level shall commence

upon certification of the results of the Lemon Grove municipal election in the year 2016. 



Attachment B

IA



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

ESTABLISHING THE RATE OF AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCE POLICY FOR CITY COUNCIL

MEMBERS

WHEREAS, in 2006, the City Council, by way of Resolution No. 2636, established an
Automobile Reimbursement Allowance Policy; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2636, established an Automobile Reimbursement Allowance

rate of one hundred fifty dollars ($ 150. 00) per month to pay for the use of personal vehicles for
short trips, defined as twenty ( 20) miles or less; and

WHEREAS, the cost of operating an automobile has increased since 2006; and

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to establish an equitable Automobile

Reimbursement Allowance for short vehicle trips; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, by applying a Consumer Price Index rate since 2006, 
deems that an adjusted rate of one hundred seventy- five dollars ($ 175. 00) per month is

equitable. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby directs that the Automobile Reimbursement Allowance be established
at one hundred seventy-five dollars ($ 175. 00) per month, effective July 1, 2015. 

m7_ 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. DateJune 2— 2015
Dept. mit Mana er's Office

Item Title: Recreation Focus Group

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager and Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Provide feedback to staff on 1) the scope of work to be performed by the Recreation Focus
Group, and 2) the composition of the Recreation Focus Group. 

Item Summary: 

During the City Council' s goal setting workshop and ensuing discussions, the City Council
identified a priority in 2015 to conduct a focus group to explore the establishment of a Recreation
Council. The purpose of this agenda item is to seek feedback from the City Council on the scope
of work to be performed by the Recreation Focus Group. The staff report ( Attachment A) 

recommends an expanded scope of work to what was initially discussed by the City Council. The

staff report also identifies staff' s recommendation regarding the composition of the Recreation
Focus Group. I

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

F. Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date June 2. 2015

Item Title: Recreation Focus Group

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager and Mike James, Public Works Director

Discussion: 

One of the priorities discussed during the City Council goal setting workshop earlier this year
was the establishment of a focus group to explore the establishment of a Recreation Council. 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek feedback from the City Council on the scope of work
to be performed by the Recreation Focus Group. Also, to help with the recruitment process, 
staff seeks feedback on the composition of the focus group. 

Scope of Work

During the City Council' s goal setting workshop, the initial intent expressed by the City Council
was to form a focus group to explore the potential establishment of a Recreation Council. Staff

recommends that the focus group expand its discussion to the broader topic of recreation
services. Staff recommends that the focus group be tasked with the following scope of work: 

1) Identify the existing recreational opportunities for Lemon Grove residents in and near the
City, 

2) Identify recreational needs in the community, including barriers and opportunities to
meeting those needs, and

3) Provide a recommendation on the role a Recreation Council can play in the community, 
including the Recreation Council' s form, whether it is a City established entity, its
purpose, staff time required to support, funding issues/ opportunities, etc. 

Staff envisions that the focus group members will be asked to conduct research, perform
analysis, and seek community feedback in order to present its findings to the City Council. 

Focus Group Composition

Staff recommends that the focus group be limited to 20 members. Staff recommends that the

City solicit participation from residents and local business owners. In addition, staff

recommends that the City Council invite two members of the Planning Commission and two
representatives of the Lemon Grove School District to participate on the focus group. 

Focus Group Recruitment

Once the scope of work is determined, staff will begin soliciting interest by advertising on the
City' s website, Facebook page, press releases, and e -notification services. Staff recommends

using a similar one- page application as the City has for past focus groups. The form asks

applicants to provide information about work and community experience ( including volunteer
activities and experience or special knowledge that would be helpful on the focus group). The

form also asks potential focus group members why they would like to serve on the focus group. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council provide feedback on the Recreation Focus Group' s
scope of work and composition. 

3. 


